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Fli.ﬁ{lﬂ-lﬂ_!‘h. Jawnhir Singh, Sham Bingh, Bl ._.'

- Phe father of Khushal Singh was a Bralman shop-kee:
tJmGﬁnr elass, and resided at Ikvi, in the Sardhang pars

2 of the Mirut distriet. Theteamily was poor, and in th
.~ year 1807, Khushal, a young man of seventeen, came i

': Lahore to seek his fortune, and was taken mto the Dhonk
* Singhwala Regiment, then newly raised, on five ripees m

‘;_:l_!unth He soon made friends with Jatri and Gm;ga,s
" the Maharaja’s chamberlainz, and was placed on the perso
- guard of Ranjit Singh. Here, by his vigilance, aided by

- looks and soldierly bearing, he attracted the favourable 1 Hige

ufﬂwﬂahnm]a The story told by the family is trlnt, 4

L mght, Ranjit Singh went out in disguise, :p.nd on his retum

~ to the palace was stupped by Khushal, who was on gy =l
"ﬂu: kept his master in the watch-house till the morni
f. this vigilance pleased the Maharaja so, much
Khuslml by Ium, as a personal attend: '

.'+.



- il inlSiJ,hawuappmtﬁM
aamberiain, with the title of Jamadar, The appoint:
B8 one of importance. The ehamberlain was master of
monies, regulated processions, and superintended the D:
ar. It was through him alone that any individoal, howe
fiigh in rank, could obtain a private interview with the Maha- :
althongh the daﬂyDatbarmnpen to all men of family

is {l!hg etiquette at Iﬂme, when the Maharaja went crw
was as follows. First went one hundred troopers, two abreast,
Lhen the Maharaja, with foot-orderlies at his stirrups, and ©

n wmbrella bearer ; the princes immediately belind ; then the I
‘_"; 8 and Barons, mounted, each with his umhrallnbaanrg.
ad laatl]-, the elephants and led horses. If the Maharain

? on an elephant, the Sardars must do the same i he m‘r

] maanuln,thawﬂtmwmmmm P~ o
- Thﬂmfmﬂmtm hal obtained the charge of the

9rhi, he summoned from F&ﬁm his nephew Tej Ram, thenm &
oy of twelve, In 1812, by ot the pakal (the Sikh baptism)
j Ram did not take the pahal tiﬂ;r
b ﬂm Maharaja's express orders. He

= Te.] ajngh t—h{}llgh he was Hltﬂ.ﬂ&'ﬁﬂ!' .
called Teja 5“‘? h Tej Singh is, however, the correct '__ _'

~ soon grew both ﬁcllnndpuw?rful.. Hnsl‘.
.u.ppointments were given hy‘hm, Wlﬂlﬂ'ﬂ :
Jon; mpmmﬁahingapmm Eu&lﬂ;: -
+ would give the chamberlain large IS
(e used to read the daily reports of thea
: A W ]mmhegantﬂemplﬂl‘hm“nm“’
(=i mﬁ. 1 oy _& WS ol q

Ehﬂﬂllal Singh




: nflahnre,mﬂrmmnad fﬂrfﬂur months in thu
accompanied the Maharaja in the first Kashmir campaig

814. Raja Agar Khan of Rajaur proved a very treac .
ally. He misled Ranjit Singh as to the numher {rf e
enemy, and advised a division of the army ; one dets
10 pass into Kashmir by the Bhara Gala route, and t
body to proceed by Punch. This advice mful]mrad,tn 5
rwin of the expedition. - Both divisions of the army were sur
- rounded, their supplies cut off, and they finally were compelled
[0 retire in all haste to Laliore. The retreat was a disastrons
one, The Jamadar commanded the advance to clear the 1o -_
- of the enemy, while Hari Singh Nalwa, Nahal Singh Atar -
'_ ‘and Mit Singh Padhania covered the rear. Msny men
2 lost, and Sardar Mit Singh himself mortally wnundai
'-::~;-, Singh, who had been created a Sardar, was, in thig
eampaign, in close attendance on the Maharaja. The next
,-| ary serviee in which the Jamadar was concerned '
8 third and last siege of Multan in 1818, Prince Kha: :'._'
;Ei:ngh nnmmn]l}' commanded the army, but it was the m
_ m genius of Misar Diwan Chand that secured .-u...:
| The Jamadar was in command at the Tomb of Shamash
. Tﬁbraz.
 Soon after the capture of Multan, the Jagadar fell s
t]ut mt.n disfavour. Hiz brother Ram Lal had amva&;
in 1816, and had received an appointment m
j-guard. The Maharaja wished him to become a
‘to this neither of the brothers would consent ; and as thy
sha 33 became very urgent on the point, Ram Lal,
mmvmnue of the Jamadar, left the Panjah and
Hmdustan. Bﬂl]'lt slfél ‘WH mmh
L
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|
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_'f-&ugaoi the Daurhx To this Rnn]:t Emg oo

jor Mian Dhian Singh, a young Rajput in the Ghorcharhas,
was now rising into favour, and on him the office of Deork :| '
wals was conferred. The Jamadar was taken by surprise,
- 'maelj’ made no opposition, and retained all his jagirs, and
was admitted to the Couneil, obtaining more real power ﬂ:ﬂﬂ,
T !llﬂhﬂb&fﬂm He received command of four tbmma%
rulars, while Tej Singh waz made General in the regular

-, B&Pﬂﬂr Tej Singh accompanied Misar Diwan Ghand ta

Kashmir in 1819 and in 1821. Both he and the Jamadar
anded divisions in the campaign against Mankera, ]

Dﬁm Ismail Khan; and also in the Peshawar campaign.
;L}?. 823. At the battle of Tehri they were with the Maha.
raja, uppasad to the Yusufzais on the right bank of t - :
-! .u.nlia river ; while the main body of the army, under Sardarvs

Singh Nalwa and Budh Singh Sindhanwalia, were

red with the Barakzai Sardars on the left bank. After

the battle the Sikh army advanced npon Peshawar, after
o taken Jahangira from Firoz Khan Khatak, of Akora.
hawm' was plundered, and the troops pushed on to the

ibar, but little was to he done there; the wild Khaﬂmm

‘ent the ﬂmbank:mentzs of the Bara river, and flooded the Maha-
¢aja’s camp, carrying off in the confusion horses and nﬂmr _
and after g short stay Ranjit Singh returned to Lahore, =
. In 1828 the Jamadar and his nephew, with the Nalwa,

adhania and Majithia Sardars, reduced the Katoch country,
| the forts of Chauki, Aimahgarh, Tira and Riah. The last:
oned place alone offered much resistance ; but Tej Singh




uﬂ]r cared about pleasmg the Maharaja. The. season
832 had been a bad one in Kashmir, and the Jamad

¢ -verte& scarcity into famine by his oppression. The £

“lakhs which Lie managed to serew out of the people ﬂﬂ. e

two-thirds, and the inhabitants forced to leave the country i
ch of bread ; and Ranjit Singh was for a time much dis-
psed, but the Jamadar soon recovered his influence. Genes
Mian Singh was sent to sueceed him in Kashmir wi

y thousand maunds of grain for distribution to the au;':f-
but it was many yvears before Kashmir vecovered its for n--.:k;-j
_,: vsperity, Ram  Lal, brother of Khushal Singh, lmd .
"" irned to the Panjab, and he took command of the Jar
"il'ﬁl’s forees in the Peshawar campaign of 1834 under Snrﬂnr_
: i Singh and Prince Nao Nahal Singh. Jamadar Ki:ms}uf
-- 1 gh and Raja Dhian Singh were in command of the

_"'- s which marched to relieve the Sikh army blockad 4*’ 5

Inmmd in April 1837. Although the Jamadar veach

; al’mhnwar two days before Dhian Singh, he made no aﬁ‘

: .:.E; rphm‘n the Sikh army, which was in the greatest st ;?i;

il the arrival of the Raja. After the retreat of the Afghans,
s Jamadar remained at Peshawar, while Tej Singh _;._'.'

ntdﬁrﬁd to the Chaj Doab to prezerve order. -
~ Ram Singh, the eldest =on of the Jamadar, was, abe

"'_"-t.imn, made a General in the army, although a mere b

He had, however, the passions of a man, and after

peturned in 1837 to Amritsar with the Malaraja, mm

‘brutally, with his own hand, Bishan Singh, brother-i

:'::J_ {Lolonel Chet Singh, & fine young man, who had offs

him by a boyish jest. Such was the influence of the Jam; i

at Ram Singh remained unpunished, with the exee
ae, although his vietim had been a favourite a




T B s R = | iy o
- .:-.l --'-I-. -.. ;.'.-. -.—._-_r.n.n.
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MTE]BmgTim sentto ﬂhﬂrﬁ, mﬂ'm h
rt of Manakgarh near Darband. Tn 1839 he proc
' "" .-.'L. war with the Jﬂmﬂﬂﬂr. Prince Hﬂo Nahal
- a Gulab Singh and other Chiefs to co-operate with the
British army invading Kabul; but the Sikh mpEmtlﬂh, “f
1 | notorious, was more damaging than serviceable, as he
pedition was regarded by the Sikhs with distrust

: Emml Ram Singh died in this year. Although s
el disposition, he was a good officer, and seems turlm':rﬁ'=
v the cleverest of the family. After the accession a!'
aja Kharak Singh, both the Jamadar and Tej Emgff !
1 in the conspiracy against Sardar Chet Singh, fawuntﬁ’ |
of the new Monareh, who had shown ill-feeling towards tham‘& ‘
land had deprived the Jamadar of a portion of hiz command. ;
.:#. the might of the murder, Prince Nao Nahal Singh, Wlﬂt 3
pj Singh and Khushal Singh, remained at the gate of tha ‘
-‘~ ace to guard against a rescue; while the other conspirators, '
the Rajos Gulab Singh and Dhian Singh, and the Sardars,
Fateh Singh Man, Atar Singh Sindhanwalia and Mian Labh
¢ #: lingh, entered the palace and murdered the favourite in'the
' ¥ presence of the Maharaja.
~ While Prince Nao Nahal Singh held power, the famJ]T 1
the Jamadar was treated with great favour; and on hm *
_ b, on the 5th November 1840, hoth Khushal Singh and
' j Singh signed, with the other Chiefs, a paper, by which it |
as agreed that no action should be made in appomtmgﬁ
y -.. to the throne till it was seen whether the wﬂ'm i
Prince or the Mabaraja would bear a son. The sneceed-
ntﬁm well known. The Sindhanwalia Sardars and
Gnlah Singh defended the fort against Prince
e d; while Tej Singh and Khushal Singh kept wﬁelj‘ 1t
ng neither party, but waiting to see what &
wild take. Sher Singl was much irritated by their

-I.l: - i
- . &
o

= : o 'F';n':'.‘.” .‘.




Whuthtadmh,but h}mywmntlength forgrmn,
mtmaamnn of Bhai Gurmukh Singh. But Sher Si
tertained » grudge against the Jamadar, and is said on
ion to have tried to make away with him in a many 5 S
shmﬂd appear accidental. Certain it is that soon after
Bhar Singh’s accession, he was in a pleasure boat on the
ith the Jamadar and AmarSingh .&hluwnha,gr&at-grmﬁ el
- of the present Raja of Kapurthala. The boat wasﬂverbumeli
‘ﬁa Maharaja sprang into another boat alongside ; Amar Bmgh
s drowned, and his body never recovered; while the Jamadar,
B 7_;m)‘l;m managed to escape, swallowed more water than he had
- done for many years. It was generally bﬂhﬁvﬂdmlm
'..; Shrﬂmghmpslaedthﬂbmhmtanmnaﬂy, but this m‘l
_ never be proved.
~ The Jamadar had been in bad health ever since 1340,
- In July 1844 he died, having mixed bus little in politics dur-
iﬂ\g the three last years of his life. In June 1843 he ha.d,
- with Rajas Gulab Singh and Suchet Singh, attended Prince
"I’Ertah Singh in his visit to Lord Ellenborough at F:map:rr,
' 3 Ja.mu.dErKkmshalSmuhwaumtamnuflmyparhml
ib;hty The Maharaja took him into favour, notso mueh
~ for his courage, genius or learning, as for his broad should E
and good looks ; though from the pictures taken of him ]
. in life, he seems to have been an unusually coarse and
s haka man. He was not, however, inferior tammy
Euﬂars of the Maharaja's court; and if, in the many es
;Er_,:gns, in which he served, he displayed no particular b; Ay
yet it is not anywhere stated that he ever ran away, Of his
erity and oppression in Kashmir mention has been mmig
on all oceasions, trusting to the Maharaja’s favour, he
ed himself something of a tyrant. At Amritsar, to
: g_::unndforhsmm houses, he pulled duwn,vﬂl.m
ny mmpemmn, Iﬁﬁlj' tiwal]mgu of thﬂ pm'h*




=t § » : e L Nl
anjit Singh would not listen to any complaints against
and would tell any one who came to appeal against the
mads tagﬂmﬂuhminjunﬁue&omﬂurnﬂaml}m <
.~ Sardsr Tej Singh, at the time of the Jamadar's .deii]i‘;?
" was at Peshawar, of which place he had, in 1843, obtained
' tho command; snd Raja Hira Singh, who was then Minister,
and who had an old grievance with the Jamadar about the =

_ Chamberlainship, confiscated Rs. 1,060,000 out of the jagirs of £
* Rs. 3,40,000 which had been all granted in the name of
Khushal Singh, the family making the distribution among
- themselves. Kishan Singh, son of the Jamadar, a wild young &

man, spent in the ten days suceeeding his father’s death about
: hkh of rupees upon the dancing girls of Lahore. Hira
-'{: ngh made this the excuse for confiscation. * If you have
80 much cash to throw away,” said he, **you can, of course, ' :
pay up seven lakhs for the good of the State.” He also want-
ed to get a lakh out of Rai Mul Singh, the confidential agent
' of the family. Kishan Singh declared that he could not pay =
" a ropee, and the jagirs were accordingly confiscated. =
“} Tej Singh wrote from Peshawar to protest against the
‘eonfiscation, and Pandit Jala said that when the Sardar re-
‘turned to Lahore the matter ghould be considered ; but be- =
fore this took place the Ministry both of Hira Singh and of
_Jawahir Singh had fallen, and the Mabarani, with her favonr-
. ite, Lal Singh, had assumed the supreme power. F
' The government of Tej Singh at Peshawar was marked
by almost the only piece of energy he ever displayed. When
the under his command heard of the death of Raja 8
het Singh at Lahore, and of the large sums that had been
n to the Lahore army, they rose in mutiny, and threat-
i that if all the money in the treasury was not given to
r they would treat Tej Singh as Greneral Mian Singh had
treated three years before in Kashmir. The

"

ﬂmtrvoiﬂ by promises of rewards, and " !




tinous rag:meniathanght it best to recede from their demands.
a Lal Singh recalled Tej Singh from Peshawar in Octos
- har 1845, appointing Sardar Sher Singh Atariwala to e
d him. On his arrival gﬁ Lahore, Tej Singh found t
' 1‘1' wlth the English was l}?i*ﬂrywham talked of as pruhu -’_..-,.
'~ and the project was favoured by the Wazir, Raja Lal Singh,
- and by the Maharani, who feared and hated the army th '-'--:
“had recently murdered her brother Jawahir Singh. '-."
Singh was wealthy and influential ; and although he w
' looked down tipon by the old Sikh Sardars, yet the positior
- ofthe Jamadar and himself under Ranjit Singh gave him
miych power at court, and when war with the English was
- finally determined he was appointed Commander-in-Chief of
~ tide Khalsa army. .
‘On the 17th of November the plan of the campaign was
ed upon, and on the 23rd the army set ont, in divisions,
{ for Firozpur. But the Commander-in-Chief had little stom 1
f for the fight, and it was not till the 15th of December, when'
" all excuses for remaining behind were exhausted, that he se
" out to join the army which, four days previously, had cros
- the Satlaj. 1
e After the defeat of Raja Lal Singh at the battle of Mudks
~ he sent to Tej Singh to urge him to m]vmntnhtsrm___
Amn!ingly the Sardar marched, with his division and sor
ﬁftﬂﬂn thousand irregular cavalry, and reached Firo:
_on the morning of the 22nd December, when the fuma uf
Bmgh had been again defeated. Tej Singh advanced agai
&e British army, which was completely exhansted aand 10
mthaut ammunition. He drove in the British cavalry parti
'-.. r? Eﬂdﬂ'ﬂ"fﬂmd tﬂ'l'EEﬂ!]l the lost PUSItTIﬂ]] of F- 03
: lo then attacked the left flank of the Bnmhamy,m&
sh a demonstration against the captured village as




| the English General td ole front to |
‘the Sikh guns keeping wp an incessant and heavy fire 3
v this manceuvre. At list, when the English cavalry
cing, threatened both flatiks of the Sikh army, anﬁ"l:hﬁi
mtry prepared to nﬂwuw-m line for its support, Tej
_h ceased his fire, and, reti from the field, crossed the
: J and encamped at Bohrmﬁl about twenty-five miles

north-east of Firozpur, on the ﬂghﬂ bank of the river. Here
th _.my was soon joined by Raja Lal Singh, who had fled to. 3
Amvitsar after the defeat of Firozshahie, and the troops de-
anded to be led across the river against ti British. The only =
Chiefs who opposed this movement were Sartuse Tej Emgh L
Sham Singh Atariwala, who had joined the camp on Ty >
December, most unwillingly. Their pacific intenti
wero. however, ridiculed by the Panchayats of the army,
'_ was determined to cross the Satlaj. A bridge of boats 1
n across the river, and a strong téte-de-pont constructe
fmnt of it, and entrenchments, as strong as the sandy s
uld allow, were thrown up. Sardar Tej Singh Eummanded-
i this entrenchment, and, for his own personal security, had a
mall shot-proof tower erected, into which he might retire in
\é ]muruf danger ; and here the Siklh army waited, week |
weak, while the British army was drawing from every
men and guns and material of war. On the right Sardar ¥
-Singh Kalianwala commanded the irregular troops; on
«ft were the gallant Sham Singh of Atari and the bri-
Ganaral Mewa Singh Majithia, both of whom were =
in the batile of Sobraon. In the centre were the trqus il
{ahan Singh Man and the brigades of General Avitabley
meral Malitab Singh Majithia and General Gulab Singh
_-'J-IHi- ]Dthﬂﬂﬂlﬂﬂtﬂﬂmthﬂhﬂgﬂdﬁ nrndtawurnf#
ardar Tej Singh.
O ﬁ:p ll}th Fﬂbmna'y 1846 the battle nf thmnn Wi

L




thaautacrnhemmmnaﬂ mhmtnﬂwar, and was cm.ljr
_ to come out by threats of personal violence. But even®
then, instead of heading the ps and encouraging them
~when they began to waver, he/crossed the bridge, at whie
“he had stationed a guard of Jhis own men, and was one
the first to fly from the field/ After the battle, what rema
‘of the defeated army led at Pati, and aftery
parched  to Bharana, it was ordered to
“after the Treaty of the 9th March 1846, when it

: s confirmed in his appointment of Comman b
_ Chief of t,lm Sikh army, while Raja Lal Singh was cons
' itmad cas Wazir,
; » conduct of Sardar Tej Singh, both before and dur-"
f.a-; thef Satlaj campaign, has been much misrepresented. B g
- has bgen accused of treason to his conntry by many w iters
- andy/in all probability, will be so accused by more; but the
@ o evidence whatever to support the charge. In the first
il v the Sardar was averse to the war. While the Mah
5, Raja Lal Singh and Diwan Dina Nath were urging
roops to invade British territory, in the hope that they v
ver return to disturb the peace of Lahore, Tej Emgh u o
‘mmmsmnt,ly against the war, that his life was in imminent
i ‘danger, and in the middle of November 1845 the troops weve
~ debating whether they should put both him and Lal Singh
" death and insist on Raja Gulab Singh leading them to ba
. When he was a.ppmnted ‘Commander-in-Chief, much a
 his will, he delayed joining the army as long as he could
sonduct which may prove cowardice or disinclination for th
var, but which certainly did not savour of treason. But it §

- _-H'nj"-":_ at his conduct at Firozshahar was inconsistent with an




y.anﬂmﬂlnllhm rna,whanltmaxha.
ﬁm,Eh and almuat 'T'IIH.,_.

"Braa'aharmy All that he sa Werethemutadtmupu'ui -
‘Singh flying to the fords of the Satlaj; a sight from
which he might argue the str but not the wmkueu T
“ British. But he did not retiry from the field with- 2
‘out making an effort to retrieve the ters of the pm-.' ]'
' "u g day. According to the despatch ir Hugh Goughtf
agh the accuracy of despatches may be farly opffs-
ol }, i 11e madﬂ strennous efforts to regain the posi‘ion at
sshahar” ; he certainly kept up a heavy and dam gmﬂ'

of mum, and only retired when the British army

anced in force against him. But, even supposing that

‘he had done less than he certainly did, Bardane]
wot be fairly blamed. He had no influence whats
the army, whose panches decided when they shoNd
and when they should retire. It is absurd to @ «
it, in opposition to the will of the panches and the army, 1
 Singh could have refused to make a general attack
‘ﬂa British. Any negotiations which he may have wished
opm with the Governor General, after Firozshahar, were
mtendadtnhlmg about peace, and were of such a
ster as a Commander-in-Chief would have ad:smﬁenu‘y!
jower to carry on.
g Mﬁuhmuntheﬂum of Tej Singh was again raised fmr
2, but the troops only threw stones at his tent, pulled it
n, and threatened to' murder him unless he crossed to t

T mgh




-, T&]nghwnaawmk t:m:dvam]latmgemttnm,ht :
=, ]:awunotrmta}r Hahadneﬁhermmagannrnhihﬁr )
"1, gufficient to influence an insane Sikh army, but he did not,
]ikaBapImIngh,ﬁmﬁamm the troops to ma.ﬂnass,mrl“ =
then betray them to destruction. The stories of his amkmg
& boab in the bridge at Sobraon to cut off the retreat of the
Bikh army, and of lis turning a battery of guns upon his
. own men, have never heen supported by a fragment of
~ evidence, though proof of their truth has been sought im
- m:'y direction, and are evidently calumnies invented b}
‘some of his many enemies, T
After the conclusion of peace, Eardar Tej Bmghhaﬂ. .
plent]' to do in disbanding the old army and enlisting new
- troops, and his conduct was approved by the Agent of the "
. Br!hah Government at Lahore. In September 1846, very
~ much to his disgust, he was ordered to proceed to Kashmir
. with Sardars Sher Singh and Mangal Singh, and Generals
Kahan Singh Man and Lal Singh Moraria, to reduce the re-
‘bellion of Shekh Imamudin Khan. He pleaded illness, butat
ast set out with the troops. He was not alone in his disin-
clination for the campaign. With almost all the other Sardars
2 was unwilling to act under the orders of Raja Lal Singh,
‘whum rapacity and meanness had disgusted them, and m
honesty they thoroughly doubted. When, however, Tej Emgh
had at last set ont on the expedition he acted with energy
nd promptitude. His force la&Iﬂhurennthulatufﬁuhberg =
& reached Noushera on the 16th, baving in this time cross-
ed the Ravi and the Chanab, and marched over one ]:m:ndrﬁd.
and twenty-five miles of country, the last twenty-five miles
being an execrable hill road. Tmamudin Khan did not

{'

o

open resistance, nnﬁca.mumtnthﬂumpnf&m
dent on the 1st of November ; andthaﬂlkhtrmpa,m




uBﬂ-]ﬂ Lal Singh was the result of this expedition, and, as &
temporary arrangement, Sardars Tej Singh and Sher Singh
" Atariwala, with Diwan Dina Nath and Fakir Nurudin, were
r _ nominated a Couneil to carry on the business of the Govern-
\ mntpandmg other arrangements. On the 16th December
. -,;‘ a Council of Regency was appointed, consisting of Sardar Tej
x Emgb as President, Sardars Shamsher Singh Sindhanwalis,
- ~ Ranjodh Singh Majithia, Sher Singh Atariwala, Atar Singh
| Kalianwals, Diwan Dina Nath, Fakir Nurudin and Bhai
~ Nadhan Singh.
. ar The Mambers of the Council had distinet duties asmEned
%utham. Sardar Tej Singh was chief in the Council, and h&iri
- supreme Military command ; Diwan Dina Nath was Finance
_:‘ﬂmmbar, and Sardar Sher Singh supérintended the Rnynl :
: * household. The task both of Sardar Tej Singh and of Diwan-
- Dina Nath was an invidious ene. They certainly threw all e
poaaible blame on Major Lawrence, the British Resident, and
- represented that they were but mstruments carrying out his =
; " measures ; but it was pretty well known that most of the
. "lf pedress that was obtained came, direetly or indirectly, from
*;tﬁa Resideney, and that, but for the Resident, no arrears -
“would be paid up, and consequently the two heads of the 3 gl
~ Council came in for more obloquy than they probably f"

On ﬂm 7th August 1847 Sardar Tej Singh was created
o of Sialkot, with its fort and adjacent villages, worth
- 928,000 per annum., The Mahavani, who entertained & =
hitter hatred both against the British Resident, who ﬂa&tmg. Bt
her influence, and Tej Singh, who supported his poliey, g
~ prepared an insult for the latter on the day of his installation.

ﬂnjmngﬁnhumhnd been schooled by her as to the part
e - was to Pln.y 5 nnrlwhan Tej Bmgh came innrarli fm-

= 5
f'
-
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5 fnﬁmgtau perform the EEI‘EIllmlj' The Resident then mﬂad
~ upon Bhai Nadhan Singh, the head of the Sikh religion, who
- officiated for the Maharaja; but the insult was much felt by
i Tej Singh, and so strongly showed the resolute hatred of the *“
‘Maharani to the administration that it hastened her removal
from Lahore to the fort of Shekhopura, where she rammnad
under surveillance until her final removal from the PunJuh
Early in the year she had been cognizant of, if not the (S5
instigator of, a conspiracy to murder the Resident and Ra]ar f “
Tej Singh. This design, known as the Parema conspiracy, =
was not joined in by any Sardar, and was never attempted =
~ to be carried into execution. On the 26th November 1842 ‘:_:-—
~ Raja Tej Singh received the honorary title of Ujaldidar, '_ RIR
~ Nirmal budh, mubagir, ul-mulk, Samsam u-daulah, Raja Tej il
~ Bingh salar safdar jang, Raja Sialkot. e
1 4 Throughout the rebellion of 1848-49 the Raja remained :?-'3'.,.
~ loyal to Government. That he, as well as Sardar Lahna T-L:J'
- . Bingh Majithia, knew of, or anticipated a revolt, is certain, and ey
- shortly before it broke ont he wished to leave the Panjab for
- atime; but this idea was given up. The Raja had nothing
- in common with the rebels. He was not on good terms
wlt;h Raja Sher Singh Abn.nwala or his father, Sardar Ghaiar

Maharani, the deadly enemy of Tej Singh. Should thel’tfahnmm o
regain power, the death of the Raja, or the confiscation of his -‘ n “
~ property, was certain. Besides this, Tej Singh was almost ﬂm
~ only man in the country who was tolerably contented. Hﬁ
. was very wealthy; he had been crmﬁdﬂa]amﬂﬁemdmtd - -
~ the Council, and was raised high above the whole Sikh aris-
- tocracy, and a revolution could only injure him. He m'

nbnnmus to most of the Sikh Sardars, who looked upon him as :
pstart and an impostor ; feeble in eouncil, and ndmnlaumu :
in the field ; and his ascendancy in the Darbar irritated them =~



v= 18 THE PANJAB CHIEFS.

beyond expression. Thus, Raja Tej Singh is entitled to no
credit for loyalty, when disloyalty, whichever side conguered,
must have been his ruin. But in times of danger motives do
not count for much, and the Raja’s actions were loyal, and his
assistance valuable to the Government.

On the annexation of the Panjab, the personal jagirs of
Raja Tej Singh, and Sardar Bhagwan Singh, the only surviv-
ing son of the Jamadar (Kishan Singh having been drowned =
at Sobraon after the battle), amounting to Rs. 1,52,779, were
confirmed for life. To the Raja, Rs. 92,779, and to Bhag-
wan Singh, Rs. 60,000, Of their respective shares, Rs. 20,000
~ was to descend in perpetuity to the heirs of Raja Tej Singh, _
= and Rs. 7,500 to those of Bhagwan Singh. After annexation |
r,ﬁ-f ~ the Raja was very useful in the disbandment of the Sikh :

army and in the formation of a new native force. In 1857 |

: he was of much assistance in raising horsemen, and for his ?
=" loyalty at that time he received a khilat of Rs. 1,000. In 1861 '
9 his scattered jagirz were consolidated, and the Ilaka of Batala
l‘,'-:‘ granted him in exchange for them; and his title was also
f‘—_‘ ~ changed to Raja of Batala, He was also made o Jagirdar
%

Magistrate, with the powers of a Deputy Commissioner. In

1862, at the recommendation of the Government of the Panjab,

T the Supreme Government granted two-thirds of his jagir ‘in

E‘, ' perpetuity, and to Bhagwan Siogh one-sixth. : l
: % A son had been born to the Raja, in 1859, by Karam

Et,‘ Kaur, widow of his cousin Kishan Singh, whom he had mar- :
E(-: a ried in 1857. Previous to this, however, he had adopted a

~ younger brother by a different mother, Harbans Singh, born
in 1846, now at the head of the family.

Jhil Raja Tej Singh died of an affection of the chest on the

 2nd of December 1862 at Lahore. His character will have

been pluinly seen from the above sketch of his life. He

o
¥

U'n - might have filled a subordinate position with eredit, iur

o he had no glaring vices, and perhaps as much virtue H
28
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the majority of the world, but he was unfitted for times

of revolution. He had neither courage nor ability ; and
although he rose to be the first person in the State, next to
the Maharaja, it was only because his fortune was greater
than his desert.

The estate of Sardar Bhagwan Singh had never been
separated from that of Raja Tej Singh, and there had been a
long dispute between them regarding it. After the death of
the Raja, a committee, consisting of Raja Sahib Dayal, Sar-
dar Shamsher Singh Sindhanwalia, Diwan Ajudhia Parshad
and Diwan Shankar Das, was appointed by Government, and
a satisfactory division of the property was effected.

Sardar Bhagwan Singh died at Amritsar in 1852, aged
forty years. He had no sons, His widow claimed permis-
sion to adopt an heir, but this was refused by Government as
it was ascertained that the Sardar had never expressed such
a dezire. His death was sudden, while in the enjoyment of
perfect health, and there are no grounds for assuming he had
given up liope of having children of his own, as alleged by
the widow. He had held life jagirs of the annual value of
Rs. 50,000, and jagivs in perpetuity aggregating Rs. 10,000
per annum. Failing lawful male issue, the whole grant
lapsed to Government, But the widow and the old retainers
of the Sardar were dealt with liberally. An allowance of
Re. 10,000 per annum for her life was made to the widow,
and she was permitted to occupy rent-free certain houses and
gardens of her deceased husband bought in by Government
for this express purpose at a cost of Rs, 10,000. Fifteen of
the Sardar’s old servants received life pensions aggregating
Rs. 3,220 per annum ; while steps were taken fo discharge
his debts, amounting to over two lakhs of rupees, by hypothe-
cating with the creditors personal property yielding an income
" of Rs. 3,800 a year. The widow, Ram Karpa Davi, lives

at Amwsitsar.
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Raja Harbans Singh was made a ward of the District

Court at Lahore on the death of his elder brother Tej Singh.

The estates came under the management of Rai Mul Singh,
an old confidential servant of the family, a Khatri of
Gujaranwala, afterwards an Honorary Magistrate of Lahore.
The faithful discharge of his stewardship was duly
acknowledged by the bestowal of a khilat of one thousand
rupees and a handsome letter of thanks from Government
when he made over the estates to Raja Harbans Singh on his
attaining the age of eighteen years in 1867. His manage-
ment had been eminently successful. He paid off the heavy
debts with which the property had been burdened by the late
Raja, he met extraordinary charges connected with Harbans
Singh’s marriage and other ceremonies, raised the rentals of
the garden and rakh lands four-fold, and handed over to
the young Raja a handsome surplus of about seventy-five
thousand rupees, This has long since been dissipated, and
the estate is deeply involved. Harbans Singh had every
opportumty which good masters and eareful tuition afford of
becoming an ornament to the higher ranks of the Panjab
gentry. He is of amiable disposition; but in some respects
the high hopes once formed of him have not been realized.
The jagir held by Raja Tej Singh’s famil ¥ was fixed at
Rs. 56,112 per annum, of which Rs. 4,435 were assigned to
Rai Mul Singh, and Rs. 4,004 to Sardar Narindar Singh ; the
remainder being held by Raja Harbans Singh. These shares
were finally fixed by Government in 1873, after a correspond-
ence extending over ten years. The birth of Sardar Narindar
Singh in 1860 gave rise to much bitter feeling on the part of
Raja Harbans Singh, who refused for many years to acknow-
ledge the legitimacy of his nephew, or his right to share in
the patrimony. Sardar Narindar Singh was edueated i the

. Wards’ School at Ambala, He attained his majority in 1881 ;
- and then there began a quarrel between the uncle and the

S,
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nephew, which was only settled fonr years later by the per-
sonal intervention of Sir Charles Aitchizon, as Lieutenant-
Governor of the Province. The parties made a compromise,
which was drawn up in the form of an agreement, witnessed
by the Lieutenant-Governor and the Secretary to Government,
and duly accepted by the Distriet Judge of Lahore, in whose
Court Sardar Narindar Singh had instituted a snit for a share
of the patrimony. Each was brought to acknowledge the status
of the other. Raja Harbans Singh was duly recognized as
Tej Bingh’s adopted son, and Narindar Singh’s legitimacy
was no longer questioned by his uncle. The latter made over
to Nurindar Singh house property in Amritsar and Hardwar
valued at fifty-six thonsand rnpees ; gardens at Amritsar and

Lahore valued at Rs. 34,500 ; culturable land at Gamtala,

Amritsar, yielding Rs. 2,915 annually ; and rakhs in the
Gujaranwala district valued at Rs. 15,000, Further, a sum
of Rs. 35,000 was paid in cash by the Raja to his nephew.
Taking everything into consideration, it may be said that
Sardar Narindar Singh has had no reason to regret haying
placed his case in the hands of arbitrators; while Raja
Harbans Singh was also probably glad to have settled for
ever the alleged rights of his nephew.

Sardar Narindar Singh has been married three times,
and a son was born to him by his second wife in 1882, The
Sardar was invested with eriminal and civil powers in 1885,
and he has since done good work as an Honorary Judicial
officer. He was appointed a Member of the District Board
of Lahore m 1884 and of the Municipal Committee in 1887,
He lives at Lahore.

Nore.—The names of Hajs Harbans Siogh's sons were received too lats for
in the pedigree table. They mre

Kirath Singh n, 1883,
Fateh Bingh n 1853,
Keari Bingh =, 1885




Sardar Ali Kban, the grandfather of Ali Raza Khan, was
the first to leave the province of Sherwan, on the west coast
of the Caspian (now part of the Russian territories), where
for many generations his family, Turks of the Kazalbash
tribe, had resided snd exercised authority, When Nadar

Shah, having driven out the Ghiljis and takanpusaammu!"" ¥

 Kharasan, prepared to march to India in 1738, he took with
- him Ali Khan and other Kazalbash nobles, who he falreﬂ

~ in his absence might excite disturbances.

Ali Khan served thronghout the campaign, and on L
- return from India he was appointed by Nadar Shah
~ mor of Kandahar, and other Kazalbash nobles receive
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mands in Kabul and Peshawar, much to the advantage of the
kingdom of Persia, which, freed from these turbulent Chiefs,
enjoyed peace for eight years, till the assassination of Nadar
Shah and the rise to power of Ahmad Shah Durani. The
new Prinee was crowned at Kandahar in 1747, and, although
he thoroughly distrusted the Kazalbash faction, yet he was
nok strong enough to oppose it, and was compelled to give
to its principal Chiefs jagirs and military commands.

Ali Khan obtained the district of Hazara, north of
Kandahar, and with a strong force reduced the country
around, to the nmeighbourhood of Hirat itself. He accom-
pmﬁieﬂ Ahmad Shah on his last invasion of India, in 1760,
and shared in the great victory of Panipat, which broke the
Mahrata power. The bravery and influence of Ali Khan dur-
ing this campaign excited the jealousy of Akmad Shah, who
on his return to Afghanistan tried to deprive him of his
estates and command ; but Ali Khan held his own successfully
against open force, and Ahmad Shah was at length compelled
to bribe some of his attendants, who assassinated him in 1770,
The eldest of the sons, Gul Mahomed Khan, was but six years
of age at his father’s death, and the district fell into great
confusion. The widow of Ali Khan contrived to maintain
her authority for some years; but at last the district was
divided into several independent and hostile Chiefships, only
united in their hatred of Timur Shah, who had succeeded
Ahmad Shah on the throne of Kabul. When the sons of
Ali Khan grew up, they recovered by force of arms a large
portion of their family estate, and Timur Shah, thinking it
well to conciliate them, summoned Gul Mahomed Khan to
Kandahar, where he received him with honour and conferred
on him the title of Sardar.,

Hidayat Khan, father of Ali Raza Khan, accompanied

Bhah Zaman to Lahore in 1797, where he remained for some
-months. On his return to Kabul he exchanged estates with
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Asad Khan, brother of the Amir Dost Mahomed Khan. In 1813
Ali Mahomed Khan, the youngest brother, with four thousand
troops, accompanied Wazir Fateh Khan and his brother
Mahomed Azim Khan in their suceessful expedition against
Kashmir, and received there a high military command, which
be held for about eight years, when, returning to Kabul, he
obtained joint possession, with Hidayat Khan, of the family
estate, and died in 1835 leaving two sons, Ali Akbar Khan
and Ali Jan Khan, The elder son soon after died, and Al
Jan Khan succeeded to his father's share of the estate, which
he still holds in Kabul.

Hidayat Khan died in 1836 leaving six sons, of whom
the eldest, Mahomed Hasan Khan, served under the order
of Wazir Fateh Mahomed Khan at Hirat; and when his
master's eyes had been put out by Prince Kamran he escorted
Khandal Khan and Sherdil Khan to Kandahar, where he

*remamed for some years, and later went with his uncle to
Kashmir, On his return to Kabul he resided with bis brother
Ali Raza Khan, and did good service to the British Govern-
ment during the first Afghanistan campaign, Mahomed Hasan
Khan, the second brother, was in great favour with Mahomed
Azim Khan, and held a high appointment under him in
Kashmir. After Azim Khan's death, Hasan Khan réturned
to Kabul, and took service with Dost Mahomed Khan. In
1844 he went on pilgrimage to the holy places in Arabia,
where he lived for some years., He is now living in Kabul,
The third brother is Haji Mahomed Khan, who was Minister
of Habib ula Khan, the Ruler of Kabul between the death
of Azim Khan and the accession of Dost Mahomed, On
the accession of that Prince he retired to Mecea, and on
his return took up his abode with Ali Raza Khan, with whom
he still resides. :

Ali Raza Khan had always lived on his hereditary
estate, which was of the description called in Afghanistan ‘

1
f
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*Zarkharid® hereditary, but subject to military service. When

the British army, with Shah Shuja, first entered Kabul in
1839, Ali Raza Khan, being possessed of great influence in
the city, was appointed chief Agent of the Commissariat
Department. His conduet in this office was unexceptionable,
and he never failed in any engagement to supply grain or
carriage. When the British cantonment was besieged by
the insurgents, he remained firm to English interests, and
kept the troops supplied with food and elothing. When the
British officers and ladies were taken prisoners, Ali'Raza
Khan made the greatest exertions to alleviate their sufferings
and obtain their liberation. He paid to their keeper, Mahom-
ed Shah Khan Ghilzai, five hundred rupees a month, besides
bribing the subordinate officers to induce them to treat the
prisoners well, and to allow his servants to convey to them
olothes, money and provisions. Nor did his humanity end
here. He ransomed and saved from slavery nearly one
hundred Hindustani sepoys, and kept them secretly in his
own house till the second British army entered Kabul.

When Mahomed Akbar Khan had sent off the prisonera
to Khulm by way of Hazara and Bamian, Ali Raza Khan,
who possessed great hereditary influence in that country, per-
suaded and bribed the Hazara Chiefs not to allow the captives
to be conveyed to the hills, and he alzo sent his agent Murtaza
Shab, with a large sum of money, to attempt to win over
Saleh Mahomed Khan, who was in command of the escort.
It was by his influence and by a lavish expenditure of his
money that the captives were enabled to make their escape
and join the relieving army of General Pollock. When Akbar
Khan advanced to attack that General, Ali Raza Khan won
over the Kazalbash Chiefs to the side of the British, and they
accordingly deserted Akbar Khan before the battle ; and after

'lua defeat their hostility made him fear to return to Kabul,
:‘iﬁa—'mdiﬁgljr he fled through the hill country to Turkistan,
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On the retreat of the British forces to India, Ali Raza

: TRl 1
- Khan accompanied them. His conduct had excited the bitter

- batred of Mahomed Akbar Khan and the Barakzais, and his Itfuﬂ'{u'g
was 1o longer safe in Kabul. His estates (worth three lakhsof
~ Tupees) were confiscated, his honses razed to the ground, and
with their materials Akbar Khan built two houses for himself.
Such is the dry detail of services the most disinterested,
noble and chivalrous, performed by Ali Raza Khan, At the S8 =
greatest personal risk, with the loss of his wealth, position
and hereditary estates, Ali Raza Khan stood bravely and alone
in defence of the side to which he had promised allegiance,
- Bui he and his family have done good service to the
- English Government in India as well as in Afghanistan,
During the Satlaj campaign he joined the British camp
with his brothers and sixty horsemen of his tribe, many -
members of which bad shared his exile and fought in the
battles of Mudki, Firozshahar and Sobraon, where four of
his sowars werekilled, He accompanied Major H. Lawrence
to Kangra and Kashmir in 1846, and during the rebellion
of 1848-49 furnished one hundred horsemen under the com-
mand of his sister’s son, Sher Mahomed, for active service,
In June 1857, when our need was greatest, Ali Raza Khan
volunteered to raise & troop of horse for service before Delhi.
~ This he did and, his own presence being desired at Lahore,
he sent them under the command of Lis brothers Mahomed
~ Raza Khan and Mahomed Taki Khan. In raising this force
. he did not, at a time when the Government was in want of
- every procurable rupee, apply for any pecuniary assistance.
At his own expense, and by the mortgage of lis honse and
property in Lahore, he equipped the troop and sent with ity e
- besides his brother, his nephews Abdula Khan, Mahomed. kel
- Hasan Khan, Mahomed Zaman Khan, Ghulam Hasan Khan
~ and Sher Mahomed Khan. Forming part of the celebr
- *Hodson's Horse,” the troop raised by Ali Raza Khan se
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Salter the campaign he received the first-class Order of Merit,

seven viljages in Baraich, Oudh, worth Rs. 15,000 peranpum.
He also réfeeived the title of Khan Bahadar; and his nephews, )
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throughout the campaign wherever that gallant corps WIB
sent, and its gallantry was ever conspicuous. N
At Khasniganj, Mahomed Taki Khan was slain, ﬁght:mg‘: # 30d
bravely, after several mutineers had fallen by his hand: = .
Mahomed Raza Khan, the second brother of Ali Raza Khan, X
was among the bravestin his fearless regiment. He was
twice wounded at Malu and Shamsabad, and had two horses i
shot under him ; and in every place where blows were thick=
est, there was the gallant Mahomed Raza Khan to be found.

theSQtitle of Sardar Bahadar, and the grant of his pension of
Rs. 300 in perpetuity. He died at Lucknow, whither he had

Afli Raza Khan was an Honorary Magistrate of Lahore,
possessing great influence in the city ; influence which he EA
peys used for good.  After his retirement from Kabul he

i a peusicm of Rs. 800 per mensem, and his brother

e Raza Khan Rs. 200 per mensem. After the mutinies

he receiy '; a grant of a talukdari of one hundred and forty-

above-men/ ioned, who served so well during the mutinies, the
title of Sgftdar Bahadar. He was created a Nawab in 1864, two
ftore his death. s
Ai Raza Khan had three sons, the eldest of whotl .
dzish Ali Khan, was with Major G. Lawrence at Peshawar
?,r)ﬁnn the Sikh troops mutinied in 1848, He remained with
~that officer to the last, and his fidelity cost him his house
property at Peshawar. The third son, Nasar Ali Khan, is in
charge of the Oudh estate. He has there been created an
Honorary Assistant Commissioner, and his conduet has given 3
gomplete satisfaction to the authorities, ‘e :.I
The title of Nawab passed to his son Nawazish Alj Khan, 5
‘the present holder, on the death of Ali Raza Khan in 1866, e
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A -n genﬂeman has pmvadhnnsalf a worthy successor to his xi;_'.":- .l
father. He has devoted his whole life to public interests and Ry
has earned for himself in these days of peace and tranquility

mmn tizm.t- stmtds lugh on the hﬂt of Panjab nobles for ’

- -‘ night of the same Order. He waannm.matadan.&ﬂﬂihunxl e
i Hamhar of the Legislative Council in 1887, and one j'!anr R ]
= mrharhamne:ved,aaagrnntﬁﬂmﬂﬂvammant the pro B
~ tary rights in Razh Taliana, Lahore. ﬁ;
Thus, for fifty years Ali Raza Khan and his

" has been as perfect as it has been disinterested.
mot by birth a British subject; but it would be

.' th;d; can make life desirable. As long as the
- campaign, with the greatest disaster that everibefel the
" 'Britiahatms.lsremamhﬂrad; as long as the sorr and the

‘hgmd hj' all true Englishmen with gratitude and esteem

- Kore.—Tha Kamlbash still possess grest influsnce in Kabal, whoers 'r.h-;r

;m{m—m 8,000 or 10,000, They inhabit s sepsrate quarter to the soath-west of

ity wtrongly fortifled, known i:_-r the nnme of Chandol. The present Minister

n Kakml (Mustanfi) i a Knalbash ; the chief offices are lilled by members of the
jand the mother n[]}nulhhmnml himenlf waz n lady Jthh trike. Thae

.-lluh of Persin in gaid to be now intrigning with the Kasalbash faction to weaken

-fh= Kabual Eu'nn'nmunl..—{ﬂ Lrrris—1864.)

Fusalbash Lrl") I'JJ" or ' peid-head * is of Turkf derivation, and by soms is mid

 tohave arisen from the red caps worn by the captives given to Shekh Haidar by Tam-
‘arlane. D' Herbelor, hnn?avr in his Biblisthaque Orientale, publisked in 1887, Eintes
that ad with Ismail, founder of & line of kings who in Parsin
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Hajs Thns Neth Diwan Eifar Wath
B, li!-ii"q o '-IIEH.
j 9 ‘
Divwamn Naih Emnwar ¥aranjan Balri Xath Pran Nath
B M m, 1EmE, B,
i |
|
Drwan Hawm Nirs Mgn Nath Hirde :|.'n'n.th Jiwan Nath
N, 1844, N L‘H‘I . u, ii.“-ﬁ-l. =, 1687,
— e |
[ 1 I I
Bona Nath  Ghisn Math | Suaf Nath Kesho Sath
w, 161, B, 1334, I m 1674, E, 15875,
|
lh.utl.mu‘b:r Nath Brij Mohun Nath
. 18y, u, 16T,
I =
Arjan Naih
B 1?3:.
|
Bishan Nath m:h.ud.u.{- Naih
n 1EY, B 188[,

@2 the men who rose to power during the latter

th empire, the most remarkable was Raja Dina

Ras been well and happily styled the Talleyrand -

of the Panjaby and his life and character bear a strong re- |

semblance to #hoseof the European Statesman. Revolutions, =

in which hisf ds and patrons perished, passed him by ; 7
fell, but never involved him in thejr ruin ; ol

loodshed and assassination, his life Was never

pile confiscation and judicial robbery were the

3 ¥-
G

rule of thie'State, his wealth and power continually increased,
His @‘Eicity and far-sightedness were such, that wh

‘other eyes, the pelitical sky was clear, he could pereei
the signs of a coming storm, which warned him to desert g
losing party or a falling friend. Honest men do not survive
many revolutions, and the Raja’s falseness was the measure
of his success. He was patriotie, but his love of country was B
~ 8ubordinate to his loveof self. He hated the English with a ; Q
‘bitter hatred, for they were stronger than he or his country ;

P‘.




,ﬁﬂehty, and waultl stand by a friend as long as he could
~ 6o so with safety to himself. Even when he deserted him, h"."-i"
b was more from fear of danger to his wealth and influ-
=  ence than from personal fear, for Raja Dina Nath was 'E'f
i -'Ehjmnaliy brave, and also possessed, in an eminent degree, 31‘-5
N mom courage, though it did not lead him to do right, re- %
' ’u-.gsrd]m of consequences. As a financier, the policy of the -
3:1: was intelligent and liberal, and he readily apprmmtﬂd} 1
4 ,,L,.— - the advantages of the new system of taxation introduced by { "%
s -ﬁta English. He possessed immense local knowledge, an L
2 , @8 vast a capacity for work; though, from his desire /of
e . keeping power in his own hands, he sometimes re in-
-~ stead of advancing business. He was an accomplished/ man
? * of the world, courteous and considerate ; well educated, #hough
' .l ‘pothing of a scholar; and in conversation with Eutopeans,
. he would express htmsalf with a boldness and appsarent can-
~ dour, that were as pleasant as they are unusual in Asiatics,
> Raja Dina Nath should not be judged Larshly. His
 faults would be still considered in some Europfan countries
"' ~ a8 diplomatic virtues. Among the Sikh barons Who stood
- around the throne of the young Maharaja Dalip Singh, there
. was not one who honestly laboured for his countty, or who A
- would have made the smallest sacrifice to save her. If Raja
- Dina Nath was not more honest than his contempoitries, he
m at least, more patriotic.
The family of Raja Dina Nath came originally from
* Kashmir, where, in the reign of Shah Jahan, some members
| of it held office about the court. It was not till the reign of
Hahnma& Shah that Lachi Ram, the eldest son of Bishan
~ Nath, left Kashmir for Lahore, where he obtained employ-
- ment. Soon after he went to Delhi, whither he summoned
g h:jmg'ar brother Har Das, and later to Lucknow, where
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~ tha Nawab of Oudh, but was compelled to leave from some
~ court intrigue. He then went into the English service, and
- was proceeding with the army to Mysore in 1791 when he
 was taken ill and died. Dina Nath, whose father Bakht Mal
. had'held a subordinate civil appointment at Dehli, was invit-
ed to the Papjab in 1815 by Diwan Ganga Ram, a near
- connection, who was then head of the State office at Lahore,
- On bis arrival he was placed in the same office, and very
soon distinguished himself by his intellizence and business-
like habits. He first attracted the notice of Raniit Singh
after the capture of Multan, in 1818, when he made out the
lists of those entitled to rewards with great rapidity and
clearness. He shortly afterwards adjusted the accounts of
the province of Multan, which the first Nazim, Siikh Dayal,
had thrown into great confusion. In 1826, when Ganga Ram
- died, he received charge of the Royal Seal, and in 1834, on
. the death of Bhawani Das, he was made head of the Civil
and Finance office; and in 1838 he received the honorary
title of Diwan. Ranjit Singh had the greatest confilidhee in
Dina Nath's judgment, and his infiuence during the latter
years of the Maharaja’s reign was very great. He was
consulted on every occasion of importance, and received
jagirs in the Amritsar, Dinanagar and Kasur districts to
the value of Rs. 9,900. During the time of Maharaja Kharak
Singh and Nao Nahal Singh, Diwan Dina Nath retained his
office, and received new jagirs, and Maharaja Sher Singh
treated him with the same consideration. He one of
~ those in immediate attendance on the Maharaja® when he
. was assassinated by the Sindhanwalias, and when Raja Hira

® Diwan Dina Noth was standing immesdistely behind Sher Singh when

khe Bindhanwnlina estered the apartmest. He wonld, in all probubility, have bean
g ar_ killed by ihe shot which kiiled the Maharojs, had not Mahar Khasitsh, 5
Wakil, who was in the plot, drawn him pside pretending to  have soma.

- ANty LAHORE DISTRICT. at
- hechiefly resided. His son Dila Ram entered the service of
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 Bingh rose to power he had no more zealous adherent than

the Diwan. When Hira Singh had quarrelled, or had ‘pre-
tended to quarrel, with his uncle Raja Gulab Singh, tha
Diwan was sent in company with Bhai Ram Singh and
Shekh Imamudin to Jamn to arrange matters with the
Raja, and their mission was completely successful. They
returned, bringing with them as a hostage Mian Sohan Singh,
the son of Raja Gulab Singh, who was murdered with his
cousin Hira Singh not long afterwards. On Hira Singh's death,
Jawahir Bingh, the debauched and contemptible brother of
Maharani Jindan, obtained the chief power, but Diwan Dina
Nath still held office,

After the murder of Prince Pashora Singh, the troops
rose in mutiny and decided to kill Sardar Jawahir Singh,
who had been the instigator of it. The Sardar was much
alarmed, prepared the fort for defence, and on the 19th Sep-
tember sent Diwan Dina Nauth, Atar Singh Kalianwala and
Fakir Nurudin to conciliate the troops. The mission was
only received with scorn, and Atar Singh and Dina Nath
were kept prisoners in camp. Hcre they were detained till g
the 22nd, the day after the murder of Jawnhir Singh, when 3£
the soldiery, over whom the Rani had still much influence, re-
leased them that they might soothe her violent grief ; and 7y
they accompanied her back to the fort. Jawahir Singh was e
burnt with his four wives the same evening, and Diwan
Ilina Nath was present on the part of the Maharani. The
unfortunate women who were to burn with the body were
shamefully treated by the soldiery, who stripped them of
their jewels and tore their nose-rings away. A Sati is a
sacred object among Hindus, and her last words are consider- 5
ed prophetic. At the feet of these women, Dina Nath and
others fell down, asking for their blessings. The Satis
blessed him, the Maharani and her son, but cursed the Sikh:
army. When asked the fate of the Panjab, they answersd
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ence and the Khalsa would be overthrown ; that the wives of
the Sikh soldiers would be widows, but that the Maharaja and
his mother would live long and happily. The words were
remarkable ; though, in truth, it did not require a prophet X
to tell that the Sikh army was rushing on its destruetion. e 'r"
After this, Diwan Dina Nath clearly perceived that, while
the army remained as powerful and lawless as it then was,
there was no safety for him or for any man who filled a con- T
spicuous position ; and with Raja Lal Singh, whose motives iy
were similar to his own, and the Maharani, who longed to R
avenge her brother's death, he began to encourage in the
army a desire for a war with the English, from which the
conspirators hoped it would never return. Reports were 4
industriously circulated tending to inflame the minds of the -
soldiers. The English, it was said, were determined to take <
advantage of the disordered state of the Panjab to overrun s 2
the country. The red coats were pouring up from Bengal,
regiment after regiment, and some were even then preparing

that during that year this country would lose its independ- ) 1 i:
= L o’

to cross fhe Satlaj. When the passions of the troops were ,;' i
sufficiently inﬂamaq_, a great Council was called at Shalamar
early in November, and here the Diwan made an address so ‘?ﬁ'._'b-'

eloguent, artful and impassioned, that all present unanimous-
ly declared for war. The result of that war is well known :
and Diwan Dina Nath is next seen signing the Treaty of the
9th of March 1846, by which the fairest portion of the 4

Panjab was ceded to the English. Although the sentiments 4
of Diwan Dina Nath with regard to the presence of the v
English at Lahore were well known, he was too wise to show
much outward dissatisfaction : indeed he was anxious for the
Emglish to remain till the Government was strong enough to
stand without external assistance. When in May 1846 the
* fort of Kangra held out, and the Agent of the Governor-
~ General had gone there in person to superintend operations,




3 ~ others, and was of very great service to the

| came in for ks full share of odium. In November 1847 the
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Dina Nath was ordered to follow him to induce the garrison,
if possible, to listen to reason. In old days, Ranjit Singh
had ordered the garrison never to open the gates to any one v
except to himself in person, Dina Nath, Fakir Azizodin or
Misar Beli Ram; but on the present occasion the Diwan's &%
influence, or desire to use it, was not very strong, and it was .
not till a fortnight after he came that the fort surrendered.
The arrival of heavy siege guns from the plains had, perhaps,
more to do with the surrender than the persuasions of Diwan #
Diﬂ.ﬂ Nath. ';_I !‘-'
‘When Raja Lal Singh, Wazir, was tried for treason in = e
December 1846, Diwan Dina Nath defended him on the part.
of the Darbar with skill and energy, though in the face of :__,r;
most crimimating facts. On his deposition the powers of Goy- o |
ernment were vested, as a temporary measure, in Sardar Tej T
Singh, Sardar Sher Singh, Fakir Nurudin and Diwan Diun " (e
Nath, and soon after four other influential Chiefs were added h
to the number, constituting, under the authority of the 5‘#
Governor General, o Council of Regency. The most able @
Member of the Couneil was undoubtedly Diwan Dina Nath;
28d although his position; as head of tha Finaneial Depart-
ment, gave him great opportunities of e iching himself at
the public expense, which there is every reason to believe he
availed himself of, he still worked more di nterestedly than

Without his clear head and business-like habits it would have
been almost impossible to disentangle the Darbar accounts;
and after the annexation of the Panjab, the Diwan's aid in
revenue and jagir matters was almost as v;hluahla as before.
The Diwan was not a popular man at this time. The retrench-
ments which the lavish expenditure of the' late Ministries had
rendered imperative were very distasteful to the Sikh Sar-
dars and soldiery, and the Diwan with Sardar Tej Singh
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Diwan was raised to the dignity of Raja of Kalanaur. The
following is the honorary title he received on the oceasion :
Amarat wa ayalat, destgah; Klair andesh-i-dawlat-i-alia, :
dyanatdar, washir-i-khas, madar-ul-muham. He received ag 13
the same time a jagir of Rs. 20,000 from the Ilaka of Kalanaur.
In April 1848 the Multan Nazim, Diwan Mulraj, rebelled, A
In September 1846 Diwan Dina Nath had been sent by the )
Darbar to bring Mulraj to Lahore ; and it was principally by
his means that a satisfactory arrangement was made with
the Nazim, who did not, however, cease to intrigne with the
Ministry, and especially with Raja Dina Nath, for a modis
fication in the termsof his agresment, up to the commence-
ment of 1848. On the first news of the outbreak reaching
Lahore, Raja Dina Nath was ordered, on the part of the
Darbar, with Sardar Atar Singh Kalianwala, the Commander
of the Irregular troops, to Multan, but was soon afterwards
recalled. When Sardar Chatar Singh Atariwala had turned
traitor, and the mission of Sardar Jhanda Singh Batalia to
reclaim him had failed, the Resident sent Raja Dina Nath to
endeavour to influence him. This mission failed as signally
as the former one, for Sardar Chatar Singh, backed by the
Sikh nation, had determined to try once more the fortune of
war. Some there were who said that Raja Dina Nath was a
traitor at heart ; that he had himself encouraged the rising ;
and that, had he not been a wealthy man with houses and
gardens and many lakhs of rupees in Lahore, convenient for
confiscation, he would have joined the rebels without hesita-
tion. But these stories were, perhaps, invented by his enemies.
Certain it is that, on his being recalled to Lahore, he zealously
carried out the wishes of the authorities in confiscating the
property of the rebels and in counteracting their schemes.
After the annexation of the Panjab, Raja Dina Nath was
- confirmed in all his jagirs, worth Rs. 46,460 amnually, which
- he held till his death in 1857, His eldest son Amar Nath

.'. -
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received during his father's life a cash pension of Ra. 1,200,
On the Raja’s death this was raised to Rs. 4,000, and on Amar
Nath’s death his pension was resumed and his son received a
jagir of Rs. 4,000, to descend in perpetuity according to the
rules of primogeniture. Amar Nath was not on good terms
with his father, who during the Satlaj campaign had caused
him to be removed from the paymastership of the Irregular
forces. After the Raja's death Amar Nath refused totake
any portion of his property, which accordingly went to the
younger son, Naranjan Nath. The Raja had, however madea
will leaving all his personal property to Naranjan, his favour-
ite son.

Amar Nath was a man of considerable ability. He was,
perhaps, the most classical poet in the Panjab, and some of
his sonnets are of great beauty. In 1858 he published a
history of the reign of Ranjit Singh. This work, though too
elaborate in style for European taste, is undoubtedly the mogt
valuable and interesting that any native author has produced
since the annexation of the Panjab.

Diwan Kidar Nath, the Raja’s brother, was for many

years a servant of the Lahore State, He received the title of

Diwan from Manaraja Dalip Singh, and on annexation re-
ceived a life pension of Rs. 6,000. He died in 1859 leaving
two sons, the elder of whom, Badri Nath, was a Member of
Couneil in the service of the Maharaja of Jamu.

Pran Nath, the second son, was Tahsildar of Sowrian,
and when the Tahsil establishment was moved to Ajnals he
was transferred there. He was at Ajnala in 1857, and on the
3lst of July about 500 disarmed sepoys of the 26th N. L.
which had mutinied at Lahore the day before, and had com-
mitted four murders, arrived on the left bank of the Ravi
near Balghat and prepared to cross the river. Pran Nath
collected the villagers and the police, and attacked the
mutineers with vigour, and killed some 150 of them. The
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Deputy Commissioner of Amritsar, with Sardar Jodh Singh,
arrived soon afterwards, and the remaining mutineers, who
had retired to an island in the river, were captured and
executed ; an act of vigour which saved the country from a
great danger, Pran Nath died in 1860 leaving two sons, who
are now under the care of their uncle at Jamu.

Raja Dina Nath built at his own expense a Shivala
(temple to Shiva) near the Police Courtin the city of Lahore,
and alienated for its support a jagir of Rs. 500, which is still
maimntained in perpetuity. Another Shivala he built near the
Wazir Khan Mosque. He constructed a large tank at great
cost mear the temple of Achintbhawani Davi in the Kangra
district, and another tank at Davipur near Shalamar, with a
large building for priestsand travellers., He also rebuils,
and endowed with the two villages Kotla and Chuhanal, worth
Rs. 2,200, the shrine of Mansa Ram Razdan, his spiritual
teacher, and a great Hinda Saint, much venerated by Kash-
miris, who died about 40 years ago. The grant is maintained
in perpetuity. ]

Diwan Amar Nath died in 1867 leaving two sons, Diwan
Ram Nath and Pandit Man Nath. The father’s full pension
of Rs. 4,000 has been continued to Diwan Ram Nath, with
option to exchange the same for a jagir holding. It has been
ruled that the maintenance will in any case take the form of
a jagir upon the death of the present holder.

Diwan Ram Nath has been serving under the Punjab Goy-
ernment since 1863. He was appointed an Extra Assistant
Commissioner in 1869 and an Extra Judicial Assistant in 1882,
Upon the introduction of the reorganized judicial scheme in
1884, he was selected by Sir Charles Aitchison for a District
Judgeship in the higher ranks of the Panjab Commission.
This office he is now holding in the Jalandhar district. He
has succeeded to his father's position on the Viceregal Darbar
List, and is a Fellow of the Panjab University. He enjoys an
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income of about Rs, 16,000 per annum, made up of salary and

~ family allowances. He married in 1855 a daughter of the

‘-
-,

k

" late Pandit Kidar Nath of Delhi, at one time Tahsildar of
~ Ajnala in Amritsar ; and has a son, Kalas Nath, born in 18735,
~ and a danghter married to Pandit Suraj Narain, nephew of

Pandit Ratan Lal, Sub-Judge of Banda.
His younger brother Pandit Man Nath was born in 1860,

|k He married in 1871 a daughter of the late Pandit Moti Lal,

Extra Assistant Commissioner. He acts as Private Secre-

] ~tary to his relative Diwan Janki Nath, late Governor of
- Kashmir. He is a good English and Persian scholar, having
«  graduated at the Panjab University and passed the examina-

tion for Pleaders in the North-West Provinces.
Raja Dina Nath's second son, Naranjan Nath, has two

~ sons, Man Kameshar Nath, born in 1864, and Brij Mohan

Nath, born in 1870.  The former has married the daughter

. ©f Pandit Ajudhia Nath, an Honorary Magistrate in Lucknow, =

and the latter a daughter of Pandit Hirde Narain, Munsif in
the Panjab.
Pran Nath, son of Diwan Kidapr Nath, died in 1864

_ :,:_. Iaavmg two sons, Janki Nath and Arjan Nath, who are now
~with their uncle Diwan Badri Nath, a high official in the sep-

‘vice of the Maharaja of Jamu. Both sons hold appointments

" under the Maharaja. .
£ Diwan Badri Nath has two sons. The elder, Hirde Nath,

has no employment. The second son, Man Mohan Nath, a
‘minor, has been adopted by his first consin, Janlki Nath,




Shekh Hgala.,nfthalialaltnhe was a Munshi in the

. service of Sardar Bhup Singh of Hushiarpur. Hisson Ghulam
- Mohaindin, when very young, attracted the attention of

Diwan Moti Ram, son of the celebrated General Mohkam

Ohand, who placed him in attendance on his second son, Shive |

dayal. Here he soon became a man of importanee, and man-

© aged all the affairs of Shivdayal, whose two brothers, Ram
~  Dayal and Kirpa Ram, also favoured the young man and
‘advanced his interests.

In 1823, when Mahomed Azim * Khan of Kabul had

" - marched to Peshawar to attack the Sikhs, Ranjit Singh
- wished, if possible, to induce the Afghans to retire without
~ fighting. Karpa Ram put Ghulam Mohaindin forward as

well-suited to carry on the negotiation, and he accordingly

hought over the ¢ Pir,’ or spiritual adviser of Mahomed Azim F

Khan, who persuaded the Sardar to retire to protect his

o family and treasure at Michni, which the Sikhs intended to .
- seize. Yar Mahomed Khan, brother of Mahomed Azim Khan,
was also under Sikh influence, and the result was that the

~ Afghan army was hastily broken up, and retired in confusion

1 upo:n Michni and Jalalabad. Msaharaja Banjit Singh took

ession of Peshawar, and, not thinking it wise t.n-rmnnm

ere mg, divided the territory betwmllahnm&ﬂfhn,-‘
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and Dost Mahomed Khan, and returned to Lai;nre. Before e
left, Ghulam Mohaiudin was sent on a mission to Mahomed

 Azim Khan, on the part of the Maharaja. He told the

Sardar of the capture of Peshawar, and its delivery to the
brothers who had betrayed him ; and the news so affected the
Chief with mortification and anger, that he fell ill and died
twenty-two days later.

In 1827 Bhekh Ghulam Mobaiudin accompanied his
patron Karpa Ram to Kashmir, where the latter had heen
appointed Governor, The Shekh became sole agent for
Karpa Bam, and he exercised his power with great cruelty
and tyranny, In 1831, when, through the enmity of Raja
Dhian Singh, Karpa Ram was recalled, Ghulam Mohaiudin
was also summoned to Lahore, fined and imprisoned. But,
Iater in the same year, he again procecded to Kashmir as Agent
and Lieutenant of Prince S8her Singh, who had been nominated

y to succeed Karpa Ram. The Prince knew little of business,
and the Shekh acquired more power than ever, which he

used more ruthlessly than before. The people eried out
bitterly against his oppression, and, to add to their distress,
Kashmir was in 1832. visited by famine. The Shekh was
again recalled to Lahore and fined. He protested against
the amount of the fine, which he said he could never pay;
and the Maharaja directed Misar Rup Lal to confiscate his
property at Hushiarpur. There was found concealed no less
than nine and a half lakhs of rupees. Vainly the Shekh
swore that this was money accumulated by his father in the
service of Sardar Bhup Singh; but Ranjit Singh well knew
that the little Sardar had never seen a lakh of rupees in
his life, and that the treasure had been wrung from the
starving Kashmiris. He confiscated the whole, and fined the
Shekh Rs. 25,000 besides.

Ghulam Mohaindin remained for some time oup of
amplogmnt, till Bhai Ram Singh, wishing to have a friend
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about the person of Nao Nahal Singh with ability sufficient
to counteract the influence of his enemy, Diwan Hakim Rai,
placed him in the service of the Prince. Here he rapidly
became a great favourite ; and he accompanied the Prince to
Peshawar and became his chief fiscal Minister. In 1839 he
was made Governor of the Jalandhar Doab, and in the hot
season of the next year was sent with General Ventura to
subdue the Rajputs of Mandi. The progress of the troops was
slow and, in September 1840, Sardar Ajit Singh Sindhan-
walia was sent to their assistance with an additional force.

When Nao Nahal Singh was killed on the 5th Novem-
ber, the Shekh was still in the Lills ; but he guickly returned
to Lahore and espoused the cause of Mai Chand Kaur,
mother of the deceased Prince. When Sher Singh ascended
the throne, the Shekh excused his opposition to him on the
ground of fidelity to his late master, and so convinced Sher
Singh of his sincerity that, on the arrival of the news of
the murder of General Mian Singh, Governor of Kashmir,
by his own men on the 17th April 1841, the Shekh was
appointed to succeed him. He immediately left for Kashmir,
and his son Imamudin Khan was summoned from Mandi
to take charge of the Jalandhar Doab,

Raja Gulab Singh was sent with Ghulam Mohaiudin to
restore order in Kashmir. The former had his hill troops;
the latter the Jalandhar levies, chiefly Mahomedan. The
Hazara troops and the Afghans of Pakhli and Dhamtaur
who had revolted were, after some fighting, reduced to sub-
mission, and lastly the Kashmir mutineers were defeated
and disbanded. The Shekh, who was Governor more on the
part of Raja Gulab Singh than of the Lahore State, raised
new regiments, consisting partly of hill Rajputs, subjects of
Galab Singh, and partly of Mahomedans. Being himself a
- Mahomedan, the Sikh authority in Kashmir depended thence-
~ forward very much on the fidelity of Raja Gulab Singh.
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The leading man in the hill country was Sultan Zabar-
dast Khan, Raja of Muzafarabad. His ecapital, at which a
small Sikh garrison was stationed, was on the road from
Hazara into Kashmir. He was a man well disposed to the
Lahore Government, in favour with Sher Singh, and had
done good service in putting down the mutiny in Kashmir.
This Chief, about two months after Sher Singh's death, was
treacherously seized, while at prayersin a mosque, by Ghulam
Mohaiudin, imprisoned and his jagirs confiscated.

At the same time disputes arose between Gulab Singh
and his nephew Hira Singh, and the former used every
means to attach the people of Kashmir and the hills to him-
gelf. In this he partially succeeded; and at all events he
showed the hill Chiefs and Mahomedan population their own
strength and the Sikh weakness so clearly that they deter-
mined to make a stand on their own account. Accordingly,
in August 1844, Habibula Khan of Pakhli attacked the Sikh
garrison of Khori; but Ghulam Mohaiudin sent five hundred

. men to its relief, who defeated the insurgents and slew their
‘leader. Soon after this, Raja Sultan Khan of Khori, joined by
n son of Habibula Khan and other hill Chiefs, attacked and
reduced Khori, and in October marched to Muzafarabad and
)/nttmkml the forts. Ghulam Mohaiudin sent mnearly all his
¢ Bikh troops to the relief of the garrison; but they were attack-
ed\and defeated by the insurgents, who burnt the town and
killed such of their Sikh prisoners who would not adopt the
medan faith. The son of Raja Zabardast Khan and the
Rajas of Dobheta and Uri now joined the insurgents, who
became so strong that, in November, they seized Baramula
and occupied the pargana of Saupur, within a short march of
the capital,
Ghulam Mohaiudin now first informed the Court of

Lahore of the insurrection. General Gulab Singh Povindia,
then on his way to Peshawar, was ordered to advance inte

.
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Kashmir with his troops. Reinforcements were also sent
by way of Punch and Jamu, but those sent by Raja Gulab
Singh soon halted, the depth of the snow being the excuse;
but the real reason was that the Raja did not wish to co-
operate heartily till he had secured some advantages for him-
self ; a retention of the salt mine leases ; the re-possession of
Hazara ; and the restoration to favour of Chiefs, like Chatar
Singh Atariwala, who in the late quarrel had espoused his
cause,

The troops that marched by way of Punch were com-
manded by Imamundin Khan, son of Ghulam Mohaiudin,
'his young man, though he had served in the Derajat under
Prince Nao Nahal Singh, had never been in action, and had
no military reputation. He joined the Kaslmir expedition
with the greatest reluctance, and only consented to go on the
understanding that no Sikh troops were to accompany him,
for he was hated by them as the murderer® of Bhai Gur-
mukh Singh and Misar Beli Ram,

In the meantime Kashmir had been entirely overrun
by the insurgents, and Gulam Mobaindin was shut up in
the fort of Hari Parbat. The Mahomedan troops had revolt-
ed, the hill Rajas were all up in arms, and the Sikhs found
they had their most difficult conquest to make over again.

Amonge the Yusufzais of Pakhli and Dhamtaur, and the
tribes of Khaka and Bhamba, the insurrection was a religious
one, and a man came forward calling himself the Khalifa or

#® Afier the destroction of  the Sindhanwalins, Rujn Hirn Singh arrested
Bhui Gormokh Singh, Misar Reli Ram and his brother Ham Kishan, and made
them over to Imamudin Eben, who confined them in the stables adjoining his housa,
gnid here, a lew days later, they wereall three murdered.

Bhai (ormukh Bingh was an inveterate enemy of Haja Dhian Singh, snd no
surpriss can be felt at Baja Hirs Bingh desiring hi= death ; but Missr Beli Ham snd
hii brother, though opposed in policy to Dhian Bingh, were harmleas men, apd very
genernlly beloved. Their denth was barbarons and uounecessary. Misar Bap Lal,
who had been employed in 1532 to confiscute the property of Gualam Mohaindinm,
was brother of Misar Beli Ham. By the munder of the latter it was sapposed
Hhat the revenge of tho Shekhs, rather than that of Raja Hirn Siogh, was
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vicar of the Sayad,® and was joined by all the fierce popula- iy
tion in the attack npon Hazara and Kashmir. wd
The force of Gulab Singh Povindia and Diwan Mulrajf ;
at length advanced to Muzafarabad and relieved the garrisom.
It then marched into the valley, ind after some severe fight-
ing the insurgents were defeated. Raja Zabardast Khan was
reinstated at Muzafarabad, and the neighbouring Rajas were
made subordinate to him. In February 1845 Shekh Ghulam
Mohaindin tried to open negotiations with the English Gov-
ernment, to which he tendered his allegiance and that of
Raja Rahimula Khan of Rajaori. His proposals were rejected ;
and soon afterwards he died, it is believed, from poison, and
his son Imamudin Khan, who was in Kashmir at the time,
succeeded him as Governor.
The Shekhs (as the father and son were called) had
neither family nor influence, and were useful to the Lahore
State, chiefly as being unserupulous collectors of revenue.
Their names are not remembered with any affection either :
in Kashmir or in the Jalandhar Doab, They were hated by .
the Sikhs, and this was considered as a guarantee for their
fdelity ; but both father and son had a uatural genius for
treason and intrigne, which no considerations of prudence
could overcome. -
Imamudin Khan was Governor of Kashmir when that
province was made over to Maharaja Gulab Singh by tle
Treaty of the 16th March 1846. This trauwsfer was not (%
popular at Lahore, and to Raja Lal Singh, the Minister, it A
was especially distasteful, for Gulab Singh had always been
his rival and enemy. He accordingly sent instruetions to
Jmamudin Khan to oppose the Maharaja, and directed the

® En Abmed, who waa defestod and glain t}y Sher Bingh and General Venturs
in 1831 Hi= followers (who are numerous all over Todin) ssserted that the river sheank
back to aid his escaps and closed apon his parsoers, sod that he wonld reappesr and
mmmwiuhum:um.mmwndnm. )

l'ih:i?lm ltulr:.} Governor of Hazars, and must not be confounded with Diwm
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troops to obey the Shekh implicitly. Imamudin Khan was
willing enough to comply. He was very rich, and he under-
stood that the success of the Maharaja signified not only the
end of his exactions, but also the rigid scrutiny of his accounts
by his declared enemies. It was popularly reported at this time
that the family possessed from seventy lakhs to two crores of
rupees; and although this was doubtless an exaggeration, yet
it is certain that the father and son had amassed an immense
fortune during their occupation of Kashmir and Jalandhar.

It is possible that Imamudin Khan, misapprehending the
motives of the British Government, imagined that by the pay-
ment of a large sum of ready money he might be allowed to
retain Kashmir as Viceroy, and with this object was ready to
carry out the imstructions of Raja Lal Singh and make a
prolonged resistance to show his own power and resources.
But, whatever were the reasons for his conduet, he disregard-
ed the peremptory orders of the Darbar to evacuate the
province; he induced by bribes many of the Maharaja’s
troops to join his standard; and with the assistance of Fakir-
ula Khan, son of Raja Rahimula Khan of Rajaori and other
hill Chiefs, he retained possession of the greater part of the
country until a large force was sent from Lahore against him.

Tt was not until the army had reached the border of the
Kashmir valley that the Shekh, seeing further opposition to
be useless, came into Colonel Lawrence’s camp at Thana and
sirrendered himself. He then gave up two letters and an
address to the troops serving under him, which, he stated,
contained the instructions of Raja Lal Singh, and in obedience
‘to which he had acted. Although the sentiments of the
Minister towards Gulab Singh were notorious, it was thought
hardly conceivable that he should have been foolish enough
to put his signature to these treasonable documents; but on

the return of the force to Lahore he was brought to trial.

' Phe authenticity of both the letters and the address to the
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troops was fully proved, and Lal Singh, convicted of deliberate
treason, was deposed from the Wazarat and banished to
Agra. Shekh Imamudin Khan, though a willing party to the
treason, was pardoned, and his Lahore estates which, with
his other property in that eity had been confiscated, were
restored to him.

The generous treatment he received seems to have made
a favourable impression upon Imamudin, and in 1848, when
almost all were traitors to their Government, he remained
faithful, though great efiorts were made by the leaders of the
rebellion to gain him to theirside. In June 1848, with two
thousand newly-raised troops, he marched to Multan to co-
operate with the force of Lieutenant (the late Sir Herbert)
Edwardes. Both he and his men behaved well, and distinguish-
ed themselves in several actions with the rebels. When peace
was restored he received, as a reward for his services, the title
of Nawab and a life cash pension of Rs. 11,600; and his jagir
of Rs. 8,400 was confirmed to him. In 1857 he raised, under
the orders of Government, two troops of cavalry for service
at Delhi, He died in March 1859, aged 40, leaving one son,
Shekh Ghulam Mahbub Subhani, born in 1842,

In 1862, at the recommendation of the Panjab Govern-
ment, the Supreme Government sanctioned Rs. 5,600 of jagirs
of Ghulam Mshbub Subhani being upheld in perpetuity ;
Rs. 2,800 to lapse at his death. He had two sons, who died
in their infancy. He lives at Lahore, but takes no part in
public affairs.

His uncle Shekh Firozdin obtained the Tahsildarship of
Muzaffargarh in 1866. Five years later his services were
transferred to the Bahawalpur State and he was appointed
Collector of Minchinabad. He became a Sessions Judge in
a few years, and in 1878 was selected for the high post of
Wazir. In recognition of his eminent services in the Baha-
walpur State, the Panjab Government conferred upon him

b




M=tﬁ1¢ of Honorary Extra Assistant Commissioner. This

: m in 1878. He died two years later. His son Nasirudin
s an Extra Assistant Commissioner in the Panjab.

- Mention may be made of Shekh Sandhe Khan, second
. cousin of Nawab Imamudin Khan, under whom he acted as
o - ,hmtmﬂmthaﬂulﬁmwaranﬂﬁﬂuxeeﬂantmwhmh

- was duly recognized by Government. Shekh Sandhe Khan

- was appointed an Honorary Magistrate of Lahore in 1873,
and performed the duties of his office for fifteen years. He

~ died in 1888. He received a grant in 1885 of two thousand
" acres of land in Tahsil Pak Patan, Montgomery, which is now

being gradually brought under cultivation.
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BHAI NAND GOPAL.

In the Sikh polity there is a close union between the
Church and the State, and from the time that the Sikh sect
grew into a nation, the voice of Fakirs, Babas and Bhais has
ever been loud in its couneils, One of the most influential of
the religious families at the Court of Lahore was that of Bhai
Charanjit Singh.

The first of the family to aequire the title of Bhai was

" Bulaka Singh, a follower of Guru Govind Singh. When  the

 Guru retired to Abchalanagar in the Deccan in 1707, he

 directed Bulaka to go to Lahore, where he would be married.

- Bulaka was upwards of fifty, and did not consider himself a
- good match ; but he did as he had been ordered, and at Lahore
a Sikh offered him his daughter in marriage, saying that the
‘Gurn had instructed him to do so in a dream. Bulaka r
- wnldnutmfusa and three sons were the issue of the ms
- age,Buh Sahai and Molak. -




~ Basti Ram was born in 1708, and from an early age devot=
- ed himself to the study of medicine. He soon became known
" for his skill and for the sanctity of his life, He was much
* consulted by the Bhangi Chiefs, who held Lahore during the
. Iatter half of the eighteenth century ; and Ranjit Singh, who &
~conquered that city three years before the death of the Bhai,
. in 1802, had the greatest respect for him. His prophecies
said to be always fulfilled, and his prayers answered ; -
~ and he was the fortunate possessor of a purse which replen-
= ished itself, and which it was impossible to empty. But, with- 38
B ont crediting the fables® related of the Bhai, he undoubtedly
~ had great influence at Lahore, and, like priests in other coun~
" tries, probably used his knowledge of natural science to ine /A
\ erease his religious reputation. Bhai Molak Ram, the young- _"r
" est brother of Basti- Ram, died when a ehild. Bha; Sahai
£ Tived to n great age, but he was a recluse, entirely devoted to
~ religion, and did not marry. He died in 1793, B
~ Bhai Harbhaj Rai used during his father's lifo-time to
. come to Court, where he was received by the Maharaja with
. the greatest respect. He had, like his father, studied medicize, E,
- and was reputed to be a very skilful doctor. Basti Ram had
" mever accepted any jagir; but Harbhaj was not so scrupulous,
. and in 1804 he received the village of Monawan, worth =8
~ Rs. 400, and in 1805 estates in the vicinity of Lahore to tha
 value of Rs. 5,740. Threo yoars later he received Sundar-
- ghar and Rokha; and at the time of his death, in 1824, he 8
* was in possession of jagirs to the value of Rs. 9,000 in the
# Amritsar and Lahore districts. These grants were all in e
. perpetuity, and are still in possession of the family. .

T=

® Bhai Basti Bam Hved outsids the walls of tha city, below tha Bamam .
Barf. A large branch of the rver Ravl then! Howed beneath the walls, and gye .
did greak Enmugututhdty,‘tlll the Bhai determined to stop the river, T
ilk his hobitation (ders) just outside the walls: From that lay the waters pever
vuded ihe city or passed the deroof the Bhai, When ho died, his tomb was bulle
ol white marble on the = the dern, and the river ﬂﬂnam.tham_% 15
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Harbhaj and his brothers had not become Bikhs, m;t

, -ﬁhnﬂuhan&nghmnkthﬂ;mfaalhsfathﬂrmvary angq:.
~ Ram Singh also allowed his hair to grow, and became a Sikh,
though he mever took the pakal or became a true Emgh,

" Bhai Ram Singh, at Ranjit Singh's request, attended Darbar
in 1802, and soon gained greatinfiuence over the ﬂuparshhﬂm

" Maharaja. His opinion was always asked in questions of

. difficulty, and during a campaign the tent of the Bhai was

- pitched next to that of the Maharaja. During the last years =
“of Ranjit Singh’s life, Bhai Ram Singh’s influence continual-

1y increased ; and when the Maharaja died, Nao Nahal Singh,

" aho had received the pahal from the Bhai, entrusted lum
. with still greater power, for he was himself very averseto
. conducting the details of business. Hemnnanftheuhlﬁf'
. conspirators, with Raja Gulab Singh, Dhian Singh and uthﬁrs,

. in the murder of Sardar Chet Singh, the Minister of Kharak .
- Singh; and it was at his house that the conspirators assembled
befmprweedmgbu the palace to commit the murder, Neither
" Nao Nahal Singh nor the Bhai were popular with the Chiefs.
The former compelled all Sardars and Jagirdars to fulfil their

- .:arnna and to keep their contingents in good order, which
was most irksome to the men, who during the last years of
- Ranjit Singh’s life had done much as they liked, and had
nbm responsible to no one.
3 When Nao Nahal Singh died on 5th November 1840,
- and his mother Mai Chand Kaur claimed the vacant throme,
. Bhai Ram Singh supported her with all his power. His great
~ rival and enemy, Bhai Gurmukh Singh, as vehemently es-
~ poused the cause of Kanwar Sher Singh; but they were
- almost alone in their enthusiasm, and there were none, with the
~ exception of Raja Dhian Singh, Bhais Ram Singh and Gms-
- mukh Singh, Diwan Sawan Mal, Atar Singh Sindhanw:

md the French Generals, who cared whether the mea‘r m'-'

e Mai succeeded to the throne, Bhai Ram Singh was not




; h:;-m- ‘averse to a coalition hemnthsmpm a:nﬂ

s foresaw that, without the supportof Raja Dhian Singh,

4 ﬂlﬁ Mai could not possibly stand; and so convineced was he

“of the incompetency of her supporters, that he does mot

. appear to have seen the triumph of Sher Singh with any
~ great regret.

The new Prince treated Ram Singh with respect, not-
mthatmﬁmgthﬂparbthaﬂhmhaﬂ taken against him ; and
ﬁtthﬂ investiture, on the 27th January 1841, he was allow=
_ ed a chair, the only others who were permitted this honour
* being his brother Govind Ram, Bhai Gurmukh Singh, Babas
- Bikrama Singh and Kaban Singh, and the Prince Partab
&ngh. The Maharaja even began to consult Ram Singh;
‘_I_I_lﬂ. Raja Dhian Singh, fearing that he might regain his in-

~ fluence, tried to make the Bhai proeeed to Multan on the

pretext of recovering arrears of revenue from Diwan Sawan

‘Mal. This project the Bhai vehemently opposed. He did

~ not wish to be banished from Court; he wasa friend of Sawan
- Mal; and his religious character should have disqualified him
_ from the duties to which he had been mominated by the
F I:!' [t -

Bath Bhai Ram Singh and hasbruther Bhai Govind Rﬁm 1

. were thoronghly discontented. Although treated with cons |

‘sideration, they were allowed no share of power, and saw

- their enemy Bhai Gurmukh Singh wealthy and influential.

‘But their turn at length came. Sher Singh and his Minister
- fall by the hands of the Sindhanwalias, and Bhai Gurmukh

-

- 8ingh, who had been the constant opponent of Raja Dhian i.
" Singh, was imprisoned and murdered. -
After the death of Raja Hira Singh, Bhai Ram Bm.g]l '

. recovered much of his influence with the army. He had ever

‘been associated with Fakir Azizudin in his English poliey ;
“these two were almost the only men in Lahore who unders

& 1 the relations of that State to the British Government

12632




r the Treaty of 1809, and they were most desirous u!*
» mgnngoodtarmamt.h it, It was on this account
'; hat, in March 1845, the Bhai warmly supported Raja Gulab
:Bmgh of Jamu as a candidate for the Waszirship; for he
' knew that he was the only man who could in any wag'
restrain the army, and whose vast private means could avert
" the bankraptey of the State. The intentions of the Bhai
" towards the British Government were good; and early in
" May 1845 he informed Major Broadfoof, Agent of the
- Governor General, that Sardar Jawahir Singh intended, for
. his own safety, to incite the Sikh army to an invasion of
~ British territory. 3
- Jawahir Singh, thongh by no means withont intellect, ¢
was drunken and debauched ; and even in public Darbars he
mu; often seen ander the influence of brandy; and he would —
" then abuse Ram Singh in the most indecent terms, thoogh in =
. the worst of times the sanctity of the Bhai's character had
saved him from insult. On the 12th September 1845, the
- Bhai boldly remonstrated in open Darbar against the conduct
. of the Wazir towards the British Government. He asserted
. that the conduct of the English authorities had been dis-
 tingnished by moderation and forbearance, and that the
. Darbar was entirely in the wrong in the dispute. Jawahir
ﬁnghm_hehwedtn have promised to retrace his steps, and
_ to write an apology to the British Agent ; but on that very
night news came of the murder of Prince Peshora Singh,
-parpat.raﬁeﬂ by his orders, and he knew that an English war =
~ could alone preserve his power. Bhai Ram Singh had also
. heard the fatal news, and had reported it to the troops, and =
* the party hostile to the Minister gained strength every hour. =
The murder of the obnoxious Minister and the Satlaj Cam..
]:mgn followed. To the last Bhai Ram Singh opposed that
mwar, but in vain. To Raja Lal Singh he said:
“ Beware what you do, and do not march to Hariki with the.
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" froops. The English have always behaved as friends and

: #&ﬂ-mshars, and have never interfered in the affairs of tlm-, '

Khalsa.” Raja Lal Singh answered:  Bhai Sahib, what can F

~ I do ? the soldiers have got me by the throat.” However, =
; hatmktlmﬂhm' advice as far as he could, and, like &

- coward as he was, made the other Generals go on before him

to the scene of danger. After Sobraon, Bhai Ram Singh

' was sent with Raja Gulab Singh and Diwan Dina Nath to

neet the Governor General'at Laliani, on the road to lnhurn,
.~ to try and obtain favourable terms.

. wAfter the Treaty of the 9th March 1846, Bhai Ram_-' 3

‘ _ﬂmgh remained one of the Council; and although, on ac-

~ eount of bad health, he was unable to attend the Darbar very

. regularly, his opinion was always taken before any important

. measure was adopted. He was opposed generally to Raja
~ Lal Singh, the Minister, and took the part of Mulraj in the
dispute regarding the Governorship of Multan. Tt was by

" his advice that Raja Lal Singh called upon all the Sardars to %

| sign a rasinama, o deod expressive of their contentment ¥
under the existing Government, though it was notorious that

._ ‘the majority was opposed to it.

Biai Ram Singh died in November 1846, and was §

succeeded in the Council by his nephew Bhai Nadhan Singh,

gon of Bhai Kahan Singh, who had died in 1837. Bhai

. Govind Ram did not much meddle with politics after the

ﬁent.h of Rapjit Singh. He was for some years a greabt
_hﬂh& and died in 1845.
Nadhan Singh was a very silent Member of the Darbar.

,' On the 16th December 1846 he was appointed a Member
" of the Council of Regency, which office he held. till the

;innexatiun of the Panjab. In 1848 the Zamindars of Kot- '
pindi Das, one of the jagirs of the Bhai family, failed
grm supplies to the British army when marching through,
iha village was consequently confiscated, but was sub-
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ﬁbqlwnﬂy released on payment of a fine of Ras. 800, .
~ annexation, however, it was resumed with other persos
grants of Ram Singh. 3
The jagirs of the family amounted at annexation to
. Rs. 40,000, Of these, jagirs to the value of Rs. 22,447
were released ; Rs. 9,720 in perpetuity, in three equal shares,
‘to the descendants of the three sons of Harbhaj Rai; and
. Rs. 12,718 for the lives of Nadhan Singh, Kesra Singh,
.~ Charanjit Singh and Nand Gopal: A grant of Rs, 3,000 by
- Maharaja Ranjit Singh for the support of the Sikh Temple at.
- Taran Taran was also released during good behaviour; .and
- the administration is in the hands of the three families,
who each select one representative. Bhai Nadhan Singh's
- Council allowance of Rs. 6,000 was also continued for life,
He died in 1856, .
Bhai Charanjit Singh died in 1881 leaving four sons,
whose names are given in the pedigree table. He was a good
~ scholar in English, Persian, Sanserit and Gurmukhi, and in-
terested himself in educational matters, He received a khilat
with a Sanad in recognition of his efforts in behalf of female
education, more especially in connection with the founding
| of the Istri Siksha Sabha; and in 1878 he was presented
~ in Darbar with a copy of Dr. Trnmpp's translation of the
- Ade Garanth as a tribute to his researches in his own lan-
guage. In 1879 he was appointed an Honorary Magistrate of
Lahore. On his death, his jagir yielding Rs. 4,000 per annum
" was resumed, his four sons receiving in lieu a grant in per-
petuity of Ra. 3,133 per annum, They were all minors when
the father died, and were placed in charge of Raja Harbans
- Bingh. The eldest son, Bhai Gurdit Singh, is now of age and
. looks after the property. The second son, Bhai Dan Singh
- married in 1884 a daughter of Sardar Sahai Singh, in the
 service of the Maharaja of Patiala; and the third, Bha Sewa
. Singh, married in the same year the daughter of another




=

a official, Sardar Jawnla Smgh Inspector-GenamI uﬁ

{' plice. Sews Singh is reading in the Aitchison College. Bﬂl
- Bir 11 i reading for the University Entrance Examination,
- Bhai Mian Singh iz an Honorary Magistrate and a Member

. of the Municipal Committee of Lahore. His jagir is valued at =

3 Ea. 1,625 per annum.

s Bhai Kesra Singh died in March 1871. He interested
lgmsalf in connection with the Siksha Sabba, the Anjaman-i-
Panjab and other public Societies, and was held in esteem by

" the local authorities. He left two sons, who now jointly hold
‘a jagir of Rs. 1,625 per annum in the Lahore and Amritsar
~ districts, The elder, Bhai Tara Singh, a Tahsildar atJalan- -
ﬂ]mr has been recently recommended for an Extra Assistant
. Commissionership. The brothers are joint owners of about

-'menty acres of land in different villages of the Lahore Tahsil.
~ The present head of the family, Bhai Nand Gopal, lives

* at Lahore, He is a Viceregal Darbari. The family are of
~ the Arora easte, Got Gauri. .

- The other Darbaris in the family are Bhais Mian Bmgh,

~ Gurdit Singh and Tara Singh.
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DIWAN NARINDAR NATH.
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The family of Diwan Ajudhia Parshad is of the Brahmsn
 caste, and originally came from Kashmir. It claims to belong ‘-_-
{Eo the family known as Swaman Gotam, descended from the
- famous rikki or sage, Gotama, who was born about 620 B. C. i
- on thelower Ganges. It is alzo known as Chachbali, from the
- mohala, or district, in Kashmir, which was its residence. :.
The Mahomedan religion was established in Kashmir in
‘ﬂm year 1326 by Shamshudin Shah. For nearly a hundred
~ years no severe measures were taken against the Hindus; but
~ when Sakandar, named Bhut-shikan or the Iconoclast, bBOIIIIIﬂ
. King, the Brahman Pandits had much difficulty in preserving
their religion and their lives. The ancestors of Ajudhia -
- Parshad studied Persian asa sort of compromise, and con-
tnmd to live in tolerable security till the conquest of Kash-
h mir by Ahmad Shah Abdali in 1752. The Hindus were now
mﬂhunnutanﬁpernmu.mdmnnyumgmted to
"_ Hindustan and the Panjab. Among the emigrants was Pa.n&xt
~ Kishan Das, grandfather of Ajudhia Parshad. He wasa f
- good echolar, and without difficulty obtained a situation
under the Dehli Emperors, which he held till his death.
~_ His son Ganga Ram, who was born at Rampur near
erm, entered the service of the Maharaja of Gwalior, and
. was placed with Colonel Lounis Burquien, one of the French
u&mmﬁmﬂnsam under General Perron. Here iluh

.‘ !
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~ and became entrusted with many important political affairs.

: 'Wlmn the Mahratas, towards the close of the last century,
- overran Jentral Indm, Malwa, and the Dehli territories, Ganga
. Ram was employed under Colonel Burquien in collecting
. tribute and in drawing up treaties with subject or allied

+ tired to Dehli, where he lived for the ten succeeding years.
. He was of great assistance to General Ochterlony when, in

- Batlaj States and the British Government, from his knowledge
~ of their past political history, their treaties and their relations
- with other States.
: In March 1813 Maharaja Ranjit Singh, who had heard
. Ganga Ram spoken of as a man of ability, invited him to
~ Lahore on the recommendation of Bhai Lal Singh and
~ Sardar Himat SBingh Jalawasia. He accepted the invitation,
| and, taking with him a vessel of Ganges water for presentation
~ to the Mabaraja, was well received at Lahore, where he was
- placed at the head of the Military office and made Keeper of
- the SBeal. He was made one of the Paymasters-in-Chief of the

- TIrregular forces, Bhawani Das being the head of the depart- -
~ment, and rose rapidly in the favour of the Maharaja, who 4

- saw the great improvements made in the system of Military
* account. Ganga Ram brought from Hindustan numbers of
~ his relatives and friends, for whom he obtained good places
. about the Court. Most of them, however, were not mere ad-

. venturers, but men of business and literary attainment.
~ Among them may be noticed Raja Dina Nath; Pandit Daya

Hagmtrnte of Lahore ; Pandis Gopi Nath, Pandit Ram

- young man distinguished himself by his honesty and ability,

States. After the defeat of Burquien at Patparganj on
the Jamna by Lord Lake in September 1803, Ganga Ram re- -

- 1809, that officer was arranging the relations between the Cis- -

- Ram, who administered successively the Ramgarhia country -
3 'dehang,PmdrmeEam,father of Shankar Nath, Honor-.

y, Pandit Ganga Bishan and Pandit Lachman Parshad, |




e THE PANJAB CHIEFS. oK. %
Diwan Ganga Ram, Lachman Parshad’s father, and
Bakht Mal had married three sisters. Ganga Rambhad no
son born to him, so he adopted his wife's nephew Ajudhia r.'-ff
Parshad, brother of Lachman Parshad ; Dina Nath (afterwards ‘
Raja) was son of Bakht Mal, and consequently first cousin of
Ajudhia Parshad. Ganga Ram had, later,a daughterbya =
gecond wife, whose son, Utam Nath, died childless at Laiore
in 1867. g
Thus, by his personal ability and by the family interest
which he established in Lahore, Ganga Ram obtained consider-
able power, and the administration of the country about Gujrat
was in 1821 entrusted to him. In this district, which he =
held two*years, he received a grant of Khemi, Kalaichpur
and other villages in the Kariali Tlaka. He first organized the
Abkari system, which was afterwards so much improved by

Misar Ralia Ram.

Diwan Ganga Ram died in 1826. He was succeeded as
Keeper of the Seal and in the Military office of Account by
Dina Nath, whom he had brought up most carefully, and
whose splendid abilities soon made him distinguished in the
political world.

Ajndhia Parshad (or Ajudhia Nath) had been summoned
to Lahore by his fatherin 1814. He was then fifteen years
of age, but he was not suffered to enter, at once, the Govern-
ment service. For two years he continued his studies, and X
was then sent to his native country, Kashmir, where he was 57-'".'
placed in the Military office on a salary of Rs. 1,000 per an-
num. Six months later he was recalled to Lahore. In 1819 {Z,
Generals Ventura and Allard arrived in the Panjab from Eu-
rope, by way of Persia and Khorasan, and entered the Maha-
raja’s service. They received command of the Fauj Khas, or
special brigade, the first in rank in the Sikh army ; and Ajudhia . s
was placed under them as Paymaster of the troops and as the
medium of communication between the Commanding officer

0
X
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and the Maharaja. The Fauj Khas was at one time raised
to five battalions of infantry and three cavalry regiments;
but at the request of General Ventura it was again reduced
to four infantry battalions and two regiments of cavalry.

On the death of his father, the Maharaja directed
Ajudhia to assume charge of the Accounts office for Regular
troops and artillery ; but he was on the best of terms with the
French (Generals, and begged to be allowed to keep his own
appointment. The vacant post was accordingly given to Tej
Singh. Ajudhia Parshad received the title of Diwan, and the
village of Nain Sukh was continued to him from his father's
jagir. He continued to serve with the Fanj Khas, and when
(General Ventura was absent on leave he commanded the whole
force. So ably did he do this, that General Ventura wrote of
him in these terms : *“ On the two ocoasions that I have been
absent on leave in France, Ajudhia Parshad has held the com-
mand of the Life Guards of the Maharaja. I have never had
cause to repent appointing him my Deputy, for on my return
from France 1 have found the troops in as good a condition
as if T had been present myself.” In 1831 he was sent to
the frontier of the Panjab to meet Lieutenant Burnes, who
was on his way from Bombay, by way of Sind, witha present
of a team of cart horses, a gtallion and four mares, and a
carriage, for Maharaja Ranjit Singh, from the King of
England. Ajudhia Parshad met the mission a little way
below Multan, and remained attached to it till its arrival in
Lahore on the 17th of July.

At the time of the Maharaja's death, Ajudhia Parshad
was with the brigade at Peshawar, where it had been stationed
for two years, but was now summoned to Lahore by Maharaja
Kharak Singh. The Diwan was, with Sardar Lahna Singh
Majithia, at the close of 1839, directed to accompany the army
of the Indus, under SBir John Keane, from Atock to Firozpur,
which was reached on the 31st of December 1839 ; and his
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attention and anxiety to meet the wishes of the General were
warmly acknowledged by that officer.

In April and May 1840, the brigade, with General
Ventura and Ajudhia Parshad, was sent against Kahan Singh
Bedi, who had murdered his nephew, seized his fort of Malsian
in the Jalandhar Doab, and imprisoned his family. Nao Nahal
Singh did not much care for the sanctity of a Bedi and, to the
indignation of many, sent the troops against his fort of Dakhni,
which they captured. Eventually this was given up to him
aigain, on his restoring Malsian to his nephew’s family and
paying a fine of Rs, 20,000 to the State.

Later in the year the brigade was sent against the Mandi
Chief, who had omitted to pay in his tribute since the death of
Ranjit Singh, or to acknowledge in any way the new Maharaja.
Mandi was covered with little forts, said to be one hundred
and twenty-three in number, besides the strong fort of Kamla-
garh ; but the Raja was frightened by the force sent against him
and gave in his submission, and was directed to proceed to
Lahore. The town of Mandi was occupied, and most of the forts
dismantled. Kamlagarh, however, held out, and while its siege
Was In progress news arrived of the death of Maharaja Kharak
Singh and Kanwar Nao Nahal Singh. This news in some
measure raised the courage of the garrison ; but the slege was
vigorously pressed, and, at length, the fort surrendered on
the 29th November, and the General, leaving a Sikh garrison
in i, marched to repress disturbances which had broken out
in Kulo. Sardar Ajit Singh Sindhanwalia, who had been
sent to Mandi, had left for Lahore before the capture of
Kamlagarh. General Ventura left for Lahore in the begin-
ning of January, recalled by Raja Dhian Singh, who wished
for his support to the claims of Prince Sher Singh ;
and Ajudhin Parshad was left in charge of the brigade.
Reinforcements had been despatched from [Lahore to
Kulu, and when these arrived the Fauj Khas heard that the
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troops in Lahore had received large gratuities from Sher
Singh with four months’ pay. Only two months’ pay had
been brought for them; so they rose in mutiny, seized the
treasure in their camp and killed several of their officers.
Ajudhia Parshad, who had considerable influence with the
-men, restored order and promized to obtain for the men
whatever the Lahore troops had received.

General Venturs left the Panjab on leave in March
1840 and, on the arrival of the brigade at Lahore,
Ajudhia Parshad retained the command, though it was
placed nominally under the little Prince Partab Singh.
The first business in which it was engaged was against Jawala
Singh,® the agent of the Maharaja. This man had hoped to
be Wasir when his master became King ; and the office had
been promised to him by Sher Singh. Raja Dhian Singh
had, however, no intention of vacating the post; to the
Maharaja be insinuated suspicions of Jawala Singh’s loyalty;
and he warned Jawala Singh of the Maharaja’s intentions
against him, till, at last, the wretched man was driven into
treason and, being encamped with five thousand Irregulars
at the Dera Charyari, near Shalabagh, refused to obey the
Maharaja’s order to come in to Lahore. Sher Singh moved
out against him, and Ajudhia Parshad, with the Fauj
Khas and supported by artillery, was directed to go in
advance. Seeing the approach of this formidable brigade,
Jawala Singh surrendered,t and he afterwards died in the
prison in the fort of Shekhopura from ill-treatment and star-
-vation, one of Raja Dhian Singh's many victims.

® Jawnla Biogh, though having to designs sgsinet Sher Bingh, had plotted
aguinst the Minister. He bad been sent to resome the Sindhanwelis jagirs, and,
retorning from that expedition with the Sindhsnwalia Chisfs, they conspired together
to gject Dhisn Eingh from theMinistry; and om the Way to Lahore they visited the
sarredl shrine at Amritesr, where they swore to persevers till their design waas
apoomplished. Dhisn Singh most have heard of this confederacy, and be never [orgot
to'revange himseif on s rival,
: 1 It is & remarkable proof of the lswlessness and power of the army ot thia tima
ihat the very Charyari Horse and Akalis, who hed on the Ist of May sapporied

Jawals Bingh in matiny and treason, on ths #nd demanded and obtsined w donstion of
Ba. M,Dg:l:.rm Mgharaja Sher Singh for oot bavisg compelled Jewala Bingh to fight
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The Maharaja paid to the Fauj Khas the gratuity
promised to them in Kulu by Ajudhia Parshad, and to
the Diwan himself he made valuable presents. The Raja
of Mandi was allowed to return to his hills, taking with him
the image of the goddess Davi, in =olid silver, of great value
and sanctity, which the Sikh soldiers had taken from Kamla-
garh.

General Ventura returned from Europe in 1840 and
took command of the brigcade. He, after Sher Singh’s
assassination, was sent secretly by Raja Hira Singh, the
Minister, to Ludhiana to try and strengthen the English
alliance by negotiation with Colonel Richmond, the British
Resident ; but at the end of 1843, disgusted with the
insubordination of the troops, and clearly foreseeing the
troubles coming on the country, he finally left the Panjab,
where he had served for upwards of twenty-four years.
Diwan Ajudhia Parshad now took command of the brigade,
and held it till the close of the Batlaj Campaign. It was
composed in 1845, before the war, of 3,176 Regular in-
fantry, 1,667 Regular cavalry, and 855 artillerymen. Total

5,698 men and 34 guns. The infantry force included the

Khas battalion, strength 820 men ; a Gurkha battalion, 707
men; Dewa Singh’s battalion, 839 men ; and Sham Singh’s
battalion, 810 men. The cavalry force was composed of a
Grenadier regiment, strength 730 men ; a Dragoon regiment,
750 men; and a troop of orderly Khas, 187 men. The ar-
tillery was the corps known as that of Ilahi Baksh, and was
commanded by General Tlahi Baksh, the best artillery officer
in the Sikh army. The pay of the whole brigade was Ras.
96,067 per mensem.

The composition of the other brigades may be in a great
measure seen from this statement regarding the crack brigade
of the Sikh army. A great change had taken place since
the death of Maharaja Ranjit Singh. His strong hand kept
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down mutiny and complaint, though even he was once com-
pelled to take refuge in Govindgarh from the fury of his
Gurkha regiment which could not obtain its arrears of pay;
but his successors, fearing for their lives and power, were
compelled to increase the numbers and the pay of the army,
till it at length became an insupportable burthen to the State
and a standing menace to other powers.

At the time of Maharaja Ranjit Singh’s death, the Regular
army, infantry, cavalry and artillery, was composed of 29,168
men, with 192 guns, at a monthly cost of Rs. 3,52,088.
Under Maharaja Sher Sing, the Regunlar army was composed
of 90,065 men, with 232 guns, at a monthly eost of Rs. 5,48,603,
Under Raja Hira Singh the Regular army consisted of
50,805 men, with 282 guns, ata monthly cost of Rs. 6,82,984.
Under Sardar Jawashir Singh, the Regular army con-
sisted of 72,370 men, with 381 guns, at a monthly cost
of Rs. 8,52,696. The inereage in the number of guns under
Sardar Jawahir Singh was in a great measure nominal.
Few new guns were cast, but many old ones were taken out
of forts, furbished up, and placed on field carriages. The
Irregular cavalry does not appear o have increased in the same
proportion as the Regular army. At the commencement of
hostilities its numbers were 16,292. When the Satlaj War
of 1845 broke out, the Sikh army throughout the whole
Panjab was thus composed :—

Hegular Infantry ... i «s 08,706

Regular Cavalry ... ws 6,235
Irregular Cavalry ... e s 10,208
Artillery »n 10,968
Uamel Swivels ... 584

Miscellaneons B2y
Guns, Field, 381 ; Garrison, 104 ; Camel Swivels, 308,
The Irregular levies and Jagirdari contingents of
horse, not included in the above, cannot be accurately deter-
mined, but they may be fairly estimated at 30,000 men.
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During the troubled administration of Raja Hira Singh,
the brigade of Ajudhia Parshad, which had been acoustomed
to discipline under the skilful Ventura, did not become 8o
completely mutinous and disorganised as the rest of the
army. When Hira Singh fled from Lahore, and was pursued
by BSardar Jawahir Singh and the Sikh army, the Fauj
Khas remasined on the plain below the ecitadel to guard
the person of the young Maharaja. Jawahir Singh added
Rs. 3,000 per mensem to Ajudhia Parshad’s pay, and gave
him the villages of Mouzas Khan, Gang, Shadian, Muradi and
Kathianwala, in the Hafizabad district.

After the murder Sardar Jawahir Singh, Tej Singh, who
was hated by the army, was appointed Commander-in-Chief
of the Regular forces, and Raja Lal Singh of the Irregular ;
and when the Fauj Khas was ordered to Pesbawar it
distinetly refused to obey. The Satlaj Campaign followed.
At its close, Diwan Ajudhia Parshad tendered his resigna-
tion, which was accepted, and he left the corps with which
he bad served for twenty-six years.

After the Treaty of the 16th March 1856, making
over the hill country between the Ravi and the Indus to
Maharaja GP!Bh Smgh, Ajudhia Parshad was appointed
Commissiones; . in conjunction with Captain Abbott, to lay
down the Youndafy line of the Lahore and Jamu territories.

ore. During all this time his conduct had
given the greatfst satisfaction to the authorities ; and without
in any way ificing the interests of his own Government,
he had shown/the greatest courtesy and attention to Captain
Abbott, the British representative. On November 26th, 1847,
he bad ived the honorary title of Mumitaz wd daulah
(Eminent fin the State), besides substantial addition to
his pay. At annexation he was in possession of Rs, 5,000 per
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annum cash allowance, besides the villages of Nainsukh,
Balu Salu, Chogian, Kot Nao, Khanpur, Khatianwala,
Shadman, Gang and Moradi, worth Rs. 19,000 per annum.
In April 1849, immediately after the annexation of the
Panjab, the Diwan was appointed fo take charge of the
young Maharaja Dalip Singh in conjunction with Dr.
Login, and in 1849 he accompanied the Prince to Fatahgarh,
where he remained in attendance wpon him until Septem-
ber 1851. He then, the Maharaja being about to leave for
England, returned to the Panjab and gave up public life.
Dr. Login has borne the highest testimony to the Diwan’s
upright and honourable conduct while with the Maharaja
at Fatahgarh.

The jagirs of the Diwan had lapsed to Government ab
annexation ; but he was granted a pension of Rs. 7,500, and
the Supreme Government in 1852 sanctioned Rs. 1,000 of
this pension being upheld in perpetuity.

In 1862 the Diwan was appointed an Honorary
Magistrate of the city of Lahore. He carried out the
duties of his ofice in an admirable manner, preserving his
good name for justice and impartiality up to the day of his
death. In January 1864 the Lieutenant-Governor, Bir
Robert Montgomery, conferred upon him proprietary right
in the Hingarwal Rakh, Lahore District, embracing an area
of twelve hundred acres, in recognmition of his past services.
The grant was subject to a nazarana payment of twelve
hundred rupees and was assessed at am annual rental of
Rs. 2,400. It bears the mame of Ajudhiapur in memory of
the original grantee. Khilats were at the same time bestowed
upon the Diwan and his son Baij Nath. This latter was a
gentleman of education and ability. He commenced train-
ing for official life in the office of Major Abbot, Deputy
Commissioner of Hazara, and was made a Tahsildar in 1858,
and four years later was brought to Lahore as an Extra
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Assistant Commissioner. At his father's request he resigned
the service in 1866 and took up his abode permanently at
Lahore, where he exercised magisterial powers under the
title of Honorary Extra Assistant Commissioner.

Diwan Ajudhia Parshad died in 1870. Of ks life
pension of Rs. 6,500, one half was continued to Diwan Baij
Nath. The estate was saddled with a debt of Rs. 24,000,
which Baij Nath rapidly increased to Rs. 40,000. In 1874
the Diwan's services were placed at the disposal of the
Kapurthala State for employment as Member of a Couneil
appointed to carry on the administration owing to the
continued illness of the Raja Kharak Singh. His services
were dispensed with early in 1875, affairs at Kapurthala
having necessitated the appointment of an English official
in supercession of the Couneil. The Diwan proceeded thence
on a pilgrimage to Kangra, and was on his way back to Lakhore
when he was seized with cholera, and died after a few days’
illness on the 18th August 1875,

Diwan Bai] Nath married three times. His second
wife bore him his only son, Narindar Nath, born in 1864.
He is the present head of the family. There were two
daughters (married in 1887) by the third wife whom he mar-
ried in 1871, The management of the minor's estate passed
into the hands of the Distriet Court of Wards at Lahore.
Aloan of Rs. 20,000 was granted by Government to meet
the claims of the more pressing creditors. To Narindar
Nath was sanctioned a life pension of Rs, 1,625 per annum
over and above the income from Ajudhiapur, already referred
to. By careful management the father's liabilities have been
cleared off, and the estate is now free.

Narindar Nath married in 1879 the daughter of Pandit
Bishambar Nath Kaul, now an Assistant Traffic Manager on
the North-Western Railway. He obtained the degree of
Master of Arts in 1886, and in the following year was nomi..
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nated a Fellow of the Panjab University. In the begioning
of 1888 he was selected for an Assistant Commissionership in
the Panjab under the Statutory Civil Service Rules. He has
been posted to the Gurdaspur district.

Pandit Narindar Nath sets down his income at about
sixteen thonsand rupees per annum, made up of the jagir re-
venue of eight villages and the land reuts of Mouzas Ajudhia-
pur and Amirpur in the Lahore Tabsil, together with the
pension already mentioned and his salary as Assistant Com-
missioner.

Pandit Bhawani Parshad, grandson of Pandit Kawal
Ram, died childless in 1877.
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SARDAR RANJODH SINGH NAKAI, OF BAHRWAL.

CHATDHRI HEMBAT,
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- About the year 1595 the Sikh Guru Arjan, travelling
with a few followers in the Lahore district, reached the little
town of Babrwal, which had been founded some years before
by a man of the Arora caste, named Bahr. He was not
- received with hospitality, and passed on to the neighbouring
- - village of Jambar, where, tired and foot-sore, he begged for
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the loan of a charpai (native bedstead), and, lying down in
the shade of a tree, went tosleep. By this time Hemraj, a
Sindhu Jat, Chaudhri or headman of Bahrwal, who was absent
when the Gurn passed through his village, heard of what had
occurred and, ashamed of his townsmen’s inhospitality, set off
to Jambar to try and induce theholy man to return. On his
arrival at the village he found the Guru asleep. What was
tobedone P He dared not wake the saint, for he was uncertain
of his temper, nor could he suffer him to remain longer at
Jambar; so, being a man of resource and some physical
strength, he lifted the charpai and the Guru together on his
head and earried him away to Bahrwal.

When Arjan woke he was much pleased with Hemraj’s
attention, and called for water to drink. He was told that
the water of their only well was brackish. The Guru then
directed Hemraj to throw some sweet cakes down the well.
This being done, the water immediately became sweet and
pure. The Guru also blessed Hemraj, and prophesied that be
would have a gon, by name Hira Singh, who would be a great
and powerful Chief.

So runs the legend, believed to this day at Bahrwal; for
is not the water of the well, known as Budhewala, still sweet
and clear? The legend would have been told with more
propriety of Alam the father, or of Mahmana the grandfather
of Hemraj; for Hira Singh, who was certainly the first man
of note in the family, was not born till nearly a hundred years

“after the death of Guru Arjan, which took place in 1606.

Hira Singh, at the time that the Sikhs grew powerful,
about the middle of the last century, took possession of the
Naka country lying between Lahore and Gogaira, and which
has given its name to the family of Hira Singh and to the Misal
which he commanded. He took Chunian from the Afghans,
and joined the Kanhyas and Bhangis in their attacks upon

. the falling Moghal power.

ek
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When Sardar Hira Singh was killed fighting with Shekh
Shuja Chisti of Pak Pattan, his son Dal Singh was & minor,
and his nephew Nar Singh succeeded to the command of the
Misal, Nar Singh was killed in a fight at Kot Kamalia in
1768, and his son Ram Singh gsucceeded him. TUnder this
Chief the Misal rose to some strength and importance. It
was never powerful compared with some of the other Sikh
confederacies; but it could bring into the field nearly two
thousand horsemen, with camel swivels and a few guns. The
Jats of the Naka country are strong and bold, and the little
Misal did good battle with the Afghans and other neighbours,
till at last & tract of country worth nine lakhs of rupees was
in the hands of Sardar Ran Singh and his Misaldars (feudal
retainers). Theyheld Chunian, part of the Kasur, Sharak-
pur and Gogaira parganas, and at one time Kot Kamalin, the
head-quarters of the Kbaral tribe.

The Chief of Sayadwala, Kamar Singh, was the rival of
Ran Singh, and they fought with varying success for some
years, till at length Ran Singh obtained a decided advantage
and took possession of Sayadwala. Sardar Ran Singh died
in 1781, and his eldest son Bhagwan Singh, who suceeeded
to the command of the Misal, was mnot able to hold the
territory his father had acquired. Sayadwala was recovered
by Wazir Singh, brother of Kamar Singh, who also took
some of the Nakai villages, but these he eventually gave
up. Bhagwan Singh now perceived that, unless he made
powerful friends, he would probably lose his territory
altogether, so he betrothed his sister Nakayan, generally
known as Raj Kauran, to Ranjit Singh, son of Mahan
Singh Sukarchakis, who was then one of the most powerful
Chiefs in the Panjab. Wazir Singh tried hard to break off
this match, which boded no good to him, but was unable to
doso. Shortly after this, in 1785, Mahan Singh summoned
both Bhagwan Singh and Wazir Singh to Amritsar to aid
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him in his struggle with Jai Siogh Kanhya. The rival
Chiefs went accordingly ; but when Jai Singh was defeated
they soon began to quarrel, for Maban Singh treated Wazir .
Singh with more consideration than Bbagwan Singh, which d
roused the jealousy of the latter. Mahan Singh, with some
difficulty, brought about a reconciliation; but the peace was

not of long duration, and the quarrel broke out with greater

violence than ever, and in the fight which ensued Bhagwan

Singh was slain. His brother Gayan Singh succeeded him

in 1789. The old enemy of their family, Wazir Singh, was
murdered soon after by Dal Singh, son of Sardar Hira

Singh, who took refuge at Bahrwal ; but he was followed

and assassinated by a servant of Wazir Singh who had

resolved to avenge his master’s death. Mahan Singh died

in 1792, and in 1798 Gayan Singh married his sister to

Ranjit Singh, to whom she had been some time betrothed. In

1802 a som, the issue of this marriage, was born, who
afterwards ascended the throne as Maharaja Kharak Singh.

The Nakai family did not find the alliance with Ranjit

Singh productive of much advantage. That ambitious Chief
hungered after his kinsman’s possessions, and tried hard to i
induce Sardar Kahan Singh, who became the head of the .
family on the death of Gayan Singh in 1807, to come and re-
side at Court. Thisthe Sardar steadily declined to do; and
in 1810 the Maharaja seized all the possessions of the family
without any resistance on their part, for resistance was un-
availing. He gave Kahan Singh estates in the neighbourhood
of Bahrwal of the value of Rs. 15,000, and to Khazan Singh
be also gave a jagir at Nankot.

Sardar Kahan Singh in 1860 was made a Jagirdar
Magistrate. He always lived 4t Bahrwal, a little town far
away from any high-road, and mixed very little in politics
since the death of Maharaja Ranjit Singh. Tn 1848 his troops,
and his second son Atar Singh, who were with the army at
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Multan, joined the rebels; but Kahan Singh, who was then
an old man, was not suspected of being a party to his son’s
disaffection. He enjoyed a life pension of Rs. 3,840, in addi-
tion to his jagir revenue of Rs. 11,980, His eldest son, Chatar
Singh, who remained faithful, died in 1857 leaving three
sons and two daughters.

Kahan Singh died in 1872. The Chiefship of the family
has passed down to his grandson Sardar Ranjodh Singh,
eldest son of the late Sardar Chatar Singh, a land-owner
to the extent of over 1,400 ghumaos in various villages in the
Lahore and Montgomery districts. Of the jagir of twelve
thousand rupees held by Kahan Singh, Rs. 7,040 have been
continued to the family in the following shares :—

Es.

To Ranjodh Singh, in perpatuitjr s 2,000

Sardar Atar Bingh, for life e 240

.,  lshar Bingh, e 1,200
Thakar Singh, Partab Singh, and Lalmn

Bingh, each o s G600

The widow of En.rﬂnr Kaban n,mgh o 600

Of the above, the allowances of the widow, and of Atar
Singh, Thakar Singh and Lahna Singh have since lapsed by
the demize of the grantees.

Sardar Ranjodh Singh’s second son Narain Singh is
employed in the Deputy Commissioner’s office, Lahore. Heis
a candidate for a Naib-Tahsildarship.

Sardar Labh Singh is a Zaildar at Bahrwal, owning over
two thousand ghumaos of land. Both Sardar Lahna Singh

and Ishar Singh (alizs Abdul Aziz) became Mahomedans.

The latter lives with his cousin Partab Singh at Gajja, a vil-
lage on the Ravi, where the family owns land, about six mileg
from Ranjodh Singh’s village of Bahrwal. Besides his pension
he enjoys the proprictary dues of over four thousand ghumaos
of land.

~ Sarder Sawan Singh (son of Panju Singh) is a Deputy
Inspector of Police in the Lahore district.
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his father as Chief of the Habibzai tribe; but was a man of
such bravery and ability that he was selected by the Abdah
tribes, living between Kandahar and Hirat, to be their leader.
This was in 1598,

Shadi Khan, the Governor of the Emperor Akbar at
Kandahar, was hostile to/Sgdo Khan, so he went over to the
interests of Shah Ahg, ging of Persia, who had lost
Kandahar in 1584 ang g jntriguing for its recovery. This
he effected in 1621, oftap Aldbar’s death, with the assistance
of the Abdalis. Sa&fﬂ Khap died in 1626 leaving five sons,
from whom have d¢ycende¢l several well-known Afghan tribes.
The descendants of Sadp Khan are known as Sadozai; ®
and one branch of {he fantily, to which Ahmad Shah, Timur
Shah, Zaman Sk} ang [Shak Shuja belonged, reigned for
many years in Xahul.

Khizar ¥ihan, wh [ succeeded his father in the Chiefship,
was of a mild dispositjfon, unsuited to rule over a wild Afghan
tribe. His *"nt-hnritff' was set at defiance; and at length,
seeing thathbov,,,1d not compel obedience to his orders, he
made ﬂverﬂmé uneasy honour of Chiefship to his brother
Mahdud Khan, who was of a determined character and held
the Abdalis in terror. Khizar Khan died in 1626, and
Mahdud Khan held rule for seventeen years after his death.
He resided at Safa, some fifty miles north-east of Kandahar,
where Ali Mardan Khan was Governor ; and with this able and
enlightened man Mahdud Khan always maintained friend-
ship. In 1637 Ali Mardan Khan, who was no favourite of
his master the Shah of Persia, gave up Kandahar to
Mahomed Said Khan, the Governor of Kabul, for the

® A clan of the Ninzi tribe, callad Sadomi, inhahits the villape of Doda oo the
Indas. They sre not, however, connseted with the family of Sado Khan,

% Abmad Shah ooly adopted the same of Durani for his tribe in 1747, It had
farmeriy besn always called Abdali. Sharif Din bod five sons, uecording to Afghun
tndlﬂnn,‘l.-mn. Drek, Tarin, Hawawal, and Abdul. The lsat received his pame
from & emint, Kbhwajs Abdol Ahmad, whom he bad for some time secved as a dlsciple.
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Emperor Shah Jahan, and retired to Dehli, where he was
received with great honour. Mahdud Kban was assassinated
in a domestic brawl six years later. Shah Hasain Khan
succeeded him, but was opposed by Khudadad Khan, who
claimed the Chiefship in right of his father Khizar Khan. A
battle was fought between the consins near Safa, in which
Hasain Khan was defeated; but he fled to Kandahar and,
being aided by its Governor, Khas Khan, again took the field
with a considerable force. Khudadad Khan, unable to oppose
him, fled to Ispahan, where he was well received by Shah
Abbas IL.; and he accompanied that monarch in 1648
against Kandahar, which was taken before the army of Shah
Jahan could arrive for its defence. The Shah then retired
to Hirat, leaving Mahrab Khan Kazalbash Governor of
Kandahar, and Khudadad Khan in command of the country
without the walls.

The enemy of Hasain Khan was now in power ; and it
was with great joy that the latter saw, some months after
the capture of the city, the Indian army under Aurangzeb
and Said-ula approach. He joined the invaders; but
Kandahar was so well and bravely defended by the Persian
garrison, that at the beginning of the cold weather of 1649
Aurangzeb was compelled to raise the siege and retire to
Hindustan. With him went Shah Hasain Khan and all his
family, for they could no longer remain in Afghanistan with
safety.

Shah Hasain first obtained the pargana of Sialket n
jagir, and soon afterwards, in exchange for it, Rangpur, on
the right bank of the Chanab, ten miles below the junction
of that river with the Ravi. In 1653 he accompanied Prince
Dara Shiko, eldest son of Shan Jahan, on his unsuccessful
expedition against Kandahar, the last attempt on that city
made by the Moghals. The next year he accompanied Prince.
Aurangzeb to the Deccan, of which he was Viceroy ; but in
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1655 he returned to Dehli and, through the interest of AW
Mardan Khan, obtained permission to raise seven hundred
horse, and his brother two hundred.

When Aurangzeb ascended the throne in 1658, Hasain
Khan received an accession to his jagir; but his hot temper
soon after brought him into disgrace. On one unlucky day
the Emperor was locking at some horses which had been
presented to him, and, pointing to one of them, he asked
Hasain Khan its breed. The Chief hesitated ; and a fine
looking Patham, who stood by, answered the question,
* Blave,” said Hasain Khan in a fury, “ when the Emperor
addresses me, why do you speak P ¢ Slaves are known by
their mean appearance,” was the reply, Hasain Khan, who
was short in stature and very swarthy in complexion, was so
much irritated at this that he drew his dagger and stabbed
the too bold speaker to the heart. For this offence, coms
mitted in the very presence of the Emperor, Hasain Khan was
imprisoned and, though after a time released, was banished
for life from the Court. His services under the Emperor
alone saved him from execution. Shortly after his return to
Rangpur he died without issue. His brother Aladad Khan
bad died a few months previously leaving six sons, of whom
Tnayat Khan, the eldest, succeeded to his uncle's estate.
When Mahomed Muazudin Bahadar, son of Prince Mahomed
Muazam and grandson of Aurangzeb, arrived at Multan, on
his way to Shikarpur and Sind, Inayat Khan joined him and
fought throughout the campaign. Bakhtiar Khan, the chief
Afghan rebel, submitted and was, on the entreaty of Inayat
Khan, forgiven.

This Chief was succeeded by his eldest son Sher Mahomed
Khan, who was almost an imbecile, and his uncle Abid Khan
administered affairs and possessed all real power. On the
death of Abid Khan great dissentions arose in the family,
Lashkar Khan, brother of Abid Khan, claimed the Chiefship
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from his seniority, while Asghar Khan, brother of Sher
Mahomed Khan, claimed through his father and his brother.
The Afghans ranged themselves, some on one side, some on
the other ; and it was only the influence of Hayat Khan the
Governor that prevented bloodshed. Having induced all to
promise to abide by his decision, he appointed Zahid Khan
Chief. His choice was a good one, and was unanimously
approved.

Zahid Khan was an able man, of gentle manners and
considerable learning. He was a great friend of Kamrudin,
Minister at Dehli, and when Nadir Shah invaded India, and
the Moghal power was becoming weak in the distant pro-
vinees, he was summoned to Debli and, through the interest
of Kamrudin, appointed Nawab of Multan. This was in 1738,
Zghid Khan, immediately on his nomination, wrote to his
gon Shakar Khan to assume the Nawabship ; but Ishak Khan,
the Governor in possession, would not submit, and was only
ousted after a severe struggle. In 1747 Ahmad Shah
Durani invaded India and, after having put to flicht Shah
Nawaz Khan, the Governor of Lahore, moved down to
Multan, where he confirmed Zahid Khan in his appointment.
This led the Dehli Court to believe that Zahid Khan had
betrayed them and gone over to the enemy; and Shahnawaz
Khan was appointed to supersede him as Governor, while
Mir Manu, son of Wazir Kamrudin, was made Viceroy at
Lahore. Zahid Khan did not at first oppose the new
Governor ; but during the Baisakhi festival a soldier in the
service of Shah Nawaz Khan insulted an Afghan woman
in a village near the city. This caused a general riot, in
which a relative of Diwan Lakhpat Rai lost his hand, Zahid
Khan then assembled his Afghans and attacked the forces
of Shah Nawaz Khan, who was worsted and compelled to send
to Lahore to beg assistance from Mir Manu. The Lahore
Governor was the last man to give assistance to Shah Nawaz
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Khan, whom he hated as a rival, and sent instead a force .' -
against him under Kura Mal, whom he appointed his Deputy aa
at Multan and created a Raja. Shah Nawaz Khan met the ,';
ot

force about forty miles from Multan ; but after an engagement, i
which is said to have lasted several days, he was defeated and 3]
slain. :_':'. i

Raja Kura Mal then entered Multan as Governor., He =
had before gerved in the province as Diwan ; and Zahid Khan,
thinking it beneath bis dignity to render obedience to the . _
new ruler, retired to Sitpur. Kura Mal was about to compel %
his submiszion by force of arms ; but a new invasion of Ahmad AR
Shah obliged him to proceed to Lahore, leaving Multan in the
hands of Shakar Khan, son of Zahid Khan. Mir Manu and
Kura Mal met the Abdali Chief near Lahore on the 12th
April 1752 and gave him battle, but were defeated, and Kura
Mal was slain. Mir Manu made his peace and was confirmed
m his Viceroyalty, and under him Ali Mahomed Khan, an
Afghan officer, was appointed Governor of Multan. Zahid
Khan had died in 1749, and his son Shakar Khan gave over
charge and remained on good terms with the new Governor.

In 1757 the Mahratas overran the Panjab. Raghoba,
brother of the Peshwah, captured Lahore, and two Mahrata
Chiefs, Balah Beg and Sanjli Beg, were sent against Maltan,
which they captured almost without opposition, Ali Mahomed
Khan taking to flight. The Maliratas, whose rule was most
oppressive, did not: remain long ; and the next Governor ap-
pointed by Ahmad Shah was Khwaja Yakub. Ali Mahomed
Khan, who had at first obeyed the royal order after a little
while, finding the Khwaja a feeble Governor, expelled him
and again took possession of the Nawabship.

Shakar Khan had died, and his eldest son was a man of
no ability ; so Ahmad Shah wrote to Shuja Khan, the second
son of Zahid Khan, directing him to assume the Nawabship.
Shuja Kban collected his Afghans, and Ali Mahomed having
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LAHORE DISTRICT. 79
~no force capable of opposing them submitted. Shuja Khan
-then became Governor, and built the fortress of Shujabad,
~ twenty-three miles south of Multan. The turbulent Ali
 Mahomed Khan soon took up arms against him, and Shuja
Khan, who had grown unpopular, was defeated and thrown
into prison, while Ali Mahomed re-assumed the government.
This proceeding irritated the Durani Monarch in the highest
- degree, and when he reached Multan in 1767 be ordered the
arrest of Ali Mahomed, who was bold enough to attend the
~ Darbar. Both the offender and his son were by order of
- Ahmad Shah ripped up, and their bodies paraded on camels
~ through the city, with a proclamation to the effect that this
should be the fate of any one who should insult a Sadozai.
Shuja Khan was then re-invested withthe government of
‘Multan, and Ahmad Shah left for Kabul.

In 1771 the Sikhs, who were becoming very powerful,
and who had in 1766 overran the Multan country under
Jbanda Singh, attacked Mnultan, and for a month and a half
- Dbesieged the fort; but Jahan Khan marched to its relief, and
~ compelled them to retire. After this, Haji Sharif Khan
~ Sadozai was nominated Governor by Timur Shah, and Shuja
. Khan again retired to his fort of Shujabad; but when called
'__ upon to give up to Government all the proceeds of his
~ zamindari estates, he refused and came to an open rupture
: with the Governor. On this, another Haji Sharif Khan
~ Taklu, otherwise known as Mirza Sharif Beg, was appointed,

. In conjunction with a merchant named Dharam Das; and
contrived to keep on good terms with Shuja Khan. But
- Abdul Karim Khan Bamazai invaded Multan, and the Mirza
- called in the Sikhs to his assistance. Timur Shah, hearing
- that the Mirza had chosen allies from among his bitter
~ ememies, superseded him and sent Madat Khan to § the
. post. Sharif Beg resisted the new Governor ; but Shuja
- Khan supported him, and they together besieged Sharif
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" Beginthe citadel. They could not take it, however, and -

.' Madat Khan was recalled to Kandahar. Timur Shah now B

_ directed the Bshawalpur Chief to reduce the rebellious

Governor to obedience. He accordingly marched to Multan =

~with his Daundputras, accompanied by Muzafar Khan, son of

" Shuja Khan. The fort was besieged and taken in eighteen e

days; but the triumph wasa short one. Sharif Beg had

. called to his assistance Sardars Jhanda Singh and Ganda 8
- Singh, the Bhangi Chiefs, and they now appeared with a large

force. They defeated the Bahawalpur troops and stormed

~  the fort, which they kept for themselves. The Mirza on this
~ fled to Talamba, and from thence to Khairpur Tanwein, where

e died not long afterwards.

~ The Sikhs then attacked and eaptured Shujabad, whither
Shuja Khan had fled, and he only escaped with difficulty, and
took refuge at Bahawalpur. Sardar Jhanda Singh then left

' Multan in charge of Diwan Singh Chachowalia, one of his
 Misaldars, and veturned to Amritsar. This was in 1772. =
. Some time after this Shuja Khan died, and in 1777 his son
 Muzafar Kban persuaded Bahawal Khan, Chief of Bahawal.
" pur, to make another effort to recover the city. He
. accordingly attacked the fort, and was at first successful; but

afﬁraai&gaaftmty—thrmdaysmrﬁpuhaﬂwﬂhluﬂs,nnﬂ
~ Muszafar Khan then applied for aid to Kabul. Sardar Madat
Khan was again despatched with a considerable force, but he =

" did not reach Multan £l early in the following year. Kabul

. politics had then changed, and his services were required at o

4 home, and he was recalled without having effected anything.
. Muzafar Khan then retired to Uch, where he lived under the
~ protection of the famous Makhdum Sabib Shekh Hamid till

1779, when Timur Shab, king of Kabul, marched to Multan
~ withalarge army, and recovered it from the Sikhs aftera

£ iege of forly days. The Sikhs were allowed to retire | 0
. unmolested, and Muzafar Khan was appointed Governor with
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-ﬁhu title of Nawab Ruknudaula (Pillar of the Stata). T]:u:sm s |
- Goyernor was an energetic and able man, and very much im- =

" proved the Province during his long tule. He had not, how- i

. ever, much time to bestow on works of peace, for from 1779

; ‘ﬁ"uhis death in 1818 he was engaged in constant’ war.
~ The Sikhs of the Bhangi Misal attacked him first, and them
~ Sahib Khan Sial and Sardar Karam Singh Bhangi made &

. joint attack, which was only repulsed with difficulty.

~ In 1790 Muzafar Khan, leaving Multan in charge of

. Mahomed Khan Bahadarkhel, journeyed to Kabul, and remain-

; ‘ed absent for two years, When Zaman Shah ascended the
thmna Muzafar Khan was confirmed in his Governorship,
‘andin 1797, when that Prince invaded India, and the Sikhs
- lost for atime their ascendancy, be drove them out of Kot
Kam&ha, which he made over to its hereditary Rais, Sadat
Ianhm Kharal.

- The great enemy of Muzafar Khan at Multan was Abdul.

~ Samad Khan, one of the Sadozai Chiefs, who did all he
~could to injure the Nawab at the Courts of Lahore and Kabul,

- and who was at one time appointed Governor by Shah Zaman ;

© Dut at last he was defeated, his fort taken and his jagirs
! In 1802 Muzafar Khan first saw the young Chisf Ranjit
- Singh, who had marched towards Multan to spy out the land.
~ The Nawab came out to meet him thirty miles from the
~ city, and the Chiefs, having interchanged valuable presents,
- separated very good friends. Again in 1806, after having
~ reduced Jhang, Ranjit Singh marched towards Multan,
~ and reached Mahtam, twenty miles north of the city,
~ when the Nawab, who had no wish to fight with the Sikh
E&nﬂt{, gave him Rs. 70,000 to retive. Ranjit Singh bestowed
wﬂmhln khilats on the Nawab and took his departure.
mﬂKhanSmLthaUhmi of Jhang, who had been Just S
»d by Ranjit Singh, took refuge at Multan, and Muzafar
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Elum gave him men and money, with which he contri

. to recover a considerable portion of his territory, thnng"ﬁ
" he was unable to oust entirely Fateh Singh Kalianwals,
" the Sardar in possession. Abdul Samad Khan, the defeated
~ Badozai Chief, who had taken refuge at Lahore, pmuaﬂa&
" Ranjit Singh in 1807 to attack Multan in force. The
town was in part captured, but the fort held out against
,' all the Sikh efforts ; and an agreement was concluded,
. through Fateh Singh Kalianwala, by which the Maharaja =
retired on receiving a large sum of money. o
In this year Muzafar Khan, tired of constant war,
' made over the Nawabship to his son Sarfaraz Khan, and |
: get out on the pilgrimage to Mecca. He met wrthmg
. difficulties on the journey. The Arabs, attracted by thg
- splendour of his cavalcade, attacked it in great nnmbam
. and were only bought off with great difficalty. Muz
. Khan was absent fourteen months ; and at the ulmufl&ﬁﬂ,
-_-__mn after his return as a Haji (one who has made the
- JE to Mecca), Mr. Elphinstone visited Multan on
i his. wa.]rmtfl:u Court of Shah Shuja-ul-Mulk at Peshawar.
* He was hospitably received, and the Nawab wished to place
~ himself under British protection ; but the British Envoy hnﬁ.
" no authority to accept his alleglnce, and Muzafar Khan
~ opened a correspondence with the Governor-General in |
, .Galnutta. expressing his desire to be on good terms with the

3 At the beginning of 1810 Maharaja Ranjit Singh again
~ marched against Multan, He had just met Shah Blm]a.
~ at Khushab, and the exiled monarch wished the Sikhs to
. take Multan and make it over to him. Muzafar Khan had in
1808 repulsed an attack of the Shah's troops, and, in the =
hope of conciliating lim, had more than once offered hmx
~ anasylum at Multan; but Shah Shuja wished to ul:h.m
~ thie city and province as his own by conquest. The Maharaja
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ted the weak-minded Prince with great respect, hnﬁ,
_ g to obtain any money from him, determined to take
- Multan on his own account. On the 24th February 1810
A 1 o arrived before the walls, and next day took possessiom of
 the city. :
~ The neighbouring Chiefs were much alarmed at the
- proceedings of the Maharaja. Mahomed Khan, Chief of
. Leish and Bhakar, paid Rs. 1,20,000 as the ransom of his
- country, and Sadik Mahomed Khan of Bahawalpur offered a
. lakh with the same object, but it was not accepted. He,
- however, though Muzafar Khan was his friend, was compelled
. to send five hundred horsemen as a reinforcement to the Sikhs,
‘For some time the fort was bombarded without effect,
- and mining was then resorted to; but the besieged coun-
. termined with success, and blew up the battery of Atar
| Singh Dhari, killing him, with twelve men, and seriously
. wounding others, among whom were Sardar Nahal Singh %
~ Atariwala and the young Hari Singh Nalwa. The battery 3
-was so near the fort that the Sikhs were unable to carry
. off their dead: and these were sent in by the besieged,
- the body of Atar Singh being covered with a pair of
~ shawls, :
Diwan Mohkam Chdnd was sent to reduce Shujabad ;
‘but this fort was of considerable strength and could not
 be taken. On the 21st March s general assault was ordered ;
. but the Sikhs were repulsed with great loss, and they
. mow grew disheartened, for provisions had become very
- dear in the camp; Diwan Mohkam Chand was dangerously
ill, and several leaders had been slain, while scarcely any
- impression had been made on the citadel. On the 25th ;
.. mother assault was made, with the same result. It was
‘necessary to raise the siege; and Ranjit Singh, to his intenza
ification, had to accept from Muzafar Khan the 'ﬁﬂl‘mﬂ
. had many times rejected, namely, tmand-ahalflakhg
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of rupees, twenty war horses, and a contingent in time :ff
'-,, var. Having received Rs. 30,000 in earnest of the ransom,
ﬂlﬂ Maharaja retived from Multan on the 14th of ,Lpﬁl.
---.==-.- that his own strength was insufficient for the
' eapture of Multan, Ranjit Singh addressed the Governor
" @eneral, requesting the co-operation of British troops.
| His proposition was not well received, the more so as he
pmpmed that the force, instead of marching through the
Panjab, should pass throngh the sterile country south of
‘thSath} Shah Shuja even prapared for an independent
i;ttmt on Multan, but he was wise enough to relinquish
Hta ides, which could have had no chance of success.
The Nawab now quarrelled with S8adik Khan of Bahawal-
‘pm. who had assisted his enemies in the late war. There
 was a strong party in Bahawalpur, headed by Fateh
. Mahomed Gori and Ahmad Khan, opposed to the Khan; ]
. god these, having failed in an attempt to assassinate their
 master, took refuge in Multan territory. The Khan remon-
gtrated with the Nawab for allowing them an asylum; but
~ Muzafar Khan, whose wrath was by no means appeased,
- supported the rebels, and when he saw that they were
. about to be overpowered declared war against the Khan.
‘He proceeded to Shujabad himself in person, and sent |
. forward his army against Yakub Mahomed Khan, the
"Ba]'nwnlpnr General. An action ensued, in which the Dand-
j being the more numerous and better supplied with
ﬂﬁ]]ﬁrj", were the victors, and the Afghan force retreated
. to Shujabad. In 1811 Muzafar Khan was engaged in conflict.
. with Mahar Rajab of the Rajbanah tribe, a rebellious depen-
Mo’ihuum He defeated him and destroyed his fort,
~ upon the site of which he built Firezgarh.
' 2 In February 1816 an irregular attack was made upon
Hnltan’n]r the Sikhs. A strong force had been sent to
3 pawalpur and Multan to collect the tribute; and there
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g some delay in Muzafar Khan's payment, Phula B‘mgi:;
" mad and drank with blang, led a storming party
n! fanatics like himself against the town, and with such
impabms:t]r did they make the attack that they gmns&
n of some of the outworks of the citadel. But Fakir
,&muﬂm made due apologies ; the Nawab paid his tribute
quicker than he wonld otherwise have done, and the Sikh
nm'my proceeded towards Mankera. In 1817 a Sikh army
" under Diwan Chand marched against Multan and atrt.nukod
. the fort, but was repulsed, and retired on payment of ten
~ thousand rupees. These attacks, however, were not made in
_earnest. The Maharaja was collecting his strength for a. great
- effort ; and he had sworn that Multan, which had so often =
ﬂaﬁuﬂhm should yet be his. During the cold weather of
1817 he was collecting supplies and men from aﬂqunrtm:-l,
and in January 1818 an army of twenty-five thousand
‘men under the nominal command of Prince Kharak Bmgh, L
" but in reality commanded by Misar Diwan Chand, marched
from Lahore. On the way to Multan the forts of Khangarh
~ and Muzafargarh were taken, the city was invested and
ptured early in Febroary, and the bombardment of the
J fmﬁmmmﬂnuai The Nawab had a garrison of only two
~ thousand men, and the citadel was not provisioned for
‘a giege; but he made a defence the like of which the
Sikhs had never before seen. Till the 2nd June tha‘
- bombardment went on, and two large breaches had been |
‘made in the walls; for the great Bhangi gun, the Zam-
Zam of Abmad Shah Durani, had been brought from =
Lahore and had been four times fired with effect. More
. than one assault was made by the Sikhs, but they were |
~ repulsed on one oceasion with the loss of ome thonsand =
: .mght hundred men. The gates were blown in, but the
- garrison raised behind them mounds of earth on which
he: faughthmdmhundwﬁhtheﬂskhs. The defenders




f"-'-.- tmg men, moat of them of the tribe or fﬂ.mily
uanzafar Khan, The rest had either been killed, or had
p over to the enemy ; for they had been heavily bribed
to dasm-t their master, and many of them were unable
' to resist the temptation. At length, on the 2nd .Ium. 13
- an Akali, by name Sadhu Singh, determined to surpass
what Phula Singh had done in 1816, rushed with a few
~ desperate followers into an outwork of the fort and, takmg
- the Afghans by surprise, captured it. The Sikh forces, '
Mg this success, advanced to the assault and mounted
he breach at Khizri Gate. Here the old Nawab, with his ':_
" eig t sons and all that remained of the garrison, stood,
sword in hand, resolved to fight to the death, Saman]r 4
 fell beneath the keen Afghan swords that the Sikhs drew
‘back and opened fire on the little party with their match-
locks. “ Come on like men,” shouted the Afghan, * and let
~us fall in fair fight.”” But this was an invitation the Sikhs
. did not care to accept. There died the white bearded _
Muzafar Khan, scorning to accept quarter; and there died
. his five sons, Shah Nawaz Khan, Mumtaz Khan, Azaz Khan, '
" Hak Nawaz Khan and Shah Baz Khan. Zulfakar Khan,
‘his second son, was also wounded severely in the face; and
: ’H‘m two others, Sarfaraz Khan and Amir Beg Khan, accepted
- and were saved. Diwan Ram Dayal took Sarfaraz
_Klwn upon his elephant and conducted him with all honour
- fo his own tent. Few of the garrison escaped with their
lives,* and the whole city was given up to plunder. The
of Shujabad was also reduced and five guns taken from
After this the walls of Multan were repaired, and a
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rrison r.wE gix hundred men, under command of S
= oﬂh Bmgh Kalsia and Dal Singh Naharna, being left in tho 4
- fort the Sikh army returned fo Lahore.
e/ Multan was snpposed to be very wealthy ; and, the aharau! A
t}la Maharajs amounting to only two lakhs of rupees, he issued
an order that all officers and soldiers should restore their
y!mdar, and that if any was found with them after a certain
* date the penalty would be certain death. This order bmﬂght
_ in some five lakhs to the State Treasury ; but the plunder oﬁ
~ Multan was estimated at two millions sterling.® ]
Nawab Muzafar Khan was buried with honour by the =
BhIII'JJB of Bahaudin with his son Shah Nawaz. Earfm
Khﬂn, his eldest son, had been for some years Nawab, his®
father having procured the confirmation of his succession
“from the Kabul Court. He was carried prisoner to Lahore
- by Diwan Chand, and was well received by the Mnhm]a, :
. who gave him a jagir at Sharakpur and Naolakha, afterwards
~ commuted to a cash pension. Zulfakar Kban also rmewed* :
a pension. Sarfaraz Khan was at first rigorously guarded in
" Lahore; but when the Maharaja's power was secure in Mul- =
" $an he was allowed perfect freedom, and was always treated
" with respect and friendship by Ranjit Singh. In 1848 his
_ influence was useful to the British Government in mﬂumn&
" the Multani Pathans to abandon the cause of Mulraj, which,
- however, they did not want much pressing to do. At an-
" nexation the Nawab had a jagir of Rs. 1,100, the village of
Uhmm and a cash pension of Rs. 14,720. The pension was
ml:mt.amad for his life, and the jagir was to descend to his =
son Firozdin. Sarfaraz Khan died on the 12th March 1351,_:-
}.aavmg eight sons and seven daughters, and Firozdin in ¢
- 1855. The jagir bas accordingly lapsed to ﬂuvarnmnnt i

# Many are the-stories told aboat the oot of Maltan. I.t-nmnr t happines
'wilbrm-h the possessors, who wers killed in battle, or died
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Ahﬂnlh[apd Khan is the only son of Shah Nawaz KI\::;.L
is mother was a Bamazai lady, a daughter of Abdul Karim
Khan, some time Governor of the Derajat, and brother of'.' 1
.‘ azir Shah Wali Khan, Minister of Ahmad Shah Durani.
bdul Majid Khan is much respected in Lahore, where he isa :
Humher of the Municipal Committes and an Honorary Magis-
trh.ta He has been active in all measures for the good of :
. the city ; and has given satisfaction as & Magistrate by the
1 ‘juatma of his decisions. He is a man of considerable Jearn-
ing and is well versed in medicine. In January 1865 he
~ was created a Nawab by the Supreme Government. He
‘was made Fellow of the Panjab University in 1869,
- and was for severnl years Vice-President of the Lahore'
| Musicipal Committee, He was honoured with the title of
1 Assistant Commissioner in 1877, and the Companionship
- of the Star of India was conferred upon him in 1837.
Nawab Abdul Majid Khan has throughout his whole
career warmly identified himself as a loyal subject of
- Her Majesty. He possesses many valuable certificates from
 officials of the highest standing in the Province testifying
~ to his admirable character. Abdul Majid was a fast friend
of the Raja Randhir Singh of Kapurthala, grandfather of the
 present ruler.  He was for a short time an office-bearer jn
. that State, and his services were of great value during the
gmbmcted illness of the late Raja Kharak Singh. He has
“been for many years in receipt of an annual allowance of
ﬂlme thousand six hundred rupees from the Kapurthala
]Jarhar He is now crippled by illness and almost bedridden.
ﬂﬁ has no offspring.
5 Ahmad Ali Khan, son of Nawab Sarfaraz Khan, died in
1884. He had been in receipt of a pension of twelye hun-
dred rupees from the British Government ; and the Kapurthala
State made him an allowance of Rs. 480 per annum. He

.... a half owner with his cousin Azam Ali Khan in some well-
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“in Mouza Baghbanpur, near Lahore, nominally set
:apnrli for the maintenance of his father’s tomb; and he held
over three hundred bigas in Mouza Chaura, Tahsil Sharakpur,
Lahore. Amir Baz Khan, brother of Sarfaraz Khan, was a
. pensioner of the Nawab of Bahawalpur, who made him an
- allowance of eighteen hundred rupees per annum., His son

- Mahomed Ali Khan, who died in 1883, was allowed & similar
~ sum by the Nawab. '

Of the sons of Zulfakar Khan, Mahomed .IahangirKhm,

. who had been in receipt of a pension of Rs. 1,620, died in

1881. He was for some years a member of the Lahore

~ Municipal Committee, Ahmad Yar Khan is a Naib-Tahsildar

~in the Lahore Division. His second wife is a niece of the

- late Amir Dost Mahomed Khan of Kabul. He was in

receipt of an allowance of one thousand rupees per annum
from the Amirs of Kabul down to 1875, when it ceased in
- consequence of his taking service under the British Govern- _
ment. He enjoys a family pension of Rs. 1,440 per annum,
He is a Viceregal Darbari. g
Of Firozdin Khan's sons, Kasim Ali took service as &
" Rasaldar in the Bahawalpur State. He had a pension of
- Rs. 1,200 from Government. He died in 1881.. His brother
- Hasham Khan was also a servant of the Bahawalpur Nawab,
" and a pensioner of the British Government. Hedied in 1887,
BSadik Ali and Shamsher Ali are alive, in receipt of small pen-
gions. Many other members of the family are attached to the
- Court of the Nawab of Bahawalpur. o
Mention may be here made of Nur Mahomed Khan of
. Multan, Provincial Darbari and representative of the Khizar
. Khel branch. His father Mobazarudin died in 1886, The
- only jagir now enjoyed by the familj' is a small t in
. Mouza Taraf Ismail, Multan, held in perpetuitf. Nur
Mﬂmd Khan's uncle Bahram Khan had a jagir from
Maharaja Ranjit Singh of Rs. 1,200, which was reduced by
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one half at annexation. Humvﬂ&furmaymmas
' dar, and behaved loyally in 1858 when the Sepoy Regmmnh
'.'-n-.u nied at Multan. He ultimately took up his abode nt
B! Mecca, and died there in 1873, The cash inam enjoyed by
n for Mutiny services has been continued to his three

) l"."-"‘"

B Nore.—Nawsh Abdul Mnjid Khan died st Lahore on 26th Feroary 1890,
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SardarSarup Singh is descended from a respectable Manjha
- Jat family, formerly resident at Moran Kalan in the Nabha
. territory. Mal Singh, the first of the family to become a Sikh,
~ is stated to have left Nabha about 1760 for the Panjab,
~ where he entered the service of Sardar Charat Singh Sukar-
 chakia as a sowar, and was killed after some years in the
" Dhani Campaign. His son Dhana Singh, about the year 1800,
- enlisted in the force of Sardar Fateh Singh Kalianwala as n-' L
- trooper, and soon rose in the favour of that Chief, obtaining '
an independent command. He fonght in the Kalianwala
- Contingent in the Bhati and Kasur Campaigns. On the death
~  of Sardar Fateh Singh at Narayangarh in 1807, Dhana Singh
. entered the service of the Maharaja, who gave him a jagir
- at Bilasor, near Taran Taran, worth Rs. 2,000, He was one
~ of the agents sent by Ranjit Singh to Wazir Fateh Khan of
~ Kabul to arrange the interview which took place between
them at Jhilam on the 1st December 1812. About this
time Dhana Singh received the jagir of Talagang in the
\ Jhilam district, worth Rs. $3,000. In the campaign of
1810 against Fateh Khan of Sahiwal, he received a wound in
the face; and in July 1813 he fought in the battle of Attock,
when Fateh Khan Barakzai was defeated by Diwan Mohkam
Chand. He accompanied the detachment of Ram Dayal and
Dal Singh Naharna in the first unsuccessful expedition
:' ag: H.: Kashmir, and received in a skirmish a sword-cut on '|. :
s arm. The Sardar fought gallantly at the siege of Mn}t..n
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1813. and was one of the foremost in the assault. ’J’lhlt _
& velled sword and shield of Nawab Muzafar Khan fell into.
H! hands, and were brought by him to the Maharaja, who

» him a jagir worth Rs. 5,000, which was soon exchanged
ﬁ:r another near Talagang.
In 1819 he served in the second Kashmir expaﬂition,

‘and in 1821 at the siege of Mankera, where he was ngun

‘wounded. At this time Dhana Singh was much favoured by

Lm Maharaja, and there were few Sardars whose influence 3

_ mgrﬂhar or whose advice was more regarded. He was
t at the capture of Jahangira and at the battle of 1
Tm in 1823, and continued for some time in the Peshawar
district under the command of Sardar Budh Singh Sindhan-
walia and Prince Kbarak Siogh. Bachatar Singh, eldest son

" of Sardar Dhana Singh, entered the army about 1827, and
" his first service was at Bahawalpur, where he was sent to '
" receive the tribute. In 1823 Dhana Singh accompanied the
. force sent to seize Kangra, when Raja Anrud Chand fled
aoross the Satlaj to avoid an alliance with Raja Dhian Singh,
Minister at Lahore. When Peshawar was occupied by the
&'H:m in force, Bachatar Singh was sent to Shabkadar, where
& new cantonment had been laid out and a fort built by
ﬂu.rdar Chatar Singh Atariwala. He was stationed there
’ﬂ]ﬂﬂ the Afghan army attacked that post and the fort of
mrud in April 1837. Dhana Singh heard of the defeat
o tha Sikh army aund the death of Hari Singh Nalwa as he
‘was marching to Peshawar. He was ordered to join the
:nhm'mg‘ force of Raja Dhian Singh, which advanced with

‘haste to the assistance of the army, which was surrounded

y the Afghans and reduced to the last extremity.

_ In Janunary 1839 Sardars Bachatar Singh and Hukam
‘Singh were sent with the Sikh force escorting Shahzada
‘Timur, son of Shah Shuja, to Peshawar; and a few months
Jater Hukam Singh returned to Lahore with Prince Nao
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‘Nahal Singh, who started for the capital immediately ha-
received news of the death of his grandfather Ranjit Singh. 1
: In 1841, after Maharaja Sher Singh had ascended the

_ throne, Hukam Singh was sent with Budh Singh Malal to
~ Kulu to bring in to Lahore Sardars Lahna Singh and Kabar .
. Bingh Sindhanwalia as prisoners. This duty he performed,
_and received an increase to his jagirs of Rs. 8,000 and a grant
" of Rs. 2,000 from the Kashmir cnstoms. Bachatar Bingh
~ died in 1840, and his father Dhana Singh in May 1843. The
. death of the latter was the cause of some ill-feeling on the

~part of the Sikh Government towards the British, in the
following manner. The native village of Dhana Singh was,
- a8 has been already stated, Moran in the Nabha territory.

- After the Multan Campaign, when he was in high power with
" Ranjit Singh, he begged that Moran might be obtained for
* him in jagir. The Mabaraja accordingly applied to the Raja
_ _of Nabha, who, in May 1819, made him a grant of the village
. in exchange for certain villages which the Maharaja gave
* fo the sister of the Nabha Chief for herlife. Ranjit Singh, =

on obtaining Moran, gave it in jagir to Sardar Dhana Singh,
~ who held it till his death, and, althongh residing himself at
'; Court, kept there his family and much of his property. The
~ Raja of Nabha had for some time before Dhana Singh’s death
‘desired to resume the village; for the Sardar never obeyed
his orders or tendered him any allegiance ; but the British

“authorities, who had a regard for the fine old Chief, inter-

posed in his behalf. But when Dhana Singh died, Raja

- Davindar Singh of Nabha, armed with a letter admitting his

right frola Sir George Clerk, and a r from Msharaja

K]mrﬁ?ngh permitting him to r the village, marched
troops against it and took possession by force, killing and
wounding some of the Malwai retainers and seizmg ﬂ:r :
property of Hukam Singh, the son of the deceased Ha.rdar
Hukam Singh loudly protested against this treatment ; but




. before any action had been taken by either Government it n i
tlle matter, Maharaja Sher Singh was assassinated, and every.
. one at Lahore was too busy in looking after his own mbarem
~ to remember the village of Moran. b
' When, however, tranquillity had beenrestored, the Lﬂ.hm R
" Government made a demand for the restoration of Moran, an
" estate given by Raja Jaswant Singh of Nabha to Ranjit Singh.
Ta the British authorities this was a new view of the matter.
* General Ochterlony, Sir George Clerk and Colonel Richmond
had never known that the village had been given to the Mahn‘--"- '
ja, but imagined that it had been a jagir grant from Nabha to
~ Dhana Singh. The grant to Lahore was in itself invalid, for
~ adependent State had no power to transfer a village fo an inde-
. pendent one without the consent of the Paramount Power. The
* Jetter, too, which the Raja of Nabha stated he had received from "
: '-:;llahmja Kharak Singh, allowing him to resume the village, -
" twrned out to be no more than a copy of a copy. The weak- .
“minded Maharaja may have drafted such a letter, and the Raja °
. 'm,' have obtained, through secret influence, a copy of it, but k-
Raja Dhian Singh, the Minister at Lahore, had never sanctioned
it, and its authenticity was donbtful in the extreme. The result
was that Moran was restored neither to the Lahore State nor
to Hukam Singh ; and the Raju of Nabha received the sharpest
- reprimand for his unstraightforward eonduct. This incident &
~would have been unworthy of so much notice in this plam,
]ﬂ.ﬂ not the decision of the British Government irritated, in
no small degree, the Sikh nation. There can be no possible
. doubt but that the conduct of the British Government was just
- and necessary ; but the Sikhs were at this time in a feverish
am'l excited state. Every precantion, which the lawlessneas
‘ﬁf the Sikh army forced upon the British, they considered as
_ﬁl pstile to themselves ; and the refusal to make over the village
of Moran to Lahore, although its first transfer was clandes-
s and invalid, they considered as a deliberate insult.
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 To the other jagirs of his father Hukam Singh succeeded,
* and with the grants of Maharaja Sher Singh, personal to
~ himself, his estates amounted to Rs. 75,000 per annum.
. He was present in the garden of Shah Bilawal when thu
" Maharaja was assassinated by the Sindhanwalias, and in the
. subsequent stroggle was severely wonnded in the shoulder.
~ Little is known of Hukam Singh during the two fnllnmng
years, when he appears to have lived a retired life. He
ina killed at the battle of Sobraon in February 1846, and
' soon after his death Raja Lal Singh reduced the jagirs to
~ Rs. 25,000, which were continued to Sardar Karpal Singh,
] fsnh]aﬂt.ta the service of sixty horse.
. Karpal 8ingh was with Raja Sher Singh at Multan i m
~ 1848. When the Raja’s force rebelled Karpal Emgﬁ.
-geparated himself from it, and with a few of his sowars came
~in to the camp of Major Edwardes, with whom he had previ-
mnly served in' Bannu. His personal jagir of Rs. 11,000 k-
. was on annexation confirmed to him for life, and a new
- jagir of Rs. 5,000, for loyalty at Multan, granted in perpetuity.
" The jagir was subject to the payment of a pension of
* Rs. 1,500 per annum to Chand Kaur, widow of Sardar Huka.m
. Singh. This lady died in 1863.
Sardar Karpal Singh enlisted sepoys and showed himself
- well affected to Government in 1857, and received a k]nla.t
" of Rs. 500 and a sanad of approbation. He died in 1859,
. leaving an only son, Sarup Singh, who was educated at tha -
Lahore Government School. The widow of Sardar Kar;uﬂ ] -
ﬁmgh recoives an allowance of Rs. 1,200 per annum. The
]ngn- now held by Barup Singh, and which descends to his
 children, yields Rs. 6,797 per annum. It inclodes the re-
mnna of eleven villages in the Tahsils of Sharal‘pur
Chunian, and Lahore. He owns some lands in Monza Bluka.-
¥al, Lahore, and Mouza Nur Manabad in Firozpur.
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~ time at Uch in the Bahawalpur territory. The founder of it

"~ was Jalaludin, a native of Arabia, who at the close of the
. seventh century of the Mahomedan era came to the Court of
- Halaku Khan of Bokhara. He had served for some years asa
@ priest at Mecca, Medina and the shrine at Najib Sharif;
~ and had made pilgrimages to the tomb of Suliman and
- Ghosal Azam at Baghdad, and had gained a great reputation
. for sanctity. In Bokhara he gained many disciples, but
~ incurred the batred of Halaku Khan, who was an idolaterand
~ a tyrant, by bold denunciation of his cruelty and oppression,
~ and was seized by the royal order and thrown into a blazing
~ furnace. But, like the three Jewish saints, his body was proof
. against fire, and he came forth unscorched and unharmed;
- and Halaku Khan, not proof against such arguments, became
a convert to Mahomedanism with many of his subjects ; and
~  pave his own daughter in marriage to Jalaludin, who lived
* for some years in Bokhara, where there are still many of hig
. descendants. From the residence of Jalaludin at Bokhara
- the family has obtained the name of Bokhari. At length he
sgain set out upon his travels, taking with him his little
- grandson Bahaudin, On the journey, when the child was
thirsty, does came and fed him with their milk, and after
~ enduring many bhardships they reached the Panjab. There,
~ Jalaludin made many converts, and finally settled at Uch,
. formerly known as Deogarh. He died in 1293, in the reign
- of Jalaludin Firoz Khiji.*®

] * This apeount of the family claiming descont from the Bokhari Bayads in
trua, There are, however, many who assert that it was only when Fakir
; i that he discoversd himsalf to be & Bayad ; and an
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THE PANJAB CHIEFS.

_ Ghulam Mohaiudin was born at Rahila on the river Bias.
~ When he was three months old his father Ghulam Shah died,
~ and his widowed mother, left in great poverty, came to
~ Lahore to seek help from her husband’s friends. Abdula :
- Ansari, a well-known physician of Lahore, who had been Judge
~in Kashmir early in the reign of Ahmad Shab, and whose
~ father had written a medical work, Tazkira Ishaliya, which
- is still an authority, took pity upon her and supported both
her and her son. He gave to Ghulam Mohaiudin a good
- education; and when the boy had grown up married him
. to his niece, the daughter of his brother Khuda Bakhsh.
Ghulam Mohajudin became a physician and a bookseller
-and, in pursuit of his trade, travelled over a large portion of the
~ Panjab. He became a disciple of Fakir Amanat Shah Kadri,
and himself assumed the title of Fakir; and his murids or
disciples are still to be found in Lahore and Bahawalpur. .
Ghulam Mohaiudin left three sons, Azizudin, Imamu-
din and Nurudin. Of these, Azizudin, the eldest, was a pupil
of Lala Hakim Rai, the chief Lahore physician, who placed
him in attendance on Ranjit Singh when that Chief, soon =
after his ecapture of Lahore in 1799, was suffering from a
severe affection of the eyes. The skill and attention of the
. young doctor won the Chief’s regard, and Azizudin receiveda
grant of the village of Badu and Sharakpur, and a cash assign-
ment on Diwan Hukman Singh Pathban, who at that time
farmed the customs of Lahore, as Rama Nand did those of
Amritsar. Ranjit Singh made him his own physician and,
as he extended his territories, the jagirs of Azizudin were also
. In the year 1808, when Mr. Metcalfe was sent to Lahore
to draw up an agreement by which Ranjit Singh should be
confined to the north of the Satlaj, and in 1809, when the
British troops were moved up to that river, the Sikh Chief,
supported by his Sardars, had almost determined on war with -

iy T T e
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tha English; but Azizudin strongly dissuaded him from mmh

. a course, and his wiser counsels at last prevailed, Ranpt :
Singh, appreeiating the far-sightedness and wisdom of Azigu-{

din, consulted him on all occasions ; and from this time to the

- end of his reign never undertoock any important operation

against his advice. Tn all matters conneeted with Europeans
and the English Government, Azizudin was speciall v employed ;

 and to the Fakir's enlightened and liberal counsels it may be

attributed that throughout his long reign the Maharaja main-
tained such close friendship with the English Government.

- Trusting implicitly to its good faith, he would set out with
- his whole army on distant expeditions, leaving only the Fakir E:
- with a few orderlies for the protection of Lahore. e
2 Azizudin was employed on several occasions on military
- service. In 1810 he wassent to annex the Gujrat country =
 of Sahib Singh Bhangi, and in 1831, when Jahan Dad Khan

had given up Atock to the Maharaja, he was sent, with Diwan
Din Das Sukhdayal and Sardar Mota Singh, to reinforce the
garrison and to settle the district. Tn 1819 he was sent as
Envoy to the Bahawalpur Court, and was received there with

great honour. He accompanied the expedition against Kangra;
and in 1826, when Diwan Karpa Ram fell into disgrace,

. Fakir Azizndin was sent to receive from him the fort of
~ Philaor, of which he took charge till it was placed under
Sardar Desa Singh Majithia; and shortly before this he had
‘assumed charge of Kapurthala, Jandiala, Hushiarpur and the

Trans-Satlaj estates of Fateh Singh Ahluwalia, who had fled

~ across the Satlaj for British protection. In April 1831, "_';_
. Azizudin, in company with Sardar Hari Singh Nalwa and
" Diwan Moti Ram, was sent to Simla on a complimentary visit

~ to Lord William Bentinck.* The Envoys were received with

. graaﬂ!unmlr and arrangements were made for a meﬂti:ng

e this visit to Simla that an English oficer PlHrAmll{n: LL
uihhqum was blind 7 He replied : “'Ihiphmhudhhtmhd b
Ihnnumlmnhhhhukcﬁnmqh to discover."
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THE PANJAB CHIEFS.

_between the Maharaja and the Governor-General, which took
) plmatﬂupnrmﬂehnberufthasameyear =
© In May 1835 he was present in the Peshawar valley
. when Amir Dost Mahomed Khan with o large army arrived
~ from Kabul with the intention of recovering Peshawar from
. the Sikbs. Azizudin was sent as the principal Envoy to the
. Afghan eamp, and contrived to delude the Amirsocompletely
~  that the Afghan army was almost surrounded by the Sikbs dur-
. ing the progress of the negotiations, and had to retire to Kabul
with all speed. The Maharaja was so pleased with the adroit-
- ness of the Fakir on this occasion that on his return to camp
‘a general salute was ordered in his honour.
‘ In November 1838, when the British forees were being
~ pssembled for the Kabul Campaign, the Maharaja visited
. Lord Auckland, the Governor-Gentral, at Firozpur, wherethe
- splendour of the scene even surpassed that of the meeting at T
'Rnpnrm 1831, which had been called the * Meeting of the field =
- of cloth of gold.!  Shortly afterwards Lord Auckland paid the
- Maharaja a return visit at Lahore and Amritsar ; and on both
" these occasions the Fakir had been foremost in his attentions,
~ doing the honours in the most graceful manner for his master,
whose health was fast giving way.
. On the 27th June 1839 Ranjit Singh died. To the last
 Agzizgudin, the most faithful of his servants, the most devoted
of his friends, had remained by him; administering the
. medicine with hisown hand, and telling him news from various
qwhnwhm‘h the Maharaja was anxious to hear. On the
m of Maharaja Kharak Bingh, Azizudin and Sardar
Lahlna Singh Majithia were sent to Simla to renew the en-
| which had been entered into by Ranjit Singh
viththaﬂnmhﬂwmmt. While at Simla, news arrived
dﬂum&ard Sardar Chet Singh, the Minister and favourite
. of Kharak Singh, and the assumption of power hyaneHm.
mw This news caused some hesitation at Simla ;
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~  the Treaty was eventually renewed, and the the Envoys re- |

;hmndtuLahnm.

The influence of the Fakir at Court did not perceptibly
~ decline during the reign of Kharak Singh. In May 1840 he
was deputed by the Darbar to visit Mr. Clerk at Fifozpur,
and he made the arrangements for the visit which that officer
paid the Maharaja at Lahore in the same month. InSeptem-
ber of the same year, in company with Rai Govind Jas, he was
again sent on a confidential mission to Mr. Clerk to discuss

. the treatment of the Ghilzi and Barakzai Chiefs, and the inter-
" pretation of the first article of the Tripartite Treaty of 1838,

which had been somewhat infringed by the action taken by

" the Sikhs in Yusufzai and Swat.

e In the intrigues which succeeded the deaths of Kharak
- Singh and Nao Nahal Singh, the Fakir did not take an active
. part. Raja Dhian Singh indeed used always to consult him ; and
~ they both were parties to the arrangement by which Mai Chand
Kaur was appointed Regent during the pregnancy of Sahib
Kaur, widow of Prince Nao Nahal Sing. Azizudin was well
~ aware that this arrangement could not be a successful one, and
" his sympathies were all with Prince Sher Singh ; but his great
mlmnemmthaf‘nrengn]}epmnt,mdreprdmgham
~ politics he at this time rarely ventured an opinion in Darbar.
When Sher Singh obtained the throne he treated Azizu-
~ din with the greatest kindness ; and in March 1841 sent him
" to Ludhiana to sound Mr. Clerk, the Agent of the Governor-

General, as to the willingness of the British Government to 0

~ aid him in reducing his troops to obedience. Mr. Clerk was
not averse totheidea. The Sikhs, before the experience of the
~ Satlaj Campaign, were not considered formidable in the field, =
and Mr. Clerk thonght that with twelve thousand troops it was

: possible to reduce the Khalsa army to obedience thronghout the

it and to establish Sher Singh firmly on the throne, The
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terms on which such assistance would be rendered were t[lm
j cession to the British Government of the Lahore territory
':_ south of the Satlaj and the payment of forty lakbs of rupees
i -ffarthnaxpmes of the expedition. The Fakir, with his col-
< leaguey Munshi Din Mahomed, had no authority to conclude
- §0 important a transaction as this; and asked permission, as
- the matter could not be trusted to paper, to go to Lahore to con-
sult the Maharaja, promising to refurn in eight days. He never
~ returned, and perhaps never intended to do so. The Maharaja
. was more afraid of the British army than of his own : and, in -
| spite of the revolt of the troops in Mandi, wrote to the Agent
" to say that he had suppressed all mutiny, and that the Sikh
" army, obedient and loyal, was ready to march against the
~ enemies of the English.*®
Sher Singh feared that the British army, once having oceu-
pied Lahore, would never againleave it. Fakir Azizndin, who =
knew better the policy of the English Government, professed
himeelf still anxious for its interference, and directed his son
" Bhahdin, the Lahore agent at Ludhiana, to urge Mr. Clerk to
. renew the overtures made, and to send for Babe Maban Singh,
* a confidential servant of the Maharaja, to conduct the negoti-
~ ations. But Mr. Clerk did not find it politic again to take the
_  initiative, and the scheme was wisely abandoned.
! About this time an accident befell Azizudin, which it
- was feared would end fatally. He was seated in Darbar, at
- Shah Bilawal, next to Diwan Bishan Singh, whose sword, as
. he rose from his seat, wounded the Fakir seyerely in the leg. E
~ He fainted from loss of blood, and it was thought that lock-
- ’jmr would come on. Gradually, however, he recovered ; and
. this accident afforded him an excuse to attend the
~ Darbar less frequently ; for he, with the other Ministers, feared e
_ﬂw abuse and excesses of the soldiery.

®Ths Snpreme  Government did not - adopt the extrems views of Mr. Clerk “1 e
m MMﬁuun&ﬂmhthMﬁ i
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LAHORE DISTRICT. ;
In February 1842 Azizudin was sent by the Maharaja

'~ to Makhu, on the south side of the Satlaj, to meet Mr, Olerk,

who was proceeding to Lahore on a mission of congratulation
- on the Maharaja’s accession, and condolence on the death
- of Kharak Singh.

In Docomber 1842 Sardar Lahua Singh Majithia wee i

~ deputed by the Lahore Court to wait on Lord Ellenborough,

| who was present with the British army at Firozpur. Through

" some misunderstanding, the Sardar, expecting the Agent of
~ thé Governor-General to conduct him to the British camp re-
" mained in his tent, and the interview failed altogether to come

~ off. Lord Ellenborough, thinking the slight intentional, de-

' manded explanation. Fakir Azizudin accordingly, with |
Prince Partab Singh, Raja Hira Singh and other Sardars,

to Firozpur, where a grand Darbar and review
of both the Sikh and British armies were held. Azizudin
explained away the apparent discourtesy, and so pleased
the Governor-General that he called him, in full Darbar,
% the protector of the friendship of both States,” and taking
from his pocket a gold watch presented it to him. This
gift, valued beyond other khilats, is now in the possession of
Fakir Jamaludin. -

During the last year of Sher Singh’s reign, Fakir

Azizudin fell ont of favour. He was suspected of attach-

" ment tothe Jamu Rajas, whom Sher Singh hated, though
 he was unable to resist them. The truth was that Raja

Dhian Singh found the abilities of Azizudin necessary to
him ; and indeed no Ministry at Lahore conld have dispensed
~ with the services of the Fakir. It was not without difficulty

. that Azizudin forgave Raja Dhian Singh for the murder
- of Sardar Chet Singh, his particular friend ; but at length

~ he seemed to believe that the DograRn]na]onﬁmuldmwwt-
A ﬁ,a Etat.u from disruptiony and it was this belief which in-
ed him to join their party.
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~ After the death of Maharaja Sher Singh the Fakir =
* took little part in politics. His health was bad, his eyesight
failing, and his influence day by day grew less as the army
. became more powerful and reckless. He saw well whither the
~ evil passions of the troops were hurrying them, and he raised
~ his voice, unfortunately in vain, against the suicidal policy of
- Jawahir Singh and Lal Singh. His last act was to urge the
~ recall of the invading army which had marched to the Satlaj
~ against the British; and he died on the 3rd December 1845,
- before ruin had fallen on the State he had served so long
~and so faithfully.
E Fakir Azizudin was one of the ablest, and certainly the
- most honest, of all Ranjit Singh's advisers. That monarch
knew how to choose his Ministers; and throughout his long
- reign his confidence in and affection for Azizudin never
" lessened, as they were never betrayed or sbused. There
~ were few questions, either in home or foreign polities, on
which the Maharaja did not ask his advice, while the
conduct of negotiations with the English Government was
- left almost entirely in his hands; and it was undoubtedly
- owing in no small degree to the tact and wisdom of the Fakir
that the two States remained till the close of Ranjit Singh’s
- reign on terms of the most cordial friendship. -
' Fakir Azizudin was of so engaging a disposition, and so
~ perfect a courtier in his manners, that he made few declared
- enemies, though many were doubtless jealous of his influence,
: Onarmun of hmwpulmty.ﬂal{ahﬁmadmlhmsmrat
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~ which the best thinkers and poets of the East have halnugad
- He had no attachment for the barren dogmata of the Kuran,
~ but looked on all religions as equally to be respected and ﬂ:ﬂ-
~ regarded. On one occasion Ranjit Singh asked Lim wha’shﬁr
: ~-.!:lre preferred the Hindu or the Mahomedan religion. “I nm,
- he replied, “a man floating in the midst of a mighty river.
- '_Im.m my eyastawarﬂs the lund, but can distinguish no differ- _
. ence in either bank.” \

_ ‘Fakir Azizudin was celebrated as the most eloquent man
~ of his day, and he was as able with lis pen as with his
. tongue. The State papers drawn up by him and his brother k
* Nurudin are models of elegance and good taste, am&mg l
" to the Oriental standard. He was himself n ripe scholarin
~all branches of Eastern learning, and also was a generous and
- diseriminating patron of learning. At Lahore he founded
~ at his own expense a College for the study of Persian and
Arabic, and to this ivstitution very many of the Arabio
- scholars of the Panjab owe their education.
| As a poet, Azizudin must be allowed a high place.
His Persian poems, of the mystical character which the
Sofis affect, are often very beaotiful, and are distinguished

by simplicity and great elegance of style. A few stanzas,
~ literally translated, arve inserted here to show, in some
. measure, the character of Sufi religious poetry :—

I atbentively regurd the world
Iuiu:ﬂl find it fugit;mlhdnrh Feel
Why shoald you vex with vain
When you hava no to perform ?
Forget yoarself, and leave your work with God ;
Trust yoarself with all mil?ﬁu:ll:h Him.
Wait with patisncs until He Lilesa yuo,
And thank Him for what He bas alrendy given.
Btop your ears from the sound of earthly eare ;
hlmmﬂod,ndhehupdnld‘llnmy
mmmﬂmmu::{luwﬂdﬂw"
Bhould 1 thoughtlessly spea m Il
To the wise aml to those who most searly know,
1t in p folly for any morial bo sesert [ am’ ;

able to vanguish Sahmb, #al and Rostawm,
Yot at the last vour siahility is bot as water
Tt in n vuin thonght that yoor resscn may spin
Her imnginings, a8 & sphder spins her web.
It is well that 1 shoald beenthe the aiv of freedom,
For 1 know that everything is dependent spon God.




U T bt el 2 g e
- b s 3

THE PANJAB CHIEFS.

, Only one of Fakir Azizudin’s six sons i3 now Inrmg. .
‘Shahdin, who died in 1842, wasin 1836 appointed Ag‘ﬂ!ﬂi *;
.- ith the British Political officer at Ludhiana, and two years
'~ arwan appointed Wakil at Firozpur. Fakir Charagudin
. wasin1838 made Governor of Jasrota, and shortly afterwards =
pla.neﬁ in attendance on Prince Klarak Singh. He =
" succeeded his brother as Wakil at Firozpur in 1842, and was =
4 rwardﬁ attached to the Council of Regency in the same -
mpamty. Jamaludin entered the service of the English Gov- =
arnment as Tahsildar of Hafizabad. He was then transferred
o Gujaranwala, and in 1864 was appointed Mir Munshi of j"
‘_ihu Panjab Secretariat. :
 Nasirudin, the eldest son of Fakir Azizudin, was murdered,
" when quite a youth, in 1814. A Purbeah sepoy, who bad =
" been dismissed by Fakir Imamudin for some fault, determin-
~ ed upon revenge, aud came to Lahore to the shop of b
-ﬁ‘lru]am Mohaiudin and asked to be treated for some alleged
~ disorder. Young Nasirudin, who used to assist his grand-
hther took the sepoy into an inner room, when he drew his
.= sword and cut the boy down. Ghulam Mohaiudin ran up, =
:hmnug the cries of his grandson, but the room was locked.
’He. however, broke the door down with an axe and rushed
‘ﬁ,pun the murderer, whom he disarmed, not without receiving
~ severe wounds himself, and threw Lim from the window into ¢
* the street, where be was torn to pieces by the infuriated =
~ mob. Nasirudin lingered a few days and then died.
~  Charagudin was the only one of Azizudin’s sons to
~ leave any family, and the fate of Sarajudin, his eldest
mn, was as tragical as that of Nasirudin. This young man -
o was in the employ of Bahawal Khan, the Nawab of Bahawal- 3
mr,whnm sncceeded by his favourite son Sadik Mahomed
_ Khan. The new Prince wished to put to death his brother 3
~ Haji Khan, whom he found in prison; but Sarajudin :mﬂ

iﬂumu&putrnt«uok his part and, raising an insurrection in
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-~ his fayour, placed him upon the throne. In gratitude for
~ this, Haji Khan made Sarajudin his Minister, and his
- ther Shah Nawaz Khan Commander-in-Chief. No long time
- afterwards, however, Sarajudin quarrelled with Azad Khan,
the maternal uncle of the Nawab, who took his relative’s
part, and Sarajudin prepared to leave Bahawalpur. Buf
‘the Nawab sent several Sayads to him, who swore on the
- Kuran that no injury was intended him, and he then resolx
. to remain. But two or three days later the house m .
- surrounded by troops, and Sarajudin was informed that he
was a prisoner and must consent to be placed in irons. He
- refused to submit except to force, and the house was at last
stormed. The brothers defended themselves gallantly, but
& ﬁajr were almost unarmed. The prineipal officer Sarajudin
- killed with his own hand, and was then shot dead himself,
~ Shah Nawaz Khan was captured, severely wounded, and was
. thrown into prison, where he remained eight months, until
- ransomed by his father for Rs. 80,000, -3
. During the life of Fakir Azizudin his brothers played “§
. subordinate parts; but some account must be given of them
i here, as both were men of some importance. Fakir Imamudin
. was during a great portion of Ranjit Singh’s reign cus-
. todian of the celebrated fort of Govindgarh® at Amritsar,
‘and Governor of the country immediately surrounding it.
- With this he had charge of the magnzine, arsenals and royal
stables. His occupations at Amritsar did not allow him R
- to perform much service in the field ; but he was one of
‘the force sent to reduce the forts of Mai Sada Kaur and the =
" Kaunhyas, and also served in one or two other minor Campaigns. ¢
He died in 1844 leaving one som, Tajudin, who had shared
*The first Thanadar or Governor of Govindgarh was Sardar Shamic Singhof

. , Lahore. He rebailt the fort, in a grest messurs, snder Runjit Bingh's
- orders, Afier Shamir Singh, Fukir Imamadin was appainted, who whhhmhjﬁ . s

¢ held the fort till the reign of Maharaja Sher Singh. Sabha Singh of Baghring was :
| . snd pemained Governor til] 1842 when Surmakk Sisgh, o Arnbmag i
J  Batala, was appointed. Thhmnﬂnmﬂuhlhmnﬂt-tem,mm" '
g °° " covsequently superseded by Shamsudin, son of Fakir Nurodin, A
3
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' with ‘him the charge of Govindgarh, and who survived lum

_only two years. %
.r‘ Fakir Nurudin neither possessed the ability nor the

~courage of his brother Azizndin, whom in many points he

IJ.. resembled. His early life was passed in devotion,

‘till, in 1810, Ranjit Singh, who had taken a great fancy to
Azizudin, sent for Nurudin to his Darbar and gave him the

of Dhani to superintend. He acquitted himself well,

~and was then sent to Gujrat, where he had some difficulty in
ucmg the Chibs to obedience. In 1812 Jalandhar was

4 a;- under him, and the next year Sialkot, Daska, Halowal

m:ﬂ erhaﬂ. In 1818 he was summoned to Lahore, and
: ward his duties were generally about the Court. These

- ni’luiana were multifarious and responsible. He wasin charge

 of the arsenal at the fort, of the royal gardens and palaces.
- He was Almoner to the Maharaja, and dispensed the royal
“baunt.]r to deserving applicants. He kept one key of the
Raynl Treasury, the Moti Mandar; the two other keys being
~in charge of MmarB&hRamandDmHuhnm Singh.

- In 1826 Nurudin was sent to reduce the conntry around

- Pind Dadan Khan, and in 1831 he pmmedad to Sayadpur and
mgd to assist Raja Gulab Singh in his adminisiration of
fhat-pﬁrtuf the country. Nurudin was closely associated
mﬁh his brother Azizudin in the conduct of negotiations with
. the British Government. Both were lovers of the English,
‘and earnestly desirous that the two States of India and
Lﬂwm should always remain on the most friendly terms.
'ﬂn the 19th September 1846, when the Khalsa army had
wuhmed and required the Rani to give up her brother and
* mnrderers of Prince Peshora Singh to their vengeance,

 Faki Nurudin was sent with Diwan Dina Nath and Sardar

Singh Kalianwala to endeavour to soothe them. The

m ? gion was without result, and Nurndin alone of the Envoys

- arﬁ nilwed to return to Lahore without insults and threats.
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.& fter the Satlaj War, Nurudin was one of the subscribing
| witnesses to the Tmtyoftlwﬂﬂil[mh on the part of
ﬂmInhura State; and in December 1846, when Raja Lal
4 ﬂmgh the Wazir, was deposed for treason, Nurudin was
- appointed one of the Council of Regency to carry on the
- Government until Maharaja Dalip Singh should arrive at his . -
i MJﬂ'nt_f .
" Nurudin was not an active Member of the Couneil, but
_ ]m was one of the most disinterested; and his advice was
geuerallysuundnnd well considered. He at all times was
- ready to facilitate matters for the British Resident, while
* remaining faithful to the interests of his own Government, -
":I:L 1850 the Supreme Government confirmed to him for life
.\ all his jagirs and allowances, amounting to Rs. 20,885 per
 annum. To his two elder sons, Zahurudin and Shamsuding
~ were granted cash pensions of Rs. 1,000 and Rs. 720, respective-
1}" ; tothe younger, Rs. 540 each. On the death of their father
H‘uruﬂmm 1852 these allowances were increased to Rs. 1,200, 3
~ Rs. 400 and Rs. 1,080, respectively. -
Fakir Zahurudin was placed with the young Ha]:m]u
~ Dalip Singh as & tutor. He accompanied the Prince to
* Fatahgarh, and the way in which he fulfilled the duties of the
. office gave every satisfaction. At the end of 1851 he returned -"
to the Panjab, and was in 1855 appointed Tahsildar of
~ Chunian, and was subsequently transferred to Moga and Lahore,
" In 1863 he was promoted to the rank of Extra Assistant __.
- Commissioner.
Fakir Shamsudin, second son of Nurudin, was fﬂ:mnad.n
of the Govindgarh fort during the Second Sikh War. In
- this position he behaved with great fidelity, and made over
" the fort to European troops at a time when any hesitationon j
fhspa.rt,mghthnvepmdnﬂad serious results, In 1850 he mﬁ =
pumtad Tahsildar of Shahdara, but was compelled to resign
- next year through ill health. In 1862 Shamsudin




;ndal{amber of the Hmotpalﬂommmtae He was a mano

~ great energy and liberality. A finished scholar himself, hawna
 eéver foremost in any schemes for the advancement of
iwnmg, generally among his countrymen. It is very much
~ owing to his exertions that female education has been so
ganmlljrtakﬂn up in Lahore. He also took an active part in
~ theestablishment of a Literary Society, the Anjaman-i-Panjab,
which promises most interesting and valuable results, - &
- Azizudin’s sixth son Ruknudin djﬁdmlﬂﬁllnavmgm .
,..:IFBEE. His pension of Rs. 1,000 per annum lapsed to Gov-
ernment, a provision of Bs. 40 per mensem having been made
~ for his two widows.
; Fakir Sayad Jamaludin, the only one now left nf" B
. Azizudin's sons, was promoted to an Extra Assistant Com=
* missionershipin 1870. He was obliged by failing health to =
~ retire in 1883 on a pension of Rs, 100 per mensem, which he .
~ enjoys in addition fo his politieal allowance of Rs. 1,000.
- As Sub-Registrar at Lahore he receives a salary of Ra. 2,000
- per annum. He was appointed to this office in 1881 ; and in
~ the year following he was made an Honorary Extra Asmntnnt 3
Commissioner, exercising full magisterial powers. He is also
a Fellow of the Panjab University. He has no children. 3
Marajudin, only son of Tajudin, married a daughter uf.
- Sayad Kasim Shah of Lahore, and had a son, Saidudin, born ﬁu
‘.;‘ him in 1878. He enjoys an allowance of Rs, 500 per annum,r
‘and his father's widow has a life pension of Rs. 360
~ per annum. Pensions to the extent of Rs. 1,680 to ather
fumnla members of the family have lapsed from time to
: Fnhr Zahnrudin retired in 1883 after a service of twen.ty
mlmsunn pension of Rs. 315 parmenmm,whmh
‘M enjoys in addition to the family allowance of Rs. l,ﬂﬂq )
"‘pﬂ-:nnum He received a grant of five hundred acres o

-




Iie land in Gujaranwala in 1877. His only son, Tahsi]&ar
t nnbahnruﬂm died in 1880 at the age of thirty-five years.

Itis daughter married in 1877 Sayad Zafarudin, son of

FPanjab.

- The late Naobaharudin has left two sons, Iftakharudin,
. born 1865, and Tktadarudin, born 1872,

. Fakir Shamsudin died in 1872 leaving three sons. The
i]d&st., Burhanudin commenced life as a Pleader in 1866. In
. the following year he became a Naib-Tahsildar, and soon rose

' “h be Tahsildar and a Superintendent of Settlements. He

~ was promoted to an Exira Assistant Commissionership in

_i'ahr Kamrudin, a Deputy Inspector of Police in the B

* 1882, Four years later his services were placed at the

. disposal of the Bhopal State and he was employed as Naib-
- Wazir-i-Mal (Assistant Revenue Minister) on a salary of
* Rs. 500 per mensem. In January 1888 the title of Khan
. Bahadar was conferred npon him under Viceregal Sanad in
'ﬁbugnmﬂn of his meritorious services. He had been con-
~ firmed after his father's death as holding in perpetuity a jagir
~ of about nine hundred acres of land in Rakh Raiwind Kadim,
!i'ahml Lahore ; and the proprietary rights in this plot were
'::-u-u ly ceded to him by Government in 1885. He is at
. present employed as an Extra Assistant Commissioner in the

wughter of Sayad Najib Ali Bakhari of Kanga Gil, Batala,

-t: flaspur.

Shamsudin’s second son, Zainalabudin, became a Pleader

lﬂh Burhanudin has no children. He married the

" in 1866, and isstill practising. He married twice, ome of |
his wives being the daughter of Shekh Shabrati, a Lahore

. merchant, but has no children living.
| Fakir Shahabudin, third son of Shamsudin, is a Naib-
-ﬂ \| dnr having for short periods held theoﬂimofl)mtrwt
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~ Fakir Kamrudin, third son of Nurudin, manHunurnry

",ngmhmteatlahum He has in this and other capacities.
~rendered excellent service. In 1832 a khilat of Rs. 500 was
- conferred upon him by Sir Robert Egerton, Lieutenant-
ﬁuvamur. and in the same year he was granted proprietary
rlghmmaﬂven hunﬂradghumaﬂstiwmtﬂlnndmthalmhnm )
- Tahsil, wherewith he founded a village, naming it Jalalabad,
- after his second son. The jagir rights in this village were
grnnwﬂto bim in 1887, with succession to his son Jalalu-
~din. He is a Member of the Municipal Committee of Lahore
and of the District Board. The title of Khan Bahadar was
~ conferred upon Fakir Sayad Kamrudin in 1887 on t.‘lm,"
occasion of Her Imperial Majesty’s Jubilee celebration.

. His son Zafarudin is a Police Inspector at Gujrat. His

.'- ~second som Jalaludin is being edueated at the Aitchison

- College as a nominee of Sir Charles Aitchison, who presented =
thamshmnunmthmmhﬂlamhpmlnadatﬂx.ﬁﬂﬂparmum. _.1

Fakir Hafizudin, fourth son, isa panmuner,havmgmﬂmﬂ

in 1886 after serving many years as a Tahsildar in the

* Pﬂl]ab. He lost his only son, Tkbaludin in 1881. .

Of the five sons of Charagudin, only Sarajudin lud,h P

:ﬁaua, namely two sons, Firozudin and Hasanudin. '
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The family of Ratan Chand Dhariwala came originally
from Payal, a village situated between Ludhiana and Patiala,
and held various revenue appointments under the Mahomedan

- Emperors. When the Sikhs rose to power, Jawala Nath
 entered the service of Sardar Charat Singh Sukarchakia as
- @ Munshi, and remained with him and his son Mahan Singh
till his death. Karam Chand was first employed by Sardar
 Bishan SBingh Kalal, the confidential agent of Maharaja Ranijit
- Singh, who retired in the year 1813 to Banares, where he
- died. Karam Chand in course of time was promoted to offices =
~ of trust under the Maharaja. He accompanied him in 1805
- on his secret visit to Hardwar, and the following year was
~ employed as an agent in the arrangements concluded between
- the Lahore State and the Sikh Chiefs south of the Satlaj. He
. alsoassisted in drawing up the Treaty of the 25th April 1809
' with the British Government. Some time before, he had been
placed at the head of the Lahore office, if that can be called
~ an office where no accounts were regularly kept. Bawani
: Mﬁrgt introduced a system of accounts in 1809, from
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which time Karam Chand worked under him, and remained
in the office till his death in 1836. =
His eldest son Tara Chand had entered the service of '
Government when very young, and his first employment was
- in Peshawar, under Diwan Karpa Ram, in 1822, He was
- sent in the following year to Kangra, with civil and military
authority, to collect the revenue, and in 1832 was posted
at Firozpur to reduce the turbulent inhabitants of that distriet
- to order, and to suppress dacoity, which had become very
common. Tara Chand was afterwards made Diwan, and
placed in charge of Bamum, Tank and Derah Ismail Khan.
His administration here was not very successful. Of all the
frontier Chiefs, no one was more hostile to the Sikhs than
Dilaga Khan of Bannu. Diwan Tara Chand, who had with
him the flower of the Sikh chivalry, the Chiefs of Atari,
Majithia, Naka and Botala, led his force of eight thousand
men and twelve guns against the little fort of Dilasa Khan ;
but was ignominionsly repulsed with a loss of three hundred :
killed, including the younger Jai Singh Atariwala, and five .
hundred wounded. When the Maharaja heard of this repulse =
he was very indignant and fined the Diwan Rs. 7,000. Tara
Chand also quarrelled with Raja Suchet Singh, who was in
authority m the Derajat, and who could not endure the
- Diwan's independent spirit ; so Tara Chand, making a virtue
of necessity, and pleading ill-health and his desire to make
his peace with heaven, left the Panjab in 1838 for Banares,
where he died in 1858. - :
b Mangalsen, the second som of Karam Chand, was Com- i
| mandant in a cavalry regiment under the Darbar. After ;
. annexation he received a pension of Rs. 480 a year. Hedied
in November 1864 leaving one son, Lala Budha Mal. '
. Ratan Chand was a great favourite of Maharaja Ranjit
- Singh and, when quite a boy, used to be in constant attendance
. at Court, When the first down began to gTuWEPOIIIhi& ;J \

e

T

W i =

La

iy

e AL g 4

]
sl
| T
; Y



L]
L e
o S

, ;]‘ R"- 24 - 1

LAHORE DISTRICT.

lip and chin, Ranjit Singh gave him the nickname of
Dhariwala or fthe bearded,” to distinguish him from
Ratan Chand Dogal, who was four years younger, and who
had consequently no beard at all. He was in 1829 appoint-
ed to the Postal Department on Rs. 200 a month, with cer-
tain assignments from the revenue of Peshawar and Hazara.
He remained in this department during the reign of Ranjit
Singh and his successors, and under the Darbar was in the
m]ugm&nj; of cash allowances to the amount of Rs. 2,610 and
jagirs in Dinanagar; Khanowal, Yuhianagar, Tiwan, Bhindan,
Hazara and Peshawar, worth Rs. 13, 600, Ratan Chand
happened to be in the Lahore fort when the Sindhanwalia
Chiefs seized it, and Raja Hira Singh, believing him their
accomplice, fined him Rs, 30,000. This money was given
back by Sardar Jawahir Singh after Hira Singh's death.
After the Satlaj Campaign Ratan Chand was appointed Post-
master General in the Panjab, and did excellent service
throughout the rebellion of 1848-40. His department had
at this time to contend with great difficulties, but the Post-
master General's energy and ability enabled him to surmount
them. On the annexation of the Panjab certain of his jagirs,
amounting to Rs. 6,800, were released to him for life, free
of all service, and a garden worth Rs. 200 near the Shahalami
gate of Lahore was released to his male heirs in perpetuity.
Ratan Chand was appointed an Honorary Magistrate of the
city of Lahore in 1862 and Member of the Municipal Com-
mittee. He was one of the most active and intelligent of
the Honorary Magistrates; and through his liberality the city
of Lahore has been much embellished. The most striking
of the public works constructed by him is the fine Sarai and
‘tank near the Shahalami gate. He also had a large share in
the formation of the public gardens round the city ; and when-
ever money has been required for any work of public utility,
Ratan Chand bas shown himself liberal in the extreme. He




. Iri

= L .| ‘

~ was created a Diwan by the Supreme Government in January

1865. He died in 1872,

~ His eldest son, Lala Bhagwan Das, received a jagir

- grant under Sanad dated 7th January 1874, valued at

~ Rs. 2,585. He is an Honorary Magistrate of Lahore and a

~ Member of the District Board and Municipal Committee, His

- publie ervices have on several occasions been recognized
- by Government; he takes a keen interest in all matters con-
'1 nected with the welfare of the city, and is a gentleman of

~ public and enlightened spirit. He has erected several
~ buildings, including a Thalardwarae on the edge of a fino
- tank made by his father. S
k. Diwan Ratan Chand’s younger brother Harnam Das is

8 Munsif in the Firozpur district. His name is on the

~ list of accepted candidates for the post of Extra Assistant

Commissioner. His son Moti RamhnsymadthﬂEntrm

- Examination of the Panjab University.




The traditions of this Brahman family go back to the
year 1244 when Alandin Masud was King of Debli. In this
year, on account of the persecutions suffered at the hands of
the Mahomedans, the whole family emigrated, with other

Hindus, from the sacred city of Mathra to Ueh near Multan.
- This new home was singularly chosen and could hardly have
- been a pleasanter residence than Mathra, as at this very time,
according to Ferishta, it was overrun by an army of Moghals
from Kandahar., Some time afterwards the family settled
at Lahore, but when happier times came round returned to
its old home at Mathra. One ancestor of Radha Kishan, by
name Narain Das, was celebrated for his learning and piety,
and is mentioned in the Bhagatmal or * Fakir's Necklace”
of Nabhaji. A firman of the Emperor Jahangir, granting to
Kishan Lal, great-grandzon of Narain Das, twenty-four bigas
of land at Mathra for the purpose of growing the flowers
~ used in Hindu worship, is still extant. This document has
every mark of being genuine, and bears the date 1610 A.D.

Brij Bhukan, son of Kishori Lal, was the very Diogenes

- of Brahmans. The Emperor Shah Jahan, hearing of his piety,

- paid him a visit, and was so pleased at his derivation of the
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word Hindu, from ©Lin,’ an abbreviation of ©Hinsa,” Sans.
sin, and du, abbreviation of *dur, Sans. and Pers. far, ¢ far ;
from sin,’ that he desired the Brahman to ask any favour of
him and it should he granted. * Do me then the favour,’” -
said Brij Bhukan, * of never paying me another visit.” i

Daring the reign of Aurangzeb, Kawal Nain, the young- »
est son of Brij Bhukan, went to Jaipur, at the invitation of il:"_,
Raja Jai Singh I. Here he obtained the charge of a temple, _
with a jagir for its support, which is still held by his descend- Fay
ants. Bansidhar his grandson was a man of great piety,
and numbered among his disciples Suraj Mal, the famous Raja

-

of Bhartpur. ;-
Brijraj, or as he was generally called Brijlal, settled in ?_
Lahore about the middle of the last eentury. He was very ¥

.~ much respected by the Bhangi Chiefs, who were then rulers
. of the city ; and when Ranjit Singh rose to power he was
made Pandit, and appointed to read and explain the sacred
Sanserit books. He held this office, remaining in high favour
with the Maharaja till his death in 1833. Like his father,
Pandit Madhosudan was a great scholar, and there was no
other Pandit in Lahore who had so extensive an acquaintance
with Sanserit literature. In 1808 he was appointed Dano
Dhaksh, or Almoner to the Maharaja, and chief Darbar Pandit,
both which offices he held till the annexation. Madhosudan
married the danghter of Misar Batalia, the great Amritsar
banker. He was a great favourite of the Maharaja, who in
.~ 1824 appointed his son Radha Kishan tutor to the young
Raja Hira Singh, whose after-life, mean, sensual and untrue,
did not certainly say much for his education.

_ Radha Kishan, who was, like his father, a Darbar Pandit,
- was in 1846 appointed to superintend the education of the
- young Maharaja Dalip Singh. '

Pandit Madhosudan held under the Sikh Government
Jngirs of the value of Rs, 9,935. One village, Kila Gujar
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Singh, had been granted by Ranjit Singh as a * Dharamath’
to Brijlal and his heirs for ever. The other villages included
in the estate were grants to Pandit Madhosudan himself.
These were, in 1851, released for life, and two gardens at.
Lahore and Dinanagar granted in perpetmtj*

Pandit Madhosudan died in 1863. With his three
elder sons he had violently quarrelled, and he mnﬁ&quenﬂ]'
left his entire property, with the perpetual jagir, to
~ Davi Dita Parshad, his fourth son by a second wife.
This disposition was contested by the other heirs in the Civil
Courts. Ultimately however the matter was compromised.
Davi Dita Parshad retained all the patrimony with the
exception of the jagir revenue, which was divided equally
amongst all the sons, the share of each being Rs. 165 per
anmum.

Har Kizhan died before his father, in 1861, leaving one
_son, Amar Nath. His jagir of Rs. 900 lapsed ; a Life pension
of Rs. 180 per annum being continued to his widow.

Of the jagir of Pandit Radha Kishan, amounting to

~ Rs. 5,270, Rs, 4,700 were released for life, and a garden yielded

Rs. 100 per annum in perpetuity.

. Radha Kishan died in 1875. He was well known and
- was much respected. His exertions in the cause of education
~ have been great. He was oneof the first to advocate female
education, and when the American Mission opened an English

- School at Lahore his sons were among the first pupils. He

. sent ono of them to study at the Lahore Medical College,
~ when the prejudices against it were still strong. The Pandit
was a distinguished Sanserit scholar, well versed in Hindu Law.

. When the Panjab University was founded Pandit Radha

Kishan set himself out to proclaim its merits throughout the
_ different States of the Panjab, and was thus instrumental in

_' - _ securing large donations from most of the Chiefs. In recog-

~ nition of these special services and of his scholarly attainments,
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the Pandit was made a Member of the Senate and was ap-
pointed one of the Board of Examiners in Sanscrit; and the
Sanscrit Text Society of London conferred upon him the
honour of Membership. He published a Sanserit Grammar,
a Manual of Hindu Medicine and other learned works. The
Pandit was held in the highest esteem by the late Sir Donald
MecLeod, whoin 1868 addressed him in the following terms :—
* You may rest assured there is no gentleman in the
Province whose interests I shall ever foel more desirous of
promoting than yours, nor any whom I consider more deserv-
ing of the favour of Government in recognition of your un-
swerving loyalty, publie spirit and strenuous exertions to pro-
mote every cause conducive to the public weal.”

Sir Donald McLeod’s certificate of the Pandit's merits is
worthy of record. It isdated 22nd August 1870. « Pandit
Radha Kishan is one of the worthiest, most respected and
most valuable of the ecitizens of Lahore. He is a man of
learning, and has done much to promote the interests of
Oriental learning. It was a letter addressed by him to
the Viceroy which led to the adoption by Government of
more strenuous and systematic measures for the preserva-
tion and collection of manuseripts than was formerly the case,
He is a correspondent of Professor Goldsticker, through
whom he has presented valuable manuseripts to the Sanscrit
Text Society, and he has been a most hearty and useful pro=
moter of the Panjab University College movement. He has
creditably assisted the officers of Government at all times
in educational matters ; he has taken an especially active in-
terest in the cause of female education; and on no oeceasion
has he been found wanting, when any opportunity has been
afforded him, of assisting in matters caleulated to promote the
public good.”

Professor Goldstiicker, who received a catalogue of the
contents of the Pandit's Sanscrit Library, expressed his sure

-
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prise at its “ magnificence and richness ; many of its works
being utterly unknown in Europe.” In 1884 the Local
Government confirmed his proprietary right in two thousand
acres in the Chunian Tahsil to his som Rishi Kesh, he
having fulfilled the condition of bringing one-half under
cultivation within fifteen years of the grant. The Pandit has
made a garden in this village (Kot Radha Kishan) on the line
of railway between Lahore and Multan, and he has built a
commodious bungalow with out-offices and a fine tank,
and in other ways greatly improved his property. To Pandit
Rishi Kesh was continued for life a jagir income of Rs. 1,200,
the remainder bhaving lapsed upon the death of Radha
Kishan. He held in addition the village of Kot Radha
Kishan already mentioned, yielding a rental of about six
thousand rupees.

Pandit Rishi Kesh joined the Board of Honorary
Magistrates at Lahore in 1878. He was appointed a Member
of the Municipal Committee in 1870, and succeeded his father
in the Senate of the Panjab University. Much of his time
was devoted to the publie service; and his family possess
many testimonials in the form of Sanads from Government
acknowledging his assistance on various occasions. He died
in 1888, much regretted by all classes.

His eldest son, Pandit Bansi Lal, will no doubt maintain
the good name of the family. His father’s jagir was of life
tenure, and the question of its continuance to the sons is
pending.



The family of Misar Rup Lal is of the Brahman caste,
and came originally from Mouza Dilwal in the Jhilam district.
Diwan Chand came with his sons to Lahore about the year
1809, and through the interest of his uncle Basti Ram, who was

the Treasurer of Ranjit Singh and held by him in great esteem, - \

obtained a jagir of Rs. 1,000 for himself at Kahun, Jhilam,
and places at Court for his two eldest sons Rup Lal and Beli
Ram, who were made assistants to their great-uncle in the
Treasury. Beli Ram soon became a great favourite with the
Maharaja, and on the death of Basti Ram in 1816 was appoint-
ed his successor, in spite of the opposition and ill-will of the
Minister Raja Dhian Singh, who wished Jasa Misar,* a protégé
of his own, and father of Lal Singh (afterwards Raja), to obtain
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received about the same time charge of the treasure in the
Govindgarh fort at Amritsar, and he held this office during the
remainder of the Maharaja’s reign. In 1826 Ram Kishan
entered the Government service, and was made Chamberlain to
Ranjit Singh, who always treated him with special kindness.

In 1832 Misar Rup Lal was appointed Nazim or
Governor of the Jalandhar Doab, This rich district had
been ever since its first conquest by Ranjit Singh entrust-
ed to Diwan Mohkam Chand, Moti Ram his son, and
 Karpa Ram his grandson. In 1831, when Diwan Moti
Ram was recalled, Shekh Ghulam Mohaiudin, a follower
of Diwan Karpa Ram, and a tyrannical and grasping man,
was sent as Governor of Hushiarpur and the neighbouring
districts. The people of the Doab complained so bitterly
of his oppression that, in 1832, he was recalled, and Misar
Rup Lal sent in his place. The new Governor was of a
very different character from his predecessor. Possessing
~ considerable wealth himself he had no inducement to oppress
- the people, and being connected with a Jalandhar family
~ he had an interest in the prosperity of the district. His
assessment was so light and equitable that, even in the
famine year of 1833, there were very few unpaid balances.

~ He would never accept the smallest present, and kept a

- Prince Nao Nahal Singh, indignant with Misar Beli Ram

close watch upon the conduct of his subordinates. It is
refreshing, among the many Sikh Governors, who have
considered the people under them as ereated for their
private profit, to meet with a man like Misar Rup Lal,
upright and just, whose name is remembered to this day
by the people with respect and affection. Rup Lal held the
Jalandhar Governorship till 1839, when, some months after
the death of Maharaja Ranjit Singh, he was recalled, and
the old oppressor of the Doab, Ghulam Mohaiudin, restored

: - for having supported his father’s favourite Chet Singh, threw
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him and his brothers into prison, where they remsined six
months till, at the intercession of Maharaja Kharak Singh,
they were released. Beli Ram was a zealous supporter of
Prince Sher Singh who, when he ascended the throne, restored
the Misar to his old post of Toshakhania. Rup Lal he made
Governor of Kalanaar and the lands of the Lahore State south
of the Satlaj, with orders to resume the fort and domain of
Bhartpur from Jamadar Khushal Singh. Misar Meghraj
returned to Govindgarh as Treasurer. Beli Ram was much
in the confidence of Maharaja Sher Singh and, in eonjunction
with his friend Bhai Gurmukh SBingh, tried to form a party at
Lahore against Raja Dhian Singh, the obnoxious Dogra
Minister. His intrigues cost him his life ; for when Raja Hira
Singh succeeded his murdered father as Minister, one of his
first acts was to arrest Bhai Gurmukh Singh, Beli Ram and
his brothers., Misar Meghraj and Rup Lal were placed in
charge of Misar Lal Singh, their old enemy; and Bhai
Gurmukh Singh, Beli Ram and Ram Kishan were made over
to Shekh Imamudin Khan, who imprizoned them in the
stables attached to his house. For a long time their fate was
uneertain ; but it at length transpired that all three were
secretly murdered by the Shekh, acting under Raja Hira
Singh’s orders. Rup Lal and Meghraj, more fortunate, re-
mained in confinement till the fall of Raja Hira Singh in
December 1844, when they were releazed, and Rup Lal was
made by the Minister Jawahir Singh Governor of Jasrota.
The sons of Beli Ram, who escaped to Ludhiana at the time
of their father’s arrest, remained under British protection till
1845, when they returned to the Panjab.

Rup Lal was at Jasrota in 1846 when that couniry was
made over to Raja Gulab Singh by the Treaty of the 16th March.
The Raja vehemently accused him of treason in not yielding up
the hill forests in accordance with the terms of the Treaty. He
was accordingly removed by the Darbar from Jasrota and placed
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in charge of Rhotas and Jhilam, and was there when the
rebellion broke out. He joined Sardar Chatar Singh’s eamp
through compulsion, he himself asserts; but his sympathies were
certainly with the insurgents, and there is every reason to be-
lieve that he supplied them with money. His sons also left
Lahore at this critical time and joined their father, For this
conduct his jagirs and property in Lahore were confiscated.
He died in September 1865, npwards of eighty years of age, at
Dilwal in the Jhilam district. His son Sawan Mal was a Rasal.
dar in the 1st Sikh Cavalry. He served with great credit in
Oudh and China, and in 1861 received a jagir of Rs. 400, of
which one half will descend to his heirs for one generation.
The revenue of these jagir lands (situated in the villages of
Jaloh, Kara Dogra and Yakipur in the Lahore Tahsil) has
lately risen in value to Rs. 817 per annum. He was also
granted one thousand ghumaos of land in Tahsil Hafiza~
bad, Gujaranwala, on payment of a nazarana of Rs. 2,750.
Bardar Sawan Mal is at present serving in the 11th Bengal
Lancers. As eldest surviving son of the late Misar Rup Lal he
is regarded as the leading member of the family. One of his
sons, Bishan Das, was for a short time a Dafadar in his father's
regiment, but was obliged to resign owing to bad health.
Misar SBundar Das, who was for two years Keeper of the

- Privy Purse to Maharaja Dalip Singh, received after annexa-
- tion adonation of Rs. 1,000 ; his jagir of Rs. 1,500, which was

‘a recent grant of Raja Lal Singh, being resumed.
Misar Mahesh Das, elder brother of Sardar Sawan Mal

_'was for some years a Naib Tahsildar, and died childless at

Lahore in 1882. Govind Ram, his younger brother, is the
District Treasurer of Shahpur and Gujrat. Govind Ram’s

eldest son Mathra Das is a clerk in the English office of

the Deputy Commissioner, Shalipur.
Misar Ram Das enjoys a life pension of Rs. 2,000 per
annum, His brother Thakar Das was Government Treasurer
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for the districts of Rawalpindi, Jhilam, Gujaranwala, Lahore,
- Aumritsar, Sialkot and Gurdaspur. He held a jagir valued at
' Ra. 1,387, which passed to his three sons on his death in 1879,
The eldest, Lachman Das, held the Treasuries of Rawalpindi
- and Jhilam until 1882, He and bis brother Ram Labhaya

‘held in lease a plot of 2,588 ghumaos of land in Chak Kot
Miana, Tahsil Bahra, Shahpur; and a propesition is now
~ before Government for granting them the proprietary rights
thereof in perpetuity. The share of Thakar Das’s son Gauri
Shankar in the joint family jagir was resumed at his death in
~ 1884. A pension of Rs. 1,387, granted to Misarani Gulab
- Davi, widow of Beli Ram, was in like manner resumed in
1875. His second widow, Misarani Begam is still alive, en-
joying a pension of Rs. 1,387 per annum,

Misar Meghraj was after the Satlaj Campaign appomtad
Treasurer to the Darbar, and on the occasion of the visit of
the Governor-General to Lahore he received the title of Rai
Bahadar. In 1849 he was appointed Treasurer of the

- Lahore Division, a post which he held till his death on the

- Ist August 1864. Misar Meghraj had been appointed
an Honorary Magistrate in 1862; and there were few
: inI-hummdmnadlympeotei At the time of
~ his death he was in enjoyment of jagirs to the value of
‘Rs. 3,825, of which Rs. 405 descend to his male heirs in
Misar Meghraj was succeeded by his son Sheo Das as
‘Treasurer of five districts in the Panjab. In addition to the
perpetual jagir of Rs. 405 Misar Sheo Das enjoyed agrant in
life tenure valued at Rs. 5,000 per annum. The charge of
. ;ﬁhmimmadw&hnth&rm&mhenuﬂhafamﬂym
his death in 1875. The perpetual jagir has devolved on his
minor sons Jata Shankar and Lachmi Narain,
' - Two members of the family, Misar Ram Das and Misar
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| Godh Singh, son of a Chaudhri of Manikala, was s follower
~ of Sardar Hari Singh Bhangi, and became possessed of estates
~ worth Rs. 40,000. On one occasion he and his brother

 Utam Singh were besieged in a small fort near Sialkot

by some three hundred irregulars of Raja Ranjit Deo of
.Jmu. The horses belonging to the besieged were stabled
_mﬁluuﬂhwtﬂa.ln&ﬁn&hﬂmgb fearing that they might fall
into the bands of the enemy, made a sally and disabled them
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all. The Rajputs, thinking they were about fo be attacked,
and frightened by the apparent audacity of the besieged, fled,
and Sardar Hari Singh, when he heard of this needless de-
struction of the horses, said : “ This Godh Singh is a perfect
Kamla (idiot). This uncomplimentary cognomen has since
remained attached to him and the family.

Godh Singh and his brother fought under the Bhangi
Chiefs against Ranjit Deo, Sansar Chand of Katoch and the
Sukarchakias, and on the death of Godh Singh, without issue,
Utam Bingh succeeded to the estate; but both he and
his two elder sons died soon afterwards, and Jai Singh
became the head of the family, His jagirs were increased
by Sardar Gulab Singh Bhangi to Rs. 50,000; and when
that Chief died in 1800, Jai Singh joined Ranjit Singh, then
lately master of Lahore. He was a good soldier and fought
bravely in many campaigns, and received additional jagirs
worth Rs. 40,000 in Shekhopura, Sidhni and Bhaowal
In 1817, becoming too old for active service, the Maharaja
appointed him Judge at Amritsar, resuming all but Rs.
16,000 of his jagir, and granting him a cash sallowance
of Rs. 8,000. Jai Singh died in 1827. Of his sons, Mangal
Singh had been killed at Mankera in 1821, and his jagirs of
Rs. 9,000 had been continued to his son Wir Singh. Jaimal
Singh, the second son, had also acquired a separate estate
of Bs. 8,000; but on his father’s death both his and the jagirs
of his nephew were resumed, and in their stead the Maharaja
granted Jai Singh’s estate, less the village of Rasulpur in the
Qis-Satlaj States, which was worth Rs, 3,000. Amar Singh, the
third son of Jai Singh, received an annuity of Rs. 800, while
the three younger sons of Mangal Singh were provided for ;
Chugatra Singh being made Rasaldar in General Ventura's
Brigade, and Khem Singh and Sher Singh receiving the
village of Pati in Sialkot, with a cash allowance. When Wir
Singh died in 1839 half his estate was resumed, and the
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K Mmﬂgrﬂluﬂedbﬁtmnhshmheranﬁ his son Buta Emgh
* Jaimal Singh was Commandant in the Charyari Horse, mﬂ
: j-',' served under Raja Suchet Singh on the frontier and elsewhere.
- At annexation Rs. 2,000 of his jagir were maintained for Eua '
~ life. Sher Singh and Buta Singh joined the rebels in 1848
- und lost everything; and the Rs. 4,000 jagir of Khem Singl,
e ~ whose conduck was suspicious, was reduced to Rs. 1,000. On_
- the death of Jaimal Singh his sons received a pension nf "
= As. 666, which they still hold.
. Sardar Buta Singh was in receipt of an annua.lpunmnu uf :
" Rs. 240 until his deathin 1874. He was a Zaildar in his Tlaka,
~ A grant of Rs. 50 per annum was made to his widow, who is
_L: ’ Eﬁﬂahw. Of the Sardar’s three sons, Lal Singh, surviving,
" took service as a Dafadar in the old 16th Bengal Cu.vnlry,.
' hutmﬁredunthahmakmgupﬁfthnimgnngnt. He now
* lives at Manhala and is a Member of the Kasur Local Board. 3
. He married into the Bagawalia (Gurdaspur) family. Sardar
Eimr Singh took service in 1857 as a Naib Rasaldar under -
, ‘Colonel Voyle in the Hydrabad Contingent. He behaved
,'irlﬂl great gallantry thronghout the disturbances in Oudh =
~and was made Rasaldar and Sardar Bahadar. He also
melmd a jagir valned at three thousand rupees per
ﬂam:rmnm the district of Baraich, On the return of peace
hamlg'neﬂthaiarvmeandpmdnﬂmttn England. Hedied
~ in 1871. His son Sardar Tara Singh served as Jamadar with
. the 3rd Cavalry, Hydrabad Contingent, throughout the late
:Lfghm War. He iz pow at the head of the family and ln'u -r‘ S
| at Kala in the Lahore district, -




SARDAR GODAR SINGH MOEAL.

nm;ll. BINGH.
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anm- Mum nuilimek. mrlm.
The Mokal fu:mﬂj'. of the Sindbu Jat caste, rose fo—-
,_qanmdmhlapum&mngtharmgnnfﬂnhﬂmj Ranjit
- Singh. Even among the Sikh nobility the family is con-
' iaiﬂm'adanuwm and it was more by their strength and ¥
p"cummhutththmhythmr cleverness that its members
_ gained lands and wealth. -«
o Sundar Singh was a Jat villager, father of seven sons,
”ofwhmnmlythagmmlogyuftwum here given, as the
- descendants of these alone became distinguished. His only
'amghtur Kuran, he married to Sardar Lal Singl, a Jagirdar T} 1
‘mthnnmtyufl’nk Patan, who took his brothers-in-law & .191
~ into his service, and they rode behind him in all his maraud- ¥
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ing expeditions till their sister, jealous forthamﬂnenoaof -
hﬁr husband, induced him to turn them adrift. Jawant

Singh with his cousins came to Lahore and entered the =
~ gervice of Ranjit Singh. For some time they remained

- unnoticed ; but at the bloody battle of Baisah, fought near
- Atock, in July 1813, by Diwan Mohkam Chand against the

Afghan Wazir, the cousins, six of whom were engaged in the

fight, were so conspicnous for bravery and strength that the

~ Maharaja gave them the jagir of Rangilpur, worth Rs. 2,500,
- and to Jawant Singh, who had specially distinguished

himself, five villages in the Gujrat district, valued at Rs. 30,000,
gubject to the service of one hundred and fifty sowars; and his

brothers were placed under his command. In 1818 he served at
~ Mnultan, and the next year in Kashmir, where he was severely

wounded in the side by a spear. For this wound he received
an assignment of Rs. 2,500 per annum out of the Kashmir
revenue. The family jagirs at one time reached Rs. 1,35,000,
including Rs. 2,000 from the estate of their inhospitable
connection Sardar Lal Singh.

After the death of Maharaja Ranjit Singh in 1839, and of

oy " LIy e
s

Jawant Singh in 1840, the jagirs of the Mokal family remained

intact ; those which had been specially assigned to Jawant
Singh descending to his two sons Bela Singh and Gurmukh =

Singh, for the estate iad been divided in 1836, Their contin-

gent of two hundred and fifty horsemen was however raised to

three hundred, and the brothers were placed under the com-

mand of Prince Nao Nahal Singh. They did not get on well
together ; the elder suspecting the younger of a desireto
obtain not only the larger portion of the jagir, but the

Sardarship itself. Raja Hira Singh was Minister at the

~ time, and on a nazarana of Rs. 20,000 being paid by Sardar
" Bela Singh he confirmed him in the Chiefship and jagir, which =
ﬁurmnkhﬂmghbmksumuﬂhtuhmrtthathaﬂmﬂﬁ -
mmunshwﬂyaftermrds,mlﬂﬁ When the First Panjab
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‘War broke out, Sardars Bela Singh and Surjan Singh with
two hundred horsemen joined the army, and formed part of
the detachment which advanced to Mudki and Firozshahar.
They were both present at Sobraon ; and Bela Singh, severely
wounded in the battle, was drowned in the Batlaj in the
vain attempt to ford the river after the bridge of boats had
been broken down. For several days his servants searched
for his body, but it was never found. When Raja Lal Singh
was confirmed as Mmister at Lahore, nearly half of Sardar
~ Bela Singh’s jagirs were resumed ; but there was still left to
. Surjan Singh estates worth Rs. 63,800, of which Rs. 49,800
were subject to the service of onme hundred and sixty-three
sowars. Surjan Singh enjoyed this estate up to 1849, when,
having with his cousin Khazan Singh joined the national party,
. it was resumed, with the exception of Rangilpur, worth Rs.
~ 1,000, which had been assigned on the death of Sardar Gurmukh
Singh as a provision for his widow and daughter. This was
upheld to the widow Ind Kaur. Khazan Singh received a
pension of Rs. 450, and Mukadam Singh one of Rs. 72, which
they still hold. Sardar Surjan Singh's pension of Rs. 1,200
lapsed at his death in March 1864. His son Chatar Singh,
who succeeded him as Lambardar, embraced Mahomedanism
in 1879 and changed his name to that of Fateh Din. He
~ has ason, Karim Bakhsh, by a Mahomedan wife. There is con-
~ siderable ill-will between the two branches of Jawant Singh’s
— family, as it is believed that Sardar Gurmukh Singh lost
his life by the witcheraft and incantations of his elder brother.
In 1858 Mana Singh was made a Rasaldar in the
Banda Military Police, in which he remained till 1861, In
September 1850 he distinguished himself by the manner in
which he led his troop against very superior numbers of the i
enemy, and on this occasion he was wounded in the head, §
and his horse was wounded under him; but he mounteda
fresh Lorse, and was again foremost in the fight and the
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pursuit. In 1861, when he was discharged on the reduction
of the Police force, he was made Zaildar or Honorary Police
Magistrate of twenty-eight villages in the neighbourhood of
Mokal ; and in 1862 he received a grant of seven hundred and
twenty acres of waste land in Rakh Mudki near Chunian.
Godar Singh was Rasaldar in Hodson’s Horse, and serv-
ed for more than two years with credit. He was dis-
charged when his troop was disbanded in March 1860.
When the Chinese War broke out, Godar Singh volunteered
his services, but there was no vacancy in Fane’s Horse at the
time, and they were declined. He received a grant of fifty
acres of land in Rakh Mudki at the same time as his cousin
Mana Singh. He is Zaildar of Thata Jaloki, Chunian, Lahore.
He was given a placein the Provincial Darbar List in succes-
gion to Mana Singh in1884. Mukadam Singh was also a
Rasaldar, and on his retirement received a grant of one
hundred acres of land and was appointed a Zaildar of
Sultanki in the Lahore distmict. Both his sons are dead.
One of them, Kishan Singh, was a Dafadar in the 11th
Bengal Lancers.

Mana Singh died in 1884. His son Narain Singh has
succeeded him as Zaildar, and Ala Lambardar. He is a Mem-
ber of the Local Board. Two others of his sons, Partab Singh
and Lal Singh, have become Mahomedans. The former is
a Zaildar in the Canal Department. Sardar Tej Singh,
son of Godar Singh, has also changed his religion, and now
calls himself Abdul Rahman. He is employed as a Darogha
on the Western Jamna Canal.

Bhudha Singh, the brother of Mana Singh, was a Dafadar
in the Banda Police, which he left in 1861 when the forece
was reduced. The family reside at Mokal in the Lahore
district. They hold half the village in proprietary right,
besides three shares in Kila Jaswant Singh, and three hundred
acres of land in Sultanki.



'. Sardar Milka Singh was one of the most powerful of the

~ Sikh Chiefs who lived during the latter half of the last century.
_‘Emnah'rap]mmKaMu near Kasur; but leaving this he
- rh:mﬁaﬁ the village of Thepur (Lahore district) and took pos-
. session of Narwar, Jandhir, Dalen and other villages, some in
- the neighbourhood of Thepur; others in the Gujaranwala and
. Gujrat districts. Not content with these possessions, he
* marched to the northward and seized Rawalpindi, then an
 insignificant place inhabited by Rawal mendicants. Milka -
. Bingh perceived how admirably Rawalpindi was situated,
- and fixed his head-quarters there, building new houses andin =
~ some measure fortifying the town. Rawalpindi was at this time
-: ‘an undesirable possession, It was on the highway into India,
. exposed to the attacks of Afghan invaders, and the surrounding
~country was held by fierce and warlike tribes. But Milka
&nghhnlﬂhmm He conquered a tract of country around
- Rawalpindi worth three lakhs a year; and even the tribesof
- Hazarahad respect for his name and power. He had adopted
thnuugmmmufThepma,ﬁumtba village he had founded;

A
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 this name still belongs to the family.
He died in 1804. Ranjit Singh, whom Milka Singh had
- joined in several expeditions, did not feel strong enough to
_1_ - geize t]me&tataaﬂfhmo]ﬂfrmuﬂ,whnmheuﬂmitoca}lﬁ’ﬂhi' ’
. or grandfather, and was compelled to confirm them to Jiwan =
Lj_ﬂiﬂgﬁ, his only son. Of this Sardar there is little to record.
~ He fought during the first Kashmir Campaign of 1814, and
dmclthﬂna:tym -
Anand Singh, the eldest of Jiwan Bingh’s three sons,
~ succeeded to a portion of his father's jagirs. The Maharaja
- resumed Rs, 2,92,000, and left only Rs. 8,000 of the old estate,
. granting new jagirs to the value of Rs. 42,000 n the Firozpur
~ distriet near Zafarwal, subject to the service of one hundred
 horsemen. Ram Singh, who survived his father only one
year, had a jagir assigned to him in Hazara, and Gurmukh
. Singh received Sultani and Kalri, worth Rs. 2,000, in the
" Gurdaspur district. The force which Sardars Milka Singh =
- and Jiwan Singh had kept up was transferred to the service
of the State and placed under Sardar Atar Singh Sindhan-
wﬂlmbmrmgthnme:ﬁthem:am&wﬂn.mdﬁmnkh -_
. Bingh received an appointment in it. In December 1840,
~ shortly after General Ventura had taken the fort of
Kamlagarh in Mandi, the people of Kulu rose in revolt,
‘eut off and annihilated four companies of the Pindiwala, and
 killed Gurmukh Singh who was in command. Anand Singh
. died in 1831. His only son Fateh Singh was then a boy of =
~ eight years of age, and in 1836 the Maharaja reduced his
~ jagir to Rs. 13,000, mhlmmthnmdtmtyhm The
~ villages which were left were ten in number: Thepur, Kila =
~ Sardar Daloki and Kaleki in the Lahore district; Kehli and
 Raja Tal in Amritsar; Loli, Lohri and Duni in Sialkot; and
g " Kasoki and Samobala in Gujaranwala. On the annexation of

ther]ab,thapmonnlpgtrui Fateh Singh, worth Bs, 3,000,




:  THE rMm:m _
; rﬁsmﬁrmﬁhhmfurh:ﬁe onaqnurbartadmanﬂ to }Ill' ;
~ Rs. 5,100 were also confirmed to the two widows of
d Bingh and the widows of Gurmukh Singh and IWIIIL-

gh. Thﬁah&mhwm&od,mdthemmhﬂlﬂmgs

- f SurdarFﬁbaitﬁmghﬂmﬂmlﬁﬂﬁ ﬂnﬁ—fuurthnfthﬂlagm
&uhomwummhmthrmﬂum,ﬁhnmaherﬁmgh,l}hm
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One of the principal Jat families of the Manjha is the
Emﬂ]m,andt-umsfnmﬂy&mhr Sadho Singh belongs. Its
- founder, Sindhu, appears to have been of Ra]putunmu,hnt 1
&unngthathu'tamthwnturyﬂmgmted&nm Ghazni in
Aighmmnmthel[aujhn, whmhaaetﬂeﬂmthhmfnm]p .
- How his ancestors became first resident in Afghanistan is un-
certain ; but in all probability they were among the numerous
- Hindu captives that Sultan Mahmud carried away with him
- after his Indian expeditions, and a large colony of whom he

ylanmdmhmnewnndbaauhfulmpttalufﬂham Some of
~ the Sindhu Jats assert that it was Ghazni in Southern

Inﬂm from which their ancestor emigrated ; but this story i
~ improbable and is entirely unsupported by proof. ‘
- Changa, the thirteenth in descent from Sindhu, was
. an influential Chaudri, and founded, some fifteen miles south-

R -
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 east of Lahore, the village of Padhania, where the family still
- resides. He was the chief of the thirty Jat Chaudris and
" headmen who went on a mission to the Emperor Akbar
-_ to arrange the marriage of that monarch with a daughter of
- Mir Mita Dhariwal, a Zamindar of Dowla Kangra, near
‘Wadni, in the Firozpur district. The Emperor first saw the
~ girl, who was very beautiful, at her village well. She had a
pitcher of water on her head, yet contrived to place her foot
‘upon the rope of a refractory and runaway heifer and hold
it captivetill its= owner came up. Akbar was so delighted
with this feat of strength and skill that he wished to marry
her ; but her father declined the honour, without the consent
~ of his caste. He assembled a committee of seventy-one
~ Lambardars and Chaudris, thirty-five Jats and thirty-six
~ Rajputs, to decide the question. The Rajputs considered the
- alliance disgraceful ; but the Jats, with Chaoga at their head,
- approved of it, and the marriage took place accordingly.
~ Akbar rewarded the thirty-five with lands and honours ; and
- these were the ancestors of all the Jat families in the Panjab
. of any consideration; so much so, that the chief Jat
families are called painti, thirty-five, and the chief Rajput
families chati, thirty-six, at the present day. Changa, who
 from his antecedents might be expected to have been
among the chati, was, on the contrary, found in the ranks
of the Jats. His family had been so long Jat cultivators
~ that their Rajput prejudices had died away. He was a man
of considerable influente, and his son suceeeded to his power ;
- but his grandson Dibawas, during the reign of Jahangir,
‘was degraded from the office of Chaudri for murder,
When the Sikhs rose to power, Sukha Singh, who was
. then the representative of the family, with his two sons
- Mit Singh and S8ahib Singh, joined the popular faith. Mit
- Singh entered the service of Sardar Mahan Singh Sukarchakia,
- and Sabib Singh that of Sardar Gujar Singh of Lahore.
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 From the Sukarchakia leader Mit Singh received an ecstate

worth Rs. 12,000, and on Mahan Singh's death he followed
the fortunes of the young Ranjit Singh, and was with him

~at the capture of Lahore in 1799. He later accompanied
the Kasur expedition and rose high in favour with his master,

who gave him many valuable estates. In 1814 he was in com-
mand of the rear guard of the army during its retreat from

Kashmir, The tribes came down in force, and handled . =

- Mit Singh's division very severely and wounded the
- himself mortally. Ranjit Singh was much griev

~ loss, and swore to befriend his son Jawala Singh,
accordingly, all his father’s possessions were con

Haripur Goler in Kn.ngm.
Sardar Jawala Singh was a brave and an
was present at the capture of Multan 1

hngmahﬂdhlmaalfnt][anknm,T'

Kashmir; and on one occasion,

ami the Maharaja sent Jawala

pﬁpu]armﬁ: the army, to induce them

uty. The fort was too strong to reduce, and

Jawala Singh was compelled to confine himself to arguments;

and, at length, on solemn promises of full pardon, persuaded
the mutineers to submit. Butthe Maharaja cared nothing for

the pledged word of Jawala Singh. He put the ringleaders to

death, and fined and degraded the other mutineers. Thiscon-

duct so mortified Jawala Singh, who considered his honour lost,

~ that it brought on the illness from which he never recovered.
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There is no one of the Sikh Sardars whose name is

" more renowned for gencrosity and munificence than Jawala sy
{‘ Singh. The young daughter of his cousin Kahan Singh, who
* had died in very embarrassed circumstances, Jawala Singh
* adopted as his own. He gave her a large dowry, and is said
~ to have spent upwards of a lakh of rupees upon her marriage,
At the commencement of his Jast illness he distributed an
. equally large sum of money among the fakirs and Brahmans.
 Nor was he less liberal to strangers than to his own family,
as the following story will show. When Prince Sher Singh

o

" had failed so signally in his administration of Kashmir, the
*  Maharaia looked about for victims nupon whom to avenge the =
f Among others, the principal agent of the Prince,
L alkchi Singh Chamyariwala, was ordered to Lahore.
: His aceounts were declared fraudulent, and he was fined Rs.
. 1,25,000 withouk enquiry into the proofs against him. There

i3 no doubt the fing was deserved, for at that time Kashmir
~ was considered by thegikh officials as a sheep-fold under the
~ protection of the wolves. Y8yt the Diwan proclaimed that he
. was unable to pay the fine. TH§ Maharaja ordered him to be
~ flogged until he shonld discover Where his wealth was con-
~ cealed. The unhappy wretch was drifgged out of the presence,
‘past the Deorii or ante-chamber, wh¥ge were seated Raja
- Dhian Singh, Jawala Singh and many ogher Chiefs. When
: Dmemm]dm Singh saw them, he in plored their inkge-
" ceasion with the Maharaja, and threw himse M beforsdden
. ingout “Iam yourcow. Saveme!” Bu Tio one took the
 slightest notice of him, except Sardar Jawala Singh. He listen-
- ed tothe whole story, and then had the courage to go before
. the Maharaja and beg for the remission of the punishment,
_ offering himself to pay the whole fine. Ranjit Singh con-
- sented and, being utterly without the power of appreciating
. anoble and magnanimous action, recovered the fine, to the
3 last rupee, from Jawala Singh, whom, as might have been

T R T, [T e e
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~ supposed, the Diwan forgot ever to pay. Asnnuthﬂ'inktnnna*..
- of his generosity, it may be mentioned that in his ancestral
~ village of Padhania he never took rent or revenue from any

of his own, the Sindhu tribe.
On the death of Jawala Singh, the Maharaja resumed

- the larger portion of his jagir, for Hardit Singh, the Sardar's
~ only son, was of weak intellect ; and although he used to
- attend at Court, yet he was unable to hold any independent

command. He, however, retained estates worth Rs. 27,425,
subject to the service of one hundred horsemen, In 1848

~ this Unntmgent was in Hazara with Sardar @lmtar Emgh_

~ true to Government, and on the annexa
"~ Hardit Singh and his mother were allowe
worth Rs. 9,000 per annum. “«®
In 1860 Hardit Singh died, lefving one son, Sadho

Ateen years while still a
ger” The present head of the
infgh, son of Kahan Singh. He

~ The jagir allowaneds in the family have ceased; but the
“Sarawr_has propriefary rights in four villages, and he is in
ﬂﬂm-ish\mg ircumétances.

Gurbaksh Singh, nephew of Sardar Atma Singh, a

Naib-Tahsildar, died in 1882. His son Harnand Singh is

betrothed to a daughter of the late Sardar Ajit Singh Atari- L
wala of Amritsar. The family have been fortunate in securing

good alliances for their sons and daughte~s by marriage.

They have thus become connected with some of the best

houses in the Manjha.

LR
Lo
Al
i




THE PANJAB CHIEFS.
PANDIT SHEO NATH.
PANDIT BAOHNATH EATL,
Pandit Bam,

|
Diwan Shunknr Nuth
n. 1574,

Parem Nath I‘mﬂ:ln Mirw,
B

& ' ated to Dehli ﬂm'ing the !’ﬂlgnﬂf the

1t and entered the service of Ali Mardan

| aMin ister of the Moghal Prince. "There

yqlth, and after some years returned

e several others of th&fﬂmﬂj’

. tofollow his example ; and among thie emigrants was Raghnath
 Kaul, who settled at Faizabad, wheRif i

- soon after this was invited to Lahore by a “reiz tive, Diwan
- Gaoga Ram, who had taken service with Ranjit Singh in
4 "1_813, and had risen to offices of trust and profit. He accepted
- the inyitation and, being a ready writer, was placed in charge
rnf the Diwan’s office. In 1817 he was attached as Munshi to

- the person of the Maharaja, and in 1818 held the same office
- with Kharak Singh the heir-apparent, whose jagir accounts
- he kept, |
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* Shankar Nath, born at Dehli in 1805, was bronght to
Lahore by his father in 1820 and placed in Prince Kharak
Singh's Treasury office. He was afterwards transferred to

" the Central Record office, in which he remained till the an-
~ nexation of the Panjab. His connection with Raja Dina Nath,

" whose sister he had married, gave Pandit Shankar Nath much

influence ; and he was besides known for ability and unim-

) ~ peachable honesty, During the time of the Residency, from

1846 to 1849, Shankar Nath was largely and confidentially
employed by British officers, Messrs. Bowring, Cocks, Wed-
derburn and Major Macgregor ; and all have borne witness
to the value of his services and to his high character. Being

~ chief Munshi of Raja Dina Nath’s office, a large amount of

~ revenue work was made over to him, and he himself disposed

~ of upwards of eight thousand cases. Till 1849 Shankar Nath

held jagirs to the value of Bs. 6,500, besides cash allowances,
Rs. 1,360 and Rs. 2,412, for his establishment. The jagirs

~ sitnated in Shekhopura and Gujrat were resumed, and a pension

of Rs. 2,620 was assigned to him for life. In 1862 Shankar
Nath was appointed Honorary Magistrate of Lahore. In this

~ office he gave great satisfaction by his impartiality and activity.

He possessed great knowledge of Hindu Law, and in intricate
cases of custom, inheritance and religion his opinion was sought
with confidence by the English Magistrates of Lahore. In
January 1865 he was created a Diwan by the Supreme

:f Government. He was for many years a Member of the
" Municipal Commitiee. He died in 1876, regretted by all
 classes, and was succeeded as head of the family by his son

"
L)

>

Parem Nath, Nazir of the Deputy Commissioner’s Court,

- Lahore. In recognition of the Diwan's loyal and faithful

services, a grant was made in 1880 to Parem Nath of one

- thousand acres in Rakh Balil Bachoke in the Chunian Tahsil

F

of the Lahore district, upon favourable rates for a term of

~ twenty years. Parem Nath has here founded the village of




 Parem Nagar. Tt lies within four miles of Raiwind Junction
- on the Lahore-Multan Railway. Parem Nath retired on a e
& panmn in 1884 after thirty years' service, and died in 1886.
~ He was a Darbari on the Lieutenant-Governor's List. His
. dﬁﬂt son Duarka Nath was an Extra Assistant Commis-
t!':ﬁmiar,hubmﬁmdhisfathﬂgnlytwuymm »
Pandit Sheo Nath, second son of Diwan Shankar Nath,
~ has been in the service of the Maharaja of Jamu for the past
- eighteen years, as an attendant at the Court, without being
assigned any special duties. He receives an allowance of
- Rs. 125 per mensem from the Jamu Darbar. He myha =
~ regarded as the present head of the family. He has no seat
- in Darbar.




DILBAGH RAL

BAIBAEHAT RAM,

Tl

f reablod ab Lahore, Lals Jamiat
Mﬂﬁmw shodo in Banmres]. Eai, now representative of Bukdahi

Baisakhi Ram, father of Bakshi Bhagat Ram, was a
money-changer, in a very small way of business, in the city
- of Lahore. In 1818, Bhagat Ram, then nineteen years of age,
was taken into the Treasury office as a writer on Rs. 60 a month
by Misar Beli Ram, the chief Toshakhania or Keeper of the
State Treasury. In 1824 he received the post of Assistant
Writer of the Accounts of the Privy Purse, with Rs. 50 per
mengem additional pay. He was in 1831 deputed to accom-
pany Prince Sher Singh to the hill country of the Jalandhar
Doab to collect the revenue from Tira and Sujanpur, and the
tribute from Mandi, Suket and Kulu. The next year Bhagat
Ram returned to Lahore and was appointed Bakshi, or Pay-
master of fifty battalions of infantry, eight regiments of caval-
~ry and twenty batteries of artillery on a salary of Rs. 2,520 a
~ year. He held this appointment throughout the reigns of
 Maharajas Ranjit Singh and Kharak Singh, and in 1841
s I. Maharaja Sher Singh granted him, in addition to his cash
allowance, jagirs at Ajnala and Surapur worth Rs. 3,000.
= Bakshi Bhagat Ram was exceedingly popular with the
. army, and after the assassination of Sher Singh his influence
" became very great. He was at the head of one division of the

!- :

. Mutsadi or Munshi party, while Diwan Dina Nath was all-
B powerful in another, composed of the clever and unscrupulous
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Kashmiri Brahmans. After the murder of Raja Hira Singh

and Pandit Jala on the 21st December 1844, it was decided in
Darbar that the Government should be carried on by a Couneil
composed of Sardar Jawahir Singh, Raja Lal Singh, Diwan
Dina Nath, Sardars Atar Singh Kalianwala, Sham Singh
Atariwala and Bakshi Bhagat Ram; but it was not long be-
fore the chief power fell into the hands of Jawahir Singh
and Lal Singh alone. .

The Bakshi went to Jamu with the expedition against
Raja Gulab Singh in March 1845, and his great influence
with the troops induced the Raja to bestow upon him enor-
mous presents. But these Bhagat Ram was very near losing,
for, when the army had brought Gulab Singh to Lahore, that
Prince professed his willingness to gnarantee to the troops a
higher rate of pay, provided that all the Chiefs contributed
according to their means; and the Bakshi he putdown for a
donation of five lakhs of rupees, which was in reality less than
he had received at Jamn,

In June 1845, the army, weary of the ineapacity of the
Minister, Jawahir Singh, demanded that he should be dis-
missed from office, and that in his stead Diwan Dina Nath,
Bhagat Ram, or Raja Lal Singh, or the three conjointly,
should be appointed to the Wazirship. The Rani, however,
contrived to bring about a reconciliation between her brother
Jawshir Singh and her lover Lal Singh, and the incom-
petent Wazir remained at the head of affairs until his assassi-
nation three months later.

A new jagir, worth Rs. 8,000, at Datarpur in the Jalan-

dhar Doab, was granted to the Bakshi by Maharaja Dalip
Singh. When the Doab was ceded to the British Government
by the Treaty of the 9th March 1846, Bhagat Ram lost his
jagir; but another of the same value was granted to him in
the Talwandi Pargana of the Amritsar district. His cah
allowance was reduced to Rs. 1,300, and the next year he

q,-».-"'
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2 LAHORE DISTRICT. 3
~ received an additional jagir at Dharamkot, worth Rs. 2,000.
His emoluments at this time amounted in cash and land to
Rs. 14,300. :
When at the close of 1847 Mr. John Lawrence, the
Officiating Resident, was attempting to introduce some order
and system into the Sikh administration, Bakshi Bhagat Ram

- was directed to render the army accounts, which he had not
~ done for several years. When he would do this by no in-

ducement whatever he was suspended from office, and four
Paymasters were appointed in his room, and a regular system
of audit and account was introduced. Still failing to render
the accounts, the jagirs of Bakshi Bhagat Ram were resumed.
At length the accounts were produced. About five and a half
- lakhs of rupees appeared against him; but a large portion of this

was allowed to be written off. Part was due from various

~ officers of the army ; and on payment of the balance the ac-
counts were passed by the Darbar. Several months later Sir
F. Currie refused to accede to the wish of the Darbar and
restore to the Bakshi his resumed jagirs; and accordingly at the
annexation of the Panjab he had no elaims on the new Govern-
ment. A pension of Rs. 1,200 per annum was, however, grant-
ed to him in 1853, on the recommendation of the Chief
Commissioner.

Bhagat Ram was never accused of embezzlement of the

_public money ; and his poverty, when he possessed such
ample opportunities of enriching himself at the expense of the

~ Btate, is the proof of his personal honesty. But, although he

did not himself plunder the State, he was in no way careful to

" check the depredations of others. His subordinates in the

- Military Pay Department were the most greedy and unseru-

- pulous of men. They grew rich on the plunder of the army,

and were the objects of universal hatred. If Bhagat Ram

~ had been less amiable and more energetic he would have been
‘a valuable public servant.
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.,u life pension of Rs. 100 per mensem was continued to his
- widow, who has since died. His son Jamiat Rai was at one
MAHmbTahmﬂﬁ;rmthﬂJalanﬁhum&utham
~ dismissed the service in 1873. He has taken up his abode in

S Reusren, His' son. Dilbsgh Raiis a Mobarivin the Postal 1SS
Bﬂpartmam. The family has sunk into obscurity and is mo

Inngarunu of note in the Province.

.”




The ancestors of Malik Sahib Khan were Bhati Rajputs,

resident in the Sirsa district. About the year 1520, Gagn

and Nolu, two members of the family, obtained from Ibrahim,

" thelast of the Lodi dynasty, a grant of thirty thousand acresof

waste land in the Kasur district. Thither the brothers pro-

ceeded with their families, and founded several villages, Hariki,

Betu and the two Nols. About this time also, whether from

conviction, or influenced by the grant of land, they became

converts to Mahomedanism. When the Sikhs became power-

" ful, about the middle of the eighteenth century, Kasur with its

large Mahomedan population, consisting partly of Pathan _"

~ colonists and partly of Hindu converts, fell into the hands

of the Bhangi Chiefs, who held it till 1704, when Nizamudin
Khan, the Pathan leader, drove out the Sikhs, and contrived

~ for some years to hold his own against all opposition.
. Nizamudin Khan was assassinated by some of his relations

~ in 1802, and his brother Kutabdin Khan became Chief in

Kasur. He married a daughter of Khewa Khan, and be-

_ stowed upon his father-in-law an estate worth Rs. 10,000in
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~ addition to his ancestral villages. In 1807 Kasur was con-
~ quered by Ranjit Singh, and Kutabdin Khan was permitted to
~ retain Mamdot, to the south of the Satlaj, whither he retired,
- accompanied by Khewa Khan, who received a jagir in Mamdot
~ of the same value as that he had lost in Kasur, subject to the
~ service of a contingent of horse. For many years, under
~ Kutabdin and his successor Jamaludin, Malik Khewa per-
formed military service; and when he grew old his son
- Khairudin headed the contingent on active service. Khairu-
- din Khan during the First Afghan War was stationed at
Peshawar with the one hundred horsemen of the Mamdot con-
~tingent; and after its disastrous termination he accompanied
- the second army under General Pollock to Kabul with the
* Mamdot horse and one hundred men from the Mokal and Atari-
‘wala contingents. His services, at a time when the Sikh
~ brigade was notoriously hostile and refused to advance, were
~very valuable, and on his return to the Panjab both General
~ Pollock and Major Mackeson recommended him to the kindness
~  of Maharaja Sher Singh, who promised to increase bhis jagir,
~ but was assassinated before he was able to carry out his inten-
~ tion. At this time Jamaludin Khan, Chief of Mamdot, con-
fiscated the jagir of Khewa Khan, who retired to the village
- of Betu, an ancestral possession, where he died at a very ad-
- wanced age, in 1856. Maharaja Dalip Singh, in compensation
- for this loss of the Mamdot jagir, gave to Khairudin Khan, in
1844, six villages near Kasur, worth Rs. 6,000, During the
~ latter part of the Satlaj War he fought on the side of the
- British, crossing the river with his whole family and joining
~ the camp soon after the battle of Firozshahar. During the
- retrenchments that followed the deposition of Raja Lal Singh
- bis jagir was reduced to Rs. 4,000, and shortly afterwards two
~ morevillages were taken away ; the Kardars affirming that
. the revenue of the two remaining ones, Betu and Matran,
. was fully Rs. 4,000, At the time of the Multan outbreak,




_ Khairndin was at Dera Ismail Khan, under the orders of
- Captain Taylor. He was sent to Bannu to relieve Fateh

Khan Tawana, who was besieged in Dalipghar ; but Fateh

Khan was slain and the fort reduced before he reached it.
He was afterwards sent from Isakhel with two hundred horse
and five hundred foot into the Pindi Gheb country to
"~ harass Gavhar Singh, the rebel Kardar of Sardar Chatar
. Singh, and to encourage the Atock garrison. He performed
~ the duty most satisfactorily. Gaubar Singh was routed
in two or three encounters, and was forced to fly the
country ; and while the Sikh army remained on the left bank
of the Jhilam, Khairudin held his ground to the north of the
Salt Range. In 1857, at the requisition of the Chief Com-
missioner, he raised one hundred horsemen, and with his
nephews proceeded to Hissar under General Van-Cortlandt.
In this expedition Kamaludin Khan, his nephew and
adopted son, was made Rasaldar, and distingnished himself
bighly. Khairndin Khan also did good service st Gogaira
against the rebel Ahmad Khan, Chief of the Kharals. He
died in 1866, having served the British Government faithfully
in five campaigns, proving himself a man upon whom

reliance might be confidently placed. His jagir, valued at
Rs. 2,500, but now (owing to river action) worth. only

Rs. 1,800, passed to his nephew Kamaludin, who enjoyed it
until his death in 1881, Kamaludin’s eldest son, Sahib Khan

- isa Provincial Darbari and a Member of the Local Board at
- Kasur. He and his three brothers jointly hold the family

jagir. They receive in addition an income of about Rs. 2,500

as proprietary dues in five villages in the Lahore and Firozpur

~ districts. No members of the family are at present in Govern-
‘ment service.
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. Gurbaksh Rai was the first of this family to rise to any
 eminence. He was the Diwan, or Minister, of Nawab Nasir
~ Khan, the ruler of Kabul and Peshawar, and possessed great
~ influence. His son Thakar Das was Diwan to Haji Ata
' Khan, son-in-law of Shah Wali Khan, chief Minister of Ahmad
- Shah, the celebrated Durani Chief. On the death of the Haji,
" Thakar Das entered the service of Ahmad Shah, who made
" him Diwan Khas, or Privy Counsellor, and gave him charge of
~ the Seal of State. His wealth and power were considerable,
" and his style of living was princely. He accompanied Ahmad
. Shah on his first expedition to Indis in 1747, and after the
: ':upturamdmkuﬂiﬁthra received the grant of a valuable
~ jagir in the Jalandhar Doab. Timur Shah succeeded his
~ fatherin 1773, and during his reign of twenty years Thakar
~ Das continued to fill the office of Diwan. He served Shah
- Zaman during the first year of his troublous reign, and died
- ﬂmaﬂmndagaml?ﬂ&.

.




.~ Bhawani Das, the second son of Thakar Das, was a
Revenue officer of high standing under Shah Shuja. He was
chiefly employed in collecting the customs of Multan and the
Derajat; and in 1808, disgusted at the manmner in which he
was treated by the Kabul Court, he determined to try and
~ obtain service with Ranjit Singh, and accordingly set off for
- Lahore, forgetting, it is asserted, to pay into the Treasury the
revenue that he had collected. He was well received by the
- Lahore Chief who, surrounded by illiterate soldiers, was much
in want of some able man, with a reputation as & financier, to
- keep his accounts. At this time there was no State Treasury
‘ or regular system of accounts at Labore. The revenue, which
amounted to about thirty lakhs of rupees, was managed by the
~ Amritsar banker, Ramanand, who held the octroi of Amritsar
 and farmed the salt mines of Pind Dadan Khan. Bhawani
~ Das soon effected a great improvement. He established a
| pay office for the troops and a finance office; of both of which
- he was made the head.
‘ Davi Das, his elder brother, joined him at Lahore towards
. theend of 1809. He had been in the service of Wazir Sher
- Mahomed, the son of Wazir Shah Wali Khan, Minister of -
~ Ahmad Shabh. After the assassination of his master he
- remained for some time in concealment, as he feared the same %
- fate; but at length, effecting his escape, he set out for Lucknow, .
- where his family had been promised an asylum. But his route o
lay through Lahore; and on his arrival there the persuasions of @
Ranjit Singh and the high position of his brother induced him
to remain. He was associated with Biawani Dasin the Finance
Department, neither being subordinate to the other, and they
~ always got on well together. Davi Das was a man of as great '
- ability and of far greater integrity than his brother, but he
never became so prominent, as he was of a retiring disposition.
. After the cession of the fort of Kangra to Ranjit Singh
- by Sansar Chand in 1810, and the reduction of the hill Chiefs,

.‘:-.-.-- '--‘“ ||II' il
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Bhawani Das was sent to collect the tribute from the Rajas
of Mandi and Suket. In 1816 he was made chief Diwan to

~ Prince Kharak Singh, and was employed to reduce the country ;
~ of the Ramgarhia Sardars about Amritsar and Gurdaspur.

The next year he was sent to Jamu to bring the district into
order and to make it over to Gulab Singh, who had just
received the title of Raja. He was present at the siege of

© Multan and shared the Peshawar and Yusufzai Campaigns.
- But, although the appointments filled by Bhawani Das were

many and lucrative, his chief work was as head of the Finance
Department. On one oceasion he fell into deep disgrace.
He had quarrelled with Misar Beli Ram, the Treasurer, who
acoused him to the Maharaja of embezzlement. The charge was

considered proved; and Ranjit Singh, in his passion, struck

Bhawani Das in open Darbar with his sheathed sword and
fined him a lakh of rupees.®* The Diwan was then banished
to a hill appointment ; but his services were too valuable to be

lost, and he was recalled after a few months, He remained

Minister of Finance till his death in 1834, when hLe was suc-
ceeded by Lala Dina Nath. Davi Das died four years aarher,
in 1830.

Huokam Chand was appointed a Daftari, or Office-
keeper, on the establishment of Prince Kharak Singh in 1836,
and the next year was made Kardar of Satgarha on Rs. 100
per mensem ; and he managed his district with tolerable ability.
In 1840 he was sent to Bannu, under the orders of Raja
- Suchet Singh, in one of the many expeditions to collect the
revenue by foree of arms, He received the title of Diwan from
Maharaja Sher Singh. In 1847-48 he was ordered to accom-
pany Lieutenant Edwardes to Bannu. He remained under

* It is commonly balieved 1hat this fine was paid by the
mm who wag o groat friend lBhnI;?%ur; ml‘;}m“
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*that officer till the Multan war broke out; and his assistance

- in the settlement of the Trans-Indus districts was most
. valuable. He accompanied the British army to Multan,
~ where he behaved very well. Before annexation he was in

S o

receipt of Rs. 6,700 per annum, and in 1850 was allowed to -
retain a jagir of Bs. 2,300 in the Pak Patan distriet and a

~ pension of Rs. 1,300a year. 1In 1855 he was made Tahsildar

of Pasrur in the Sialkot district; but he did not give
satisfaction to the authorities, and in 1858 was permitted to

d resign. He died in 1869, His son Bishambar Das, a Munsif

|‘

of the Rawslpindi district, died, sonless, in 1880. His
nephew Tara Chand is a Deputy Inspector of Police. Trikta
Sahai, another nephew, is Superintendent of the Deputy
Commissioner's Vernacular office, Hazara. The jagir in the
Montgomery district was resumed on the death of Diwan

" Hukam Chand.

- Shankar Das, brother of Diwan Hukam Chand, was a
Munshi in his father's office.. He and his brother Ganga
Bishan each enjoyed a pension of Rs. 240.

Lala Narain Das, fourth son of Thakar Das, was succes-

' sively Kardar of Amritsar, Kangrs, Jamu and Jaswan. In

- -

LY

1825 he was made Office Keeper of the Moti Mandar Treasury

~ under Misar Beli Ram, and later obtained the Kardarship

of Lahore, which he held till 1833. In 1838 he retired to
Kabul, where he obtained a military command, and soon after
died. His son and grandson are still resident in Afghanistan,

Raj Kaur came to Lahore with his brother Davi Das,

- and after the capture of Mankera was made Kardar of the

district ; Sardar Fateh Singh Man holding the military com-
mand. He acted for his brother Bhawani Das, when that
officer was on duty in Kashmir, in 1819,

On the death of Lala Ram Das in 1867 his allowance

" of Rs. 1,200 was resumed, and in lien a pension of Rs. 240
~ was sanctioned for his son Jawahir Mal, who died in 1878,

-
L
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- Jawabir Mal's naplmwmmnumﬁaruhmmainﬁm i

mofﬂmﬂahm;auﬂuﬂoruamﬂaﬁanﬂmh

Ba.&llparmanmn.

_1;-4 " 'The family has sunk into obscurity, Nand Lal, brother

'_* of Maya Das, may be considered as its present head. Heis
~ Record-keeper in the Chief Court, Lahore, on a salary of ;.
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* SARDAR JAGAT SINGH KANAYA.

The Kanhya Misal was at one time the most powerful of

\the Sikh confederacies north of the Satlaj. Its firstleader was |
~ Jai Singh, the son of a Sindhu Jat cultivator named Kushali,

who lived at the village of Kanah, which had been founded
by one of his tribe, some fifteen miles from Lahore, From
the native village of its leader the confederacy took its =
~ name.® :

Jai Singh and his brother Jhanda Singh joined the con-

- federacy of Kapur Singh, known as the Faizulapuria, Faiza-
. sadpuria or Singpuria, about the year 1749, On the death
of this Chief, the brothers retired to Schian, the village of Jai +

Singh's father-in-law, about nine miles from Amritsar, col-
lected a troop of about four hundred horse and took pos.
session of the surrounding country. Jhanda Singh was killed

 ®Some of the conntey bards tell & romantic story, to tho effect L
_ mlﬂ!ﬂh_ﬁh&mﬁuhhiﬁ@uﬁhmh&é&&

struck with his beaaty thas they nsked him from what village he had come, * Igm

" hs mid. *Well is your village named Kaosh " was the reply, * foryou

himaelf.
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ﬁw years later in a fight mth Nadhan Singh Randhawa at

Enwa]]'mth, and his brother succeeded to his share in the
j estate, marrying the widow by the rite of chadar dalna. Jai

Singh soon became a powerful Chief, and seized Nag, Makarian,
~ Haji, Karot, Uthian and other Awan villages, while his sub-
ordinates and associates all won jagirs for themselves. Among

- the followers of Jai Singh were many well-known names:
~ Amar Singh and Jhanda Singh Bhaga, Lakha Singh Kanowala,
~ Amar Singh Khankra, Budh Singh of Dharamkot, Jhanda

Singh Karoh, and others,

In 1759 Desan, the widow of Jhanda Singh and wife of Jai
Emg-h, gave birth to a son, Gurbaksh Singh, who was married,
‘when nine years of age, to Sada Kaur, danghter of Dasaunda

" Singh of Alkolwala.

The leader of one great section of the Kanhya Misal was
- Hakikat Singh Sangatpuria, a rival of Jai Singh, but never-
theless his friend and associate in many expeditions. In
1763, after Ahmad Shah had retired from the Panjab, having

_' totally defeated the Sikhs near Ludhiana and destroyed
~ the holy temples at Amritsar, these Chiefs, allied with

- Jasa Singh Ahluwalia, Hari Singh Bhangi, and Jasa Singh
Ramaarhm, ‘attacked the Pathan town of Kasur, which
they captured and sacked after a month’s siege. Soon after

' this Jai Singh quarrelled with Hari Singh Bhangi, and fought
~ him near Emanabad. Neither party could claim the victory;

~ and Jai Singh then marched to Sarhand, ravaging the country

- as he passed ; and was present in the great battle where Zain
- Khan was defeated and slain, and from which the Sikhs date

|

their existence as a nation.
In 1773 Raja Ranjit Deo of Jamm, a tributary of Sardar
Jhanda Singh Bhangi, quarrelled with his eldest son Brij Raj

 Deo, whom he desired to exclude from the succession in favour

of his youngest son Mian Dalil Singh. Brij Raj Deo called

~ to his assistance Jai Singh and Hakikat Singh Kanhya and :




-
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* Charat Singh Sukarchiakia; while the Raja summoned Thands,
Singh and all the Bhangi Ohiefs. The rival forees took up their

position on either side of the Basanti, and for some months
fought with varying success. The death of Charat Singh from
the bursting of his gun gave the advantage at length to the
Bhangis, and the Kanhya Chiefs then determined to assass-

inate Jhanda Singh. They heavily bribed a Masbi sweeper,
who shot him dead as he was riding, attended by only three

" horsemen, through the camp., The death of Jhanda Singh
ended the quarrel. The rival forces retired from Jamu, which
became tributary to Hakikat Singh.

The next year Jai Singh and Hakikat Singh built the

quarter at Amritsar still known as the Kanhya Katra;and
soon after this Jai Singh with a large force escorted the
young Mahan Singh, son of Charat Singh, to Badrukh, where
he was married to the daughter of Gajpat Singh of Jind.
On the death of Nawab Saif Ali Khan, the Mahomedan
Governor of Kangra, in 1774, Raja Sansar Chand Katoch
laid siege to the celebrated fort, but was unable to reduceit.

He then invited Sardar Jai Singh to assist him; and Gur-

baksh Singh was accordingly sent with Sardar Baghel Singh
and a considerable force. It was not long, however, before
Gurbaksh Singh saw that he who possessed the Kangra fort
- must be master of all the hill country; and determined to
~ win it for himself. He persuaded the Raja to offer the
garrison very favourable terms, free pardon, money and Jands ;
and by hints of the Raja's treacherous intentions he induced
the besieged to allow his troops to take possession, that their
obtaining what was promised might be assured. Both parties
were thus duped. Gurbaksh Singh occupied and held the fort,
and Sansar Chand had to retire. Previous to this some of
the Hill States had been tributary to Sardar Hakikat Singh ;
but Jai Singh now became paramount, and all the hill Chiefs
sought his alliance.
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The Ramgarhias and Kanhyas had been fast friends in

~ old days; but Jai Singh and Jasa Singh had quarrelled about
- the Kasur prize-money, and the former joined the Ahlu-

walia and Bhangi Chiefs in axpal]ing Jasa Singh from
the Panjab. Raja Ranjit Deo died in 1780, and his son

.- y _Brs] Raj Deo succeeded him. The mew Prince wished to

win back some of his territory from the Bhangis, and asked

" Hakikat Singh to assist him. Neither Jai Singh nor Hakikat

Singh much liked the business, for the Bhangis were their

" friends, and Jai Singh had recently married the danghter of

a Bhangi Chief ; but they marched to Karianwala, which after

b, ‘some fighting was taken possession of by the Raja. The
~ Kanhya Chiefs soon left their new ally and went over to

the Bhangis, and Hakikat Singh, with Gujar Singh and
Bhag Bingh Ahluwalia, retook Karianwala and invaded
Jamu. Sardar Mahan Singh Sukarchakia, who professed
the greatest affection for Brij Raj Deo, with whom he had

~ exchanged turbans, hurried up from Ramnagar, where he

-
S

had been engaged with the Chatahs, and attacked the camp
of Hakikat Singh, but was repulsed withloss. He then,
with the Raja, called Jai Singh and Jasa Singh Ahluwalia
to his help. These Chiefs came and tried to arrange terms,
but, finding this hopeless, returned to Amritsar. Mohan Singh
was pow obliged to submit; and the Raja agreed to pay
a tribute of Rs. 30,000 to Hakikat Singh, who, six months
later, finding that the payment of the tribute was evaded,
proposed to Mahan Singh to join him in an attack on Jamu,
dividing the booty between them. To this the Sukarchakia
Chief, forgeting his friendship with the Raja and the ex-
changed turbans, readily consented. He marched to Chapral,
while Hakikat Singh took the road to Zafarwal. But Mahan
Singh kept faith with none of his allies. Finding that the
Raja had fled, and that he was strong enough to act alone, he

" plundered and burnt the city and palace of Jamu, and retired




to the plains with great spoil. Hakikat Singh thought of

- revenge for this treachery, but was taken ill and died shortly

e When Jai Singh heard of the sack of Jamu and the death
of Hakikat Singh he was very indignant. He prevented
Jaimal Singh, son of Hakikat Singh, from going to Gujran-
- wala, whither Mahan Singh had invited him, and threatened

. the Sukarchakia Chief with his vengeance; and in 1783 ho
A .mmhadngamstJandJala and plundered Rasulpur and Man-

B Giis. wnii then ablackad thie possémsions of Wat Singh and

~ Bhagwan Singh, the NakaiChiefs, connections of Mahan Singh,

'~ and compelled them to submit. At the Diwali of 1784 Mahan
~ Singh went to Amritsar and tried hard to make peace with Jai
Singh, but in vain. He was threatened with imprisonment

' if he did not restore the Jamu spoil, and was treated with so

much rudeness that he fled from Amritsar, determined on
- revenge. There were many ready to join him in an attack on
~ the Kanhya Chief. Chief of these were Sansar Chand of
' Katoch, and Jasa Singh Ramgarhia who had been wander-

" ing for years an exile in the wastes of Hariana. The allies
~ marched to Batala, and about eight miles from that town

were met by Gurbaksh Singh, who offered them battle. For

six hours the fight was continued, till an arrow, shot by one
~ of Guru Sundar Das’ men, struck Gurbaksh Singh in the

- breast and wounded him mortally; and the Kanhya troops,
~ having lost their leader, were completely routed.

. Jai Singh was so distressed at the loss of his son that
~ he made no further resistance. Kangra he gave up to San-
- mﬂhand,anﬂraﬁtmdemBinghngarhjahmoI&
possessions; while to cement friendship with Mahan Singh
"~ he betrothed Mahtab Kaur, daughter of his dead son, to the
~ youthful Ranjit Singh, afterwards Maharaja of the Panijab.
- The betrothal took place in 1785, and the marriage at the

- close of the next year.
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e Jai Singh never recovered his former power, and died
~ in 1789, when his daughter-in-law, Sada Kaur, became head
of the Kanhya Misal. Mention has been made elsewhere of
the ability, the unserupulousness and the intrigues of this
woman. It was through her assistance mainly that Ranjit
Singh became master of the Panjab; and she retained a large
portion of the Kanhya estates till 1820, when her greedy
~ son-in-law made an excuse for seizing them all.
Hem Singh, the nephew of Sardar Jai Singh, had received
- the grant of the Ilaka of Rukhanwala, worth Rs. 40,000, after
~ the capture of Kasur, and this he retained under Ranjit =
~ Singh. He fought with that Chief against Kasur during
- the last Campaign of 1807, and received another estate at
~ Khodian worth Rs. 10,000, He died in 1820. His son Mohar
Singh fought at Multan and in Kashmir ; and in 1821 he was
stationed at Pul Kanjri and Waniki to watch the ferries.
He died at the last-named place in 1823. To his sons, who
~ were employed on the same service, Rs. 30,000 of their
- father’s estate was assigned. Sarup Singh died in 1832, and
the jagir was given by the Maharaja to Kahan Singh Banka.
The village of Rukhanwala alone was loft to the family; but
the next year the village of Kali was granted to Atar Singh's
two widows, since dead. The sonsof Atar Singh made many -
applications to Maharaja Sher Singh for the release of the R
estate, butin vain. Both, with their cousin Megh Singh,
served in the Ghorcharas till 1846, when the general reduc-
tions were made after the Satlaj Campaign. i
The family received in jagir the villages of Rakhanwala
and Kali, Tahsil Kasur. On the death of Sardar Jit Singh
in 1883, one-fourth the jagir (iz., 1,125 acres, yielding
- Rs. 600 annually) was resumed. His son Jagat Singh is now
~ at the head of the family. Gurdit Singh and Megh Singh
~ #till enjoy their jagir shares of Rs. 600 each.’ .




There is a traditionthat Rosa or Rusah, a Sidhu Jat, and an

 ancestor of this family, emigrated from Dehli some hundred

years ago, and founded, near Chunian in the Lahore district,
a village, to which he gave his own name. Thakar Singh
was a Rasaldar in the service of the famous Dina Beg Khan,
- Governor, first of the Jalandhar Doab, and then of the Panjab.
~ On the death of hismaster in 1758 he set up for himself, and
- contrived to possess himself of a large tract of country in the
. Gogaira and Gujaranwala distriets, In 1765 he joined Hari
Singh Bhangi and Jai Singh Kanhya in their expedition

- against Kasur, where he was killed by a musket-shot. His
~ eldest son Lakhmi Singh only survived him a year, and Jodh

~ Singh succeeded to the entire estate. Some time after this,

~ Jodh Singh quarrelled with Sardar Sobha Singh of Lahore and,

~ toavoid his enmity, went to Gujranwala, where Sardar Charat
" Singh made him Thanadar. He rebuilt the old village of

~ Rosa in the Chunmian Pargana, and founded a second in .

: Shekhopura, both of which arestill held in proprietary right
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by the family. On the death of Charat Singh, Sardar Sobha
~ Singh, who had claimed to be the heir of Thakar Singh, seized

~ half the Rosa estates, without any resistance on the part of
~ Jodh Singh, who retained his appointment at Gujaranwala

under Mahan Singh and Ranjit Singh; and in1799 he had

- the gratifieation of accompanying the latter to Lahore, when

the city was taken and the son of his old enemy made prisoner.
Jodh Bingh served under Ranjit Singh in the Kasur,
Pindi Bhatian and Jhang Campaigns ; in the last of which he
obtained for his bravery the jagir of Mohal and Draj in the
Jhang district. He was shortly afterwards severely wounded
- at the siege of Chandiot. In the second Kashmir expedition,
- at Rajaori, he was killed in a skirmish. His three sons,
 Bhagwan Singh, Megh Singh and Tegh Singh, had some time
' before this entered the Maharaja’s service, but the Kashmir
Campaign was the first in which Daya Singh had been engaged.
He was confirmed in his father's estates; but after the
Maharaja’s return to Lahore these were all resumed, and
others were granted worth about Rs. 10,000, subject to the
service of thirty horse; Bhagwan Singh receiving a separate
jagir. Megh Singh was killed at Mangli in 1821 when
serving under Sardar Hari Singh Nalwa. In 1832 Atar
Singh was made Adjutant in the Dhonkal Singh Brigade, and
afterwards in the Sher Singhwala, on its return from Kashmir,
In 1834 the jagir of Daya Singh was resumed with that of
his Chief, Sardar Atar Singh Kalianwala, who had incurred

~ the Maharaja’s displeasure by his refusal to proceed to Bannu,

He was, however, left four villages worth Rs. 3,000 ; but the

- family never recovered its former position. :

- Atar Singh accompanied Sardar Ajit Singh Sindhanwalia
- toKuly, in the Dasowala Dera, under Bahadar Singh, and

remained there through all the Lahore revolutions, in which

his General, Ajit Singh, perished. The Satlaj Campaign was

fatal to the family of Rosa; for in one day, at Firozshahar,




- Daya Singh, Diwan Bmgh and Mardan Elmgh were ki]lssﬂ.

~ Atar Singh was placed under the orders of Sardar Chatar

- Singh Atariwala when that Chief was sent as Governor to
Hazara ; and he joined him in rebellion in 1848, On crossing
- the Indus on his march from Peshawar, SBardar Chatar Singh

- made over Major G. Lawrence and family, whom he had

 taken prisoners, to Atar Singh for safe custody, with

- directions to convey them to Pothiar. Thither they were

escorted by Atar Singh, and subsequently to Mamhiala and

* Rawalpindi, where, after the battls of Gujrat, they were given
- up to the British authorities.  Atar Singh treated the
- prisoners with all kindness and consideration, and on the

annexation of the Panjab received a pension of Rs. 600 per
- annum. He died in 1870. His son Lahna Singh is nowat
~ the head of the family. The village of Rosa in the Sharakpur

~ Tahsil is held by the members, according to the ancestral
- shares. The present holders are Jawshir Singh, Kesar




R TakE'mghmin tho servios of the Bhangi Sardars of

~ Lahore, from whom he received a grant of the then deserted
ﬁlhgeuf Nodhpur. In 1794, when Nizamudin Khan drove
the Sikhs out of Kasur, Sukha Siogh became officer of twenty-
* eight horse under him, and was killed, in 1806, in battle’
" Sahib Singh his brother was killed about the same time in
- a quarrel with the zamindars of Bablair.

In 1822 Monsieur Allard came to the Panjab and
entered the service of the Maharaja. He was directed to
 raise a corps of Dragoons, and Kahan Singh Rosa was
~ appointed Jamadar on Rs. 30 a month underhim. The next
- year Kahan Singh was made Rasaldar in the same regiment,
* in which he remained for seven years. He did such good
‘gervice in 1820 on the frontier, that, at General Ventura's
recommendation, he was appointed Commandant in the Khas
Paltan, or Life Guards, on Rs. 1,000 a year; being Rs. 280
: -mh,mﬂthﬂ]ng:ruiﬂﬂmﬂ:,wmthﬂs.?ﬂﬂ He served with

:hi:ragnnant in Kulu, Mandi and elsewhere; and Maharaja
Sher Singh raised his cash allowance to Rs. 800, and gave
hnn,mu.dﬂrtmn to Bilandi, the village of Jodhpur and some
~ wells in Rampur worth Rs. 1,000 a year. Kahan Singh was

- peverely wounded in the breast by a musket-shot in the

attack on Raja Suchet Singh in March 1844 ; and Hira Singh,

" who was then Minister, made him a Colonel and raised his =

: “emoluments to Rs. 6,120.
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When Hira Singh was killed by the army, the Colonel,
- who was considered a protégé of the Raja, was turned out of
~ the regiment by his own men, and he then entered the force
of Sardar Sham Singh Atariwala. When the regiment was
- in frout of the enemy at Sobraon, the men, finding that they
- could not fight without their old Colonel, insisted upon his ¥
_returning to command them, which he did with distinguish-
ed gallantry throughout the battle. After Firozshahar he
- had been sent with a depntation from the Panchayats of the
- army to Raja Gulab Singh to implore him to join them
without delay. But the Raja had other designs. He pro-
fessed most earnestly to desire the success of the Sikhs;
‘he pretended to send large convoys of provisions to the
army ; while he waited to see whether British or Sikhs wonld
~ win, He longed with his whole heart for the destruction of
- the Jatter; and when he could no longer remain inactive, he
- moved from Jamu with the pretence of joining them. But
- at Shahdera, some three miles from Lahore, he waited for
~ the news of the great battle; and when it arrived he took
A pusuusinnnflmhﬂmandthepmnn of the Maharaja, and '
- then marched to Kasur as the friend and ally of the British
to receive, as the reward for being the most astute man of
~ his day, the kingdom of Kashmir, In 1846 Raja Lal Singh
. resumed the new jagirs of Kahan Singh; but, under the
- Regency, his pay was again raised to Rs. 2,880, at which it
stood when the War of 1848 broke out.
. At this time Kahan Singh was Colonel of the
* at Peshawar, and was one of the first to join the national
- party. He was a man of great bravery and an admirable
~ cavalry officer, and his influence with the army was great.
* Through the whole Campaign of 1848-49 he fought with the
gmteatgnﬂmtry:mdhunnﬂﬂarﬂnr.]’mahirﬂingh Nalwa
- were, perhaps, the most dashing officers among the Sikhs, g
 After Chilianwala a great Council of Chiefs was called, and -

"
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Kahan Singh proposed to attack the British camp by night
with the entire Sikh force. This was negatived by the other
Chiefs, and Kahan Singh then advocated an attack early on
the following morning. Sardar Chatar Singh opposed this,
and thought it better to march to Gujrat, and from thence to
Lahore ; and the Colonel then told him that the only reason
that he would not attack was that he was afraid. Swords
were out in a moment, but other Sardars interposed; and
Kahan Singh, calling Chatar Singh a bastard and a coward,
left the tent, followed by Jawahir Singh Nalwa, who alone had
supported him.

After annexation Kaban Singh lost his jagirs, but received
a cash pension of Rs. 600. His eldest son entered the Guide
Corps as a Jamadar, and was a young man of promise, but
died in 1856 of a fever contracted at Peshawar.

When the Mutinies of 1857 broke out Kahan Singh was
one of the first Chiefs selected by the Chief Commissioner
for service before Dehli. At this time he was in very bad
health, and the old wound which he had received in the days
of Hira Singh had re-opened ; but he was eager to distinguish
himself in fighting for the English, against whom he had once
fought so bravely. He started immediately for Dehli with
fifteen horse and eighteen foot, and joined the Guides, with
whom he served till the fall of the city. In a sally of the
enemy he received a severe wound in the shoulder, and
from the effects of this he never entirely recovered.
It was with his whole heart that Kahan Singh served in
1857. When disabled by his wound from actual fighting, he
employed himself in procuring information and on winning
over to the side of the English such of his countrymen
as were in the ranks of the enemy; and more than forty
of them he induced to desert. In 1858 the Government con-
ferred on him, in addition to his pension of Rs. 600, his old
village of Balandi, worth Rs. 720, for his life; Todapur, worth

sl -
-----
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" Re. 700, for his life and to descend for one generation ; and the
 estate of Maloki-Parem in perpetuity. He also received a
~ grant of the confiscated house of Mahbub Ali Khan at Dehli,
~ worth Rs, 4,000. q

~ Sardar Kahan Singh died in June 1864, leaving seven
~ sons. Hardit Singh took service in the 11th Bengal Lancers,
- and retired as Rasaldar in 1882 on a pension of Rs. 860

~ per annum, having served throughout the late Afghan War.
His death took place in 1887, under circumstances which

- warranted the belief that he had been murdered by some of

- his near relatives, though the offence could not be judicially

- proved. On the recommendation of the local authorities, _'

Government refused to recognize Hira Singh as Jagirdar in

- succession to his father. Tt was conferred npon the deceased’s
~ brother Bhola Singh, subject to a payment of Rs. 400 to each

of his half-brothers Hari Singh and Baisakha Singh. Bhola
Singh, the present head of the family, is a Jamadar in the

" 11th Bengal Lancers.




- Tej Singh, son ufKaramEmgh was for fauryanrn
Zﬂmlﬁnrmthem&tm:pufthﬂHmth Western Provinces
- Military Police. He did admirable service during the
;Hnﬂniu,mﬂmAprﬂlBﬁﬂmaemy wounded in a
ﬂght with the rebels in the Mirzapur jungle. In October
- 1861, when the new system of Peolice was introduced, Tej
Bmghmmadhm&;mharge. Hammtunlydm:mgmnhed
- for gallantry in the field, but was also a first-rate officer,
- respected and obeyed by his men. Though of the Rosa

- family, he is very distantly connected with the branches of it
_Jfapmm‘tadhyﬂuﬂn Singh and Atar Singh.

1 'On the death of Tej Singh in 1877, his jagir, valued at
~ Rs. 420 and Inam of Rs. 65 per annum, lapsed to Govern-

l_mni'- His son Jawala Singh is a Zaildar in the Lahore

- district.




| The little village of Maraka, situated a few miles below
~ Lahore on the Ravi, was founded by an ancestor of Gurdit
- Singh, whose descendants resided there for many gene-
~ rations. When Ahmad Shah Durani invaded the Panjab
~ for the third time in 1752, Bur Singh was Chaudri of
Maraka and the surrounding villages. But reports reached
~ Lahore that Maraka was little better than a mest of robbers,
~ and the monarch sent a force to destroy the village. The
work was well done. Maraka was burned to the ground;
men, women and children were put to the sword; and Bur
Singh and his son Jasa Singh, who were absent from the
~ village, were almost the only ones that escaped. Whether
~ the reputation of Bur Singh’s village was deserved or mot,
~ itis certain that after its destruction he joined a band of
- robbers, and in one of their marauding expeditions was
~ killed. Jasa Singh followed his father’s profession, and be-
* came of some importance at the head of an organized body
- of Horse. He obtained possession of Daska in the Sialkot
- Distriet, and took up his residence there. He was e
~ in constant conflicts with Sardar Charat Singh Sukarchkaia,
~ and with the residents of the neighbouring town of Emin-
'ahml. On one occasion the latter had assembled in
- force and, taking the town of Daska by surprise, carried of
"' nhrgeqmnhty of booty. Jasa Singh pursued them with
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" his horsemen and, after a severe fight, the booty was recovered ;

~ but the Chief fell mortally wounded. Hizs son Nadhan
- Singh was of a bold and enterprising disposition, and
acquired a large increase of territory. The surrounding
Chiefs, Mahan Singh of Gujaranwala, Sahib Singh of Gujrat,

~ Panjsb Singh of Sialkot and Jodh Singh of Wazirabad,

~ became jealous of his power, and were so continually engaged
- in hostilities with him that Nadhan Singh used to say that
- there was not a rood of ground in his territories on which

~ men and horses had not fallen.

In 1797, when Shah Zaman invaded the Panjab, one of
- the few Sikh Chiefs who welcomed him was Sardar Nadhan
~ Singh, who muech felt the need of a powerful ally. He met

the Kabul monarch on the banks of the Chanab, and was
most graciously received, being confirmed in all his estates,
- and appointed to keep open communications between Lahore

~ and Wazirabad. Soon after this Ranjit Singh, rising to

power, summoned Nadhan Singh to attend him, but the
high spirited Chief refused ; and it was not till 1810 that he,
- with two hundred and fifty horsemen consented to accompany
~ the Maharaja on his Multan expedition. At the close of the
- campaign, Nadhan Singh returned to Daska, contrary to the
~ orders of Ranjit Singh, who determined to punish the contu-
macious Chief. He laid siege to the fort of Daska, bringing

~ against it the great Bhangi gun, which was only used on im-

portant oceasions. After a month's siege Nadhan Singh was
- forced to surrender; and, on the promise of protection given to
~ him by the Maharaja through Baba Mulak Raj and Bedi
- Jamiat Singh, he came into camp, where, in violation of the
. promise, he was arrested and put in irons, The pnests were
~ very indignant at this breach of faith, and, it is said, sat
- Dharna on Ranjit Singh until he released Nadhan Singh, who
~ forthwith fled to Kashmir and took service with Ata Mahomed
". Khan. He was, however, soon recalled, and a great portion of

‘s -._.'lr' g
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~ his estate was restored to him, subject to the service of one
* hundred horsemen. In 1822, after the fall of Mankera, he re-
ceived the grant of Baharpur near Dera Ismail Khan, worth
Rs. 80,000 ; but this was shortly after restored to the Nawab,
and Nadhan Singh received in exchange a large jagir in
 Hagzara, where he remained for some time. After an engages
~ ment with Painda Khan, in which he was severely wounded,
~ he begged to be relieved of his troublesome charge, and was
~ accordingly, in 1824, placed under the orders of Prince
- Kharak Singh, and in 1827 was transferred to the Ghor-
~ charas on Ra. 1,700 per mensem. He remained in this
~ foree till 1845, when he retired to Maraka, where he died five
- He was generally known as Nadhan Singh Hatu or Atu,
~ and two derivations of the name are given. The first is, that '
- Hatu is derived from the Panjabi Haf, meaning * courage.’
The second derives Atu from the Panjabi Ath, eight, from a
tradition regarding a lady of the family who was so fortunate
as to secure eight husbands. But there does not appear any
good authority for the latter derivation.
Sardar Fateh Singh commenced his military careerin
- his father’s contingent, in which he remained till 1827, when 3
~ he was placed in the Ghorchara Kalan Regiment, and two
- yearslater inthe Dhani Brigade under Misar Sukhraj on Rs,
90 amonth. In 1835 he accompanied the Maharaja to
- Peshawar, when Dost Mahomed Khan was so cleverly out-
~ manceuvred by Ranjit Singh;and in 1840 he was sent, under
 Arjan Singh Rangar Nanglia, to Kulu, which was in a disturbed
~ state, He accompanied Imamudin Khan to Kashmir, and
- after the death of Raja Hira Singh was ordered to Rajauri and
Punch to put down an insurrection there, During the Satlaj
- Campaign, Fateh Singh remained under Sardar Gulab Singh
. Povindia to protect the Maharaja and the capital, and on
~ the restoration of peace he was appointed Commandant of




 the new corps, Suraj Mukhi In 1847 he accompanied
- Lientenant (the late Sir H. B.) Edwardes to Bannu, and
served throughout the Multan Campaign. He was engaged
with his corps at the battles of Kaneri and Badusam ; and at
both sieges of Multan his conduct and that of his men was
exceedingly good. In 1857 he was in command of the Police 2!
Battalion at Umballa, and did admirable service both there and
at Dehli. In 1862 he received his discharge, with a pension
of Rs, 250 and a grant of six hundred acres of waste-land at -f" 3
- Lakhuwal. He had, in addition, Rs. 300 of jagir at Maraka, __1;:-' -.
~ where he resided, as' well as proprietary rights in the village.
~ Sardar Fateh Singh died in 1875, His son Gurdit Singh
was first employed as Jamadar in the Suraj MukhionRs. 80
a month. He was successively promoted to the Subadarship =
~  and Adjutantey in the 5th Police Battalion on Rs. 150; but in
.~ 1862, at the time of the general Police reductions, he was
. discharged with a gratuity of Rs. 1,500. He again took
~ service in the Police, and is now an Inspector in the Mont- '
gomery district on a salary of Rs. 200 per mensem. His
father's life pension has, of course, ceased, and of the jagir one-
~ third has been resumed. Gurdit Singh's eldest son, Sher
~ Singh, served for some years in the Police as Deputy Inspec-
tor ; but has lately retired. The second son, Partab Singh, is
~ a candidate for military employment.
: Jodh Bingh, half brother of Fateh Singh, changed his
. religion from inability to pay a debt. He took from a mer-
~ chant at Rawalpindi a beautiful and valuable horse, the
. price of which he was unable to pay. He applied to his
~ father; but Nadhan Singh had no money to spare. At length,
~ seeing no way of paying for the horse which he could not
~ bring himself to give up, he rode off to Kabul, where he
. turned Mahomedan, and where he died in 1855 leaving one
- _son, Sardal Singh, who was for some years a Subadar in the
Frmhar Force, and has lately been pensioned.
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- ~ Kanhya Lal, the great-grandfather of Mota Singh, was
~ inthe service of Sardar Sobba Singh Kanhya, one of the three
- Bikh Chiefs who captured Lahore from the Mahomedan
- Governor. He was in a humble position, and gave up active
\ service after Ranjit Singh had obtained possession of the city,
~ and soon afterwards died. His son Lachman Das, findingno
. employment in the Panjab, retired to Kabul, where he set
 up as a schoolmaster; but three years before his death he
. returned to his native country, where, at Teja, he died of
. paralysis in 1820, His son Mulraj had died the preceding
~ Mota Singh entered the service of tha Maharaja in 1832,
. ond was placed in the battalion of Colonel Van Cortland,
.~ In 1837 he received a command in the Calcuttawala Batta-
* tion, but in 1842 was replaced under Colonel Van Cortlands,
 He was made Adjutant in 1844. After the Satlaj Campaign
e was transferred to the Suraj Mukhi Regiment ; and on the
~ outbreak of Multan he was Adjutant of that Corps, stationed
- at Dera Ismail Khan, He served throughout the war and at
~ the two sieges of Multan with credit; and on the annexation

- of the Panjab he was appointed Adjutant of the 7th Police
~ Battalion, which he assisted to raise and organize.

~ On the death of the brave Colonel Subhan Khan,
- Commanding the 1st Panjab Police Battalion, stationed at
N
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| Lahore, Mota Singh was appointed to succeed him. This
was in September 1857, before the fall of Dehli; and the :
loyalty and influence of Mota Singh must have been highly
- estimated, as he was thus selected to command the only Corps
- of armed native troops at the ecapital, while at the neigh-
bouring cantonment of Mian Mir there were four thousand
 disarmed and mutinous sepoys. Mota Singh performed his
difficult duties to the entire satisfaction of the authorities; and
his regiment guarded the jails, treasuries and civil offices, and I
preserved the peace in the city of Lahore. A detachment — =
from his Corps did good seryice in the disturbed district of
. The Military Police were broken up in 1861, and
the men of Mota Singh's force were transferred to the Civil
Constabulary. The services of the Commandant were accord-
ingly no longer required, and being an elderly man he wished
to retive from active employ, and took his discharge. :
: He received the Star of British India and the title of
~ Sardar Bahadar; and, by an order of the Supreme Government
. of the 26th December 1861, he was granted a life pension of
~ Rs. 3,000 per annum, inclusive of the allowance of the Order
of British India, together with a grant of six hundred acres
of waste land in the Lahore district. The proprietary right
of the land continues in perpetuity in his family.
Sardar Mota Singh died some years ago. His third son,
Sarab Dayal, now represents the family. The sons jointly
hold the land-grant on which the village of Motawala has
been founded. Their position is not a very prominent one in
the Qistrict
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SUCHET SINGH POVINDIA,

m:ﬂhth
; Karam Singh and his three brothers were among the
~ Bikhs who overran and took possession of the Jalandhar Doab
~ in the latter half of the eighteenth century. They secured an
. estate at Saranpur worth Rs. 8,000, which they held during
~their lifetime. All the brothers, with the exception of Karam
" Singh, died without issue, and in 1806, soon after Gulab
~ Singh had succeeded to the estate, Ranjit Singh conquered
~ the plain country of the Doab, and Gulab Singh retired to his
native village of Povind. He then entered Ranjit Singh’s
service, and received this village in jagir, with the rank of
Adjutant. He served with distinction under Misar Diwan
~ Chand at Nurpur and in Kashmir, and on the termination of
~ the latter campaign was made Commandant and received the
~ village of Sidhu in jagir. After the capture of Multan in 1818
~ be was promoted to the rank of Colonel; and did such good _
~ service the next year at Mankera, that he received the grant
. of Akbarpur, near Gogaira, worth Rs. 500, with an elephant
~ and valuable khilats. Gulab Singh was stationed at Peshawar
~ for some years, and fought in most of the battles against Ali
- Akbar Khan and Dost Mahomed Khan. In the first Peshawar
. Campaign he discovered a ford on the Indus, and led his
~ troops over in the van of the army, to Ranjit Singh’s great
- satasfaction.
In 1826 he received command of three infantry and two
~ cavalry regiments, with a troop of horse artillery; and the
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same year his son Ala Singh entered the service and was made
- Commandant under his father, with an independent jagir.
- In1839, when the regular army was first formed into brigades,
~ Gulab Singh was made General, and held his rank and brigade
throughout the following reign of Kharak Singh.
- In 1837 Gulab Singh was sent to Gujaranwala with
orders to confiscate the property of Sardar Hari Singh Nalwa,
~ who had been killed at Peshawar, and whose four sons were
Afighting about the succession. He drove Arjan Singh and
Panjab Singh out of their fortified house ; threatened to hang
the former, and took possession of all the property and estates.
Arjan Singh determined on revenge; and when Sher Singh
~ became king, and everyone had license to avenge his real or
- fancied wrongs, he attacked and burnt Povind, where Gulab
Singh resided. The General, fearing for his life, fled to
Jamu, where he remained for some time under the protection
of Raja Gulab Singh, till the Maharaja, by advice of Dhian
Singh, recalled him and placed him in command of the
contingent which was to support the British army during
the Kabul Campaign. He accompanied Colonel Lawrence to
Kabul ; and his services and knowledge of the country were
of considerable value. Raja Hira Singh, whose family had
always befriended Gulab Singh, gave him, on the death of
Maharaja Sher Singh, new jagirs to the value of Rs. 7,625 ; and
Colonel Ala Singh received new allowances, in jagirs and cash,
to the value of Rs. 2,000.

Gulab Singh took no part in the Satlaj Campaign, his
troops remaining in Lahore to protect the Maharaja ; and in
April 1847 he was, at the recommendation of the Resident,
appointed Governor of Peshawar and, being at this time the
. senior General, placed in command of all the troops at
_ thatstation. The elevation of Gulab Singh to this important

post was a great source of gratification to the Khalsa army,
for the brave old man was much loved and respected by the
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R : troops. He was created a Sardar; and in a Darbar held at
.~ Lahore on the 26th November 1847 received the honorary

~ insurrectionary movement was spreading more and more widely

~ victory of the British restored them toliberty.

spectively. The father and his sons are nw .;...,
Singh and Ala Singh died in 1854. The Ala Bmg

- three in number, do not hold either jagirs or pensions.

) on search being made the money wufunndmdp]amﬂm h
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title of Bahadar. Sardar Gulab Singh fulfilled the duties of
his new appointment with ability and judgment; and when
the Multan rebellion broke out he gave his most cordial
assistance to Major G. Lawrence, then in charge at Peshawar,
to preserve the peace of the district. For six months, while the

over the country, the influence of Gulab Singh and his son and
deputy, Colonel Ala SBingh, kept the excited Sikh soldiery to
their allegiance ; but when Sardar Chatar Singh approached
Peshawar the troops could no longer be restrained and broke
info open mutiny. Major Lawrence held his post till all was
hopelessly lost, and then retired to Kohat. Gulab Singh and
Ala Singh would have accompanied him, but the General was
too infirm to move quickly ; and it was finally decided that he
should retire to the fort of Shamirgarh, where he might =
make terms with the rebels. But this gallant officer refused 4

any terms that would compromise his honour. Both he and -
his son remained loyal ; and the Sikh army, finding that they
could not be seduced by bribes or terrified by threats, kept
them under restraint till the close of the campaign, when the

On the annexation of the Panjab, the whole of 8
Gulab Singh's personal jagirs, to the value of Rs. 17,500, we

~ confirmed to himfor life, as were those of his two sons, Algh

Singh and Lahna Singh, worth Rs. 3,000 and Rs. 1,050 res

In 1857 Hari Singh, a servant of the late Sardar, gave
information to Government that Rs. 55,000 would be ..-"
buried in a house which had belonged to Gulab Singh,
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" Treasury. Tt was olaimed by Nand Kaur, the widow of Gulab

~ Singh, and the widows of Lahna Singh, who obtained a decree

~ for the interest of the money in equal shares. This money
. afterwards passed to Kishan Singh, who squandered it. His

- son Suchet Singh lives in comparative obscurity at Povind,
~ Tabsil Kasur, Lahore. He served for a short time with the

" 11th Bengal Lancers. The family is at present of little local

‘importance.
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BARDAR INDAR SINGH OF TAHTAR.

~ Chur Singh, a Sindbu Jat and Chaudri of the village
" Tahtar near Lahore was the first of the family to adopt thae
" Sikh faith, about 1740. His grandson Lakha Singh joined
~ Sardar Charat Singh Sukarchakia as a sowar, and obtained
Ilaka Ranjitgarh in jagir; also four villages in the Gujarans
~ wala district. He, with his three brothers, fought for his
master in his long struggle with the Bhangi Misal. He alsa
ﬂiﬁﬁﬂgﬁiﬂhﬂd hjmsﬂlt ﬂgﬂi’ﬂﬂt Dhﬂﬂm Siﬂgh, hﬂttm" koWl
as Pritasha, who on Charat Singh's death, trusting to the
youth and weakness of his successor, attempted to seize tha
 chief powerin the Misal. Shamir Singh first came inta
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notice in a battle against the warlike Chatas, who had been

expelled from Ramnagar by Mahan Singh, and who nearly

defeated Ranjit Singh at Manchar in the vicinity of the city.
The Maharaja had a fancy that swords were more effective
than fire-arms, and directed his soldiers only to use the
former in the battle. Shamir Singh retained his musket, and
- at a critical time, when the Maharaja’s troops were wavering,
- ghot the leader of the Chatas dead. Shamir Singh was a
celebrated shot ; but he preferred the bow to the musket, and
‘in his hands the bow was a deadly weapon. In 1808, by
direction of the Maharaja, he built the fort of Govindgarh
‘at Amritsar. There had before been a fort on the same

~ spot, built by Sardar Gujar Singh Bhangi, but it was of

no great strength. Shamir Singh was appointed Thanadar
of the new fort, and held the post some years. He was
succeeded by Fakir Imamudin. He served in many cam-
paigns ; and at Kot Budhi Khan, during the war against the
Pathans of Kasur, was almost killed by a spearman of the
enemy, who rushed upon him from behind when he was
engaged with his favourite bow, which he did not find of
-much use at close quarters. In this Kasur Campaign, Lakha

3 -Singh was killed; and in the same year, too, were killed the

- two other brothers Am:r Smgh and Sahib Emgh the former

m 4;4‘- -[ the atter before -u 1nall n 18
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 who enjoyed a pension of Rs. 120, died in 1863. Several

members of the family took service in 1857 ; Rajindar Singh
a8 Dafadar in Hodson’s Horse, and Indar Singh his brother,
now Aide-de-Camp to the Lientenant-Governor, and Kamar
Singh and Malkya Singh entered the Guide Corps ; the former
as Jamadar and the latter as Dafadar. Bishan Singh, son
of Gurdit Singh, served with credit in China.

The most prominent living member of the family is
Sardar Indar Singh, Inspector of Police, who has acted as
Orderly officer to every Lieuntenant-Governor of the Province
since Sir John Lawrence's time. He holds the highest
testimonials from Lord Lawrence, Sir Robert Montgomery,
Sir Henry Davies, Sir Robert Fgerton, and Sir Charles
Aitchison. It may be noted that his grandfather Sahib

~ Singh was always about the person of Ranjit Singh in the

Maharaja's younger days, and instructed him in sword exer-
cise and horsemanship. He was present with the Maharaja
in most of his earlier campaigns. Indar Singh's father,
Sher Bingh, received the title of Ustad, or master, for
his proficiency as a swordsman, and was a respected official at
Ranjit Singh’s Court, also taking part in many expeditions on
the Bannu and Peshawar frontiers. On one occasion, before
Atock, he received a bad gun-shot wound in the thigh.

The younger members of the family continue to follow
soldiering as a profession, and many of them are now serving

- in Cavalry regiments. Sardar Indar Singh’s son Tej Singh

served as an Orderly to Sir West Ridgeway when recently
employed as Her Majesty’s Commissioner for the settlement
of the Afghan Boundary.®

® His pervicss in this eapacity are thor modestly described by his father: ** He

' guffered greatly from dust-storma en the river Hamon whkils piteling up tents of his

European officars dropped down by the gale. Cn Chashma while taking  pro-
. yisions for his Buoropean officers amidst the fulling snow, he, being oxposed to severs
- gold and, chilled to the bone, beenmo balf dead. With the dus care of his noble-minded
] .qupainuﬁunudlhmﬁnmpuhuhnmmﬁrﬂtnﬁhm“ For thess
i ~ and other services be was promoted to & Deputy Inspectorship of Police oo his retarn
~ to the Panjub.
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o Sardar Indar Singh's younger son Jalmeja Singh is a
- Jamadar in the 1st Panjab Cavalry. Indar Singh’s brother

- Rajindar Singh rendered valnable service at Lucknow
~ during the Mutiny, being present at the First Relief and
. taking part in many of the dangerous episodes of the

Campaign. He served also in Abyssinia, in the First Black
Mountain Expedition and in the Afghan War, dying shortly
after his return from Kabul in 1881. His family were
granted a special pension of Rs. 312 per annum in recognition
of the Sardar’s splendid services. One of his sons, Khushal

.I ~ Singh died while serving in the 10th Bengal Lancers.

Another son, Lal Singh, is a Dafadar in that Regiment. A

- brother, Dalip Singh, serves as Rasaldar in the Bahawalpur
~ Btate Cavalry, and was present throughout the late Afghan

Campaign. Karpal Singh, a cousin, is a Dafadar in the

Guide Corps. Three others of the family are serving with

~ the 19th Bengal Lancers, while many of the older members

~ are now at home enjoying pensions, well earned after years
of hard service all over India. They have managed to save
sufficient to make themselves comfortable; and the family
may be described as in flourishing circumstances. Sardar
Indar Singh owns six hundred bigasof land in Rakh Ladhar,

~ close to his village of Tahtar in the Lahore Talisil, granted to
~ himin1887. He has also a jagir in seven hundred higas of

~ the same Rakh, of which he purchased the ownership rights

~ from Government. He further owns seven hundred bigas
" in Tahtar over and above his ancestral share. This latter
~ consists of one-fourth of six hundred bigas in Tahtar, of a well

~ and garden at Sandah, Tabsil Lahore, and of one hundred
bigas at Balighari, Tahsil Shnrnkpur His three brothers

- own each a third share in six hundred bigas of the Ladhar

- . Rakh, separate from Indar Singh’s property.

Sardar Indar Singhis a Viceregal Darbari of the Lahore
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JHANDA SINGH PHILUWASIA.

i This Sindhu family does not require any particular notice.
. Amir Singh, a good soldier, was killed at Manchar, and his
~ brother Karam Singh at Daska in 1810. The four sons of
. Karam Singh served in the Orderlies and in Raja Hira Singh’s
".: ~ Brigade. Three of the family, Amir Singh, Dal Singh and
. Ganda Singh, joined the rebels at Peshawar in 1848, and
their jogirs were confiscated. The sons of Hari Singh, who
died in 1857-58 and whose jagir was maintained for his loy-
ﬂtym]ﬂiﬂ.huldl]aglrnummnnywurthﬂa 5{]{! though its
- value was reduced in the late Settlement to about Rs. 300 per
 apnum. Ganda Singh, the elder'son, died in 1874. Hisson
~ Bag Singh succeeded him in the jagirshare. The family hold
~ eighty-four ghumaos of land in Philuke, Gujaranwala, and
- sixty-seven ghumaos in Sajada and Rangilpur, Tahsil Lahore.
’.-';' ‘Bal Singh, grandson of Jhanda Singh, is the only member of
’Ehofmnlywhuhasmghtampbgmmt. He is serving in the
- Hong-Kong Police Force. e
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 Dayal Singh was the first of this branch of the Sidhm
 family to become a Sikh; and was killed in battle near Anand-
pur in 1698. His son Bhagwan Singh supported himself as

* much by plunder as by agriculture; and his grandson, Arbel =
* Bingh, having builta fort at Sidhu, and having collected

gome two hundred horsemen, contrived to make himself master
of forty surrounding villages. He had connected himself
. with several of the powerful neighbooring Chiefs, marrying
. ome son to a daughter of Sardar Gujar Singh of Lahore,
~ and another to a daughter of Sardar Sudh Singh Dodia;
go that he was not disturbed in his modest possessions.
~ His son Budh Singh, who succeeded him, was less for-
~ tunate, for Sardar Amir Singh of Sowrian, his kinsmam, =
' having invaded the estate and carried off a large quantity of
plunder, Budh Singh pursued him, and was killed in an am-
~ buscade laid by the enemy. Shortly afterwards Ranjit Singh
- seized most of the Sidhu territory, leaving in the possession e
. of Kahan Singh about fifteen villages subject to the service
~ of twenty-five sowars. He also made Kahan Singh Com-
~ mandaunt in a Cavalry Regiment, and gave Fateh Siogh a |
~ subordinate appointment. Fateh Singh was killed in the
~ Kangra Campaign in 1809 ; and his jagir was given to his
- brother Kahan Singh who, however, did notenjoy it long, as
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.~ he fell, with Jamiat Singh and other members of his fm“l}' 5
~ in the unsuccessful Kashmir expedition of 1814, -.
: Dewa Singh, who was an infant at the time of his father's
- death, received a grant of four villages, worth Rs. 3,000, for his'
~ maintenance, subject to the service of four sowars,andin *
1838 was placed in Prince Kharak Singh’s force. In 1848
~ he remained faithful to Government, and did good service
against the rebel Dhara Singh of Gogaira. His villages,
~  Bhudan, Bhatianwala, Dhar and Diloki, worth Rs. 2,500,
- were released to him for life on payment of two-fifths as
- pazarana; and on his death Bhudan and Bhatianwala were
~ maintained in perpetuity to his heirs on payment of one-third
nazarana. He died in 1882, His elder son Bishan Singh
lives at Budhanke in the Shakarpur Tahsil, Lahore. He and
. his brother lately petitioned that, as the value of the jagirs in
~ Budbanke and Bhatianwala bad fallen by reduction in the
. assessment to Rs. 593 per annum, they were entitled to
- have made up to them one thousand rupees as stipulated in
- the Sanad under which they were held. In their Sanad the
- revenue of the villages was stated to be Rs. 1,500, which they = =
- were to enjoy, subject to a nazarana deduction of one-third,
- It was however ruled that they must take according to the
~ actual jama of the villages, independently of fluctuations at
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4 About the year 1635, during the reign of the Emperor
~ Shah Jahan, Baba Haria Ram settled at Wazirabad, which
- hadlately been re-built by Wazir Khan, the Imperial Governor,
- who gave it his own name. Haria Ram served the Governor
~ for many years, and when his sons grew up to manhood
. abandoned worldly affairs and founded a sect of his own, still

' extant and known by tha name of Harmilapi.®
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~ baksh Singh Wazirabadia, the friend and ally of Sardar Charat !
Bmgh and Shiv Dayal, son of Kishan Kaur, entered the

- employ of the Sukarchakia Chief. The revenue arrangements
of the Sikhs were rude enough in these early days; and re-=
~ garding Shiv Dayal's management of the Sukarchakia jagirs =
_ there is nothing to record. When Ranjit Singh conquered the
3 "3 Dhani country, he made Shiv Dayal the manager, and gave T
. him an estate at Nurpur, subject to service. When anold
"~ man, he introduced his sons Shankar Das and Kanhya Lal
F: at Court, and retired to Wazirabad, where he died. The
- brothers were placed under Prince Kharak Singh; ShankarDas
-r for some time mansging his jagirs, while Kanhya Lal was
. made Tahsildar or Kardar of Sahiwal, part of the estate of the =
'_ Prince. When Diwan Moti Ram was' appointed Governor of -
©  Kashmir, Shankar Das was sent as head of the Financial
. Office under him; and during Moti Ram’s second tenure of
~ office Kanhya Lal occupied the same post as his brother had
. done during the first. .
"_. Shankar Das died in 1832, When the salt mines of Pind
~ Dadan Khan were made over to Raja Gulab Singh of Jamu,
~ Kanhya Lal was appointed manager under him and held the
‘,‘ post £ill 1834 ; and he and his eldest son Ratan Chand received
,: ~ a cashallowance of Rs. 2,000 from the salt revenue till annex-
-T. ‘_ ation. Ratan Chand was a Darbar Munshi from 1831 to 1849,
- He was, with his brother Thakar Das, in favour at Court,
3 and received jagirs which, in 1850, amounted to Rs. 10,302.
. He was, when quite a youth, appointed to the charge of the = =
. Maharaja’s Private Seal,® and held the office with its emo-
--"5. luments for several years. He was afterwards made Com.

-

_' ®The Senl of which Batan Chand had charee wus t.h!-huj-‘umllp-i -
- Both this and the large Seal were affived to most doonmaents, Thulup::g il
Ll wﬂﬁﬂmﬂnnmdtwprmtmlukhﬂnumm -presents
J"; mmnp,uddlw eent, on ﬂlnaw]n@ln:bﬂﬂmmm,. S -
"o a certaln proportion wns by the Governmant. Buida-lh.hnnhma
1; Seal was kept at diferent times by Ram Chand, nephew of Diwan Sawan
by Hursukh Hai (afterwards Gessral), by Batan Darhiwals and others,




~ mandant in the Ghorchara Khas, and Thakar Das took his
~ place fora short time as Keeper of the Seal. The latter, when -
k! -Hau Nahal Singh was in power, was appointed Managerof =
~ Dhani, Kalar Kahar and Rupowal on a salary of Rs. 4,320 per
.aonum. During the reign of Maharaja Sher Singh the
“brothers held varions offices at Lahore; and Ratan Chand
became a man of considerable influence. He was fined Rs,
- 40,000 by Pandit Jalain 1844 ; but this was remitted through '
ﬂm intercession of Bhai Ram Singh. He accompanied Raja
- Lal Bingh to Jamu in February 1845, and was with the party
; of Sardar Fateh Singh Man when that Chief, with Wazir
~ Bachna, was assassinated by Raja Gulab Singh at Jamn; and =
- he was himself detained for some days as a hostage for the
- eonduct of the army.
'_;, During 1848-49 the action of Ratan Chand was somewhat
~ doubtful, and his jagirs were resumed, with the exception of
\ two gardens, one at Labore and the other at Wazirabad, upon
- which he had expended much money. These were released
' in perpetuity ; and he also received a life pension of Rs. 3,600,
E ﬂ-ormd Sahai, his uncle, and Joti Ram and Gaoga Ram, his
~ cousins, received each a pension of Rs. 100, and Ganesh Das
: | . Rs.375. Thakar Das received a pension of Rs. 360. He died in °
- 1883leaving foursons. Karam Chand, the eldest, was for a shork
- period employed as a Munserim in the Peshawar Settlement, ;
- He now looks after the family property. His brother Kishan ;
Gﬂlﬂl 138 Naib-Tahsildar at Sialkot. The family jointly own
- one thousand and two hundred acres of Rakh Sardarpur, eight
_hundred and sixty acres in Haripur and thirty-three
xmaa in Wazirabad, all in the Gujaranwala district,
- yielding an annual income of about Rs. 3,000. Unfortunately
& dispute has arisen amongst them as to the terms of the:r
fttihar'ﬂ will; and a law-suit is now pending which threatens
' to swallow up the profits of the estate for some years to
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Nand Gopal, the youngest brother of Ratan Chand, was | k‘ltZ

taken into Government service as a Darbar Munshi in 1840, and
. in 1845 was made Paymaster of the Force of Sardar Kahan =
Bingh Koharis, brother-in-law of Raja Lal Singh, with the

service jagirs of Pathanwali, Thata and Chakmobarik, -worth

~ Rs. 2,520: He accompanied the force under Raja Sher Singh 3

Atariwala to Multan in 1848, and was believed to bave joined

- the rebels; but himself stated that his loyalty to his Govern-
~ ment caused him to be seized and imprisoned by Sher Singh,

~ and that he was only released thongh the influence of Diwan
 Hakim Rai, whose brother, Mutsadi Mal, his sister had married.
- It is certain that Nand Singh came in before the final battle
" of Gujrat, and his excuses were accepted. Since annexation

he has been in Government service, first as Kotwal at Gujaran-

" wala and Sialkot, then Tahsildar of Wazirabad and Moga

- successively. He was made Court Inspector of Police in 1861;
~ and at the present time is at. his home enjoying a well-earned

- pension after thirty-seven years’ active service. He owns

about four hundred and fifty acres of land in Wazirabad.

Ratan Chand died in 1857 leaving two sons, Manohar

Lal and Narinjan Das. They enjoy in perpetuity a mafi

grant of the value of Rs. 80 per annum, consisting of a garden -

" and well in the Lahore Tahsil, snd  they are joint ownersof &

" one hundred and ten ghumaos of land in Tahsil Wazirabad,

; * Gujaranwala. Manohar Lal is, in addition, sole proprietor of

one hundred and sixty-five ghumaos in Mauza Haripur,

Wazirabad. He took service in 1872 as Naib-Tahsildar, and
is now a Tahsildar in the Gujaranwala distriet. '
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 he Mari family is of the Shergil tribe, the origin of

~ which has been elsewhere related.®* By this tribe several
\ mﬂageﬁwarﬂ founded in the Lahore and Amritsar districts, and

among others, Malanwala, Dewa, Dewa Masur and Mari. At
. the first-named of these the family of Shamsher Singh resided
. till the Durani invasion, when, the village having been destroyed

by the Afghans, Mala Singh fled to Dewa Masur, which he
made his head-quarters, and from whenece he conducted
marauding expeditions till he fell in a skirmish with the

%i imperial troops, leaving two sons, Kaur Singh and Tara Singh,

~ the former of whom became a powerful Chief. He joined
~ the Bhangi Sardars Khushal Singh and Budh Singh

Faizulapuria, and took possession of territory in the Jalandhar

Doab and to the south of the Satlaj. Leaving his sons, Jodh

~* Bingh, Diwan Singh and Sulkha ﬂ"m_gh. to hold these estates,
- Kaur Singh returned to his ancestral village of Mari, half way

._‘ between Amritsar and Firozpur, where he built a mud fort,

_ *The Gils, who ba wd-%ﬁnpuﬂlnmhthdrmhinhbﬂth Lahors,
F, ﬂlm!-u? m".t:i;lmdh:htl H?urgil. E.el “mlnftu;qlﬂ:}E
e 3 os BOD WS s0n I. T I

ief, Prithipat ﬁ:ﬂ‘.klfﬁl, Jut woman, and, like Shargil expossd
~ sn infa hll:mm‘ﬂi,'ﬁmw;hhhhmﬂﬂhm'hm v
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LAHORE DISTRICT. :
traces of which still exist; and his name is perpetuated in the
~village, which is known as Mari Kaur Singhwala.

‘When Ranjit Singh seized the country south of Lahore,
the fort of Mari, then held by Mohar Singh, the youngest son
of Kaur Singh, was besieged by bim. Resistance was
useless; and Mohar Singh gave up the fort and territory,
obtaining favourable terms and large estates at Pirn Chak,
Bujbara, Samra and Manapur,

Sardar Kaur Singh died shortly after this, and the Cis-
Batlaj estates were seized by the Maharaja of Patiala, Bhag

~ Singh Ahluwalia and Jodh Singh Kalsia. The descendants of I'
- Jodh Singh, Sukha Singh and Diwan Singh are still resident

~ in the Ambala district, where they hold a few villages.

Mohar Singh with his brother Dal Singh held the
Jagir for some years exempt from service ; but it was, later,
made subject to one hundred horsemen. Mohar Singh served
in the Kashmir Campaign, in which he was wounded. He dis-
tinguished himself at the battle of Teri in 1823, after which he
was placed in command of five hundred cavalry. He was
. engaged under General Ventura in 1831 in annexing the posses-
- sions of the Bahawalpur Chief north of the Satlaj,* and the

 next year he died ; while half the estates in Sialkot, Dinanagar
and Kasur were continued to his son Isar Singh, There is
little to record of this Chief, who served with his contingent

‘ - at Kulu, Suket, Hazara and Peshawar, at which latter place 3 :

© he died in 1843, of fever.
' Shamsher Singh held the jagirs throughout the aﬂmmm—
tration of Hira Singh, Jawahir Singh and Lal Singh. He

* Soon sfter the desth of Buhawal Khan 1L inian,
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- rebelled with him. Although a very young man, he possessed i

abﬂxﬁynﬂmﬂmanﬂhmwhole]%wuﬂh Rs. 27,000,
‘were confiscated, and in 1850 a pension of Rs. 720 was
allowed him for life. To his younger brother Janmeja
B:mgh, who had married Tej Kaur, daughter of Sardar Chatar
ﬁmgh.&mla,ﬂmronnglaﬂy to whom Msaharaja Dalip

- Singh bad been betrothed, a life pension of Rs. 360 was
granted. In 1860 a rent-free holding was granted to Shamsher
- Singh worth Rs. 200. He also had proprietary rights in Mari

Kaur Singhwala and Kazi Chak. He has recently died,

r'. leaving two sons, neither of them of much standing.

Gujar Singh, Bhup Singh and Kesra Singh, sons of
Sardar Dal Singh, were cavalry officers under General

‘Avitabile. They are all dead; and the widows of Colonel

Bhup Bingh draw an allowance of Rs. 720 from Government.

_L‘
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This family originally came from Multan ; and several
members of it served the Imperial Government at Lahore
and elsewhere. Both Amir Chand, the father, and Ram Singh,
the grandfather, of Kahan Chand were servants of Sardar
Sahib Singh Veglia. The former, after the establishment of

command under Sardar Hari Singh Nalwa. He died at
Lahore in 1835, at a very advanced age.

- the Sikh monarchy, became a revenue officer under Misar
. Diwan Chand, on whose death he received a military

Kahan Chand entered Government service in 1323,'

. soon after the battle of Teri, as a Secretary. He became

known for honesty and ability, snd in 1830 received a

grant of two wells at Butals, and the village of Kala in

Sialkot, together worth Rs, 600 a year; and in 1834 hg-‘

obtained Mangat, worth Rs. 500. In this year Kahan Chand
was raised to the post of Murasala-Navis, or despatch writer,
This was an office requiring some talent, and would only be

~ given to a Munshi in whose honesty the fullest confidence
~ could be reposed. Thmmetmrmapnndenmmmndmtaﬂ,

'l
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under the direct orders of the Maharaja, by Fakir Azizudin,
and, later, associated with him were Bhai Ram Singh and
Bhai Govind Ram.
. The Dera Khas, or Body Guard, a regiment containing
E manynf the young Sikh Sardars and the pick of the Khalsa
- army, was first raised by Kahan Chand. He had neither the
- health nor knowledge necessary for its command, which was
- held by his brother Ganga Ram for a short time till the regi-
ment was placed under Raja Hira Singh. Kahan Chand was
. not oneof those affacted by the revolutions that followed the
. death of the great Maharaja. Ho held his offics and his emolu-
~ ments intact; and some Multan estates which had been granted
'l] to him at Nidhal were exchauged for others of equal value;
- Rs. 1,400 at Bankli, Lakra, Nangli Kalan and Nangli Gojran.
f'l After the Satlaj Campaign his Jalandhar estate, in the territory
~ ceded to the British Government, was lost, and in lien of it he
. received the estate of Kaka in Wazirabad, worth Rs. 3,000,
- On the annexation of the Panjab his jagirs were resumed, and
he received a pension of Rs. 1,200, which ceased at his death
in 1868.
His eldest son Hem Raj enjoyed an allowance of Rs. 360
. per annum from Maharaja Ranjit Singh, which under Sher
. Singh was increased to eleven rupees per diem. In 1841 he
. was appointed as a Darbar Munshi, and rose by degrees to
~ be Sanad Writer, Sherishtadar to the Darbar and head
Buﬂmw; Munshi. In 1849 his jagirs and cash allowances,
~ valued at Bs. 7,438 per annum, were resumed, and in lien a
- cash pension of Rs, Sﬁﬂmnﬂﬁw&d him for life. He resides
. in Lahore. ~
' The family is no longer of any importance, social or poli-
- tical. Most of the younger members are engaged in trade or
are petty office holders in various Government departments at

I ;. s ; '_ Ty - .. .- :F" " ‘n.-__‘: —
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: The family of Mahomed Shah is of Persian descent.
- Kamrudin was an officer in the army of Nadir Shah and
- accompanied that Chief to India, remaining behind as a
settler in the neighbourhood of Dehli when the invading
army retired. He afterwards went to live at Gango in
- Sabaranpur, where he died in 1764, Amirudin then left
- for Lucknow, where Suja Daunla was Nawab; and entered his
service, first as Thanadar and afterwards as a revenue collee-
tor. Failing to pay the Government demand he was thrown
~ into prison; and, though released after a short time, did not
~ obtain fresh employment till the occasion of Asafa Daula
in1775, He was murdered at Pabli by some Gujars in 1798;
- and his son Imam Shah, fearing the same fate, left for
- Lucknow, where he lived for some time with an old retired
- officer of Artillery, by name Bahadar Khan, who taught the
~ Iad all that he knew. As he could get no employment at
- the Court of Oudh, Imam Shah determined to seek his fortune
~ elsewhere. ~Hearing that Hindustanis were in request in
- Kabul he proceeded thither; but at Wazirabad in the Panjab
he met Sardar Jodh Singh, who easily induced him to enter his
service as Jamadar of Artillery. The next year the Sardar
3  died ; m&hmﬂhnhthmmmeﬂthoarmyufﬂnhm]n
_Mﬂmgh,md fought in many battles as Colonel of




Artillery. He served throughout the reign of Ranjit Singh
-and his snecessors, and was killed at Sobraon in 1846.

Mahomed Shah, hissecond son, was made a Commandant
of Artillery when eighteen years of age. He fought in the
Satlaj Campaign, and under the Darbar was successively
posted at Pind Dadan Khan, Hasan Abdal and Hazara,
In 1849, when the 5th Panjab Cavalry was first raised,
Mahomed Shah was appointed to it, and served in this
Regiment till 1859. On the Frontier be was known asa first-
rate officer both for bravery and intelligence, As senior
native officer of his squadron he served throughout the siege
and capture of Dehli, the relief and capture of Lucknow,
the capture of Bareily, and the actions of Bilandshabar,
Fatahgarh, Agra and Aligarh. He received the Order of
British India for his gallantry at Agra; where, seeing a
squadron of the Fifth in danger of being cut up by a shower
of grape, he galloped forward alone and cut down the artil-
leryman who was about to fire the gun. When Lieutenant
Younghusband was killed near Fatahgarh, Mahomed Shah
cut down the sepoy who had fired the fatal ball. By the
side of Major Sandford, who succeeded Lieutenant Young-
husband in command of the Squadron, Mahomed Shah fought
with conspicuous courage; and when that officer fell, he
protected his body, buried it decently, and built over it a
tomb. The most valued of the many testimonials received
by Mahomed Shah is a gold watch sent from England by
the relatives of Major Sandford, in acknowledgment of his
devotion.

In January 1859 Mahomed Shah was appointed Com-
mandant of the 3rd Oudh Military Police under Captain
(. Chamberlain. His services were specially asked for by
this officer, who knew his worth, his energy, and his thorough
knowledge of his Military duties. When the Military Police
were broken up in November 1859, he was made Commandant
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~ in the new Police, and held the post with credit till February
1861, when, on reductions being made in the force, he took

- Mahomed Shah received the title of Sardar Bahadar. h

~ He enjoyed a pension of Rs. 1,800 cash and a life jagir of

- Rs. 2,000 in the Baraich district. He was the authorof a
creditable work on cavalry tactics. He died in 1872, leaving

- two sons and three daughters. The management of the

- property was vested in the eldest son, Sardar Ali; but his

. affairs became involved shortly after his father’s death, and

- the interests of the other children suffered in consequence.
In 1882 he was appointed Tahsildar at Faizabad, Oudh, and
. was transferred four years later to the Jaunpur district as

- Inspector of Police. He died in 1888. His youngest

~ brother, Iftakbar Ali, is a Sub-Inspector of Police in Jaunpur,

- North-West Provinces. The jagir has passed to Aulad
Hasain, only son of Sardar Ali. One of Mahomed Shah’s
daughters married Sayad Abas Ali, Munsif of Amritsar.
Mahomed Shah’'s brother Hasain Shah was for some years a
Deputy Inspector of Police at Dehli. He died in 1881,

- leaving one son, Nawazish Ali, who is working in the Settle-

~ ment Department at Gurdaspur.

1

1.




' annexation of the Panjab transferred their services to the
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PANDIT PAREM NATH.
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Colonel Badri Nath was one of the Sikh officers who on the

British Government. His father was a native of Kashmir,
and emigrated to the Panjab at the beginning of the present
century. In 1821 Badri Nath entered the Maharaja’s army
as a private soldier, and gradually rose through all the grades
«of the service till, in 1835, he was made Colonel, which rank
he held till the Second Sikh War. He saw plenty of fighting
during these years, and was in the campsigns of Swat,
Peshawar, Hazara, Yusufzai, Bannu, Tira, and numerous
actions. For long he served on the frontier; six years in
charge of the forts of Dera Ismail Khan and Tank. He was
‘with Sardar Hari Singh Nalwa in 1833, when that Chief, in
the most masterly manner, won Peshawar from the Barak-
gais. In 1845 he was stationed in Hazara, under Diwan
Mulraj Dilwalwala, with the Katar Mukhi Regiment and some
Gurkhas. In 1846 he accompanied Major H. Lawrence to
Kashmir, where Shekh Imamudin . Khan was in ‘revolt,
and the next year went with Lieutenant Edwardes to
Bannu. He served throughout the siege of Multan with the
Katra Mukhi ; and after the close of the war retaned his
command till, on the introduction of the new Police, he took
his discharge. Colonel Badri Nath was known as a brave
and able officer, and the force under him was always in good
discipline, In 1857, the Fort of Multan, the Magazine
and the Treasury were entrusted to his Corps, and the
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Reg;mﬁnt-alm furnished detachments which fought against

~ the mutineers and insurgents with gallantry and credit. In

1861 the Government, in sanctioning his retirement, granted
- him a life pension of Rs. 600, inclusive of the allow-
~ ance attached to the Order -of British India, which he
~ obtained in 1857 in recognition of his loyalty and gallantry.
The allowances lapsed at his death in 1871.
HmananmNnihtmkmmmnclarkmﬂm‘
~ Ordnance Department. In 1872 he was appointed an
- Inspector of Post Offices, and is now Manager of the Dead
-Iﬂtharﬂﬂm,h]mm.annsdaryufﬂmﬁﬁﬂpﬁrm 3
=




THE PANJAB CHIEFS.

DIWAN RADHA EISHAN.

HATBAKHT MAL,

1
Jl;lu Nuoth  Danden Han lInuLl Ram
. 1867, n, 1873, =, 178,

El.nll.lmu Jlgllj!llh
-.mh’ I.]iﬁﬂ.
‘ Hals Faish Dhsnrad). Lakhmi Das
B 1884 =, 1581, n, 1581,
1
I -
Mahal Chand .i.mrt!hmd Ilﬂtém
. n 1873, u, 1574

The most distinguished of the Generals, by whose skill
and courage Ranjit Singh rose from a subordinate Chiefship
to the Empire of the Panjab, was Diwan Mohkam Chand.
 The sagacity with which the Maharaja selected his officers

- was the reason of his uniform suceess. Mohkam Chand was
-no goldier by birth; his father was a trader and, according
to Hindu custom, the son would have been a trader too, had
- he not, when quite young, been offered a post as Munshi by
Sardar Dal Singh Gil, of Akalgarh. He is said indeed to
have served with Mahan Singh, father of Ranjit Singh,
at the siege and capture of Rasulnagar, and to have gained
there his first military experience ; but this does not seem
true. He remained with Dal Singh till 1804, when that Chief
died, and his estates were seized by Ranjit Singh. Sahju, o
the widow of the Sardar, disliked Mohkam Chand and
- demanded his accounts, as, for many years, he had held the
. entire management of the Akalgarh property ; but the Diwan
~ didnot care to expose them to a close and unfriendly scrutiny,
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~ and left for Gujrat, where Sardar Sahib Singh Bhangi gave
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him employment. But with this Chief he soon quarrelled, and
in 1806 left Gujrat for Lahore, where Ranjit Singh, appreciat-
ing his talents, made him Chief of the army, much to the .
annoyance of the Sikh Sardars. The same year he led the
army across the Satlaj, and first seized Zira, which was for
some time defended by the widow of Sardar Mohar Singh
Nishanwala. He then reduced the possessions of Jagat
Singh Buria, Mukatsar and Kot Kapura, being aided by
a traitor in the camp, SBodhi Jawahir Singh, father of Gur
Gulab Singh of Manawar, then Dharmkot ; and he then
marched to Faridkot, from the Chief of which he obtained
tribute, on the way seizing Mari from Hari Singh and Arbel :
Singh, brothers-in-law of Tara Singh Ghaiba. In October
1806 he accompanied Ranjit Singh in his expedition against
Patiala, in alliance with Raja Bhag Singh of Jind, when
Ludhiana, Jhandiala, Badowal, Jagraon, Kot, Talwandi, -~
Saniwal and other districts were seized ; some being made
over to the Raja of Jind, some to Jaswant Singh of Nabha,
and the remainder in jagir to the Lahore Sardars Gurdit
Singh, Fateh Singh Ahluwalia and Mohkam Chand. =
In1807 Tara Singh Ghaiba died, and his large possessions
in the Jalandhar Doab were seized and divided between Gharba
Singh and Mohkam Chand. The latter, in the three years 1806,
1807, 1808, received in jagir portions of the Ilakas of Gila, Kot,
Jagraon, Talwandi, Dharmkot, Kot Kapura, Zira, Faridkot,
Saniwal, Jandbar, Bharampur, Dhari and Chandpur, compris-
ing two hundred and sixty-eight villages and worth Rs, 1,54,255
a year. He was also made Governor of the Jalandhar Doab ;
and at Philaor, on the right bank of the Satlaj, he built for the
Maharaja the fort which still commands the passage of the
river, on the site of an imperial sarai. The Rahon and
‘Nakodar country, worth Bs. 6,42,611, was also made over
to him in jagir, The British had in 1809 made Ludhiana a

+
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military cantonment ; and General Ochterlony, the Resident
stationed there, did not find Mohkam Chand a pleasant neigh-
bour, for he hated the English, who had made the Satlaj the
bound of his master's ambition. Early in 1810 he accompanied
Ranjit Singh to Multan, the attack npon which was unsuccess-
ful, and afterwards reduced the country held by Kahan Singh
Nakai. In 1811 he was sent against Bhimbar, and returned
to Lahore, having extracted Rs. 40,000 from the Rajput Chiefs
in the hills above Gujrat. Some of the Jalandhar Chiefs now
showing a disposition to rise, he returned to Philaor and
quickly restored order, much to the Maharaja's satisfaction,
who created him Diwan, bestowiog on him at the same time
valoable khilats. If was at this time that the Diwan annexed
the territories of Sardar Budh Singh Faizulapuria, valued at
upwards of three lakhs of rupees. For long the Maharaja
hiad desired his overthrow ; and his refusal to attend at Court
gave a colourable excuse for attacking him. His forts of
Jalandhar and Pati were reduced, and the Sardar fled to
Ludhiana for safety. Strangely enough, the two Chiefs who
brought their forces to aid the Diwan in this expedition were
Fateh Singh Ahluwalia and Jodh Singh Ramgarhia, although
they were said to have formed an alliance with Budh Singh
Taizulapuria to resist Ranjit Singh should he attack either of
them. But it was perhaps to postpone an attack on them-
selves, which they saw was imminent, that they joined the
Diwan in his attack on Jalandhar. They were now the only
independent Chiefs of importance between the Satlaj and the
Indus; and Mohkam Chand urged his master to abolish, ina
great measure, if not altogether, the feudal tenure, and to take
the whole country under his direct anthority. But the time
for so radical a change as this had not arrived.
In 1812 the Dhwan reduced Kulu: and was then des-
patched to Kashmir, ostensibly to explain away the hostile
movements of Prince Kharak Singh and Bhaiya Ram Singh,
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but in reality to spy out the land and ascertain whether it was

- ripe for conquest. But another man, whose ambition was not
~ less than that of Ranjit Singh, was preparing to attack Kashmir.
 This was Fateh Khan, the Minister of Shah Mahmud of Kabal,
who, seeing an alliance with the Sikhs was necessary to his

- success, invited the Maharsja to join forces and, with him,
 invade Kashmir. This was agreed to; and Diwan Mohkam
Chand and Fateh Khan marclied from Jhilam together. But
the Afghan had no intention of allowing the Sikhs any large
share either in the conquest or in its results, and had only =
~ carried on negotiations to secure the Maharaja's neutrality.
~ No sooner had the force reached the Pir Panjal, than he,
. ithout consulting Mohkam Chand, or informing him of his
intention, pressed on by double marches with his hardy =
mountain troops, while the Sikhs, never of much use in the =

: 3

" Dills, were unable to move owing to a heayy fall of snow.
’ The Diwan saw the design of Fateh Khan, but he was not
\ disconcerted. He promised tho Rajacri Chief a jagir of
~ Rs. 25,000 if he would show him a Pass by which he might =
"~ reach the valley at the same timeas Fateh Khan, whichhe
1.. I

contrived to do with a handful of troops under Jodh Singh
" Kalsia and Nahal Singh Atari. The Diwan was thus present b
_: ~ at the capture of Sher Garh and Hari Parbat and the reduc-
.~ tion of the valley, which was a work of no difficulty ; for i
" Ata Mahomed, the Governor, had fled, and little resistance was
offered. But his force was too weak to be of much assistance, L:_."
| and Fateh Khan declared that the Sikhs were not entitled & <
" io a third share of the plunder as had been agreed upon.
) Shah Shuja, the ex-Prince of Kabul, was made over to the
~ Diwan, who brought him to Lahore, where he was received with
every appearance of respect ; but Ranjit Singh, savage at his
 disappointment in Kashmir, and thinking hospitality to one in
~ misfortune superfluous, robbed him of the famous Koh-i-Nur
~ diamond and his other jewels, and detained him under surveil-
L
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lance till April 1815, when he made his escape. The Maharaja,
when he heard that Fateh Khan would not divide the spoil of
Kashmir, was very wroth and determined on revenge. He
opened negotiations with Jahandad Khan, brother of Ata
Mahomed, the late Governor of Kashmir, who held the fort of
Atock, which commanded the passage of the Indus, and
induced him to surrender it to a Sikh force. It was now
Fateh Khan's turn to be angry, and he demanded the restoration
of the fort ; but Ranjit Singh refused until he should receive
his share of the Kashmir plunder. The Wazir, in April 1813,
get out from Kashmir and invested Atock. Forces were
hurried up from Lahore, first under Karam Singh Chahal,
and then under Diwan Mohkam Chand. For long the armies
lay opposite each other ; the Sikhs suffering somewhat in the

~ froquent skirmishes and not liking to force on a general

engagement till the garrison of the fort had exhaunsted
its supplies and it was necessary to relieve it or abandon it
altogether. The Diwan then determined on fighting ; and at
Haidarn, a few miles from Atock, he drew up his force in order
of battle. The ball was opened by a brilliant cavalry charge
led by Dost Mahomed Khan, afterwards the celebrated ruler
of Kabul, which broke the Sikh line. One wing was thrown
into complete disorder and some guns captured. The Afghans,

thinking the victory won, dispersed to plunder, when the

Diwan led up his reserves in person and drove back the
enemy at all points with great loss. Fateh Khan had already
fled, believing Dozt Mahomed to be slain; and the Afghan
army, driven out of Khairabad, retired upon Kabul, from
whence the Wazir led an expedition against Hirat to
endeavour to recover the reputation he had lost before Atock.
The battle of Haidaru was fought on the 13th July 1813.

While Mohkam Chand was engaged on active service, his
son Moti Ram managed the Jalandhar Doab. His grandson

Ramdayal, though at the time only twenty-two years of age,
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 was already distinguished forability and bravery ; and in
May 1814, when the Maharaja determined to again invade
Kashmir, he was appointed to command one division of the
army. Against this expedition the Diwan remonstrated in vain.
He urged that the season was not propitious; that no supplies
had been collected on the road; that the Hill Rajas were
~ hostile; but when he saw that Ranjit Singh was determined
" totry hisfortune, he asked leave to accompany the army. But
Mohkam Chand was now very old, and his health was failing,
and the Maharaja desired him to remain at Lahore and -
. preserve order during his absence. The Bikh army was "
" massed at Sialkot, and from there marched to Rajaori, the
~ Raja of which place recommended that the force should be
- divided : one portion, under the Maharaja in person, marching
by way of Punch; the second, under Ramdayal, Dal Singh -
. Nabarnah, Jamadar Khushal Singh and other Sardsrs,
~ marching through the Bahramgala Pass. This advice was =
" unfortunately followed ; and Ramdayal with his division '
~ crossed the Pir Panjal and descended into the valley, where
Azim Khan with his whole force gave them battle. The
Sikhs fought well, hut they were outnumbered and driven
back with great loss. A repulse was, in their case, as dis- =
astrons as a total defeat: they had no reinforcements at
hand and no supplies. Bhaiya Ram Singh was sent by Ranjit
Singh to the assistance of the detachment; but he was a timid
man, and when he heard of Ramdayal’s repulse he halted for a
day or twoat Bahramgala and then retired. The Maharaja now
found that he must retreat himself, leaving Ramdayal to his
fate. The retreat soon became a flight. The hill tribes dis-
puted the passage of the army; and heavy rain came on, making
the road all but impracticable. But at length, with great
loss of men and officers, among the latter the brave Mit Singh
~ Padbania, the Maharaja fought his way out of the hills and
~ retired to Lahore. Although the disasters which had befallen
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~ the expedition were in a great measure owing to the rashness
and precipitancy of Ramdayal, yet he retrieved matters as far
as was possible. He held his own in the Kashmir valley
with such determination that Azim Khan was compelled to
come to terms, allowing him a safe conduct, and even admit-
ing, in a written document, the supremacy of Lahore.

Tn October of the same year Diwan Mohkam Chand died
at Philaor, to the grief of the Maharaja and the whole Sikh
nation. As & General he had been almost always successful ;
his administrative talents were as great as his military ones; and
in his death Ranjit Singh losthis mostloyal and devoted servant.
But there were other good men left in the family. Moti Ram
was created Diwan in his father's roam, and the Jalandhar
Doab was entrusted to him, with the charge of the fort at

Philaor. Ramdayal, with Dal Singh Naharna, was sent against

the Kharals of Gogaira, and to take tribute from Multan and
~ Bahawalpur; and the next year against Rajaori to punish

- the treachery of Raja Agar Khan during the expedition of
1814, Agar Khan tried to buy forgiveness; but Ramdayal

- would not listen to terms, and sacked and burnt both the

town of Rajaori and the palace of the Raja. The next year
he was sent northwards to watch the movements of Fateh

Khan, who had joined his brother Azim Khan in Kashmir,
returning to Kabul the next year. Hukman Singh Chimni-

_was at this time in charge of the Atock fort, and it was as
" much as Ramdayal and he could do to keep in order the

Mahomedans of Hazara and Yusufzai, who were instigated to %

revolt by Fateh Khan: and on one occasion Ramdayal was all
but defeated by them.

Tn the spring of 1819 the Maharajs, taking advantageof

the absence from Kashmir of the Governor, Azim Khan,

determined again to attempt its reduction. The leader of the : .- ..

Sikh army was Misar Diwan Chand, the conqueror of Multan,

while Ramdayal commanded the rear division. The latter -




~ was prevented from marchmghy thahmvyramanﬁhndnu
share in the fighting. Little resistance was, however, made.
Zabar Khan took to flight ; and the province of Kashmir was
annexed by Ranjit Singh to his dominions, Moti Ram being
appointed the first Governor. Ramdayal was then sent |
against the Raja of Punch; and when Bhai Makhan Singh Y
was killed in Hazara and Hukma Singh Chimni, the
Governor, recalled, he was sent there to restore order. This :- -
was no easy matter. The tribes had been thoroughly ex-
asperated by the conduct of Hukma Singh, and their
successes had given them confidence; and when Ramdayal
had penectrated as far as the fort of Gandgarh he was
surrounded by numbers of the ememy, the Afghans of
‘Miswari, Srikot, Torbela, Yusufzai and Swat, and compelled
to fight. Through the whole day, from sunrise to sunset, the

L‘.

..

=
" battle was fought against enormons odds by the Sikhs; and at K
- night, completely worn out, they retired to their entrench- -‘.'

ments. Last to leave the field was Ramdayal jand the enemy,
perceiving that he was separated from the main body of the \.
army, made a sudden dash and cat off and surrounded
his party. The Bikhs fought desperately, but in vain ; and ,-
Ramdayal was killed and all his escort. The Sikhs in dismay -
at the death of their General struck their camp and retreated
in all haste from Hazara. ¥
The death of Ramdayal was a great grief to his father, = =
who desired to give up the Kashmir government and retire to
. Banares. The Maharaja was not unwilling to permit the
Diwan’s resignation, and appointed as his successor Sardar
~ Hari Singh Nalwa, the most dashing soldier in the Khalsa
‘army, now that Ramdayal was dead. But the Kashmiris and
~ hill tribes could not endure the iyranny of the Sardar; and -
~ after one year Moti Ram was re-appointed Governor, and -
Mﬂthapmttﬂllﬁﬂﬁ.Ththwnnmnmmnfm‘
' F"I. ability and was liked by the people; but he was indolent
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~ and apathetic, and his administration was not marked by any e
" event of importance, except the advent of the cholera, which
" then visited Kashmir for the first time and decimated the P
population, While Moti Ram was in Kashmir, his son Karpa %
" Ram managed the Jalandhar Doab, and Shiv Dayal lived e
~ on his jagir in the Gujrat district. . Raja Dhian Singh was '
_ jealous of the wealth and power of the family, and persuaded
~ the Maharaja to grant the estate of Siba, near Philaor, to his
_ brother-in-law Ram Singh. Karpa Ram was so much
. irritated ot this slight that, when he was directed to join the
. Peshawarexpedition with his whole contingent, he only brought
. fifty horsemen, The Mabaraja was furious. He imprisoned
. Karpa Ram; recalled Moti Ram from Kashmir, and sent there,
"~ as the new Governor, Diwan Chuni Lal; while the fort of
" Philaor he made over to Fakir Azizudin, and later fo Sardar
Desa Singh Majithia. It wasnot for a year and a half that
 the family was again taken into favour, and then only on
 payment of a.heavy fine. Karpa Bam was now sent to
. Kashmir as Goyernor, superseding Chuni Lal. His admin-
 istration was tolerably successful. He was an extravagant
*  man and fond of display, but, at the same time, of a gentle
" Qdisposition, The Rambagh garden at Srinagar, in which
~ Mabaraja Gulab Singh's monument stands, was laid out by him,
" s were also many other gardens in the neighbourhood of the
. capital. In 1828 the valley suffered very much from earth-
~ quakes. Private and public buildings were destroyed, and the
. inhabitants forsook the towns for the greater security of the
* mountains. After the earthquakes came the cholera even
~ worse than in the days of Moti Ram. The cholera was
~ followed by the rebellion of the Raja of Muzafarabad ; but
" Karps Ram marched against him and completely defeated
" him. These were the only events of the administration. In
= B 1831 Karpa Ram again suffered from the enmity of Raja
. Dhian Singh. He had given protection to Raja Faiz Talab
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~ Kban of Bhimbar, whom both the Dogra brothers hated and 8
_*: wished to capture, while Karpa Ram resolutely refused to X
"~ givohimup. Dhian Singh accused Karpa Ram of contumacy e
: and embezzlement, and had so much influence with the T
-Maharaja that the Diwan was recalled from Kashmir and
again imprisoned ; while the Jalandhar Doab was taken from =
" Moti Ram and given to Misar Rup Lal, after Shekh Ghulam =
~ . Mohaiudin bad been tried in Hushiarpur and found wanting. P
At this time Moti Ram was absent at Simla, where hehad been
sont with Hari Singh Nalwa and Fakir Azizudin on a mission
Tt to the Governor-General. On his return he tried to make 4
- peace between Raja Dhian Singh and his son, who had been =
" released on payment of a nazarana of nine lakhs of rupees; but "
seeing this impracticable, and weary of public life, he retired
to Banares, where he died in 1839. Karpa Ram served in
©  Bannuin 1832, and then finding the enmity of Dhian Singh
. as greatas ever, while his influence at Court increased day by
day, he asked permission to join his father at Banares. The
permission was refused, and Karpa Ram determined to go
without it. He went on an assumed pilgrimage to Jawala
Mukhi: and from there, crossing the Satlaj into British terri-
tory, he journeyed to Banares, where he remained till his death
in 1842. He left no son of his own, but he had adopted =
Dhanraj, whom he left the sole agent of his still large jagirs,
worth four lakhs of rupees. ]
When Karpa Ram left the Panjab, his brother Shiv
Dayal, who had been appointed Governor of Gujrat, and his
sons, kept their appointments ; Kanhya Lal acting as Deputy =
~ to his father and Maya Lal holding an office at Court. The
~ Jatter accompanied Shekh Ghulam Mohiaudin to Kashmir as ~ ~
. Treasurer in 1841 ; but on his father’s death, three years later,
~ returned to Kunja, where he succeeded to the estate, worth.
 Rs.12,000. He did good service during the rebellion of

E ﬁlﬂﬁ, and has since the annexation of the Panjab acted as "':.'.

e
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" Thanadar of Jalandhar and Gujrat. In 1858 he was appoint-
- ed Tahsildar of Harapa in the Gogaira district, but did not
~ hold the appointment for any length of time. He resides at
Kmqn, and is not now in Government employ. Kanhya
- Lal filled the office of Kardar in several districts during
- Bikh role, His eldest son Radha Kishan was Thanadar of
.' - Peshawar until the re-organization of the Police, when he
. received his discharge.
= Dhanraj, the adopted son of Karpa Ram, was Colonel of
‘tIm 2nd Regiment of the old Sikh army at Peshawar. When
ﬁard&r Chatar Singh took the field, he was sent by Colonel
G-aorgu Lawrenca to prevent the Sardar passing the Indus.
~ He succeeded at the time, but subsequently his men deserted
. 'hnli he had to retrace his steps. After annexation he. was
- appointed Tahsildar at Peshawar, becoming ultimately an =
. Extra Assistant Commissioner. He rendered excellent
- service during the Mutiny, and was rewarded with the grant of :
',.,hlﬂha revenues of Kunja, worth Rs. 1,300. At the Imperial
~ Assemblage in 1877 he received the title of Honorary Assistant
' Commissioner. His death ocourred in 1880. Colonel Dhanraj
nﬂnpta& Radba Kishan, grand-nephew of Karpa Ram, his
. own adoptive father. The jagir, of course, lapsed; but as a
. B_peuial case, and in deference to the express wishes of the
- Lieutenant-Governor, the Viceroy permitted a departure
. 11.10 be made from the established principle, and granted a
pnrhun valued at one thousand rupees, to Radba Kishan,
~ He resides at Kuuja in Gujrat, and is a Sub-Registrar
.~ of the district. His name is mot on the list of Darbaris, t
.Hajnlml's son Hari Chand is a Munsif in the Huahiarpur L
__ﬂiatriot. %
" Regarding the other branch of the family, a few words
~ will be sufficient. Sobha Ram, brother of Mohkam Chand,
. - was for some years in the Maharaja’s service, and left to his
 three sons, Kishan Dayal, Dit Mal and Ganpat Rai, a mu.-,, '
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*': Shekh Mohaiudin to Kashmir, and remained in his serviceand
&aﬁﬂfhmﬁunlmamndmﬁhmfonhmymum
~ During the rebellion of 1848 the brothers served under
- Major Edwardes, and behaved well, and on the annexation o£
 the Punjab were taken into Government employ. Dit L{d
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L ﬂommmsmar He died without issue. L
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The two principal families in the Panjah Proper, lnghest
iu rank and possessing the widest influence, are the Ahluwalia s
d the Sindhanwalia. The possessions of the Ahluwﬂm
+“i.-.a are @hmost entirely situated in the Jalandhar Doah;

. whilst of all Sikh families, between the Bias and the Inﬁm,. ’
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L ~ related to this family was the great Maharaja himself; and it

~ was in a great measure owing to thei* connection with him
~ that the Sindhanwalia Sardars obtained so large a share of
~ wealth and power.

~ The Sindhanwalias are of the Jat Sansi tribe and, like
" most Jats, claim a Rajput origin, and state that their ancestor,

. a Bhati Rajput, by name Shal, came from Ujain to the
- Panjab, where he founded Sialkot. The Bhatis do not
~ appear, however, to have settled so far south as Ujain; and
~ the Shal alluded to is doubtless Raja Shal, or Salvahan,
- son of Raja Gaj of Jasalmir, who, after his father’s death in
~ battle with the King of Khorasan, came to the Panjab, where
. he destroyed Lahore and rebuilt the town of Sialkot,* which

~ place hemade his capital,

Salvahan introduced a mnew era, called the Shaka,

" according to some, in memorial of a victory which he gained

~ over Vikramaditya, near Sialkot. But Salvahan was not a
. contemporary of Vikramaditys, who never came to the Panjab
~ atall. The Shaka era was founded in the one hundred and
~ forty-sixth year of the era of Vikramaditya. .
Raja Salvahan had sixteen sons, all of whom became

" independent, and from whom many of the hill Princes have

. descended. The chief of them were Baland, Puran, Risalu,
Dharamgadh, Rupa and Sundar.
o The houses of Patiala, Nabha, Jind, Malod, Bhadaur,

B Paridkot, Kuithal and Atari have descouded from. the eldost: Iitl

: - son of Jaudhar, the fifth from Raja Salvahan or Shal; while

- * Binlkot is one of the most ancient towns jn the Panjab. It is said to bave
: been founded nbont #00 B.C. by Rajs Bhal,’ maternal orole of the Pand

gnod thers for many hoodred vears.
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°  the Sindhanwalias pretend that they and the Mahomedan
Bhatis have descended from the second son. -
The origin of the family name of Sansi is thus relatedby 1
the Sindhanwalias. Sohanda, sixth in descent from Jaudhar, -3

~ saw all his children die, one after another, within a few days e
~ of their birth. He accordingly consulted the Brahmans .
= and astrologers, who told him that he must give his next ,"
~  child to the first person who should come to the house after
its birth. In due timea son was born, and the first person 3
to stop at Sohanda’s house, after the event, was a beggar f
~ of the Sansi tribe; and to him, in spite of the mother’s
- entreaties, the new-born child was given. The old beggar -
~ would have preferred money or food; but he took the child =
‘away with him. However, by the next day he had had
quite enough of it, and brought it back to Sohanda, whoafter
" & second consultation with the Brahmans took the child, who
was from this adventure called Sansarpal or Sainhsarpal
(cherished-by-the-Sansi) ; and the name has belonged to the
family ever since. Another story states that the wife of
Sohanda was taken in labour at a considerable distance from
her home, and was compelled to fake refuge ina Sansi
- yillage, where she received every attention and remaimed
';I' till she had recovered. The son bora under these cireum-
" stances was celled Sansi. But, from a comparison of the & |
" Sindhanwalia genealogy with that of the Bhatis, it appears ==
- probable that Sans was the name of a son of Bhoni, fourth
" in descent from Jandhar, and that from Sansi the
' Sindhanwalias and the Sansis have a common descent. The
" Sansis are a thievish and degraded tribe; and the house of
* Sindhanwala, naturally feeling ashamed of its Sansi name,
" has invented a romantic story to account for it. But the
| relationship between the nobles and the beggars doesmot
13 ‘geem the less certain; and if the history of Maharaja e
: Qﬁl‘t Singh be attentively considered, it will appear that
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. much of his policy and many of his actions had the true Sausi -
' Raja Sansi, the present residence of the Sindhanwalias,
was founded about the year 1570 by Raja and Kirtu; and < (S
- Khokar, the great-grandson of Kirtu, settled in the Taran
. Taran waste, and founded there several villages. From
~ Wigah, grandson of Khokar, have descended, on one side
~ the family of Sindhanwala and, on the other, that of Ladwa.
. The grandson of Wigah, by name Takht Mal, received from
. the Emperor Alamgir a firman, still in possession of the
" family, making him Chaudhri, with power to collect revenue
" in the Ilaka of Yusufpur. This firman, however, is
" unattested, and may be a modern forgery. Bhara Mal, son
" of Takht Mal, seems to have been a Sikh of the unorthodox
~ sectcalled Sahaj Dhari ; and although he never took the pahal
" (initiatory rite), he wandered through the villages preaching
. the doctrines of Govind. His son Budha Singh, an orthodox
. Sikh, was celebrated as a beld and successful robber. In his
~ days cattle-lifting was as honourable a profession as it was
‘on the Seottish border three hundred years ago ; and Budha
" Singh, on his famous piebald mare Desi, was the terror of
' the surrounding country. He was wounded some forty times
by spear, matchlock or sword, and died at last in his bed, =
like an honest man, in the year 1718. His two sons Chanda
*  Singh and Nodh Singh were as enterprising and successful
" s their father. About the year 1730 they rebuilt the village
* of Sukar Chak, which had been founded some time previously
. by the Gil Jats, but had fallen into ruin, and, collecting round
" them a band of hard-riding Sikhs, seized several villages in :

ita neighbourhood, and even made marauding expeditions
across the Ravi into the Gujaranwala district. Nodh Singh =

" was killed in 1763 in o fight with the Afghans at Majiths,
where he had gone to celebrate his marriage in the family of
Gulab Singh Gil.




: Emaunﬂhnratﬂmgh who was only five years 01!.1 neb
 the time of his father's death, bammuavnrypuwerﬁﬂ&mﬂar,

~ and rose to the command of the Sukarchakia Misal. Uunder -

- him fought his cousin Didar Singh at Gujaranwala, Pind =

Dadan Khan and elsewhere. After Sardar Mahan Singh
‘had succeeded his father, and had taken Rasulnagar and
 Gujaranwala, Sardar Didar Singh obtained, as his share of
~ the spoil, Pind Sawskha, Dalot and Sindhanwala, wi:uuh
~ last village has given -its pame to the family. He was
" killed in a skirmish on the banks of the Chanab in 1784, a.nﬂ

‘his tomb is still to be seen in the village of Doulat Nagar. =

Sardar Amir Singh, with his brothers Gurbakhsh Singh
" and Ratan Singh, succeeded to all the estates of his father,
- and soon contrived to enlarge them. He continned to follow

" the fortunes of his cousins, the Sukarchakia Chiefs, and as
they, Mahan Singh and Ranjit Singh, rose to power he
geized with impunity Bal Sehchandar and other villages in

the neighbourhood of Raja Sansi. In 1803, however, Amir

Singh fell into deep disgrace at Court. The story is, that =

one morning, as Ranjit Singh came out of the Samam Burj

and was preparing to mount his horse, Amir Singh was

seen to unsling his gun, prime it and blow the match.

% Thehymdmmmﬂhmuiamhngthelﬂaoflns

" (hief, and Ranijit Singh, who believed the charge, dismissed

" him from Court. He took refuge with Baba EﬂJ:ithgh~

. Bedi of Una, at whose intercession, after some time, Ranjit -
- Singh again took him into favour, and placed him specially
under the protection and in the force of Sardar Fateh Smgh

t Kalianwala. =

: ". Amir Singh accompanied the Maharaja in the Kasur -ﬁ
_ Campaign of 1807, and in the expedition against the

Mahomedan tribes between the Chanab and the Indus in 1810.
'Inbhmaxpedrfmm Jaimal Singh, his second son, was killed
in a skirmish before Kila Khairabad. In 1809, when on the
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" doath of Raja Jai Singh of Jomu, Ranjit Singh seized that =

~ country, he made over to Amir Singh the Tlakas of Harnia,
 Naunar and Rata Abdal. Two years later Amir Singh

e

. introduced inio the Maharaja’s service his son Budh Singh,

: - who soon became a great favourite at Court,
RS The first independent command of Budh Singh was at
. Bahawalpur, whither he had been sent to enforce the payment
~ of the stipulated tribute, In 1821, with his father and
" brother Atar Singh, he captured the forts of Mojgarh and
. Jamgarh. Tor these services Amir Singh received Shakargarh
. in jogir, snd Budh Singh, Kalar and Nirali, worth about a
" lakh of rupees. Previous to this the family jagirs in Chach
- and Atock had been exchanged, at their request, for the
" Ilakas of Sarch Talwan, Khotar and Kathunangal, worth
~ Ras. 1,80,000.
g Sardar Budh Singh was after this sent to the Jamu
" hillsin command of two regiments of infautry and onme of
" cavalry, and afterwards reduced the Thainawala country.
'\ Hewas in command of a portion of the Sikh army at the
" pattle of Teri in 1823, Two battles were indeed fought at
~ Teri. The Maharaja commanded in person on the left bank
* of the Kabul river, and he defoated the Yusufzai fanatics,
" losing however, Phula Singh Akali and some good officers,
_ On the right bank of the river was the main body of the
 Sikh army commanded by Hari Singh Nalwa, Jamadar
" Khushal Singh, Sardsr Budh Singh and others, and the
~ opposing force of Afghans commanded by Mahomed Azim
Khan, who was defeated with loss, and died within the year
of chagrin.
£ In 1825 the Maharaja was in the Rambagh at Amritsar

i

:
—
4

dangerously ill. His life was despaired of, and he had become

e
1

B

- wholly unconscious. Sardar Budh Singh, who saw that on

~ into separate Chiefships, and supposing the Maharaja to be
| 1. i
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"*._ the death of Ranjit Singh the country would again be divided

!
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" atnight with a force to the fort of Govindgarh and demanded
~ admittance in the name of the Maharaja. The Jamadar of
~ the gate, Daya Bam, would not admit him without orders.
" Budh Singh accordingly went back, and induced by large
bribes the Keeper of the Seal to draw out an order for the
~ fort to be given up to him; and to this the seal was affixed. o
.~ Budh Singh returned to the fort; but the Jamadar was not
~ to be deceived. He would not look at the order, and declared
~ thatso late ab night he would not open the gatesto the
Mabaraja himself. The Sardar had to retire discomfited ;
. and in the morning Imamudin, the Kiladar, told the
- Maharaja, who had in some measure recovered, the whole
~ affair. The result was that Budh Singh was given the
" Peshawar command, and sent into the Yusufzai country
 against Khalifa Sayad Ahmad, a fanatic who was preaching
"~ ajahad, or holy war, against the Sikhs ; the Maharaja hoping
~ that he would leave his bones in the Yusufzai hills and never
. return to disturb him. !
-3 Budh Singh crossed the Kabul river in advance of the
*  main body and encamped at Akhora, where he threw up
 entrenchments ; but during the night he was attacked by
~the enemy, and only succeeded in beating them off with &
. loss of five hundred killed and wounded. Sardar Atar Singh
~ Sindhanwalia was present on this occasion and displayed much
" gallantry. The next day the Sikh army moved on nine miles to
- Jangirah, where it was joined by the Dogra Chiefs and the Atari
 Sardar with their troops, which, together with those of
Sardar Budh Singh, amounted to some ten thousand men
 with twelve guns. Their entrenchments were soon surround-
~ ed by the large but undisciplined army of the Sayad, com-.
* mosed of Kabulis, Yusufzais and Afghans. For somedays the
~ Bikhs remained in their entrenchments exposed to the inces-

. sant assaults of the enemy, till at length, the supplies and the
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" patience of Budh Singh being exhausted, he led hismen =
" against the enemy, and after a severe fight defeated them
-with great slaughter, The Sayad took refuge in the Yusufzai
¥ }nlh and it was two years before he recovered his strength
- sufficiently to again take the field. After this success Sardar
- Budh Singh returned to Lahore, where he was received with
~ all honour; but a few months later, at the close of 1827, he
; died of cholera. The Maharaja wrote a letter to his family
- expressing his grief at the Sardar’s death and his regret that
.~ so brave a man shounld have died in his bed lLike common
3 ~ mortals. Sardar Budh Singh was one of the bravest and
. most skilful of the Sikh Generals. At the time of his death
. there was a rumour that the Dogras had poisoned himj; but
" there is not the smallest foundation for the story.
Amir Singh died before his son in the same year; but all
 the jagirs, amonnting to upwards of six lakhs, were continued =
. to Sardars Atar Bingh, Lahna Singh, Wasawa Siogh and
~ Shamsher Singh. Atar Singh succeeded his brother in the
- Darbar; and his strength and conrage were so great that,
~ after the death of Sardar Hari Singh Nalwain 1837, he was
~ considered the champion of the Khalsaji. .
' In the same year Atar Singh was sentto Peshawar with
. his contingent, and Lahna Singh to Shabkadar. They did
. good service, and were engaged in constant warfare with the
. wild tribes in the neighbourhood. Atar Singh obtained the
. title, as long as complimentary, of Ujal didar, Nirmal budh,
" Bavdar ba wakar, Kasir-ul-iktadar, Sarwar-i-giroh-i-namdar,
 Ali tabai Shajau-daula, Sardar Atar Singh, Shamsher-i-
~ jumg, bahadar ; and Sardar Lahna Singh the title of Ujal
~ didar, Nirmal budh, Sardar ba wakar, Sardar Lahna Singh,
- Bindhawealia, bahadar. The jagirs and power of the family
~ continnally increased till the death i:-fMuhm;a Kharak Singh;
- when, though nominally in possession of seven lakhs of m*_‘
~ try, they really possessed between nine and ten. '
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" Atthis time Atar Singh was the head of the family, both =
. by age and ability; Lahna Singh was a man of energy, but =
" iiterate and debauched; Ajit Singh, his nephew, was brave =
~ enough, but headstrong and rash; whilst Shamsher Singh
- was averse to politics, and was absent at Peshawar with his
. troops. 2
s When Prince Nao Nahal Singh was killed, by accidentor
~ design, the same day that his father died, two claimants
. appeared for the vacant throne. The first was Rani Chand
Kaur, widow of Maharaja Kharak Singh; the second, Prince ol
Sher Singh, a reputed son of Maharaja Ranjit Singh, a brave
- soldier and possessing some influence with the army. The
" claims of Chand Kaur were supported by the Sindhanwalia -3
. party, including Bhai Ram Singh, Sardar Tej Singh and his
uncle Jamadar Khushal Singh. Sher Singh was favoured
by the Dogra party, at the head of which was Raja Ilihlml._J
Singh and his brothers Rajas Gulab Singh and Suchet
Singh, with Misar (afterwards Raja) Lal Singh and others.
Between the Sindhanwalia and the Dogra parties the greatest y
enmity existed. Both had possessed great power and ine
fluence during the latter years of Ranjit’s reign, and each
looked with jealousy and suspicion upon its rival. But the
ambition of the Sindhanwalias had been united with attach- e
ment to the reigning family and devotion to the State; that |
of the Dogra brothers had ever been selfish. There are *
. no characters in history more repulsive than Rajas
~ Gulab Singh and Dhian Singh. Their splendid talents and
their undoubted bravery count as nothing in the presence of
their atrocious cruelty, their avarice, their treachery and ~
~ their unserupulous ambition. Tr
At the time of Prince Nao Nashal Singh's death, Atar
‘ was at Hardwar, and Lahna Singh and Ajit Singhan
Kulu. On the news reaching them, Atar Singh and Ajit
. Singh both hastened to Lahore. o
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~ Rani Sahib Kaur, widow of Prince Nao Nahal Singh, was
3 \f ‘pregnant at the time of her husband’s death ; and Raja Dhian
 Singh, seeing that, in the temper of the Sikh people, it would
. be well to wait, agreed that Sher Singh should retire to his
" estates, leaving his son Partab Singh in the Darbar,
. professedly for eight months, till it was seen whether a son
~ would be born to Sahib Kaur or to any other of the Ranis;
~ in reality till he, Dhian Singh, should gain over the troops
" to the side of Sher Singh.
. Early in January, Sher Singh, hearing that the army
. was well disposed towards him, and hoping to gain Labore
. without the aid of Dhian Singh, whom he both hated and
~ feared, appeared with his troops before the city. Raja Gulab
. Singh, however, determined that Sher Singh should not
" succeed without his brother’s aid, joined the Sindhanwalias
" and prepared to defend the fort. The history of the siege of
" Lahore is too well known to be repeated here. For seven
 days the garrison held out bravely against the whole Sikh
W - ﬂ_ _army, which lost in the assault a great number of men ; and
it was not till Raja Dhian Singh returned from Jamn that
© negotiations were opened, by which Sher Singh ascended the
. throne, and Rani Chand Kaur resigned her claim. Gulab
~ Singh, laughing in his sleeve at the success of his and his
~ brother's plans, marched off to Jamu amidst the curses of
" the Sikh army, carrying with him a great part of the treasure,
8 principally jewels, which Maharaja Ranjit Singh had stored
. in the fort, and which plunder, five years later, helped to
{4 _ Bardar Atar Singh then went as an agent of Rani
" Chand Kaur to the Governor-General's Agent at Ludhiana
- totryand induce him to support their party, but he was not
~ successful; and Ajit Singh then tried his persuasive powers !
~ with equally bad success. He then travelled to Calcutta, but
was not able to obtain audience of the Governor-General.




AMRITSAR DISTRICT.

. The object of their absence was well understood at Lahore;
~ and Sher Singh confiscated all the jagirs of the family, with =
the exception of those of Sardar Shamsher Singh, who had
not joined in the intrigues of his relatives. He sent Budh ”.' '
Singh Mahra, and Hukam Singh Malwai to Kulu, where s
Lahna Singh was in command, to bring him to Labore with =
his nephew Kahar Singh; and on their arrival threw them
into prison. The other members of the family, except Sham-
sher Singh, then crossed the Satlaj and took refuge at
Thanesar, in British territories. But the exile of the Sind-
hanwalias occasioned Maharaja Sher Singh as much anxiety
as their presence. They carried on their intrigues at Lahore;
and the army, which they had often led to battle, murmured
at the severity with which they were treated. Sher Singh \
was accordingly ready to listen to the sinister advice of Bhai
Ram Sipgh, who urged their recall; and in October 1842
' Sardars Ajit Singh and Lahna Singh, who had been some
. time hefore released from confinement, returned to Lahore,
and all their jagirs were restored to them. Atar Singh re-
mained at Una in the Hushiarpnr distriet, in sanctuary with
Bedi Bikrama Singh, He had no faith in Maharaja Sher Singh
or in the Jamu Rajas. Nor, to tell the truth, was it any love
= for these latter that induced Ajit Singh and Lahna Singh to
. return. They had, doubtless, a longing for their fat jagirs ; but =
:’: - thayhaﬂhmrdofthﬂmurdﬂrnfﬂaniﬂhnndﬂam', the head of
~ their party and the reputed mistress of Ajit Singh, by Sher
Singh and Dhian Singh; they heard that Rani Sahib Kaur
had been delivered of a still-born son, and the Lahore bazars
were whispering that it was not the interest of Sher Singh =
and Dhian Singh that the child should be born alive. B -
All at first went on smoothly. Vainly did Dhian Singh
try to persuade the Sindhanwalias that his interest had pro-
_cured their recall; they knew his hatred for them, and deter-
~ minoed upon his fall. The plot of the Sindhanwalias was a
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. bold one. They were for no half measures. Maharaja Sher

_ Singh and his Minister Dhian Singh were to fall together;
" and the Sindhanwalias, having gratified their revenge, would
" wield the whole power of the State as guardians of the young
Dalip Singh. Raja Dhian Singh had also a policy which
" was no less energetic. He desired to destroy Sher Singhand
. the Sindhanwalias, and secure for himself the Regency and,
_ _in the event of any accident happening Dalip Singh, a pro-
~ bable throne for his son Hira Singh.
 The Sindhanwalias persuaded the Maharaja that Dhian
~ Singh had determined to destroy him, and that his safety
* could only be secured by the death of the Minister; that
" they, the Sindhanwalins, his relations and friends, were the
< :; only persons bhe could trust, and that they were ready to
~ make away with the obnoxious Minister. Sher Singh believed
. this story, which was one half true, and signed a paper ex-
~ onerating them from the guilt of Dhian Singh’s murder, and
- arranged the manner of its execution. Some days later, Ajit
' Singh and Lahoa Singh were to parade their troops before
" the Maharaja for inspection, when Dhian Singh was to be
 directed to examine them, and the Sidhanwalias were to take
: this opportunity of putting him to death. The same night
~ that this arrangement was made with the Maharaja, Lalina
~ Singh and Ajit Singh paid a visit to Raja Dhisn Singh. They
" %old him that Sher Singh had determined, first on his destruc-
 tion, and then on theirs, and called on him to assist in his
~ overthrow. When Dhian Singh saw the paper that Sher Singh
~ had signed, he agreed to the Sindhanwalias’ proposal ; and it .
. ywas arranged between them that on the day of the inspection »
_ the vietim to fall should be the Prince and not the Minister.
4 Tt thus appears that the Sindhanwalias were the origin-. -
ators of the conspiracy against Sher Singh. They themselves ¥
* assert that Dhian Singh visited Ajit Singh and Lahna Singh 71
' and, telling them that the Maharsja had determined todestray  J

Bl
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* them, urged them to join in a plot against his life. Bub this
story is in no way probable. Sher Singh desired to conciliate T
the Sindhanwalias not to destroy them. He had but recently
restored their jagirs and honours, and he locked to them, and e
to them alone, as his defence against the Jamu Rajas, Dbian
Singh and Gulab Singh, whom he feared as much as he bated.
The Sindhanwalins knew this well, and they would never
have believed that the Mabaraja was plotting against them.

The 15th September 1843, the day for the inspection of
. the Sindhsnwalia troops, at length arrived. The Maharaja
 had gone to spend the day at a summer-house at Shah
Balawal, half-way between Lahore and Shalamar, and thither =
Sardars Ajit Singh and Lahna Singh proceeded. They en-
tered the presence fully armed; but this was not unusual.
Sher Binghminthemnal]mﬂmuf the house with but one
or two attendants, and Diwan Dina Nath was reading State e
papers aloud to him. Ajit Singh paid his respects and, coming
_ forward, presented for the Maharaja's inspection a double-
barrelled gun which, he said, he had just purchased. Sher 158
Singh, who was fond of fire-arms, stretched out his hand to take
it, when Ajit Singh, who had kept the muzzle directed to-
wards the Prince, fired both barrels, which had been loaded
with a double charge, full in his breast. :
The Maharaja had only time to cry “Ikys dagha hai?”
{(What treachery is this ?), when he fell back and expired. '
His attendants attacked the assassins; but they were few in
number and were soon overpowered. Sardar Budh Singh
" Mokerian was killed on the spot, his cousir: severely wound- =
1 _ ed, and several others were cut down by the Sindhanwalias.
 Not far from Shah Balawal wis the garden of Sardar -
Jawala Singh Padhania. Here Prince Partab Singh, eldest
~ son of the Maharaja, a handsome and intelligent boy, was =
< orming his devotions and distributing alms to Brahmans;

e
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~ for it was the first day of Asoj, and the monthly festival of




 gates were shut. s

~ ter what arrangements he intended to make. He answered

g0 THE PANJAB CHIEFS.
" Shakrand. To this garden Lahna Singh hurried with some

troops. The Prince saw him approach with a drawn sword, - é
and eried out “ Babaji, I will remain your servant” (fumhara L
naukar main rahunga). Lahna Singh answered, * Your i
father is killed,” and ran the boy through with his sword. -
At the same time were killed Atar Singh Parohit, in attend-
ance on the Prince, and several Brahmans.® R~

+ While this tragedy was being enacted in Jawala Singh’'s
garden, Ajit Singh had cut off the Maharaja’s head and, =

- mounting his horse, had galloped off towards Lahore with i
. three hundred followers. At the spot where is now the e

Badami Bagh, he met Raja Dhisn Singh riding slowly towards

~ Bhah Balawal with Fateh Khan Tawana and a few attendants. e
- He told the Raja that all had gone off well, and requested
- him to ride back with him to Lahore. The Raja may have =

~ had suspicions, but it was useless then to show them; so he :rt:i'
* turned his horse’s head towards the city. By the Roshnai
gate they entered the city, and on passing into the fort the ﬁ*

As they rode up the ascent Ajit Singh asked the Minis-

“ Dalip Singh shall be Maharaja, I Wazir, and the Sindhan-
walias shall enjoy power.” Again Ajit Singh asked the
question ; but the same answer was returned. In his extremity
Dbian Singh would not promise the Wazarat to one of the
hated Sindhanwalias. But he now saw from Ajit Singh's
demeanour that his death was determined on, and he turned
to address the Sardar, who cried out,  Youn are the murderer
of the Rani Sahib,” and fired at the Raja with his
pistol. The attendants of Ajit Singh then cut him down
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. with their swords, and threw his body into the pit of the gun

~ foundry in the fort. Ahmad Khen Ghaiba, who was in
E attendance on Dhian Singh, was killed with him. Lahna
~ Singh soon afterwards arrived, and the Sardars then wrote to
Raja Suchet Singh the brother and Raja Hira Singh the son

of the murdered Minister, requesting their presence at a
consultation in the fort. The Rajas, however, were not to
" be entrapped, and soon the news of the murder got ‘abroad.
Raja Hira Singh, who has been himself acensed of conspiracy
against his father’s life, now determined to avenge his death,
'E“-:_. and addressed the troops and, by extravagant promises, gained

‘"| them over to his side ; and by evening the army of forty

T

thousand men had surrounded the fort which the Sindhan-
. walias had determined to defend to the last. These Chiefs
 had proclaimed Dalip Singh King, and Lahna Singh Wazir;
" but they felt that their chance was lost, and but feebly
defended the fort against the first attack of Hira Singh.
- When, however, the walls had been breached, and the enemy
. advanced to the assault, the Sindhanwalias fought with
~ desperation ; but they had but a few hundred men, and the
- works were carried, though with great loss. Ajit Singh
_ tried to escape by letting himself over the walls by a rope;
" but he was seen by a soldier and, in spite of his lavish
-I ~ promises of reward if his life was spared, was shot dead.
. His head was cut off and taken to Hira Singh, who ordered
~ his body to be quartered and exposed in different parts of the
~ city. The soldier who slew him was made a Subadar. Lahna
~ Singh, whose thigh had been broken by a shot from a
J Zambura early in the day, was discovered hiding in a vault,
udmalm ruthlessly murdered. Dalip Singh was then
-:.,J oclaimed King, and Hira Singh Wazir. Thus ended the
._-? redy.
- hpﬂm&ngh,mohtamlngpamr, confiscated all the
v . agirs of the Sindhanwalia family except those of Sardar
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Shamsher Singh, who was at Peshawar and had not joined e
in the conspiracy. He destroyed Raja Sansi, the family seat, :
ploughed up the ground on which their palace had stood, and
hunted down all their friends and adherents. The surviving >
members of the family, with Sardar Atar Singh, fled across
the Satlaj. It does not appear that Atar Singh was aware
of the lengths to which his brother and nephew were prepared
- to go; yet Hira Singh believed him to be privy to the whole
. conspiracy and determined on hiz destruetion. With this
~ object, he forged letters from many of the Chiefs and leaders
" of thearmy and sent them to Atar Singh, urging him to
return tothe Panjab, where he might recover his influence
- and destroy the Wazir. Healsosent forged letters to Baba
~ Bir Singh, a Gurn much respected by the Sikhs, begging him to
~ use his influence to induce the Sardar to return. The Princes
Kashmira Singh and Pashora Singh were with Baba Bir
Singh at this time, and Hira Singh hoped to destroy his
three enemies atone blow. Both Atar Singh and the Baba
were deceived ; and the former crossed the Satlaj with his
followers, and joined the camp of the Baba. The Sikh army
would not hear of attacking the holy Gury, and Hira Singh
_ had to use still further deceit. He assured the troops that . S8
"Atar Singh had allied himself with the British, who were
even now ready to eross the Satlaj and seize the Panjab. P
That if the army marched against him he would probably
return to the Cis-Satlaj States without offering any resistance. =
The troops, thus cajoled, marched from Lahore, and all turned
out as Hira Singh bad hoped. By trickery a tumult was
excited, and before the Sikh soldiers knew what they were
about they were engaged in a regular fight with the Sindhan-
walia force: the camp of the Baba was stormed, and he 3

killed by a cannon-shot in the action. Kashmira Singh >
killed, fighting gallantly, and Atar Singh was shot by Sardar
Gulab Singh Caleuttia. His death took place in May 1844
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Seven months later, Hira Singh himself was assassinated,
and Sardar Jawahir Singh, the drunken brother of Rani
Jindan, who succeeded him as Wazir, recalled the Sindhan-
walias from exile and promised to restore all their jagirs.
In March 1845 they received out of the old estate jagirs
to the value of Re. 1,76,000. Sardar Shamsher Singh was
recalled from Peshawar and placed in command of a brigade
of regular troops, which he commanded throughout the Satlaj
Campaign of 1845-46, He was appointed a Member of the
 Council of Regency in December 1846. In February 1848
~ the Resident at Lahore deputed Shamsher Singh to the
~ districts about Amritsar known as the Manjha, placing under
- him the civil and military establishments, This tract of
~ country was infested by robbers, chiefly disbanded soldiers;
~ and the Sardar, acting with considerable energy, restored
*  toit some degree of quiet. Previous to this he had served
for a short time at Bannu with Lieutenant Edwardes, in
- command of the Mariwala and Mokal levies. When Diwan
. Mulraj of Multan tendered his resignation, the post of Nazim,
~ or Governor, was offered to Shamsber Singh. He did not,
. however, seem willing to accept it, and it was finally given
.~ to Sardar Kahan Singh Man. Shamsher Singh wes on the
~ outbreak of the rebellion sent down to Multan in command of
one division of the Sikh army. He warned Major Edwardes
~ of the disaffected state of the troops, and did his best to keep
~ them faithful. Their mutiny at length took him by surprise ;
and he was carried off by Raja Sher SBingh Atariwala into
~ Multan, where before the whole Darbar he refused to join
- the rebel cause, and declared that he only owed obedience to
thn Maharaja. The next morning, the 15th September 1848,
s succeeded in making his escape on foot from Sher
- Bingh’s camp, leaving behind him all his tents and
. elephants. On the road he was intercepted by two of the
) aﬁﬂl,huthaahotnnu,nndthenthar took to flight. After




~  his return from Multan he rendered good assistance to

" @eneral Wheeler, in furnishing information of the movements

~ of Ram Singh, son of Bhama, Wazir of Nurpur, who was
'~ in open rebellion.

.~ After annexation the personal jagirs of Sardar

. Shamsher Singh, amounting to Rs. 40,250 per annum,

were upheld for life; one quarter descending to his male

~ issue in perpetuity. His service jagir of Rs. 30,250 was

~ resumed. In1857, during the Mutiny, Shamsher Singh raised

~ atroop of one hundred and twenty-five horsemen, which formed

b pﬂt of Hodson's Horse, now the 9th and 10th Bengal Cavalry.

- In February 1862 he was made Magistrate in his own

~ jagir. About the same time the portion of his jagir to descend

3 ﬂ-.pptpahnty was mmaﬂ from one-quarter to two-thirds.

: sr Singh had no children of his own, but
ngh, the second son of his first cousin— #

Sardar Atar Singh, his son Kahar
d of the family. But this Sardar was
srgy Sar ability. Most extravagant in his
. ounged by men who grew vich upon his
folhes. At Multan, where he served with his cousin, he
r&mﬁned faithful to Government, following his cousin's
example; for he had no will of his own. On annexation his
= paraonsl jagir of Rs. 26,000 was maintained to him, one-
~ fourth of it to descend to his male issue. This jagir lapsed
~ on the death of Kahar Singh, which took place in February
1864, His life had been much shortened by his intemperate
 bhabits. The jagir had been for a time in the hands of his
~ creditors, and he himself had to pass through the Insolvent
- Court.
= The two sons of Lahna Singh, Sardar Partab Singh mﬂ, :
- Thakar Singh alanweremnﬁrma&mthe}rpamunﬂ]agnm gt
'ﬂwymtmyuungtuha concerned mthambnﬂmﬂf‘ I

=
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" 1848-49. Partab Singh died in 1856 without issue, and his
~ jagir of Rs. 10,565 lapsed to Government. Thakar Singh 8
. possessed an estate of Rs. 5,565, of Which one-fourth was in
- _perpetuity. Sardar Ranjodh Singh, son of Sardar Wasawa .
Singh, was a man of no character. He had a jagir of Rs. —
15,840, of which one-third, Rs. 5,280, was in perpetuity. He
died in June 1864, leaving one son. Sardar Shamsher Singh 3
resided st Raja Sansi, about five miles north of Amritsar.
He died in 1871, and was succeeded by his adopted son Sar-
dar Bakhshish Singh, son of the late Sardar Thakar Singh,
Sindbanwalia. Bakhshish Singh, being at this time a minor,
was made a Ward of the District Court. Sardar Thakar :
Singh was sppointed Manager and was invested with Magis-
terial powers within the limits of Raja Sansi. These powers :
were withdrawn in 1877, o
In 1884 Sardar Bakhshish Singh attained his majority.
In 1875 he married a daughter of Sardar Mahtab Singh
Majithia, since dead ; and in 1884 married, secondly, a consin
of the Raja of Faridkot. The Secretary of State sanctioned
in 1866 the continuance in perpetuity of the jagirs awarded
by Lord Canning to Sardars Shamsher Singh, Tej Singh
and Bhagwan Singh. Shamsher Singh's jagir consisted of =
twenty-nine villages, the revenues of which amounted to Rs.
30,274, or, more properly speaking, Rs. 38,613, as the Sardar
was allowed to collect the revenues in kind. Two-thirds of
the jagir descended to Bakhshish Singh. The revenues at
ot amount to Rs. 31,300. In addition, the Sardar
receives Rs. 6,000 per annum on account of water-advantage -
rate, and he is owner of the following lands :—1,395 ghumaos
~ gt Raja Sansi, 558 ghumaos at Tala Nangal, and 100 ghumaos =
gt Dadupur, besides gardens and buildings at Lahore, =
* Gurdaspur, Sialket, Batala and Taran Taran. In1889 Sardar
" Bakhshish Singh'was invested with the powers of a Magistrate. -
" Ho is a Member of the Ajnala Local Board.
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: Sardar Thakar Singh, son of Lahna Singh, was appoint-

ed an Extra Assistant Commissioner in 1865, and became
manager of the estate of Bakhshish Singh on Shamsher

. Singl's death in 1871. In 1877 he re-joined tho Panjab

~ Commission, but was in perpetual monetary difficulties. He

| - visited England in 1885, and remained nine months as the guest

~ of the Maharaja, Dalip Singh. In 1886, shortly after hisreturn

_ to India, he removed with his three sons, Gurbachan Singh,

~ Narindar Singh and Gurdit Singh, and the remaining members

'I.iﬁlusfamﬂytnPﬂndmherr]' where he died in December
! .193? Blmmamatﬂltham. Gurbachan Singh, his eldest

Ahrough a very creditable academical

2 Btatutory Civilian, and at the time

v was holding the appointment of i s

ar m the Panjab. The village of
d by the descendants of Gﬂrmnkh
Amrrﬂmgh.
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: The family of Atari, like that of Sindhanwalia, is of
|rl|. uﬁgin,mﬂ. amigmtaﬂ,inthﬂPnniuhfmmmannigh- y

—
Two sone,
long been lost, and both

But although of the same tribe of

uts, the families are not at this day of equal rank.

BﬂIP

Their Rajput characteristics have

:_ 0 ﬂf Jﬂﬂﬂlmira




are now Jats, The Sindhanwalias, from their near relation-
ship to Maharaja Ranjit Singh and their large possessions,
= were most powerful, and possessed greater influence at Court;

- but their caste is Sansi Jat, far inferior to the Atariwalas,

. whostandat the head of the Sidhu Jats, the best blood of the
Manjha. This pride of birth was o strong in the family, that
Sardar Sham Singh Atariwala, with the greatest reluctance,
and only after numerous delays, allowed his danghter Naniki to

- be betrothed to Kanwar Nao Nahal Smgh grandson of Mn.hn-
i rula Ranjit Smgh He ED]lSldﬂ ed {

‘will be best to treat of them separately.
: Gaur Singh became a disciple of Baba Muldas, an ascetic
- of great sanctity, who directed him to settle at Tiblia, or |
Karews, where Gaur Singh accordingly built an atari, or
thatehed house, which gave its name to the family and to the *
village which rose around it. After the death of Gurbakhsh
Singh Bhangi, Gaur Singh served under Sardar Gujar
Singh and Lahna Singh. In 1737 he took possession of the =
villages around Atari to the value of Rs. 7,000 per annum,
anﬂtwuyama&arwarﬂs received from Sardar Gujar Singh
a jagir worth Rs. 18,600. He died in 1763 ; and his son ,
Nahal Singh continued to hold the jagir under amﬂusﬁ@i T
Singh Bhangi, son of Sardar Gujar Singh. - e
g

i
-._.“‘—\-

-.‘_
=
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Sahib Singh was Chief of Gujrat, and here Nahal Singh

" went with his contingent and several of his cousins, sons of

XKaur Singh. He soon became distinguished for courage and

. ability; and in the battle which took place betwoen the Sikh

i
»
e

Chiefs and the Afghans under Shahanchi Bashi, officer of
Zaman Shab, in 1798, the exertions of Nahal Singh con-

- tributed very much to the vietory. In 1800, soon after Ranjit

=

Singh had obtained possession of Lahore, the Bhangi Chiefs
and their allies met at Bhasin to consider what steps they

~ should take against him, Hither came Nahal Singh with
~ his superior, Sahib Singh ; and Ranjit Singh, happening to see.

" much pleased ab his refusal and increased his jagirs and
~  allowances.

him, was struck with his bold appearance and his excellent

 horsemanship. Ho sent for him, and tried to induce him to g

sides and take service with him. Sardar Nahal
Bmgh however declined. He was not going to desert his
~ old master, and told Sahib Singh of the offer, who was

This promotion excited much. ]eakmy in themmﬂlui
his cousins Tek Singh, Jodh Singh and Wazir Singh, who
were all in the service of the Bhangi Chief; and it was
- through their representations that Sahib Singh, who was a
weak and changeable man, confiscated Rs. 15,000 of his jagir.

. Nahal Singh threw np the Bhangi service in disgust and g

yetired to Atari, where he took to cattle-lifting and robbery
‘as a means of livelihood. One day he seized a number of
mme]a belonging to Ranjit Singh, and had sold some of them
’b&Enra Ranjit Singh's messengers arrived to demand restitus

_ tion. After some time he consented to give back those which

1:3 gtill had by him; and Ranjit Singh was so pleased at this
mamnthat he again urged the Sardar to enter his service,
whluh Nahal Singh, after some hesitation, consented, He
was placed in command of four hundred and sixteen horsemen,

"' mgnn, and seven camel swivels.
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In 1803 he was granted the jagir of Sukhu, worth

Rs. 54,500, and three years later the Tlaka of Kasur, worth

‘alakh. In 1807 he accompanied the Maharaja on his Kasur
expedition, which ended in the defeat and expulsion of Kuth-

udin Khan Kasuria ; and Nahal Singh was put in possession

of the whole Ilaka of Kasur, worth Rs. 1,07,000. On the

south gide of the Satlaj, the Dogras, a wild and turbulent

tribe, who were at enmity with Dhana Singh, son of Gurbakhsh

Singh, the ruler of Firogpur, invited Nahal Singh to attack

it, and promised their assistance. He was ready enongh to

comply, and, erossing the river, dislodged the garrison of

Dhana Singh Firozpurwala from the fort of Dalchi. At this
. time, another branch of the Dogra tribe settled at Baraki,
. who were also hostile to their Chief, Dhana Singh, sent to
~ Lahore to beg Mora, a celebrated courtezan, then high in

* fayour with the Maharaja, to take their part. She asked for

‘a grant of Firozpur, and obtained it, and, sending troops to
enforce her claim, seized Baraki. Nahal Singh now offered
- to assist Dhana Singh, who, in spite of his fears, was too
weak to refuse. The two Chiefs then drove Mora's troops
out of Baraki, and Nahal Singh attacked Firozpur, without
success, The next year, 1808, Nahal Singh seized by
stratagem the fort of Khai; and Dhana Singh, who saw his
dangerous ally growing more and more powerful every day,
was glad enmough, in 1809, to place himself under British

. ; - protection.

The territory which Nahal Singh thus seized south uf.ﬂm
Satlaj was worth Rs. 18,000 per annum; and soon after he
- obtained the grant of villagea round Atari to the value of
Rs. 3,000. His jagirs amounted to Rs. 3,06,800, of which
Rs. 1,50,000 was personal and Rs. 1sﬁsmgub;.eumm;‘-
: Excepting the Sindhanwalias, no Sikh Sardar m u:r
- high in the Mnhm]n.s ﬁa.murnaHahal Singh. His s
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eampaign from 1801 to 1817 in which he did not takea
| distinguished part. He accompanied the first Kashmir expedi=
* tion: he was at the affairs of Pind Dadan Khan, Kask,
Dalor, Nila, Hola, Chakwal, Saidpur, Naraingarh and Multan.
At this latter place, in 1810, ke was severely burnt by the
explosion of a mine, Atar Singh Dhari, who was standing
beside him, was killed, and many officers were much hurt.
Nahal Singh had to be sent to Lahore for treatment.
b In 1817 Ranjit Singh fell gick at Waniki, and Nahal
- Bingh is said to have given his life for the Maharaja by
walking, with certain ceremonies, round his bed, and thus
taking upon himself the disorder. The superstition is not au
uncommon one in India; and accident, or Nahal Singh’s
imagination, seemed to give it some show of truth, forhe
etired to Atari, where he fell ill and died a fow months
- afterwards. His son Sham Singh he had just before in-
troduced into the Maharaja's service, and his first campaign
~ was against Multan in 1818, where he commanded a battery
' to the south of the fort. With him, in command of batteries,
" were Sardars Dal Singh Naharna, Amir Singh Sindhanwalia
~ and Desa Singh Majithin. The great Bhangi gon was
" brought from Lahore and was fired four times, doing con-
~ siderable damage to the walls. The fort was at length taken ;
. Sardar Sham Singh being one of the first in the breach,
where he was wounded in the shoulder by a sword cut.
, After this be served in many battles, and gained as
~ great a name for courage as his father. He accompanied the
~ successful expedition against Kashmir in 1819, and fought
at Gandgarh Teri, Nari-Nafi, Duthair, Jabangira, and in =
Yﬂufzm In 1834 he went to Bannu with Diwan Tara
- Chane and in the campaign had his horse shot under him.
- The marriage of his daughter Naniki to Prince Nao
‘m Bingh, to whom she had been betrothed in 1831, fook
ﬁaﬂnﬁ.&mmaranthn 7th March 1837. Sir Henry Fane,
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" (ommander-in-Chief, was present, and the ceremony was
 condicted with the greatest splendour. The bride brought

a dowry to the Prince of eleven elephants, one hundred

horses, one hundred camels, with a very large amount

-

a+
1'

~ both of money and jewels. The wedding is said to have =
cost the Atari Sardar fifteen lakhs of rupees. Two months

- afterwards the news came of Sardar Hari Singh Nalwa's T_:r- :

defeat and death; and Sham Singh had to march to
Peshawar with his troops, and he remained at that station for
~ two years, till the death of Ranjit Singh. After this event,

g =

- Sham Singh, although constantly engaged in military duties,
~ did not meddle with politics. He was in charge of the troops =
~ which, in May 1841, escorted the family of Shah Shuja, to

; ';_ Peshawar ; afterwards he was sent to Hazara to collect the

- revenue. Hecompelled that turbulent Chief Painda Khan

 to deliver up his son as a hostage, and brought him to Lahore,

whers he was soon afterwards honourably dismissed. Through- 3 .:
. out the reigns of Kbarak Singh and Sher Singh, Sardar
* Hhamﬂmgh retained his jagirs intact. After theassassina-

~ tion of Jawabir Singh, he crossed the Satlaj to Kakrala,
~ with the excuse of celebrating the marriage of his son Kahan

Bingh. When, however, the Sikh army invaded the Cis-

e

~ Satlaj territory, he felt that he could not,in honour, remain =
out of the Panjab, and returned to Atari, where he lived in

retirement. No one could doubt his bravery; but he saw,

with disgust and sorrow, the Sikh army bent upon a war, of

which he entirely disapproved, and marching to destruction

under the guidance of false and incompetent men, and he
resolved to stand himself aloof. But on the 25th of I}eﬁemba;,
just after the news of Lal Singh’s defeat at Firozshahar k
reached Lahore, the Maharani heard that Sham Singh waq
Atari, and sent there tanhurs&mml, who were to ba juarter
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puhey that was destroying the country, but in vain ; and nr
 last, when told he was a coward and afraid to die, he deter-
_mimed to join the camp, but swore not to survive the defeat, -
~ which he knew was certain. It is said that the night befors
- Sobraon, Sardar Tej Singh counselled him to fly with him ~

" on the first attack of the British. Sham Singh refused with

‘scorn. On which Tej Singh angrily said :* If you are so brave
-~ you had better take your cath shoutit, for I believe you will
-~ come with me after all” Sardar Sham Singh called fora
Graﬂti (the Sikh Seriptures), and solemnly swore that, should =

the Sikhs be defeated, he wouald never leave the trmhést, g
aln'a On the morning of the battle, the 10th of FH]:I‘!‘I‘.I.EI‘J‘L
dramml h:maaif in white, a.nd,havmg monunted his w hite E,

'

" During the first part of the battle he was warywhm
sresent, urging the Sikhsto ﬁght bravely ; and it was not#ill.
_he saw that all was lost that he spurred forward against the
' 50th Regiment, waving his sword, and calling on Lis men to. -
~ follow him. Some fifty of them obeyed the call, bat wm
~ driven back into the river, and Sham Singh fell dead £
. his horse, pierced with seven balls. After the battle lns |
| servants swam Over the river and begged permission to
" search for his body. The permission was granted ; and the body
| of the old Sardar, conspicuous by his white dress and long
_white beard, was discovered where the dead lay thickest,
‘His servants placed the body on araft and swam with it
> ‘mas the river, but it was not till the third day thatit reached
+ and his widow, who knew his resolution not to aumﬂt
\ defeat, had already burnt herself with the clothes which the
--_r".. srdar had worn on his marriage day. This was the last
ﬁnﬁﬁ the Panjab; and the pillar which marks the spnt,
3 1t took place is still standing without the walls Of’
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Sardar Sham Singh was one of the best representatives of
‘the Jat race, which, for manliness, honesty, strength and =
. courage, is second to nome in the world. His death wasa
. great loss, for there was no one to take his place. Thera were,
~ ibis true, many of humble rank in the villages round Gujaran-
- wala, Lahore and Amritsar, of equal courage, simplicity and
~ devotion to the interests of the country; but not among the
~ intriguing Sardars at the Court. Had there been more Chiefs
. like him the Satlaj Campaign wounld never have been under-
~ taken, and the Sikh nation would have preserved the inde-
”Fuﬂﬂncu which it madly threw away. Thakar Singh, the
eldest son of Sardar Sham Singh, died before his father. He
- was & man of no ability, but served in Bannu and Peshawar
* as commandant of artillery under his father, He left three
" sons, to whom the jagir of Shekoran, worth Rs. 7,500, was
;_lmtgnad,whmh they still hold, and which is maintained to
ﬂum‘ heirs in equal shares in perpetuity, These three
ardars, Jiwan Singh, Hari Singh and Ajit Singh, lived at
ﬁism. On the close of the Satlaj Campaign, Raja Lal Singh
]bnnﬁsmted Rs. 1,59,300 of the jagir. Rupees 12,000 were lost
] .,by the abolition of the customs duty, and the balance
. was continued to Sardar Kahan Singh, subject to the
service of ninety-seven horsemen, twenty-five foot, and ten
- zamburas. At Multan, in 1848, the contingent of Kahan
Singh was in the force of Raja Sher Singh. After his rebellion
- twenty-five sowars remained with the Raja, the rest came
. away with Shamsher Singh Sindhanwalia. Narain Singh,
Kahan Singh’s Diwan, also exerted himself to supply the
British army, both at Ganda Singhwala and Kasur, mth :
- provisions and carrisge. For this loyalty the personal j i
of Kaban Singh was maintained at snnexation; Rs. ?,50&
. descend in perpetuity. i
' Sardar Kahan Singh was of weak intellect, and had bqan
muﬁrmadmvnhdfurnumu years before his death, which
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meurreﬂ in 1873. He had no male issue, and used to ra.udq
at Atari with his nephews. To one of them, Sardar Ajit
: i ~ Singh, was continued an allowance of Rs. 7,500 out of Kahan
. Singh’s jagir of Rs. 35,500. The remainder was resumed.
~ Sardar Ajit Singh was thus recognized as the representas
tive and head of the family, He was one of the most able
of the modern Sikhs of the Panjab, being well educated in
Urdu, and having a slight knowledge of English. In 1865 hﬂ
~ was appointed Sub-Registrar of Atari, and in the following year
was invested with magisterial powers. He worked at Amritsar
" for thres years, gaining valuable experience, and thereby -
'~ fitting himself for the sole charge of the Atari Ilaka whmhf g
was entrusted to him. In 1872 he passed with credit the =
. departmental examination prescribed for Assistant Commis-
sioners, and he was allowed to exercise full ]unsdmtuun |
over two hundred villages around Atari. Three years later 3
he was gazetted to the powers of a Collector on the Revenue
side. In 1877 he received the rank of Assistant Commis-
sioner, and in 1885 was admitted to the Order of the Indian
- Empire, in recognition of long and valuable services and
" as a representative of the leading gentlemen of the Province. =
. Shortly afterwards he was appointed an Honorary Subordi- =
‘nate Judge, with power to dispose of Civil suits up to Bs. 5 000
/in value.
Under the scheme of Local Self-Government, mangumta& ]
4n 1885, Sardar Ajit Singh was elected President of the
i AmntBarDtsh'mt Board, which post he held for the remainder =~
" of his life. He took an active interest in agricultural improve- =
" ments, and was for many years an active member of the cattle
" fair committee at Amritsar. He was a Fellow of the Panjab.
-ﬁmkr and a member of the council of the Aitchison
ﬁa]]age In fact, for twenty-five years before his death, whmh*
O od in 1888, the Sardar had held a prominent position as

¥4 al public servant and a valuable judicial and executive

- A

ol
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fficer.  He died at the age of forty-nine years, leaving fiva

. !nna, four danghters and six widows. The eldest son, Sardar
. Balwant Singh, is the present head of the Atari family.

’* - Lala Gurmukh Rai, one of the leading Pleaders in Amrit-
sar, lias been appointed manager of the estate and guardianof
' the minor children under the District Court of Wards. The
four eldest boys hiavebeensent to the Aitehison College, Lahore.

~ The Sardar’s property was valued at five lakhs of rupees,

gommtmg of lands and movables. The family jagir of Rs.

7 500 has been continued to his eldest son, Sardar Balwant

- Singh, in addition to his father's personal jagir of Rs. 2,500.

The income of the children from all sources is estimated ab
Re. 25,000, ' |
Sardar Balwant Singh married in 1886 a daughter of
Sards Bishan Singh of Kalsia. Sardar Harbans Singhis

ptrothed to o daughter of Sardar Rajindar Singh of Kath-

P aarh, Hushiarpor.
$ s E:nﬂar Jiwan Singh, brother of the late Sardar, is a
_ i and 4 member of the Amritsar Loeal Board. He is
j ﬁ_m.u'unfrahrmg habits and of no ambition. The third brother,
Sardar Hari Singh, is also still living, and has children.
: Returning to the junior branch, as has been before stated,
‘it was not till the year 1800, when Nabal Singh Atariwala left
- the service of Sardar Sahib Singh Bhangi, that a feud arose
qmung the brothers. Up to that time they had lLived together =
~ and served the same masters, the Bhangi Chiefs, at Lahore ﬂ.ml -
] E‘n jrat. ;
i Of the sons of Kaur Singh, Tek Singh and Jodh Singh
~ were the most distinguished, and nnder Sardar Sahib Emg_h
im]ufed the greatest power and distinction. It was by their
" influence that Nahal Singh was compelled to leave the Bhangi ,J. Erng
m and it was thus that the enmity, still strong a.tm g
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~ present day, arose between the Atariwalas. Wazir Singh
" and Charat Singh were not men of any note. After the
death of Sardar Tek Bingh, his son abandoned the service of
Sahib Singh, and came over to the Maharaja, who was then =
carrying on operations against Kot Bari Khan. Without pay- =
ing their respects to the Prince, they joined the battery of
Mian Ghaus Khan and served thronghout the siege ; Hukam
Singh receiving a wound in the forehead. After the capture
of the fort, Ranjit Singh, pleased with their bold conduct,
~ gave to the young men jagirs at Awan, Miani, and Bahu
| Chinah. Hukam Singh was present at the attack on Multan
'~ in 1810, and in 1812 accompanied the Maharaja to Jhilam,
where he met Fateh Khan, the Kabul Wazir. The next year
" e died, and his gons being minors, his brother Jagat Singh
" qucceeded to the jagirs; but when Jai Singh grew up, he %
received the Ilakas of Miani and Tehna. i
Jai Singh, son of Sardar Wazir Singh, in the year R
1821, rebelled against the Maharaja. The story is that =
he with his cousin Jagat Singh and Sardar Budh Singh Sind-
hanwalia, had conspired against the life of the Prince; and =
the two Atariwalas had entered the Saman Burj, intending
" to carry out their design, when the Maharaja suddenly
- appeared, and on enquiring of Jai Singh what was the matter,
" that Sardar was so confused and terrified that he allowed
‘Ranjit Singh to guess at the plot against his life. At any b
" rate, Jai Singh thought himself saspected, and retired to his
" fort of Kalar Kahar, which he hastily strengthened and
_ g_arrisuuad. A force was sent against him under Misar Ralia =
" Ram aund other Chiefs, and being defeated, Jai Singh fled =
~ across the Indus and took refuge with Dost Mahomed Kban, '
| o was then rising into notice. Jai Singh had been sent & =
ort time before this on a mission to Peshawar, where he
'1!’_, ‘ecome very intimate with the Barakzai Chief, and many =
s debauch they had bad together in the Bagh Nura Khaka
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i ~at Peshawar. Ranjit Singh was very jealous of any intimacy
- between his Chiefs and persons of another nation, and on
. Jai Singh's return to Lahore treated him with much reserve
. and suspicion. Now that the Sardar had fallen into trouble,
. he naturally fled to his Afghan friend, by whom he was well
I| received. -
A He accompanied Dost Mahomed and Mahomed Azim
. Khan in 1823 to Peshawar, when the Barakzai Chiefs had
. determined to attack Ranjit Singh, who had taken Atock
and was advancing towards Peshawar. One day, after a
skirmish between the armies, the heads of thirty Sikhs
“were placed on the house of Jai Singh, who had excited
~ the enmity of many of the Afghans ; and he, taking the hint,
Jeft Peshawar and came in to Ranjit Singh at Akhora
_ after the battle of Teri. He was not very cordially
Teceived and, though nominally forgiven, was never taken
. back into favour. He was one of the agents employed to
~ bring about the meeting of the Maharaja with Yar Mahomed
* Khan and Dost Mahomed Khan at Peshawar after the
*  retreat of Mahomed Azim Khan to Daka, when the Sikh Chief
- rewarded their treason to their brother by dividing between
- them the province of Peshawar, which he was himself unable
- to hold. :
Jai Singh died soon after this. His cousin Jai Singh,
* #on of Huokam Singh, was killed at Dilasa in Bannu .in 1834,
when Diwan Tara Chand received a severe repulse from the
~ Dilasa Chief ; and his brother Nar Singh succeeded totheTehna
- and Awan estates, subject to the service of seventy horsemen.
- At the time of the Multan rebellion Nar Singh was in the
- enjoyment of an estate of Rs. 26,550, of which Rs. 17, 00
. Was subject to service. On the 17th of September 1849,
after Raja Sher Singh had joined the rebels, Nar Sing
 placed under arrest in the Lahore fort, He does not app
-'-H‘_abaendiranﬁr mnnma&inthsrabeﬂian,hnthi;_,_
Bl
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‘gowars, with the exception of eight or ten, went over to he
enemy, and his jagirs were consequently resumed. At he
close of the war an allowance of Rs. 3,000 per annum Was
granted to him. . -
Sardar Jodh Singh entered the service of Ranjit Singh =
in 1805, after a brave but vain attempt to hold the
~ fort of Kalar against that Chief in the interests of his =
* master, Sahib Singh Bhangi. He was received with great
fayour, and obtained a grant of a large tract of country =
valued at two lakhs of rupees, in Pathwar, consisting
of the tapas of Barsali, Bishandar, Saidpur, &e., subject
to the service of two hundred horsemen. Jodh Singh =
 soon after this died, and his two sons, Partab Singh
and Chatar Singh, succeeded to the jagirs. Partab Sin vh
fought in the battle of Teri in 1823, when he was wounded
in the hand. In the battle of Balakot, where Khalifa Ahmad =
. was defeated and slain, Partab Singh was badly wounded,
~ and, returning to his jagir, died some months later from
the effects of his wound. His son Karam Singh died soon
after, when still a child, and his share of the jagir fell to his
" Brst cousin Sher Singh. Sardar Chatar Singh was a good
farmer ; and his estates were much increased in value by his
skill and care. He took no great share in politics during the =
.~ yeign of Ranjit Singh; but the family possessed great influence
\  at Court, and in 1843 his daughter Tej Kaur was betrothed =
" to the young Maharaja Dalip Singh. Sardar Chatar Singh -
* was however entirely in the interests of Raja Gulab Singh
" of Jamu; and when a dispute, excited by Pandit Jala, arose =
 between that Prince and his nephew Hira Singh, the Minister
- at Lahore, in December 1844, Chatar Singh took up arms in
" his own part of the country, which he held in the name of Raja
. Gulab Singh. Six months later, Gulab Singh,whﬂmaﬁuidlt
" of the influence and hostility of Prince Pashora Singh, per-
' guaded Jawahir Singh, who had risen to power in Lahors, =

-

g
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" o send Sardar Chatar Singh and Fsteh Khan Tawana
‘against him. This task was not at all liked by Chatar Singh ;
r .f.fﬂr to a Sikh there was something sacred about even a reputed
son of the old Maharaja: but he was unable to refuse, and,
with the Tawans Chief, proceeded against Attock, whither
Pashora Singh had retired with a swall force. After some
" days spent in negotiation, the Prince surrendered ; the Sardars
solemnly promising his safety and the full consideration of his
_ claims at Lahore. But the next day, while on the march
" to the capital, he was taken off his guard, seized, placed in
irons and carried back to Attock, where he is believed to
have been murdered the same night, and his body thrown
into the Indus, which, dark and swift, flows by the fort.
The army of the Khalsa were much incensed against Chatar
. Singh for this cruel and treacherous murder ; but he took care
to avoid Lahore till the troops, content with the blood of
- Jawahir Singh, had forgotten his share in the erime. Sardar
| Sher Singh, the eldest son of Chatar Singh, had in
1844 been appointed Governor of Peshawar in the room
- of Sardar Tej Singh, who had been summoned to Lahore.
He was an able and spirited young man, and ruled that
~ difficult distriet to the satisfaction of the Lahore Government,
. He successfully put down an insurrection in Yusufzaiin 1846;
- but his administratien, though vigorous, was unusually corrupt.
~ Raja Lal Singh, the Minister at Lahore, was his bitter
‘enemy ; and in August 1846 Chatar Singh was appointed to
- succeed his son at Peshawar, while Sher Singh returned to
Lahore. This appointment was held by Chatar Singh till
April 1847; but his rule was no purer than that of his son.
The corrupt practices which both indulged in seem to have
astonished even the Lahore officials, and the annual embezzle-
" ments from the State revenue were estimated at from one
and a half to two lakhs of rupees. It was impossible for this
. t0 be sllowed ; but the family was too powerful to be lightly

|ull,"J
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_ offended, and too nearly connected with the Maharaja to be
~ passed over; and accordingly OChatar Singh was made
. Governor of the country between the Jhilam and the Indus, =
where he possessed great authority ; and Sher Singh received
a seat in the Council. The latter was, however, by no means =
satisfied. He thought that on the fall of his enemy, Raja Lal
Singh, he had a right to succeed him in his office, as he had
sncceeded him in the affections of the Maharani, snd was =
angry at the failure of his hopes. Sher Singh would, perhaps,
have been the best selection for Minister, but his claims were
hardly as great as those of his father ; and Chatar Singh was
50 completely in the hands of Maharaja Gulab Singh that he -
" wonld have been a dangerous Minister at Lahore. But the
Atariwalas at length appeared content. It was directed that
~ the numerous claims in Peshawar against Sher Singh,
amounting to upwards of half a lakh of rupees, should
~ not be taken up; the Sardar paying Rs. 8,000 to some
of the poorest claimants, who seemed to have the best =
grounds for complaint. This arrangement was considered
very satisfactory by Sher Singh; and his brothers Gulab
Singh and Atar Singh being provided for (the one in
Hazara, the other in Lahore), he forgot his grievance about 3
the Wazarat.
i On the 7th August 1847, Sardar Chatar Singh received
. a Persian title of honour, at the recommendation of the
" Resident, at the same time that Sardar Tej Singh was
~oreated a Raja. On the 26th November, in the ssn|.1|:|:nu.t
_year, Sher Singh received the title of Raja. This honour
- had been recommended for Chatar Singh; but at the last
moment the Sardar requested that his son Sher Singh
miight he promoted instead, and the request was accordingly i
" On the 18th April 1848 the outbreak occurred ak:
- Multe Two British officers were treacherously attacked
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mdnlam and Diwan Mulraj stood forth as a rebel agnmw
the anthority of the Lahore Government. The news of this
" outbreak reached Lahore on the 21st April; and the Resident
immediately putin motion for Multan seven battalions of
. infantry, two regiments of regular cavalry, and twelve hundred
_ irregular horse under Sardar Atar Singh Kalianwala. This® |
force, which was accompanied by Raja Sher Singh, was re-
~ called on the 26th to Lahore, as the Commander-in-Chief of
. the British Army was unwilling to send European troops to
- support it, during the hot season toa part of the country
with so bad a name for unhealthiness as Multan. However,
~ it was necessary that something should be done; and the
. Resident was compelled to send agninst Maltan a Sikh force.
‘under the command of Raja Sher Singh and Sardar Shamsher
‘Bingh and Atar Singh Kalianwala. The force consisted of
‘one regular regiment and half an irregular infantry regiment,
‘three thousand cavalry, ten gums and two morfars. Raja Sher
3 =ﬂmg'h was Commander-in-Chief ; but his more special com-
Jnand was the infantry, while the two other Sardars led the
Dn the 12th of June the force was at Chichawatni, and
~ ready toproceed ; but it was not thought expedient to hasten
its march until some decided advantage had been gained over
‘Hulrs] by Edwardes and the Bahawalpur troops. Sher
Bingh and his colleagues had no thought of treason; bub
. their troops sympathized with the rebels, and would have =
‘been only too glad to have joined them. On the 22nd June
Sher Singh reached Talamba. He was ordered to stop here ;
. but either his troops were no longer under command, or,
- fancying that he could trust to their fdelity, he wished tojoin
in the successes of the British, for the battle of Kaneri lﬂ%
- mow been fought. He advanced to Gugran, nine mlles
the city of Multan. Lieutenant Edwardes then directed
Sher Singh to join kim, which be did, pitehing his cam
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5 Suraj Kund, three miles from Tibi, where Lmnt;amut
Eﬂmrﬂea was encamped. He arrived at this place on the

i ﬁth ﬂf Iﬂl}' L

: Althongh the Sikh army was disposed to mutiny, the
principal Sardars had sufficient influence to keep it tolerably
at-aady, although many men deserted to Mulraj; and on the
* 20th of July, Sher Singh co-opersted with the force under
~ the English officers with energy and success, Thus matters.
~ remained until the arrival of General Whish before Multan
. with a European force on the 18th of August.

. Sardar Chatar Singh was at this time Governor of Hazara.

" His troops were notoriously mutinous ; but he gave no notice
“to the British authorities of the disaffection, which he shared,
-and which he himself encouraged. Affairs were brought toa

* erisis on the 6th August by the muvder of Colonel Camora,
an American commandant of Artillery in the Sikh service. "

- He was ordered by Chatar Singh to bring the guns out of the

~ fort of Haripur and to encamp on the open ground oufside

. the city. This, Colonel Canora, who suspected the treason-
“able intentions of Chatar Singh, refused to do unless with
 the sanction of Captain Abbott, Boundary Commissioner and

: - Assistant to the Resident in Hazara. He placed, himself be-

. tween the guns, which he had loaded with grape, and threatened
‘%o fire on the first man who should approach. Chatar Singh
' persisted ; and as the Colonel would not surrender his charge,
a body of Sikh soldiers crept up behind and shot him dead.
. Bnthanam of this murder reaching Lahore, the Resident
lespatched Sardar Jhanda Singh Batalia with a confidential
agent from Chatar Singh's son, ‘Gulab Singh, to try and
induce the Sardar to surrender himself and permit his conduet
to beinvestigated at Lahore. But Chatar Singh had decided
is course. The mission of Jhanda Singh failed ; and that
of Raja Dina Nath, sent to Hazara with a like object, wqun ;

~'-
,L-' nnsnncaaafuL Chatar Singh's force did not, atthe

4
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' hmﬂ of his rebellion, exceed two thousand men; but it rapidly
increased in numbers. He wrote for aid to his son ab

. Multan, to Maharaja Gulab Singh and to Dost Mahomed
Khan ; raised levies in his own district of Pathwar, and used
* all means in his power to render his rebellion as formidable

 as possible.

~ On the 19th of Angust news of the outbreak in Hazara
- reached the ecamp of Raja Sher Singh before Multan, This
'~ Chief had, in the midst of mutiny and ill-feeling, striven to do
~ his duty to the Government. By severe punishment, and by

. promises of rewards, he had kept his troops firm ; and, even
. when his father's letters reached him in August, he did not
- waver in his fidelity. He didnot believe that his father was
deeply compromised in the rebellion; and hoped that by the

" mediation of Sardar Jhanda Siogh and Raja Dina Nath every-
thing would be satisfactorily arranged. On the 1st of
September, when the force of Edwardes had to change
ground, and was attacked by the enemy, the Raja voluntarily =
. brought out his guns and aided the movement. Again, on
 the 3rd of September, he cannonaded and threw into great

confusion the troops of Mulraj at the bridge, chiefly to

destroy sympathy between his own men and the rebels.
But early in September still more urgent letters came from
Hazara stating that Sardar Chatar Singh had rebelled
beyond all forgiveness, and calling on Sher Singh and all
true Sikbs to join him. Messengers from Hazara, and
chief among them Sardar Surat Singh Majithia, excited the
- soldiery, saying that now was the time to expel the Farangis
~ from the country, and that any Sardar who opposed the
movement was an enemy to the Khalsa. The Sikh force
“became so dangerous that, on the 13th of September, it was
- resolved to remove it from Multan and from temptation. The
_ Atariwala, Kalianwala and Sindhanwalia divisions were to
wmﬂxﬁarmtﬂmtmnu.thatufﬁharﬁmghh' '
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. ferry, nominally to protect the passage of the river. The
‘morning of the 14th was appointed for the march; but the
- soldiers would not move. The whole camp rose in mutiny,
- excited by Surat Singh and others; the Sardars were abused
" and threatened till their lives were no longer safe. And at last
Raja Sher Singh, in desperation, went over to the side of the
" rebels, and with his whole force marched to Multan, where he
~encamped in the Hazuri Bagh, as the Diwan distrusted him

‘and refused him admittance into the fort.

The defection of the force of Sher Singh compelled
. General Whish to raise the siege of Multan; but he only
retired to the suburbs of the eity, where he waited for rein-
" forcements and siege guns. Sher Singh now did all in his
. power to extend the rebellion and make it a national one, and
'~ distributed inflammatory letters over the whole country
" ealling on the Sikh nation to rise. Buf Mulraj still thought
‘him on the side of the British, or, if against them, desirous
- of obtaining the fort of Multan for the Khalsa; and he put no
. trust in his professions. He made Sher Singh with all his
'~ officers swear on the Sikh Seriptures that they had no evil

‘designs ; but, in spite of their oaths, not one of tham was ._.

" admitted within the city.
At length Sher Singh determined to join his father in
Mulraj was delighted at his resolution, and lent
wm money to hasten his march; and on the 9th of October
Ra.]a, with his force of five thousand and three hundred
men, left Multan en route for Hazara. On the 11th he crossed
Bnﬂ with his whole camp and marched in the direction of
Jhang Hﬂl'ﬂ his troops baha?ed very ill, daﬁ.hngtha mosques

. =l uq _..p_,_ 'ﬁ
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‘ﬂ'hiaf Justice of the Sind-Sagar Doab, who had joined ﬂu
_ rel:elu with two thousand Irregulars.

Sardar Ohatar Singh had during the month of October =
9 ‘been intriguing on all sides. To the Barakzai Sardars he =
Imﬂ the province of Peshawar in return for their ag-
‘gistance; and he had succeeded in inducing the whole of the
_ Sikh troops at Peshawar to join him. In spite of the efforts
' ‘_ ‘of some of their officers who remained firm to their duty, they
. pevolted on the 24th of Augnst, and marched to join Chatar
Bingh. Captain Abbott held out gallantly in Hazara ; aml |
Lieutenant Herbert defended the fort of Attock till the 2nd
of Jannary, when, being without hope of succour and his troops -
deserting to the ememy, he was compelled to fly. After -
"the fall of Attock, Chatar Singh marched to join his son Sher =
- The army under the Raja had, on the 2nd November,
‘received a severe check at Ram Nagar from the British
- under Lord Gongh. The affair was entirely fought by the
cavalry and artillery, and can hardly be called a baitle. On
the 1st of Doecember, Sir Joseph Thackwell, with the advanced
part of the army, crossed the Chanab and advanced against
the Raja's position. Some sharp fighting took place in
front of the entrenchments, but no attack was made upon =
the position; and on the night of the 3rd December Sher =
Bingh retrested by the Jhilam, Jalalpur and Pind Dadan =
Khan roads, and‘took up a position at Chilianwala, where,
'on the 13th of January, the British army advanced to M
him. The sccounts of this battle, creditable to the B tmh"
arms, have been often written. Tt has been called a victdry ;
but neither the Sikh Generals nor the soldiery considered that
they had been defeated. All fought well ; but the ‘hero of & qﬁ,
day was Jawshir Singh Nalwa, son of Hari Singh, the gre
Sikh General, who led the cavalry charge which had so gr ‘“e .
'|' an influence on the result of the battle,
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Two or three days after the battle, Sardar Chatar Singh
joined his son’s camp, being received with a royal salute; and
bringing with him, as prisoners, Major George Lawrence ‘and
 Lieutenants Herbert and Bowie. He had been successful in
. inducing Amir Dost Mahomed Khan to join him, having paid
 that Prince, as the price of his assistance, Rs. 30,000 in cash,
Rs. 15,000 in shawls, and Rs. 15,000 he engaged to pay ab
Rawalpindi. For this consideration the Amir seized the pro-
 yinee of Peshawar, co-operated in the siege of Attock, and sent
a thousand cavalry under his son Akram Khan to join the
army of Chatar Singh. u-

On the 21st of February the battle of Gujrat was fought, -
when the united Sikh and Afghan army was completely
~ defeated with the loss of fifty-three guns. This was virtually
~ the end of the war. The victory was followed up with
~ vigour ; and at Rawalpindi, on the 14th March, Chatar Singh
~ and Sher Singh, together with what remained of the Sikh
~ army, some sixteen thousand men, laid down their arms. e

As far as regards the Atariwala Sardars, these were the
chief incidents of the war. A connected history of that war,
g0 important to both England and the Panjab, has yet to be
written ; but it will not be here out of place to say a few
- words on the causes that led to it.

At the close of the Satlaj Campaign, the Sikh army
hmh had, since the death of M&hﬂm;a Ranjit Singh, been
lfr increasing in numbers, was in great measure disbanded.
5 Panjab villages were filled with a discontented soldiery,
erse to peaceful oceupations, and firmly believing that
. heir late reverses were alone owing to the treachery and
- mmpmﬁ]r of their leaders. These men were anxious to try
' fortune once more on the field of battle. At the capital,
Lal Singh, the Minister, whom it was necessary for the
~ English Government to support, was highly unpopular. By
mﬂmps, he was hated for his share in the Satlaj disaster
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and for his intrigues with the Maharani; by the Sardars, for
his avarice, which cost many of them their jagirs. Even after
~ his fall from power the new administration was hardly more
. popular. Raja Tej Singh was an incompetent man and
an upstart. His rise had been owing more to his fortune
than his abilities ; and he was supposed to be entirely under
the orders of the British Resident, Major H. Lawrence.
There were many minor canses for discontent. Cow-killing
was no longer allowed to be a crime; and the hated Mahome-
~ dans, who had always under Sikh rule been a persecuted
~ race, were allowed to practise their religious rites publicly
and ostentatiously. The people at large, too, believed that
" the English never intended to leave the Panjab: although

~ the truth was that the British troops only remained at the
earnest request of the principal Sardar, who dreaded a return
of the anarchy which bad proceded the Satlaj Campaign.
" Thus there was plenty of material for rebellion ready at
- hand; but the genius and political sagacity of Major
Lawrence, and the eonfidence which the natives placed in him,
might have preserved peace, had he not been compelled by
bad health to leave the country at a most eritical time,

The rebellion of 1848 began with the outhreak at
Multan. This was entirely unpremeditated. There is no
reason to believe that the attack on the British officers was
made by the orders or with the connivance of Diwan Mulrais
but when he had been compromised by that attack,
remembered that be bad at hi!'ﬂiﬁ]x‘rﬂ&l Immense wea
devoted troops and the strongest fortress in Upper Tndid
while the power which could punish and avenge was far off
and, to him, almost unknown.' Of two evils, he considered
rebellion the lesser. Had a British foree marched inst
Multan on the first news of the outbreak reaching Lahore, had
the punishment followed the offence swiftly and decisis av.
the Sikhs would not have rebelled. But the delay in the
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~ punishment of one traitor, allowed them to belieye that treason
~ might remain altogether unpunished.
N The defection of Raja Sher Singh before Multan was also
- unpremeditated. Till the night of the 13th of September 3
" he remained firmly loyal in the presence of temptation, such
. asfew men have ever been exposed to. His influence over g
' his troops was great; and it is possible that he might haye f
kept them to their duty till the close of the siege bad not
. the entreaties of his father induced him, much against his
}  will, to join the rebel side. It was the rebellion of Sardar
| Chatar Singh which caused that of his son. There had been
|  several insignificant outbreaks in outlying districts of the
'}~ Panjab before that of Chatar Singh; butit was he who made
| the rebellion a national one and brought ruin upon the
| country.
| What, then, were the reasons for Chatar Singh’s conduct ?
Why was he thus disaffected while his son was actively loyal ?
| 1t is difficult to believe that he was ambitious for himself.
'} He was an old, broken-down man, and a confirmed invalid.
' His intelleet, never brilliant, had become weakened by -4
9 health and advancing age. He had long talked of abandoning
ﬁ- Z worldly affairs and geing on a pilgrimage to the Ganges; and
| he had declined a Rajaship in favour of his son. Nor could
Jie have hoped to benefit his son by the expulsion of the
English from the Panjab. Sher Singh had been placed at
the head of the Sikh aristocracy by the British; and he
might reasonably hope, in time, to obtain the Ministership at
Lahore, and the guardianship of the young Prince to whom
. his sister was betrothed. This engagement, too, gave the
. family more importance in the eyes of the English than of
| the Sikhs; for, as the young Maharaja grew up, he wonld .
1 yahably marry many other wives: and in the Panjab the
influence of = wife is little felt outside the walls of the Zanana.
i ¥ mﬁmghmwellmtmt with his own prospects; and there
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was no reason that Chatar Singh should be dissatisfied. T
was at one time asserted that the suspicions of Captain Abbo
drove Chatar Singh into treason; but that able officer only
suspected where there was good reason for suspicion : and the
correctness of his judgment has been fully proved.

Sardar Chatar Singh was a weak and & timid man, and
was ever aceustomed to depend upon the advice of men wiser
and more determined than himself. There was one manupon
whom, more than upon all others, he was accustomed to rely,
and this was Maharaja Gulab Singh. There had not been
an intrigue in the Panjab for many years past in which
Gulab Singh had not been engaged, and from which he had
not reaped advantage. The most accomplished of courtiers,
the most subtle of diplomatists, the most unserupulous’ of
intriguers, Chatar Singh found him the most dangerous of
friends. The friendship between these men was of the closest
deseription. When the brother of Chatar Singh died, it was
the influence of Gulab Singh that procured for the Sardar
the grant of half his estates, to the prejudice of the son of
the deceased. In the troubles under Raja Hira Singh,
Chatar Singh had stood boldly by his friend, and for his
gake became an accomplice in the murder of Prince Pashora
Singh, The Sardar would never have determined on
rebellion without consulting Gulab Singh ; but, even had he
g0 determined, Gulab Singh could without difficulty have
dissuaded him from it.

Although the proofs of Gulab Singh’s complicity in the
rebellion might fail to satisfy a Court of Law, yet there is
gufficient evidence for history to decide against him. In the
first place, there is the universal belief, shared by the late Dost

Mahomed Khan, that Gulab Singh was the instigator of the

rebellion, and that against his will Chatar Singh would not
have raised his hand. The evidence of Hira Nand, the agent
sent by Chatar Singh to the Maharaja, recorded in Oectober




_ British supremacy in the Panjab. He perceived that if the
~ it, and Raja Sher Singh obtain power ; and he also knew that
 self Sovereign of Kashmir; and he knew that the loss of this

- Province was looked upon by the whole Sikh nation with
* ghame and rage: for it had been won with difficulty by the
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1849, though in many parts exaggerated and contradictory,
bears the general stamp of truth. If his evidence is received,
there can be no doubt of the Maharaja’s connection with the
rebels. Hira Nand does not appear to have had any reason for
accusing the Maharaja unjustly ; and his evidence is confirmed
in many important particulars by other witnesses whose
depositions were subsequently taken. No documentary
evidence of any importance was discovered; but the most
wily of men was not likely to commit himself by writing
what might be verbally explained, or expressed by a
sign, or by the pressure of a finger. This much abt
least is certain, that families of rebels took shelter in the
Maharaja’s territories; that rebel troops marched through
them unmolested, and drew from thence their supplies ; and
that, though his professions were large, the aid he rendered
to the Lahore Government was trifling in the extreme.

But, with all this, it is impossible to believe that Maharaja
Gulab Singh desired the defeat of the British. Gratitude for
the grant of Kashmir, any other man than Gulab Singh might
be expected to feel, but putting this aside, he was well aware
that his existence as a Sovereign Prince depended upon the

of British troops in the Panjab. He induced
Chatar Singh to rebel, because he desired his destruction
and that of his son; because he hoped for the subversion
of the Lahore monarchy and the establishment of

‘country remained tranquil the British would, as agreed, leave

in that case the Sikh arms would be first turned against him.
He had been more surprised than any one elze st finding him-

old Maharaja, and with the blood of many brave Sardars.
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Nor were the Sikhs his only fear. Post Mahomed Khan
remembered that Kashmir had once belonged to Kabul, and
was ready to attack it at the first opportunity. It was for
this that he made an alliance with the Sikhs, whom he hated,
and intrigued with the wild Mahomedan tribes of Hazara.
Betwoen the Sikhs and the Afghans, Gulab Singh was well
aware that without British aid he must inevitably fall.

His policy being thus in favour of the English, the
reasons that caused him to refrain from giving active assistance
to them are plain. He could not, being himself the instigator
of the rebellion, directly oppose it, without excifing great
hatred against himself. Sikhs and Afghans would have
united against him, and would have overrun Kashmir, while
the British troops were barely able to hold their own in the
plains. He waited until some decided success of the British
army should enable him to declare himself, heart and soul, on
its side. But after Chilianwala he began to doubt whether
the English could really hold the country. The decisive over-
throw of the Sikhs in 1845 had made him believe that with
a larger force, and with far greater advantages of position,
possessing, as they did, Lahore and Amritsar, the English
would again obtain an easy victory. Even their temporary
retivement would be fatal to him ; and thus, when he saw the
first portion of the eampaign undecisive and unsatisfactory,
he trembled for the result, and did not dare to break with the
Sikhs. Had Gulab Singh joined the English openly and

But this was not possible to him. His cantion and hesitation
in deciding ona plan were equal to his boldness and vigour

in its execution. Every course presented to his keen intellect
so many dangers, that he ever forbore to act until eireums
stances forced him into mction. Though personally brave
and fond of war, it was by fraud, not by force, that his
policy was distinguished. Throughout bis whole life he had

beldly, the campaign might have been more quickly decided.
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never joined & losing party, or even a winning one, until its

guccess was undoubted and assured. The policy of Maharaja

Gulab Singh was thus completely successful. The Sikhs

~ were conguered ; the Afghans driven ignominiously from the

_ Panjab; and the astute contriver of their downfall ruled in

~ peace under the strong protection of the only nation he had
ever learnt to trust.

The evidence against Maharaja Gulab Singh, however

' eonvincing it may appear to those who have studied the

" history of the times, must still be admitted to be incomplete

« - and indecizive. No evidence in his favour was ever heard,

B and if Diwan Jawala Sahai and other of his confidential

agents were examined they might have explained many

points which now appear most suspicions. Whatever hand

R Gulab Sinch may have had in the rebellion of Chatar Singh,

{§ he was not the sole cause of the Second Sikh War. The old

W Khalsa army and the whole Sikh nation, which was, by con-

| J  stitution and ereed, military, would never have settled down

peaceably under British rule without another trial of

‘ strength ; without a defeat which, like that of Gujrat, left

them no option but that of submitting to the stronger. Even

the troops of Sardar Chatar Singh were thoroughly disaffect-

A} ed; and withont any aid or instigation from Gulab Singh,

P they would in all probability have sooner or later rebelled.

| The Maharaja was, at all events, not hestile to the British.

i .

| If he desired and plotted for the downfall of the Sikh empire,

i a8 much as he did them, and would haye seen his ruin with
] r the utmost satisfaction.

1 Sardar Chatar Singh, Raja Sher Singh aud Sardar Atar

8 ﬂmgh, who had also joined the rebels, were placed under

~ gurveillance at Atari; but, being diseovered carrying on

. & treasonable correspondence, they were in Janvary 1850

| sent as prisoners, first to Allahabad, and then to Calcutta.

At is impossible to blame him ; for the Sikhs hated him fully
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Their estates were all confiscated. Chatar Singh, before the
war, possessed jagirs of the value of Rs. 1,22,000; Rs. 57, 000
being personal and Rs. 65,000 subject to service. Raja Sher -
Singh and his brother had personal jagirs worth Rs. 42,220. -
An allowance was granted them of Rs. 7,200 ; being Rs. 2,400

rort e

each to Chatar Singh, Sher Singh and Atar Bingh. Gulab
Singh did not join the rebels, being under surveillance at
Lahore. He had been placed with his brother Sher Singh

in charge of the young Mabaraja and the household arrange-
ments of the palace ; and he was evidently preparing to leave
Lahore and join his father when he was arrested on the 17th &
September, and detained in safe custody till the close of the ?
war. Nothing was, however, proved against him; and his
pension of Rs. 3,000 was equal in amount to what he had
received in land previous to the war. . |
Bibi Tej Kaur was never married to Msharaja Dalip §
Singh. After the war the match was broken off, and she 1
eventually married Janmeja Singh, son of Sardar Ishar Singh | 1
Gil Mariwala, by whom she had two sons. She died in 1863, Jg
In Janusry 1854, Chatar Singh, Sher Singh and Atar Singh, 1}
whose conduct since amnnexation had been irreproachable,
were released from confinement and allowed to choose their
own place of residence, within certain limits. Their allow-
ances were also raised: that of Chatar Singh to Rs. 8,000,
and of Sher Singh to Rs. 6,000, During the Burmese, the
Persian and the Sonthal Campaigns, Raja Sher Singh offered
his services to Government, and he even volunteered for
gervice in China during the late war. When the mutinies
broke out, Sardar Gulab Singh received a command, and |
served throughout the war with distinguished gallantry.
He received the title of Captain and, with his brothers Tej
Singh and Atar Singh, the grant of a zamindari mﬂmﬂ;,
worth Rs. 28,800 per annum. Each of the bro'thmﬂln
held a life pension of Bs, 7,200, raised to that amount on the

PRI I.




death of Raja Sher Singh, which took place at Banares in
1858.

Raja SBher Singh, according to Hindu ideas, obliterated
all the faults of his life by the sanctity of his death. When
he felt his end approaching, he called the Brahmans to his

- bed-side, and asked of them how he could escape trans-

migration, the constant and life-long terror of Hindus. They
told him that for seven days he must lie, fasting, by the

- Ganges, listening to the Blagawat, the most sacred of all the
. eighteen Puranas. So, morning after morning, the dying
. Raja was carried to the river-side ; and throughout the day

he listened, as well as his fading senses would allow, to the

' words of the Puran. On the evening of the seventh day he
- gave Rs. 2,000 to the Brahmans, and died. Thus, an exile,
~ far from his country, in the sacred city of Banares, and by

the waters of the holy river, died before his time Raja Sher

- ‘Bingh.

His father Sardar Chatar Singh had died early in the

- same year at Caleutta. Of Sardar Chatar Singh’s four sons

only Atar Singh now remains, He has elected to live at Rai

_ Bareily in the North-West Provinces, and is gradually sever-
_ ing his connection with the Panjab.

The case of Captain Gulab Singh was taken up warmly by

~ his old friend and companion in arms, Lord Napier of Mag-
~ dala, when Commander-in-Chief in India. Sir Henry Davies
- also mterested himself in the Sardar’s behalf, and in 1872
. cancelled the order forbidding him to reside in the Panjab.
i Enma then, the Sardar has been regarded as the representative

uﬁh& junior branch of the Atari family. He took up his abode

t Amritsar in 1878. He was gazetted as a Magistrate in
1334, and in the same year was attached to the Staff of the
Tmeru]r as Aide-de-Camp on the occasion of the visit of His

Excellency the Marquis of Ripon to Lahore. Two years ]
* later he was appointed a councillor to the Maharsja of Jamu
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and Kashmir on a salary of Rs. 12,000 per annum. He died
in 1887 leaving an only son, Nahal Singh, then aged four
~years. The Sardar at the time of his death was possessed of
~ property at Rai Bareily and Atari valued at seven lakhs of
rupees, yielding an income of about Rs. 17,000 per annum.

The estate is in charge of Lala Gurmukh Rai of Amritsar,

under control of the Distriet Court of Wards. The minor
receives from the British Government an allowance of Rs.
3,600 per annum, and from the Maharaja of Jamu a similar

grant. The late Sardar was a gentleman of some culture,

and had made himself popular by his generosity, liberal spirit
and kindly ways. He was admired and respected by tly
best men of the upper classes in the Panjab as well as
every British officer who bad the privilege of knowing hir
His sudden death, from heart disease, at a comparativel

early age, was regarded by all as a heavy loss to the Si
community.




_ uf 'L‘[a.jltha, situated ten miles to the morth

Amritsar, has given its name to onme of the

pished families of the Panjab. The great Majithia

Hided into three branches, represented by Sardars
), 5 mt, Singh, and Mahtab Singh. The relation. =
Barﬂnramdutant,auﬂthﬂhmtmyoithem

-'-r ﬂlﬂtlnﬂt. Sardar Dayal Singh and Sardar

s fifth consins. But Surat Singh is a very

: . ; and it is necessary to go back fourteen
#llons to find a common ancestor for the three Majithia

€t in rank and influence is the family of Sardar Dayal
oigll. His great-grandfather, Nodh Singh, was a respectable
findar of the Shergil Jat tribe. Nodh Singh married the
~ sis _‘:-. of Sardar Amar Singh Bhaga, the powerful Chief of
X “Dharamkot-Bhaga, and became Zaildar or feudal retainer
' of his brother-in-law, who was of the Kanhya Misal, and
_' possessed a large territory in the Gurdaspur district. Nodh
~ Singh acquired a jagir of Rs. 2,500, including two wells, at
Mha.nnﬂd:eﬂ in 1788 leaving one son, Desa Singh, then
of age. The young man succeeded to his =
= or’s estate, anﬂhﬂthewarl&ﬂﬂmmmaﬂmthaw
- aﬁueuﬁhu Bhaga Sardars. But when Maharaja Ranjit Singh -
: '-iumwmhaamm]nhn and Dharamkot, determined
1 um the estate of Sardar Budh Singh Bhags, who had

fe
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- failed to give the supplics demanded ofl him for the Kangra
. expedition, Desa Singh, who was very \ vise in his generation,
‘saw that resistance was hopeless, and haw, ing, besides, no love
dor Budh Singh went over to the side of f.the Maharaja, who
received him with open arms, and, wheny Budh Singh was
: vanquished, bestowed upon him the jagi 8y, of Sukalgarh and
~ Bhagowal, which had for many years be@en a portion of the
. Bhaga estate, 9
. Sardar Desa Singh accompanied Ramy w3
. expedition to Kangra, where Raja Sansar O
~ bad begged his assistance to expel the Gurkhas
- Amar Singh Thapa. Sansar Chand must
| diffioult to distinguish his friends from his ¢ " \emi
Ranjit Singh, driving out the Gurkhas, seized
key to the Kangra vallay, and appointed Desa S 1,
' mandant, He was also made Nazim, or Governghe.
Btates, Kangra, Chamba, Nurpur, Kotla, Shahpih
{ Basauli, Mankot, Jaswan, Siba, Goler, Kahhibs
Suket, Kulu, and Datarpur. In 1811 Sardar Deald
- marched against the fort of Kotla, half way betweenif
-and Nurpur, held by Dhian Singh, who had been B 2
_ the Raja Goler, and sho, trusting to the strength ¢ hi
‘position, had given himself the airs of ag independent Clillef,
. The Maharaja promised Desa Singh half the TIlaka ¥ of
¢ Tiloknath, in which the fort was situated, in jagir if he IR
- succeeded in reducing It in & week ; and the energetic Sardar o
.~ did the work in the appointed time and obtained the jagir,
. worth Rs. 7,000. Two years later he was sent to annex the
'__'"rynfthaRujaaf Haripur, who had been shamelessly
-~ arrested at Lahore. ' —
- suﬂunmﬂinghmappomdeormofﬂm@q of
(Amritaar, and in 1818 be served in the Multan Campaign
‘with distinction i the force of Prince Kbarak Singh. After




.,

mdl the tribute due from the different
newas refractory ; and Desa Singh =
 and seized his territory, bothon

and that under British protection.

'the Treaty of the 25th Angust 18095 4
vere without delay put in movement to. =
repudiated the action of his Lieutenant, 9
Fingh to visit Captain Ross, the officerin =

Hijll Frontier, to offer apologies, which were ac-
gnd, indeed, the eivilities which passed between 4

2 the Maharaja’s jealousy, and for some time he

| 8ingh to have any intercourse with any British

foorcroft, passing through Amritsar in 1820,

Jesa Singh was unable to visif him on account

GBiflon. About this time the Sardar received a

Jks Bhaguwala in the Firozpur distriet, where he

£t and seized by violence some villages belonging
dhlawalia Sardar in the Malanwala Tlaka. His jagirs

 oxtensive. During the reign of Ranjit Singh he, =

pn Lahna Singh, received grants to the value of =

950 per annum. These included Majitha, Tiloknath,

Lwala, o large portion of the old Bhaga estate of which

fad been made Governor, Bhaowal, Hariki, Khndpur, -

bshera-Nangli, and Zamanabad, in the Kangra district. g

F- Sardar Desa Singh died in 1832, and was suceeeded in
" all his estates and honours by his eldest son Sardar Lahna
~ Bingh. His life had been uniformly prosperous; snd the

A

~ favour of his Sovereign, who had given him the title of
" Rasir-ul-iktidar (Chief of Exalted Dignity), never leaser
" He was a brave and successful soldier, and a wise and liberal

" administrator; and his name is still remembered with affection

~ by the people, whom he never oppressed. 3
" Surdar Lahna Singh served with credit in the Multan:
~ Campaign of 1818, and soon became known for ability ; nd

| - -
-y e
iy b i~
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. leaming. When Ranjit Singh deterinined to seize the
_ possessions of his mother-in-law, Mai |
~ Singh was selected to superintend th
_ The intriguing lady was seized
. Amritsar. All her estates were
Kanhya Misal, of which she was head, maie no attempt to
- save her. Ranjit Binghhndnﬂt&tpeﬂad*u easy a suceess,

Singh Harchandar. He set off at once, _
- few men into the Nanga fort, and defended
_ time bravely. The fort of Atalgarh also held o
 weeks, defended by one of Mai Sada Kaur's slave girls, who
- seemed to have acquired some of the spirit of her riy;
5 After the death of Desh Singh, his son reeei
‘the Hill territory between the Ravi and the atlaj, and
- held the appointment till the beginning of 1 . Lahna
- Singt did not reside in the hills, but at Amritsar or b7 jitha,
At the former place he was in charge of the Darbar - lahib,
'_Eikh‘tampla,nahiafathnrhnﬂbm,ﬂpmtof I tance
Tequiring great tact and judgment. Once year he de
- A tour in the hills to inguire into the state of the coun
to redress grievances, and to examine the accounts. He
& mild and benevolent man, and, like Desa Singh, bears 3.
character of being one of the hest Governors that the Sikh o
rule (famous for rapacity and corruption) ever produced.
Lahna Singh possessed the greatest influence with Maharaja -
Ranjit Singh, and his counsel was always listened to with

Liml =

State)

&

was selected to take charge of a mission to Caleutta tumuy o N
presents for the King of England, and to endesvour, if

, 14
=
5

1834 Gujar Singh Majithia, brother of Lahna Singh,

."_ l.
-

g
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: mﬂ:mgar&m Shikarpur. The selection was not a happy one.
- Sardar Gujar Singh was a young man of ordinary ability,
- considerable conceit, and debauched habits. He took withhim =
one hundred men, splendidly appointed, the finest that could
_ be picked out of the Sikh army. With him, too, to keep him
~ in order, were sent Rai Govind Jas, brother to Rai Kishan
4 Chand, Gulab Singh, Commandant, called afterwards Calcuttia,
- and Dewa Singh, Commandant ; and plenty of difficulty they
had with their charge, who fell desperately in love with a
European woman in Caleutta, and wanted to marry her, fo
the horror of Govind Jas and the annoyance of Ranjit
Singh, who excluded him for some time after his return
- from Darbar. He brought back no information about
~ Shikarpur, but plenty of English airs and graces, which
~ created great amusement at the Labore Court. Among
other English tastes acquired by Gujar Singh was a love for
champagne, from the effects of which, one evening, about two
years after his return from Calcutta, he walked over the
parapet of the roof of his house at Amritsar and, falling some
forty feet, was killed on the spot.
In 1840, after the death of Ranjit Singh, Prince Nao Nahal
. Bingh sent a force under Sardar Ajit Singh Sindhanwalia
~ and General Ventura against Mandi. Raja Balbir Sen was
- taken prisoner and brought to Amritsar, imprisoned in
. Govindgarh, and his territory annexed. But Lahna Singh
~ interested himself very warmly for his old friend, and, when
"l[aharaja Sher Singh ascended the throne, procured his
~ release and the restoration of his country. He signed, with
the Sindhanwalias and other Chiefs, the agreement which
whnﬂnda Sher Singh from the throne, for at leasta
time ; mdwhenthntPnnmmam]mdtaLahumandbmagad
. the fort, Labna Singh was in great alarm and hid himself
in Jamadar Khushal Singh’s house till the end of the
ﬂap. When Raja Hira Singh rose to power, Sardar Lnlmn.

» "
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Singh, who was hated by Pandit Jala, the Minister’s confidant,
fearing to lose his estates or his life, and filled with sudden
religions aspirations, left the Panjab on a pilgrimage. He
first visited Hardwar, and then proceeded to Banares, :
Allahabad, Jaganath and Calcutta, where he was residing g
‘when the Satlaj Campaign commenced, in November 1845,
- Before leaving the Panjab he made over the management of
~ his estates to his half-brother Ranjodh Singh, the youngest
~ son of Sardar Desa Singh by a hill woman.
\ Sardar Ranjodh Singh was at this time a General in
" the Sikharmy. He had lately returned from the expedition
sent by the Wazir, Jawahir Singh, against Baja Gulab Singh -
of Jamu, and was quite ready for a war with the English,
for whom he had no great love. He moved his brigade,
consisting of ten thousand infantry, sixty guns, and some
irregular cavalry, to Philaor ; and onthe 17th January 1846 he
crossed the Satlaj, intending to move on Ludhiana and capture,

- if possible, the siege train which was on its way to the head-
quarters of the army. At Badowal, on the 21st January, he =
intercepted the force of Sir Harry Smith, who was marching
to Ludhiana, and, more from the exhaustion of the British
troops, than from any display of generalship on his part,
captured almost all the baggage of the army. This affair so

. much encouraged the troops of Ranjodh Singh, who had
been joined by Sardar Ajit Singh of Ladwa, that at Aliwal,
. on the 28th January, they left a strong position, contrary to
 the orders of the General, to attack the British force. The
- defeat which they experienced is a matter of history ; and
there is no occasion to dwell upon it here. Ranjodh Singh, who
was, if anything, superior to the other leaders of the Sikh _1
~ army ; if leaders they can be called, who were ever the last
. toenter the fight and the first to run away. His generalship
~ was as contemptible as that of Raja ImJSmgh.ﬂHu-

mmﬂnanmup:mauthat of Raja Tej Singh ; bltb*fh
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" was no traitor. He had no confidential agents in the British

camp as Raja Ll Singh had ; nor did he, like the Raja, pray

for and labour for the triumph of the English.
_ Soon after the close of the campaign, Sardar Lalna
Singh returned from Oalcutta at the invitation of the Couneil
and the Resident. He declined to be formally admitted into
thie Council, but was ready to give, privately, any advice he
" could, and accepted the charge of Amritsar, Govindgarh
~ and the Manjha in its widest acceptation, being the whole
tract of country between the Ravi and the Bias from the
Hills to Kasur. A great dispute now arose between Lahna
- Bingh and Ranjodh Singh. The latter had preaarﬁﬂl the
- estates entrusted to him for two years and a half in very
 difficult times, and claimed on Lahna Singh’s return a half
. ghare of them. Lahna Singh only wished to allow him a
. pittance, amounting to about a twentieth of the whole. Both
*  proposals were unjust ; and it required all the influence of
. 8ir H. Lawrence to settle the dispute, and to induce Lahna
Bingh to allow his half brothera jagir of Rs. 12,000 per snnum.
In August 1844 Lahna Singh consented to join the
Council. His administration of the Manjha had been
ful. Although he had an objection to capital punishment, he
" contrived to free the country of robbers and dacoits, who
- had overrun it after the close of the war ; and there was no
~ Bardar whose rule was so generally popular, But his
* practised eye saw the signs of coming disturbances, and he
~ determined to leave the Panjab. In January 1848 he lefs
for Banares. His personal jagirs and religious grants,
- amounting to Rs. 42,000, and service jagir of Rs. 15,000 were -
‘continued to him. All the other jagirs were resumed; but the
;Jmmtﬂrﬂﬁtmthﬂmmhlﬂmtumtﬁlhﬂmmtry %
At the close of the Batlaj Campaign, SardarEanjodhﬂmgt, ]
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~ His exertions to effect this object were not great; and thereis =
- every reason to believe that, through his instigation, the =
- garrison held out longer than it would otherwize have done,
" He was then appointed Judge of Lahore; but in this post he did
" not give any satisfaction. When the dispute with his brother
was finally adjusted, some guns, which should have been
returned to Lahna Singh, were concealed by Ranjodh Singh
~ in a house at Amritsar. He denied their concealment ; but a
- forcible search being made, a large mortar, two 24-pound
- howitzers and a 6-pounder were found. His conduct on this
occasion induced the Darbar, on the recommendation of the
~ Resident, to remove him from the Judgeship, in which he was
succeeded by Sardar Kahan Singh Man. The next year, 1848,
~ soon after the outbreak at Multan, he was detected in &
treasonable correspondence with Mulraj, and was placed in
confinement, only being released at the close of the war.

When Ranjodh Singh was arrested and carried prisoner
to the fort, 10,000 budkis® were left in his Lahore house,
locked up in a chest. When the Sardar was released, the
money was gone. The theft was attributed to common
~ thieves ; but it is believed that some Sardars, wealthy and
im;numﬁ could have told what became of the money. The
~ Darbar confiscated his jagir; but after annexation he was
allowed by his brother an annuity of Rs. 2,500. On the death

- of Lahna Singh the allowance ceased ; and the Government

4 gmntﬂdluma cash pension of Rs. 3,000 per annum, which
“be held till his death in 1872. His only son Gajindar Bmgl'h
| was recently released from the Court of Wards, o
~ Sardar Lahna Singh retwrned to the Panjab in 18 '
but after two years went back to Banares, where he died

" in 1854 He left one son, Sardar Dayal Singh, now
. the head of the family. He is well educated in
.'Eommanﬂ’f{mﬂl, He holds a perpetual jagir ufﬂlﬁ.ﬂ@

® A gold zoin, then worth five mupees,

i
_. i
»
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_ and Rs. 5,200 from Dharmarth, Bs. 1,200 of which is for the. Y
Readers of the Granth at Tiloknath in the Kangra distriet. He
also owns property purchased by his father some years agom

. the Amritsar, Gurdaspur and Firozpur districts ; and he has
' lands in the Shahabad district of Bengal. The Sardar visited

. England some years ago. He now usually resides at Luhore.

He has not hitherto taken an active part in public affairs.

. Sardar Lahna Singh wss a man of considerable ability.

. He was a skilful mechanist and an original inventor. He
much improved the Sikh ordnance; and some very beautiful
 guns of his manufacture were taken at Aliwal and elsewhere.

" Among other things he invented a clock which showed the
hour, the day of the month and the changes of the moom. =

- He was fond of astronomy and mathematics, and was master
of several languages. As an administrator, Lahna Singh

. wasvery popular. The poor were never oppressedsby him ;
 his assessments were moderate ; and his decisions essentially

just. As a statesman, he may be said to have been almost

~ the only honest man in Lahore. Fraud and corruption were

supreme, but the hands of Lahna Bingh were always clean:

. surrounded by the most greedy and unscrupulous of schemers,

" he preserved his honesty unsullied. 3
1 Had s man of the reputation and administrative talent
‘ "uiI.almn Singh taken the lead in 1845 in the Panjab, the
. great troubles which came upon the country might have been

_ " erted. But he was no true patriot. He did not understand

t the religion of a statesman, and indeed of every brave

: .||1: AL mtastandhy his country in times of danger, sharing her

t rriefs snﬂ,zf.nﬂadbe falling with her fall.
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SARDAR UMRAO EINGH MAJITHIA.

|
£, h:l-:'&h;lh T Mgl )
E. Eaban Stagh. y

Faieh Bingh, Jal

MLﬂinqh. m--im;p. 8, Am‘ldnl'h.. Fartab km;l.
Mm E'HL
| |
8. U??u.g.un Bm::-‘l.um!hm
. |65E

L_ike“ﬂm rest of the Majithia clan, the brothers Izat Singh
and Sahaj Singh followed the fortunes of the Sukarchakia
. Bardars. Izat Singh was able to acquire a strip of the Dhani
~ country on his own account, and held it, with much difficulty
" and by dint of constant fighting, till his death in 1772. His
gons Fateh Singh and Jaimal Singh were mere boys at the
time of his death, so his brother Sahaj Singh took possession
of the estate, In 1781 Sahaj Singh died, and Utam Singh,
~ his eldest son, succeeded to the whole property without any
~ opposition from Fateh Singh and Jaimal Singh, who might
- hiave been reasonably expected to have claimed their father’s
~ghare. The cousins lived together in harmony; and when
 Ranjit Singh rose to power submitted to bim and, having paid |-._
tﬁhuta, were confirmed n l:ha estate. Huwev&r, soon after

- wmdﬂh‘ﬂngfurt about six miles from the river n'ﬂﬁ’
whi hldbunmptm&&fmmthe.ﬁfghmbrﬁuﬂlrﬂw
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" Singh. Sardar Utam Singh refused, but before hostilities
" commenced thought better of it, and gave up hoth to the
" Maharsja, who placed the fort in the charge of Muhar Singh
~ Lamba and Raja Nur Khan; and the Maharaja then took
possession of the whole Dhani country, then famous for
~ its breed of horses. Atar Singhb, the adopted son of Utam
Singh, was in 1809 made Governor of the district about =
Rawalpindi. Utam Singh died in 1827, and all his jagirs
were resumed. But the family were not left destitute. Atar
. Singh received an estate of Rs. 28,000 at Sayad Kasra and
" Ganja Mahal; and Kahan Singh his cousin, whose father, Sar-
dar Amar Singh, had fallen in Hazars, one of the same value at
- Kot Bhai and Sayadpur. Amar Singh, the father of Kahan
Singh, was a very distinguished soldier. He was known as
~ Amar Singh, Kalan (great); while the father of Sardar
| Mahtab Singh Majithia was known as Amar Singh, Khurd
-~ (small). .
" When Diwan Ram Dayal was killed in Hazara, Amar -
Singh Kalan was appointed Governor of that country. At
~ first he held it in tolerable quiet; but finally quarrelled with
 Mahomed Khan Tarin, a Chief of note, and at Taragarh gave
- asevere defeat to the tribes, Dhund, Tarin, Tanol and Karals
~ who had taken up arms in his favour. The battle was over,
' the enemy had taken to flight, and the Sikh force had retired
from the field, when Amar Singh, thirsty and fatigued, went
E yn to the little stream Samandar to bathe and drink. He
2 only afew horsemen with him ; and a number of the enemy
returning, and seeing the weakness of the little party, came
- down and killed Amar Singh and bis followers after a
" desperate defence. For a month the body of the Sardar was 2
aft on the ground where he fell ; but at last the Sikhs
. recovered it, and it was burnt with due honours.
¢ To this day in Yusufzai the name of Amar Singh is well
§  remembered; and the people still show a large tree, pierced
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throngh and through with an arrow, which they say was shot

from the bow of Amar Bingh. Atar Singh was some time after

allowed to have the management of the old family Ilaka of

- Dhani, though he did not hold it in jagir. He was killed in

Hazarain 1843, and his only son Surat Singh succeeded him.
This young man was stationed at Peshawar with his sowars, and

during the First Panjab War in 1845-46 had tokeep order about.

Naushera, which was in a very unsettled state. When Raja

- Lal Singh was Minister, he tried to induce Surat Singh to ex-

1

-

change his jagir in Jhilam for one in the Bari Doab ; and when

. the SBardar would not consent, he sent his brother Amar Chand
toseize by force the jagir and the fort of Sayad Kaisra,

Surat Singh resisted this violence; but he would have been

overpowered had not Lal Singh's Kashmir intrignes worked

. lis downfall at the close of 1846. As it was, a large portion |

of his jagirs were resumed, but were restored early in 1847.

When the rebellion of 1848 broke out, Sardar Kahan Singh

- was at Peshawar, where he wasin command of the Orderly
. Regiment. Heremained faithful to the last, more from timidity
. than from loyalty, and when the Peshawar troops mutinied

did bis best to induce them to return to their duty. But

" when Sardar Chatar Singh Atariwala arrived at Peshawar,
~ Kahan Singh joined him, though unwillingly, and aarwdmﬂl
the rebel army till the end of the campaign.

Sardar Surat Singh in no way shared his cousin’s

k. misgivingsor fears. He joined the rebellion from the first,
- and, indeed, was one of its exciters. Itseems thatso early as

July 1847 he had talked treason with Sardar Ghatarﬂmghﬂ

and when he was summoned from Peshawar in July lﬂﬁh

-Join Raja Sher Singh with five hundred horse, he had anothe

- meeting on the road with Chatar Singh, and brought to Raja

\ Sher Singh his father’s injunctions to rebel. The aam

of Raja Sher Singh appears to have been in a great measure
mg to Surat Singh’s evil influence. The evidence ﬂ
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 Shekh Imamudin Khan is to the effect, that at the meeting
" of Raja Sher Singh's officers at Multan on the night of the
" 14th September, Raja Sher Singh tried to persuade his men
~ to remain faithful ; but that Surat Singh harangued the
~ goldiery, and by his arguments so inflamed their passions, that
- the Raja could only secure his safety by adopting the popular
side and going over to Mulraj. When Sher Singh left Multan,
Surat Sinfh was placed in command of one division of his army ;
~ two thousand men and two guns. Onthe march to Jalalpur,
in the Gujaranwala district, this detachment committed many
 excesses. At Chaniot especislly, where the population is
. Mahomedan, and at Jhang, the mosques were defiled and many
| of the inhabitants shamefully treated. Suarat Singh also
. plundered two lakhs of Government money on its way to
Multan. After the battle of Gujrat retribution came. The
jagirs of Surst Singh, worth Rs. 22,500, were confiscated,
and he was removed to Banares, where he remained under
. guryeillance on a pension of Rs. 720 per annum.
Kahan Singh’s conduct was regarded with some pity. He
hﬂmadttbmmumimthful,huthud not at last strength to resist
' the persnasions and example of others ; but his criminality did
ot approach that of Surat Singh. His jagirs were confiscated
 to the value of Rs. 40,000, but he was allowed a pension of
: ﬁ:. 3,600 per annum, which he enjoyed till his death in 1853.
‘When Kahan Singh lost his jagirs he was the owner of two
‘elephants, which had been nsed on all oceasions of state. But
. the Sardar considered that both be and his elephants could
" ot ih'e in idleness upon his pension, and determined to make
n of use. He accordingly had a framework constructed,
t]mnnﬂar side of which some twenty ploughs were fastened
& long line. To this he yoked his elephants; and the =
m animals plonghed the Majitha fields as if they had
n born to the work ; and people used to come from all
qmﬂu'amnae the wonderful sight. He also had a very largn
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well and Persian wheel constructed, and made the elophants

irrigate the fields which they had ploughed.

The Mutiny of 1857 found Sardar Surat Singh still in
exile at Banares. Adversity had tanght him wisdom; and
he was now as warm in his loyalty as he had before been
active in« rebellion. On the 4th June 1857 the 37th N. L
were broken up at Banares, and some suspicions movemeént

-

U

being observed in a corps of Ludhiana Sikhs presefit on the

ground, the guns, which were being served against the 37th,

0 were turned againsb the ‘Sikhs. The whole affairsceris to/ 0

have been a miserable mistake ; and there is no reason to believe

- that the corps was anything but loyal. But it was not

prepared for so severe a test of its loyalty, and accordingly

charged the guns; but was repulsed with great loss and driven

from the field. Ithappened that the Banares Treasury, which

contained several lakhs of rupees and the jewels of the
Maharani Jindan, valued at twenty lakhs, was guarded by a

detachment of the Bikh regiment which had been cut up.

Hard by the Treasury was the Collector's Court, a strong

masonry building, on the roof of which some twelve Civilians
had taken their stand to defend the treasure and their own
lives in the event of an ontbreak. When the Sikh guard
heard of the fate of their comrades, their agitation and mgnr
was extreme, and they would certainly have mutinied, - seis
the treasure, and attacked the Europeans, had not Sard _
Burat Singh gone in among them and, by his persor
~ influence and expostulations, kept them to a sense of f

duty. Through that long June night, the Sardar, ably
seconded by Pandit Gokal Chand, argued and entmﬁ s%ﬂ
towards morning, the little party were escorted to the mint b

. & European force. At Jaunpur, another detachment of &
- Ludhiana Regiment was stationed. Whanthﬂamarhnﬁ

dﬂ:ﬁdﬂhmnhnnofthmmgmﬂnt,thay rose mfuqf,
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- marched to Lucknow with the treasure. But for the gallantry

- and loyalty of Surat Singh, the same tragedy might have

- taken place at Banares. Some time later, the Sardar com-

. manded the force sent to bring in the Sultanpur fugitives,and
on several other occasions showed conspicuous gallantry in the
field. On the 6th July, when engaged with a body of Rajputs

- who had attacked Banares, he was severely wounded by a sabre-

- cut on the thigh, which confined him to his bed for some

- months, and from the effects of which he became lame.

! For his services during 1857, the Supreme Government
granted Sardar Surat Singh a pension of Rs. 4,800 per
annum, and & valuable jagir in perpetuity at Dumri in the
Gorakhpur district, North-West Provinces. He also received

_ permission to return to the Panjab. '

. From his return to Majithia in 1861 until his death, Raja
Surat Singh devoted much of his time to the improvement of
 his property. He was an active man, of business habits, In

- 1875 he was appointed an Honorary Magistrate, and was
invested with eivil judicial powers, which he exercised at

- Majithia, building a commodious Court-house at his own

- expense. In 1877, on the occasion of the Dehli Imperial

- Assemblage, the titleof Raja was conferred upen him. In
‘the same year he received the Companionship of the Star of

- India. The Raja died in 1881 at Majithia, leaving two sons,
Umrao Singh and Sundar Singh. Their mother, Rani Karam

: :'ii ur, died in 1875. The management of the estate and the 4

1 ;pnrdia.uahip of the sons devolved upon Sardar Captain Gulah

.

- 8i ..-_ Atariwala, under the supervision of the Court of Wards.

- On the death of Captain Gulab Singh in 1887, Lala Gormukh
~ Rai, a Pleader of Amritsar, was appointed to the charge. In
- November 1882 the minors were entered on the rolls of the

.j!!nm School, Amritsar. Sardar Umrao Singh has
~ passed Entrance Tests of the ijabnndﬂalcuttaﬂniwﬁﬁﬁ; -2

~ He and his brother are studying in the Aitchison College at,

B
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~ Lahore. Sardar Sundar Singh passed the Middle Schml' -

" Examination in 1888. In 1883 Sardar Umrao Singh was _
married to the daughter of Captain Gulab Singh. Sardar
Sundar Singh was married in 1887 to the danghter of Sardar

~ Bishan Singh of Kandaula in the Ludhiana district, maternal y.

uncle of the Raja of Faridkot. She died in the same year.
In lien of his pension of Rs. 4,800, Raja Surat Singh was in
1874 awarded ajagir of the same amount in perpetuity, to
descend integrally ; the successors being chosen by Govern-

- ment. The annual income of the estate is about Rs. 50,000,

~ of which Bs. 40,000 is from the Oudh property in the
Gorakhpur district. Sardar Sundar Singh has quite recently
married a daughter of Sardar Sir Atar Singh, K.C.LE.,
Chief of Badaur in the Ludhiana district. The expenses of
the ceremony were entirely regulated by the new rules
- formulated by the bride’s father. This is the first marriage
. in the upper classes at which these regulations were respected.

. They have for their object the repression of one

sonrce of debt in most Indian families, namely, lavish lmupl- '
 tality and extravagant accessories on occasions of betrothal and
: A sister of Sardar Umrao Singh married in 1889 a son
of the late Sardar Ajit Singh Alawalpuria, of Jalandhar.




BHAI GURBAKHSH BINGH.

BHAT BAM SINGH,

The ancestors of Bhai Pardaman Singh resided at Chaniot
" in the Jhang district, and several of them af different times
entered the service of the Mahomedan Chiefs of Multan; but
the early history of the family is in no way important. Ram
Singh became a Sikh and a follower of Gurn Govind Singh.
1 He was a zealons preacher of the Sikh faith, in his own part
_ of the country, so much so that the Mnltan authorities grew
alarmed and ordered his arrest; but he received timely informa-
hun, and was able to escape to Amritsar. The Multan
arnor took Surat Singh, the only son of Ram Singh,
into his service, and the father, thinking all danger to be
p .1 returned home, where he died shortly afterwards.
m Bmgh then left Multan and wandered about the
,-' puntry as his father had done, preaching the Sikh faith ; u.nli_
" his conduct excited the same suspicions. He contrived to get
'jan.&mntaarmhh most of his property, and was soon
ized by the Chiefs, who were attha.tnmabem or
and was placed in charge of the building of tk
Sﬂ]ﬂi,the&ikhtampleatﬁmntm In the Jals uh

.ﬁ
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" Doab he acquired a small jagir, where he built a fort, and then
yeturned to Amritsar, where he died. i
I In 1806 Maharaja Ranjit Singh conquered the plain
 portion of the Jalandhar Doab ; but he allowed Sant Singh to
retain his jagir, and he appointed him to succeed his father in
the superintendence of repairs and decorations of the Darbar
Sahib. Bhai Sant Singh was no contemptible soldier, and
on several occasions he served with credit. During the =
~ Campaign of 1821 the Maharaja was engaged in the siege of
" a small fort on the way to Mankera. Suddenly the sky =
grew dark, and a violent storm came on. Ranjit Singh was
caught by a furious blast of wind and thrown into the ditch
from which the earth for the batteries had been excavated. ;
Sant Singh saw his fall and, knowing that it is an ill wind

" that blows nobody any good, sprang into the ditch and,

. lifiing the Maharaja in his avms, carried him in triumph to
his tent. For this service he received jagirs in the Amritsar
and Sialkot districts to the value of Rs. 6,800. Whether this

 story be false or true, it is certain that Sant Singh’s jagirs
‘were numerous, and that he stood high in the favour of the
Maharaja.

About this time Bhai Gurdas Singh, who had beena
reader of the Granth in the Darbar Sahib, died; and Sant
Singh, in grief for his loss, determined to give up worldly affairs
and devote himself to reading and expounding the seriptures, =
In the room of his father came to Court Gurmukh Singh, who

~ s00n became a8 great a favourite as Sant Singh had been.
Bhai Sant Singh was called Gaini (one who meditateson
. divine things), and was held in much respect till his death.
. He wrote a commentary on the Bamayana, and a treatise o g
the rite of the pahal, or Sikh baptism.
~ When Pardsman Singh was thirteen, the Maharaja ook
Tim into his service, and gave bim the jagir of Kaliwal, worth
s 1,100. Bhai Gurmukh Singh had not emjoyed much




- influence during the life-time of Ranjit Singh, for his enemy,
‘Bhai Ram Singh, was high in the favour of the Maharaja.
With Nao Nahal Singh he bad still less influence ; and when
the prince was killed he took up the cause of Prince Sher

~ Bingh warmly, for the principal reason that Ram Singh was

. leader of the rival party of Mai Chand Kaur.

When Sher Singh became Maharaja he did not forget
the services of Gurmukh Singh, whom he treated with great
consideration, and to whom he gave large jagirs. Butthe
real power was kept by Raja Dhian Singh, the Minister, in

~ his own hands. The Maharaja, thongh he hated Dhian
- Singh, and knew his unpopularity with the nation, could not
get rid of him. He, however, plaged off Gurmukh Singh
- against him ; and the Bhai, from his religious character and
- long friendship with the Mabaraja, could not be excluded
- from the presence. But otherwise, the contest between the
statesman and the priest was most unequal. Gurmukh Singh
- was supported by no powerful party ; he was withont character
- or ability ; while Raja Dhian Singh was the ablest man of his
day, subtle, plausible, cautious, though bold even to audacity
-in attacking and destroying his declared enemies.
- Throughout the reign of Sher Singh, the Bhai intrigued
~ against Raja Dhian Singh and joined in the Sindbhanwalia
~ eonspiracy against his life. When Raja Hira Singh, son of
the murdered Minister, rose to power, he, at the instigation of
~ Bhai Ram Singh and Misar Lal Singh, arrested Gurmukh
~ Bingh with his friend Misar Beli Ram, the Toshakhania,
::Mmﬂa them over for custody to Shekh Imamudin Khan,
‘hgwhmtbeywmputmdmth Bhai Ram Siogh was a far
.iﬂur man than his rival Gurmukh Singh, but of uuh:,gimr
- gharacter. Both were unserupulous and achemmgmen,md
Bnﬁmilamhglnntclmk for their ambition and intrigue.
2 After the death of Gurmukh Bingh, all the estates of
ﬂbhmﬂ;rmmnﬁmmd,anﬂthmr houses and pam

.)I: I
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property seized. Bhai Pardaman Singh and his brothers =
were imprisoned ab Amritsar, placed in irons, and treated
~with the greatest severity, The religious bodies of the city
madn great efforts to obtain their release; and, at last,
Pardaman Singh contrived to escape, and with his youngest
bmthar Arjan Siogh fled to-Ludhiana, where he remained
- under protection of the British Government till the murder =
. of Hira Singh allowed him to return to Lahore. The four
~ brothers obtained the release of a portion of their jagirsin 3
the Amritsar distriet, amounting to Rs. 5,483, ~ Bhai Parda-
- man Siogh then set out to Hardwar to perform his father’s
~ funeral rites, and was promised that on his return the other
~ jogirs of Gurmukh Singh should be released. On his return
- his honses at Amritsar‘were made over to him, and he would
~ have probably recovered the rest of the property hndnntﬂmi_ :
- war with the English commenced while his case was still
- pending, followed by the sunexation of the country in 1849,
The jagir of Rs. 5,488 at Mochal and Kuler Ghuma was released
_ for the lives of the brothers, subject to payment of one-
- quarter revenue. The British Government conld do no more. |
- for the family. Bhai Gurmukh Singh had acquired hmw I
- possessions as much by his intrigues as his sanctity. Haplsyad.-n-.
. fora high stake, wealth and political power, and lost;
although the Sikh Government, and especially the army,ﬁ]}aﬂ
~ with remorse for the murder of the Bhai, which their o
-evil passions had allowed, would probably have again places ,,'
]u: family in an influential position, yet the British Governs
mtmu]ﬂmtheexpecmdmfeel either sympathy or remorse.
;_ Bmea:niumanSmghammpmmdBMannbm Singh
- Majithia to Banares in 1853, He was Irtn-:-'.
* Buperintendent of the regmrsofthnlhrharﬁab:hlt write
'w.mdhnﬂchargenfpgmtu the amount of Ruui,m -. ke
- annum, released in perpetuity for the support of ﬂllm 23 '
o was a man of great energy and public spirit, and took &
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' keen interest in all that concerned the affairs of the Darbar

~ Sahib and the city generally. He was a Member of the Board
" of Honorary Magistrates of Amritsar, He died in 1875,
: Bhai Gurbakhsh Singh has been recognized as his father’s
~ guccessor, and has received the vaeant chair in Viceregal
* Darbar. He is a young man of some promise, and has been
- carefully educated under the Court of Wards, having passed the
. Entrance Examination of the Panjab University. Three-fourths
' of his father’s jagir, or Rs. 720 per annum, has been continued
_ to Gurbakhsh Singh for life, and his mother is in receipt of an
_annual pension of two hundred and forty rupees.
~ The other property belonging to the family consists of a
. large gardenin Amritsar, a Bungah af the Golden Temple,
" some shops in different parts of the city,. besides a honse at
Huthmr Gurbakhsh Singh will shortly attain his majority,

" when he will doubtless oceupy the place held by his father us -

" Manager of the Temple Works and Repairs.
. Bhai Arjan Singh died in 1863. His son Jawsahir Singh
- enjoyed an allowance from Government of one hundred
\ rupees per annum, which ceased when he attained his majority
,lﬁilﬂﬂﬂ Arjan Singh’s widow receives a pension of Rs. 250
. per annum from the Amritsar Treasury.
- Jawahir Singh has fallen into evil ways, and has squan-
Bmd all he possessed. ;
! ' Madhosudan Singh entered the service in 1857 as a Jama-
ir of ten sowars, raised by his brother. He was present at the
ﬁutnm of mutineers at Ajnala in the same year, and, having
'I_n_‘iannmﬂun]lnmldnr was sent to Thanesar, where he diedin
m Hisv:ﬂwhnzah:fe -pension of Rs. 250 per annum.

Lahna Singh, the remaining brother, was a Naib-Tahsil- s

ﬁx,m owing to domestic bereavements, caused by the death

 of his wife and two sons, he retired from the service twenty
Hewnmﬂu!mt&lhg&nm,mihkmuwmm' :

w female education.
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SARDAR ARUR SINGH NAUSHARIA.

mm
B, llhrﬂnui-

I.n-.ﬁ-w

Like the Majithia Chiefs, Sardar Jasa Singh is of the
ﬂarg'nl.lattrﬂ:a.l}hmﬂhn Sarwani, the fifteenth in descent
from Sher, the founder of the tribe, built the village of

! Hnmhahm,aﬂm!mm'fmmasﬂmpursam during the
" reign of the Emperor Shah Jahan, and was permitted to hold
it rent-free as remuneration for collecting the revenues of the v
~ surrounding districts. For several gencrations the family 1
~ held the office of Chaudhri, paying the revenue into the Im- —
_ perial Treasury, until Mirza Singh joined the confederacy of
. Sardars Jai Singh and Hakikat Singh Kanhya, about 1752,
. and obtained, as his share of the conguered tmﬁtnry,tﬁé ‘_
villages of Ratangarh, Uchak, Bhori, Bhikuchak, Ram-
pur.Sn}uwnl,Halhmmdmml others, worth Bs.lﬁ,ﬂlﬁ“
_per annum. \
Mirza Singh died in 1787, and Sardar Jaimal ngh,am;la :
~ of Hakikat Singh, unmindful of the many and great services
 of the deceased, resumed the larger portion of his estates; and
- Sardar Fateh Singh Kanhya still further reduced them.
~ When, however, the sons -of Mirza Singh grew up, Sardar
. Nadhan Singh Kanhys granted them Madhapur and Salowal
" in the Hushiarpur district, worth Rs.1,500; and Mai Sada
_klm.'thn mother-in-law of Ranjit Singh, gave to Kaban
ﬁghﬁwﬁlhgaa of Bhogar, Barialah and Kohals, worth
ﬂ,ﬂﬂo mmptmhmmmmoem- >
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Kanhya Misal, Kahan Singh lost the last-named villages; but
bhe was made an officer in the irregular cavalry, and fought
with his regiment st Kasur and in the Kangra expedition of
1809. When Sardar Desa Singh Majithia was made Governor
of all the hill distriets between the Bias and the Satlaj, Kahan
Bingh was placed under his orders ; and from that time both he
and his son Jasa Singh remained in the service of the Majithia
Chiefs. They accompanied them in the field; filled Civil
offices under them ; and their history differs in no important
respect from that of their feudal lords.
Sardar Jasa Singh had for two years charge of the Sikh
temple at Amritsar, under Sardar Lahna Smgh Majithia.
~ After Lahna Singh's departure for* Banares, Jasa Singh
v ratqainad in the employ of the Lahore Darbar; but on
the annexation of the Panjab he was thrown out of
z! - ,p:_l;pluj',_ and his cash pension of Rs. 770 resumed. He
‘held jagirs to the value of Rs. 2,800, chiefly in the
Gurdaspur district, at Malkana, Hayati, Salowal, Bahram-
pur, Malkawala, Ratangarh and Shergarh, besides two
wells and a garden at Naoshehra Nangal, where he usually
-resided. These jagirs are upheld in perpetuity to the family.
- Harnam Singh, the only son of Sardar Jasa Singh,
was a Deputy Inspector of Police. He died in 1868.
- Ranjit Singh, brother of Kahan Singh, was never under
- the Majithia Chiefs. He was soon after the death of his
fgthar made a Commandant of Cavalry in Raja Hira Singh's
"lmgade, m]mntmg a half share of Iuafatharsaatatm He
- served at Multan, Bannu, Peshawar and e]aewhﬂre, but was

qlﬂlof any note. He was killed in 1846, m“ngm
_gm.Wmﬂmgh,than ﬂc]:ﬂdmmnnﬂmuld who died in
his infancy,

Hammﬁinghh{tamﬁmrﬁmgh,whnatthem@.
his father’s death was four years of age. Thaaﬁtnbawaahmaghtm-

pader the Ogurt of Wards, and was admipistered successively
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by the late Sardars Gulab Singh Bhagowalia and Ajit Singh

of Atari. Tn 1885 Sardar Arur Singh attained his majority \

and took charge of bis affairs. While s Ward of Court his

. odueation was not neglected, he having read up to the
 Entrance Standard. Sardar Arar Singh is Ala Lambardar

 of Nuoshehra and, in virtue of this office, he holds twenty-five

ghumaog of land in addition to eighty-five ghumaos situated

: mﬂm Gurdaspur district. He also owns some house pro-

perty in Amritsar city, bringing up his annual income to

-2 about five thousand rupees. Being a young man of consider-

able intelligence he has been nominated a Member of the -
Amritsar Local Board ; and in 1888 he was appointed to the
Bench of Honorary Magistrates in the city of Amritsar, ;
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RAI LACHMI SAHAL

is of a respectable Brahman family,
in the service of the Emperors of
L §s said fo have defended the life of

he royal Darbar, was about to attack
aghia Ram threw himself upon him -
pigh not without himself reeeivinga
bn Kawal Nuin emigrated to Lahore,
no very desirable placs of residence,
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from the invasions of Nadir Sheh and Ahmad Shah, and
the ever-ingreasing. dcpredations of the Sikhs, who were
rapidly gaining strength and boldness. In a fight with
the Afghans no less than twenty-six of his relatives fell ; and
Kawal Nain himself escaped with difficalty. He died young,
leaving an only mﬁﬂha;u lll:ﬂ then a boy of about ten years, _
of age. . P
When Chajn Mal grew up, he entered the service of
Sardar Jei Singh Kanhya, Chief of the moat punrful of the
Sikh Confoderacies, He received a command in the Surdar's
force, and aceompanied most of the expeditions against the
‘neighbouring Chiefs. He was present at the battle of Achal
in 1783, when Gurbakhsh Singh, son of Sardar Jui Singh, =
~ was killed fighting agninsh Jasa Singh Ramgarhia and 8
e mhmamghﬁﬁkmhahn. After this he was made Chandhri .
" ¢f the Kanhya Kates, or quarter in the town of Amritsar 8
then rising mto importance; and on the death of Jai Singh. 8
he still held the post under ehat Ohief's ﬂnughtep-m Inw, Mai
Eﬂltb Kaur. ‘The neighbouring Sardms thoughi that the
pa,llr.g' ruled by & woman must he an easy proy; but
the lady, well backed by Chaju Mal, held out bravely. -4
Several times had the latter to defend his Katru ngainst
assault and on one oeeasion in repulsing the Ramgarhias he =8
received two spear wounds. He reduced the customs duties §
by more than a half, and thus attracted many merchanta
 who sattled in the Kanhya Katra. The young Ranjit Singl '
\  who after his marriage with the daughter of ﬂaﬁn]{m
o visit Amritsar cantiously, for fedr of his enemies hi
- Bhangis mmmmudtupntupwﬂu Ehn]n :lhl,,
1 much sssistance from hxm:nﬁ#iﬁng h0szes
mynnlﬁﬂ& With Ramanand he directe
e customs st Amritsar il 1315,, '.lr‘lmn

-
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On his return in 1820 he did not agsin engage in publie
business ; for the Maharaja had confiscated all the possessions
of Sada Kaur, on whose account Chaju Mal had first entered
Ranjit Singh’s service. He died in 1822.

His eldest son Ralia Ram had received an unusually good
education. He was well scquainted with Sanserit, Persian
and Hindi ; and had, besides, a fair knowledge of mathematics
and physical science. In 1811 he was placed in charge of
the Amritsar district, and showed great energy in the sup-
pression of dacoity and highway robbery. Ranjit Singh was
5o pleased with his zeal that he made him in 1812 chief of
the department of Customs. At this time neither Kashmir,
Multan, nor the Derajat had been conquered ; but, as each
was acquired, it was placed under the management, as far as

referved to the cnstoms, of Ralin Ram. Before his appoint- *

ment there had been no regular system of collecting the
customs ; but each Chief got as much out of merchants passing
through his territories as he possibly could. Ralia Ram
largely increased the revenue from the salt mines of
Pind Dadan Khan, and introduced the rawana or passport
g

In 1821, when the Sikh army was engaged in the Mankera
Campaign, Sardsr Jai Singh Atariwala rose in rebellion,
and Misar Ralia Ram with other Sardars was despatched
against him. With a considerable force he attacked Kalar
Kahar, the stronghold of the rebel Sardar, reduced it, and
foreed Jai Singh to fly to Dost Mahomed Khan of Kabul for
protection. In 1830, Ralia Ram, whose energy and probity
had made him enemies at Court, fell into disgrace; chiefly,
it is said, through the influence of Karpa Ram Chopra, and
was ordered to pay a fine of alakh of rupees. He was in 1833
made keeper of the Records. In 1841 he discovered at

Makhad in the Rawalpindi district a sulphur mires e A

¢ moyich

hli, . jagir

50 pleased Maharaja Sher Singh that he />—ted
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of Rs. 11,000 in the Jandiala Tlaka, with a Persian title of
honour.

Sahib Dayal, the second son of Misar Ralia Ram, had
entered the Sikh service as a Munshi in the Customs depart-
ment under his father; and in 1832 he was transferred to
the Payma.stm"u office of the regular army. In 1839 he was
made chief of the Customs of Jalandhar, and held this appoint-
ment till the close of the Satlaj Campaign. After the separa-
tion of the large district of Jhang from the province of
Multan, of which it formed nearly a third, in 1846 Misar
Ralia Ram was appointed its Kardar, and both he and Sahib
Dayal were appointed to revise the system of imposts. In
August 1847 both father and son received Persian titles of
honour, and in September of the same year the whole cus-
toms of the country were placed under their superintendence.
They were to render accounts every fifteen days, one copy
direct to the Resident and one to the Darbar, and had
authority to appoint and remove all subordinate officials.
The chief burden of the new arrangements fell upon Misar
Sahib Dayal; for his father wes now an old man, and the

L;:, _ greatestcreditis due to him for the zeal and ability with which
a he carried out a system which must, in many particulars,
have been opposed to his own ideas of finance.
~ Underthe old Sikh administration duty was levied on almost
= every article whatever. Little care was taken to discriminate

, between luxuries and necessaries; or equitably to adjust the
~ ° burden of taxation between the rich and the poor. Fuel,

~ yegetables, corn, ghi, and other necessaries to the poorest man

b ) had all to pay duty. The taxation was not only ill-adjusted,

) but was also realized in the most vexatious manner. The

. country was covered with customs-houses, at which the

tn“&“ﬂ‘r or merchant was snb]ecled to mﬂﬂIEIwE, extortion
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duty was demanded on its transfer to the shop; and a third, if
it were again exported into the country. Yet the advantage
to the Government from the heaviness of the customs duties
was in 1o way proportional to the vexation to the people and
hindrance to commerce caused by them. Under forty-eight
heads the customs yielded a gross revenue of Rs. 16,537,114,
while the expense of collection was Rs. 1,10,000, or nearly
geven per cent. The accounts of Diwan Mulraj, who
was the Manager of the salt mines of Pind Dadan Khan until
they were placed under Ralia Ram, showed that out of returns
of Rs. 8,18,820, thirty per cent. was lost by wastage and
expenses of management.

" Under Major H. Lawrence, the Resident, and his brother
John Lawrence, ably seconded by Misar Ralia Ram and Sahib
Dayal, the whole system was changed. The custom-Louses,
the transitand town dues were abolished. Three frontier lines
were established : one along the Bias and the Satlaj ; one along
the Indus; and the third on the north-east frontier for the com-
merce of Kashmir. The new customs were limited to twenty-
two articles, which were estimated to yield Rs. 13,04,822 at
B OB t,mn_.ui Rs, 3 , or less than 3 per cent.

. O5 g
! TE

new 16 was to be. by Abkari licenses, a
'iii i'lenﬁmmltafleld a lakh, and by better
B eCOnuInIoR ‘hlhngament of t*hﬁ Bﬂltl lIllIlE‘B T]]JE-

relief to Mm affected at a loss of only one-
umtnmu mvm .After annexntmn the mlstnms
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- Sahib Dayal received the
er. “In June 1848, three months
Eun Maharaj Singh, a disciple
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of the celebrated Baba Bir Singh, having collected a large
number of disaffected men, set out from the Manjha to join the
rebel Mulraj at Multan. None of the Sikh troops would attempt
his arrest; but Misar Sahib Dayal, then Kardarof Jhang,

where the population is Mahomedan, engaged that if Maharaj

Singh could be driven in the-Jhang direction he would
answer that he proceeded no further. This was fortunately
effected. Some irregulars, with part of the 14th Dragoons,
pursued the foree of the Bhai; Langar Khan of Sahiwal,
Malik Sahib Khan Tawana and other Mahomedan Ohiefs hung
on its rear ; and by the time that the Bhai reached Jhang his
force had diminished to twelve hundred exhausted men, who
were attacked vigorously by Baba Mali Singh, Tahsildar, with
the foroes of Misar Sahib Dayal, and driven into the swollen
Chanab, where more than half the number were drowned, and
those who escaped the sword and the river were taken as
prisoners to Lahore.

1 Throughout the war the services of Sahib Dayal and his
father were important and numerous. They preserved order
in the Rechna and in part of the Chaj Doab, and furnished
large supplies of grain to the British army on its march. Sakib
Dayal, when the rebel Sher Singh was marching up from Mul-
tan, seized upwards of two thousand head of mules, camels and
bullocks belonging to the Raja, and thus materially checked
the advance of the rebel army, if it did not alter the direction
of its march. In November Misar Sahib Dayal was selected
by the Resident to accompany the head-quarters camp of
the British army on the part of the Darbar. ' In the perform-
ance of this duty the Misar showed the greatest intelligence
and zeal. ' He procured excellent information of the move-
‘ments of the enemy, and kept the army well supplied with
provisions. He afterwards, with Nawab Imamudin Kban,
Bakanﬂar Khan, Banda Khsn_and 'S roceﬂ{le:l to

——
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r-' of . the principal _rebels was uae’ml in  disarming the
| touniTy.

v Dnmmmtmn.@mmg;rﬁﬂe 1 1*1&0%533411{331, with
i cash allownnoe u[Ba_ﬂ,QUﬂ seas mambninedto luing op J8a;
Rs. 8,200 of ':.hem;ﬁ,.ta duscend to Kis son ‘-:]mnka.r Ha_;;h
To Sahib Dmynlmc_u&mmﬂ Iimégaglr uf 150, wgﬂ; .
w.casl gllowauee of Ra. 2,800 for:Hife. E;q 985 i
wera o degdend for three ;:.\"w.llle‘ﬁthﬂ!, &Eﬂ Tm were!
g‘rd.ntadmpi_rp&ﬂ‘lttj Both Ralis Ram aull Sﬁnhﬂu_l Wotg 8
rich men., 'Noonoiwho v held! l}iﬁ A of the salt mines | 8
- failed o grow ok for the contrastor paill w cirtain sium fos - el
Gﬂwmmant. munﬂv, and mlgnkng}l, @3 he pleasod, aflis own il
plaw andt' we. .~ In the hands ﬂw able & man as Ralia Bam
“the saly aont1 10k A o great souruo of wiallth, thongh hs $n
3 o way formo | Hisduty to.che State, in regaril for Wi persdrind
i interests:  Uhe Dahare Governmans had few dsrvents o able
mﬁ.ﬂnﬂ&m;mdfﬂlub Dayel, and it had none ag honest.,
Phe g were, in' thg last corrupy days of the administmtion,
""‘-’1 thaoml;,' men wha manfully and Faithifnllys did their
117.';{] anfd who had the wisdom to undarstund andsupport the
mﬁlgl’-md polidy of W& Buitish Besident: the only palicy
fwhnﬂt ‘could have: saved the nmmuty drom the evils that
ﬁ.rwaxds came dpon it o
Tn 1849, both Ratia Ram and vﬂhih%ﬂllﬁ'ftt[lhpﬂﬁ]ﬂbﬁﬂ -
: ‘..‘h rimage to-the boly cities. Raha Ram, whao lind b o) -
made ;Dymm By the Sikh Government of I‘H!r? wis an 1858
= &.Hu]u and Sahib Dryal alan mmudd the same t:t.lﬂ.
v }mnmm.t better mm R.qa an never;
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> Governmet, yud received  khilst of Rs. 1,000, In 1560 he r
- veceivod anc ndditional grant o parpetnity - of a jegir of e x
! Rz 89,0005 = Fﬂbﬂ*tpj‘lﬁ : --_;;T'-_ﬁ.]flfltﬁilted. n member T
a of the Legislative Corintil of Tndin, and took his seat in Cal-
'3 cnttn, refurningto the anjﬁﬁrﬁbﬂ;é wlose of ths sesson, _
He dm;lnt;&mrﬂmr in, 1§85, regratied by nll elnsses. His two L
. mmlﬁgﬁﬁ;&i};_fﬂ@iﬁﬁ&ﬂ% lifetime, and) the family jagir :
B passed to his grandson Thakar Haekishan Singh, son of
. Beosi al | The other grandson, Msbae Ghand, is at, present
‘B reading inthe Aitchisan Gollege, Lahore. - =~ R
" ' , 'Ehe ofher sons of Halin Ham may ‘be Lriafly noticed.
WS Ajudhia Parchad, fhe o} iestwas of  vetiring dizposition, snd 5
. " - euiployed himadlf i diyotion.  He died young, and his son o
B 7% Jai Gopal was Bmpbje'ﬁ,_@ﬂti‘i Rilia Bam:in the castams "
p.~ dapartment, Jai Gopsl) 16d in 1853, ﬁm Dina Nathisa 9
20 Naib-Tubsilday in the Laliors dis rick. T'wo Gthers of s sons, -
8% Bishan Nath and Basant, Ram, Lave setlodin Banares; Tha iis
| f yormgest, Bunseari Lind, racuw_fi-ir pEILElmI of Rs. 120 pery .
8¢ snnum during his oiuority, ' il .
- (st Ohand was, in the  \Molisrajas's time, at the héad off =
B e office of salt revenue at’ Pind Dadan Khsn wides Rajit s
: Gulsh singh. - Under the Pritish Goverpment lie was ‘& - =
§ pointed Talisildar of Pind Dodan Khan Gub xétired i 1508
B settled at Ammtssr, fhere 1862 e was sppointod. o
S Honaorary: Magistrate, which office bie filled with eredit to s
ES5elf and to thesatisfaction of the people. He dicd ot AmiSUERES
P4 1575, Rai Lookuni Sabai, Extra Assistant 00 ,
5 *';; elder son. may be cegiirded as the leading
& family, Thesecoud son, Blagat Ram, is
Bhuy State. Ll Lachmi Saliai's elder son
885 in the seryice of the Maharaja oi

His Md-m Jawalz Sshaial
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pame is on the list of accepted candidates for an Extra Assist-
ant Commissionership. The brothers, Lachmi Sahai and
Bhagat Ram, hold jointly one hundred and twenty ghumaos of
land in the Amritsar Tahsil, and sixty ghumaos in Tahsil
Pind Dadan Khan.

Shankar Nath first received an appointment in the Amrit-
sar Mint, and was then made Assistant in the Chach and
Hazara distriets. During the rebellion of 1848-49, he, like
all his brothers, did good service, and preserved a semblance
of order about Batala, Dinanagar, and Pathankot. He died
in 1887 at Banares, where he had been residing for some years.

' His sons live at Amritsar.

Sardar Harcharan Das began public life as an assistant
in the Customs Department ; but during the Wizarat of Raja
Hira Singh he was made commandant of geven hundred horse
in the Mulrajia Dera. In 1848 he was appointed by the
Darbar, Adalati or Judge of Lahore, with the honorary title
of Rukn-udaula, On annexation he held Rs. 10,000,
which was confirmed to him while holding the office of Extra
Assistant Commissioner, which had been conferred on him in
place of the Judgeship. The Sardar resigned in 1852, and his
jagir was reduced to Rs. 3,008. He lived st Amritsar, be-
tween which city and Lahore he, at hig own expense, builb
a handsome Sarai. The family have always been known for
benevolence and liberality, which is testified to by the many
works of publie utility and convenience which have been con-
structed at their expense in many parts of the Panjab.
Besides those glready mentioned, the Sarai near the Rambagh
gate of Amritsar was built by Raja Ralia Ram ; also a Sarai
and temple by the Nagrahwal ferry on the Bias, and &
Y1asonry tank in the city of Amritsar.

-\ Sordar Harcharan Das died in 1884, His jagirs aggregat-

b

inggs: 3,088 in the Ampitsar and Gurdaspur districts, lapsed
on h_\ death. He had also been in receipt of an allowance of
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BRs. 1,200 per annum from the Kapurthala State. The

Sardar was one of the leading men in Awmritsar, of which
city he was an Honorary Magistrate. His children Mohkam
Chand and Kishor Ohand have an income of about four
thousand rupees per annum, moluding & mal i seventy-three
ghumoos of land in Mauza Kareoda, Tabeil Taran Taran,
Amritsar, aftached to the Sarai on the Lahore Read already
mentioned; and an allowance of Rs. 1,560 from the Kapurthala
State. The remsinder is made up of rents from houses and
ehops.
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' Bardar Sardul Singh Man is of the same descent as
: ! Hm Sardars of Mogalehak inthe Gujaranwala  dis-
" ‘Home account of the Man Jat tribe will be found
- the history of the Mognlchak family. Tha branch
b fhe Man teibe to which Sardul Singh belongs had
m-n]r gﬁnnmtmns becn - resident &t Mananwala in the 8
Witsor district, when, the village having been plundepag®
gEl destroyed aboub the year 1720, Tara Big
§hn o L it with his whole family, and settled at Nad
- hers-in-law. The. Sikhs were at this tinig

swwertul ; and Tara Singh with a band of horsemengs
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‘acquired jagirsin the Lahore, Sialkot and Amritsar distriets.
He rebuilt Mananwals and took up his residence there.

Karam Singh was succeeded by his two sons, Ram Singh
and Sham Singh. These young men, about 1780, left the
Bhangi Misal and went over to Sardar Mahan Singh
‘Sukarchakia, by whom they were very well treated, and
allowed a share both in his fighting and his plunder. Ram
Singh does not seem to have had any enmity against his
" old associates, for ho married his only child, Bibi Sada Kaur,
| t0 a Bhangi Chief, Sardar Sobha Singh Haluwalia, builder
~ of Kila Sobha Singh in the Sialkot district, and son of Sardars
Bhag Singh Haluwalia, In 1788 Ram Singh died, and his =
younger brother Sham Singh was allowed to succeed to the 2
whole estate. In 1700, however, Sardar Mahan Singh
confiscated all but Mananwala and Raliabadho, worth
Re. 20,000 per annum, which Sham Singh enjoyed till
his death, giving no service during the life of Mahan Singh;
but under Ranjit Singh, furnishing a contingent of fifteen
horsemen. &

Sardar Fateh Singh had been early introduced to Ranjit =
~ Singh by his father; and when Prince Kharak Singh was a \
few years old Fateh Singh was appointed especially for his
~ gervice. The Sardar served in the Kangra Campaign of 18095
at Daska, where he was wounded in the shoulder; at Chunian, =&
. where ho was wounded in his hand; and at Sabiwal,
- where, after the capture of the town from Fateh Khan, he
yas appointed Gumnu_mﬂnnt. and where he remained fora year.

1811 he received from Kharak Singh, from his persomal
[ 3, a jagir worth Rs. 1,00,000, subject fo the service of
hundred horse. Other Jagirdars, amounting with their
nhhmh&nﬂmﬂmﬁmwmnlﬂophmd? '

mand, and he was sent to Jama to reduce some insurg
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" in the miserable Kashmir expedition of 1814, he, with Diwan -
l' . Jiwan Mal, accompanied the detachment of Ram Dayal on
" the part of Prince Kharak Singh. Soon after this Sardar
\ ' Fateh Singh wasagain sent o Jamu to put down an insurrec-
% tion. Yo this he was snccessful, snd brought in all the
- ringleaders to Lahore. But Bhaia Ram Singh, the mukhtar
| or confidentinl agent of Prince Kharak Singh, who hated
" Fateh Singh on account of his power and influence, concocted e
' aplotto destroy his reputation. A 3
' He induced Gulab Singh and Dhisn Singh (afterwards o
‘Rajas) to murder the two chief ringleaders, by name Trehdn
. and Suthrs, +ho had been concerned in the murder of their
uncle Mian Mota, and to release the other insurgents, who
“fled to their native hills and agnin raised disturbances. At 2
" this, s Bhaia Ram Singh anticipated, the Prince was very =
" anary, and resumed the jagir which he had given to Fateh =
& Bingh: The Maharaja, however, took pity upon the disgraced
B favourite, and gave him o jagir of Rs. 35,000 and s cash g
©allowance of Bs. 15,000, subjeet to the service of one hundred
= and twenty-five horsemen. At Maultan, in 1818, the reduction
. ofthe fortof Kot Bajai Khen was eutrusted to the Sardar,
~ and he was anecessful in taking it He accompanied the
" Kashmir expedition of 1819, and the next year crossed the
B Gatlaj on a visit to his estate ot Mablan., The Maharajs, who =

- "
.

S8 was marching towards Rawalpindi, sgpmmoned him ; but he
- only sent his son Sardul Singh with the contingent. This

condnet irritated Ranjit Singh, who, suspecting that the Sardar =
was intrigning with the English, resumed all his jagirs, with
geption of Mananwala. il
A SRNEas not till the capture of Mankera, in December
I W hen Fateh Singh behaved gallantly, that he was takem
% ~into favour, received new jagirs, and was made
sndant of the captured fort. He went with the Mahnntji 3
gahawar in 1823, and afterwards accompanied thamf B .
[ - il T
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3 Bamm expeditions of Prince Sher Singh and Pnnoe]{hanh
_ Singh, while his son acted for him at Mankera. : Rt
- In 1820 the Sardar was again placed in the suite of |
~ Prince Kharak Singh; and two years later his son was
m'ﬂa&frmunhmm placed in command of & troop of
mnh-y In 1831 he accompanied Princé Sher Singh and
 General Ventura against the celebrated Sayad Ahmad, who
- had lost his influence with the Afghans, Trans-Indus, and
~ had taken up his head-quarters at Balakot in Hazara, where
~ he trusted for support to the tribes of Dhamtaur and Pakhli
- and to his Hindustani followers, Here he was utbnckadhy
~ the Sikhs; the fort of Balakot was taken, and the Sayad
- himself with most of his followers slain, though it w :--.;
. wﬂwlmd that he escaped, the river opening to
5 receive him. In 1834 the Sardar went to Peshawar in the
mafPrmnn Hﬂ.ﬂ Nahal Smgh, and nft&rmr&s SIAITLE ‘;I
- on duty at Bannu, Tank and Peshawar till the ﬂaath
. Maharaja Ranjit Singh. When that event took place, Fateh
Bingh was at Peshawar with Nao Nahal Singh ; and Earﬂ:lil
& Singh was at Tank. From tke new Maharaja the Sa
~ received additional jagirs at Kotbari Khan, Gujaranws 3,
- worth Rs, 30,000, which made his estates amount to Rs. & Hw
- subject to the service of one hundred horse. *‘t =
Sardul Singh served under General Ventura in 1840-41
11 the Mandi campaign, and at the siege and capture ¢
- Kamlagarh. In April 1841 Fateh Singh, with aemﬂundﬁﬂl
'-u- was appointed t0 escort ten lakhs of treasure from
firozpur fo Peshawar, en route for Kabol. In February
: 15, when Raja Lal Singh, after long altercations with
ﬁ?ﬂlﬂaniﬂ.r Jawabir Singh, whom he feared to leave
nd at Lahore, consented to head the army proceeding
against Raja Gulab Singh at Jamn, Fateh Simgh Man
‘ma of the Chiefs whom he insisted wpon taking
;-‘]:m- Soon after joining the my,. Lal Singh sent
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~ Fateh Singh with some others to negotiate. The envoys were
~ received by Gulab Singh with all honour, and were amused
- for some days with the alternate promises of submission and
threats of defiance, which the Rajs had always in store
~ for such occasions. At length they returned with the declarae
* tion of Gulab Singh that he would abide by the terms of
- the Treaty concluded by his agentsin Lahore. Ho denied the
. amount of the Lahore claims, but said that he would pay 3
them if proved ; and for this purpose requested that Wazir
" Bachna,* Hira Nand and Ganpat Rai, confidential servants
 of his nephew Hira Singh, and upon whose authority the
_claims had been made, should be sent to him. The envoys,
BOCO] din.gl]r, with these three men returned to Jamu.
" Besides Fateh Singh Man, the deputation to Jamu consisted 3
- of Baba Mian Singh, an old Bedi of great sanctity, Ratan
Chand Dogal, one of the most influential of the Mutsadi or
J Munshi party, and Sardar Sher Singh Atariwala. They
remained at Jamu for some days, but could nob come to any
definite terms; for Gulab Singh was carrying on separate
tiations with the Sikh army, whose Panchayats were
- in Jamu.
At last, on the 28th February, after a violent altercation &
* between Wazir Bachna and the Raja, the latter gave four lakhs
~ Of rupees as an earnest of the full discharge of the just claims
st him, and the deputation took its leave. Passing |
through a hedge of thorns, which had been thrown round
the town of Jamu, the envoys were fired at by a body of the

o 1 e )

v o M’-" troops. Sardar Fateh Singh and Wazir Bachna were

" Ontll the death of Mabarnjs Sher Bingh, Bschns, s jat of Jundials fn the
Shekhopars Pargans, was manager of Rajn Hirs Siogh's hill estates under Pasdic
Juls. When the Pandit went to Lahore, 0 Hira Singh becuming Miniater, Bachas |
o susceadsd kim in ths hills with the title of Wasir. When Hajs Galab Hingh guve
~ over Jaseota o the Darber (o Jannury 1845, Bachna remained to give over the breasare |
Y nﬂmiﬁmﬁhhhn There be took adwmntage of the dige kL
5 sexcited by thi nows of Bikh excomses in the hills to get himself re-appointed Gy
H of Jasrota, ander the Darbar, and was on Bid way to tnke up his post when stim,
::dlmu. He wae oo sble man, moch loved by the people for his mil
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iﬂm on the spot, and Diwan Ganpat Rai, who was on the
* same elephant with them, was mortally wounded and died

* the next day. Raju Gulab Singh protested lis innocence and

- his grief, and that the catastrophe had happened contrary to

. his wishes and his orders.. The Baba, Sher Singh and Ratﬂn

. Ohand he defained at Jamu as hostages and as negotiators.

" That this assassination was planned by Gulab Smgh -

. there is no shadow of doubt. He had, it is true, no hostile
foclings agninst Fateh Singl, but the Sardar was upon the
game elephant with the man he had determined to :Imtm]-, L
and as Mian Utam Singh died with Nao Nahal Singh, so ﬂlﬁ
Fateh Singh with Wazir Bachna.

_ When Bachna had been re-appointed Governor of Jasrota, g

_ Gulab Singh thought that it was the same as if he hime

~ gelf had recovered possession. But he was dissppointed.
Pandit Jala had taught Bachna to hate and distrust Gulab
~ ‘Bingh ; and when he joined the deputation, the Raja saw that
" his fancied friend was entirely in the interests of the Darbar.
-:Halmﬁw that, as an enemy, Bachna could do him vast injury;

" for he was so popnlar in the hills that hecould have brought
‘over Gulab Singh's Rajput troops to the side of the Sikhs
_and the Raja consequently determined on his destruction.

: The death of Sardar Fateh Singh was much lamented '1’:
Iﬂm Chiefs ; but the army, though it was convenient to use his’

death as a weapon against Gulab Singh, did not at this rLu‘T"
e much for Sardars, certainly not for men of the old schoo I i
like Fntuh Singh, who looked upon the regular army as &
t dangerous innovation, and whose traditions were all &
ﬂn]rs of the Great Maharaja. '
. Two months later, when Raja Gulab Singh had buﬂn'
... mlahﬂm,elwwhkhaofmpammnfthpmy 2
it lakhs which he was compelled to pay was nl:m-gad in o

- gl
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~ In May 1845 Sardar Jawahir Singh confiscated thp
Hﬁﬂ‘ 30,000 jagir given to Fateh Singh by Maharaja Khamﬁ
~Singh. Sardul Singh was at this time at Hasan Abdal, and iz
. Aungust of the same year he, with the Atariwala and other
. Sardars, recovered the fort of Attock from Prince Pashora
~ Singh. Hefoughtin the Satlaj Campaign; and in August 1846
* Raja Lal Singh, the Minister, without any apparent cause,
~ confiscated all his remaining jagirs with the exception of
~ Mananwala, worth Rs. 3,000, Sardul Singh went to Simla to
- appeal to Major Lawrence, and accompanied that officer
" back to Lahore. After Lal Singh’s deposition and banishment,
‘the creditors of Sardar Fateh Singh pressed Sardul Singh
~ for payment of his father’s debts amounting to Rs. 1,25,000;
- and Major Lawrence indneed the Darbar to allow him j jagirs _ "
- of Rs. 21,000, subject to the service of thirty sowars. Twenty
" of these sowars, however, were to be excused for five years;
'~ the sum allowed for their service, Rs. 6,000, being applied to
" the liquidation of the debt. On annexation the personal
‘estates of the family, amounting to Rs. 10,500, were upheld
'ﬁr life, and Rs. 3,000 in perpetuity ; Rs. 2,147 to the male
assue of Sardul Bingh, and Rs. 853 to the male issue of
Jawala Singh. :
~ Sardar Jawala Singh, who was not on good terms with Ssru
o S.'I.'I:I:gh dmdmlﬂﬁﬂ Blh'.l Kﬂkﬂ' ﬂlElr EIEtBI' who marriec 48
‘Sardar Ajit Singh Sindhanwalia, on hearing the news of thn :
:i h of her husband in the fort of Lahore, in September
. 1843, burnt herself with his clothes at Naorangahs r"'-
r ;I!nnng the rebellion of 1848 Sardar Sardul Singh remained
¥ faﬂhtnl to Government ; and in 1857 did as much as his é
! mmad circumstances would allow in l‘EEIIIlg ho '.-'-
for service in Hindustan. - -
Sardar Sardul Singh Man died in 1881. Hehad ls
taken no active part in public affairs, his time bamg

- occupied in domestic matters. Possessing a peculiar te
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ha was often on bad terms with his sons and other relatives.
. His jagir of Bs. 7,500 lapsed, with the exception of Ra
.+ 9,148, which was continued to his two surviving sons, Partab
Bingh and Jiwan Singh. The sonsalso hold shares in the
ancestral villages of Mananwala and Mahoka in the Amritsar
district, and a garden in Amrifsar city ; as also in the village
. of Mananwala in Tahsil Hafizabad, Gujaranwala, w]uﬂhwns
founded by their father.
Mahtab Singh, son of Partab Singh, married the daughter
‘of Arjan Singh of Rupar in Ambala. Hereceived no educas
 tion and takes little interest in public affairs.

Jiwan Smghhnabeenmmmﬂ twice, but has no issu
‘One of his wives was a daughter of Sardar Fateh Singh o =_"
~ Jalandhar; the second & danghter of Sardar Utam Singh,
Deputy Inspector of Police in Montgomery.

Sardar Raja Singh and Hira Singh, sons of Bnrﬁﬂ-
Jawala Singh, succeeded on the death of their father to a
jagir of Ra. 857 in their ancestral villages of Mananwala smi
‘Mahoka, Raja Singh died in 1883. He was succee
by his only surviving son Gurbakbsh Singh.

Hira Singh is a Member of the District Board, ., ;

- Chairman of the Amritsar Local Board, He rendered good.

‘service when transport animals were being purchased dori .{: '

*ﬂlu late Kabul War, and also on other occasions; and he
may be said to be the only remaining prominent member
ﬂmgmdaldfnmﬂjr. He is a Viceregal Darbari, -

"
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 Raja Hira Singh is a Gondar Sod Khatri Sl]rh, whuaa
.:nu g 13 at HEIBPIH', Vﬂlﬂgﬁ fﬂﬂndﬂd hy ]]JIIJB&]ZE naar Gh&hﬂl
ﬂm Taran Taran Tahsil. His grandfather was a writer of
prdinary status under the Khalsa. His father, Sardar Jai
lﬁmgh commenced soldiering as a Jamadar in Maharaja Bm:qtt ’
. Singh’s French Regiment. For a conspieuons act of courage
- at Peshawar in 1848, when Lawrence was attacked by the
- mutinous Sikh troops, Jai Bingh was appointed Rasaldar
in the 1st Panjab Irregular Cavalry, raised and commanded
| 1:3 Sir Henry Daly, who mentioned in the highest terms the
brave behaviour of this fine old Sikh in more than one frontier

' dition. He records of him: "Tharawnutmthaarmya
- mo gal]a:ut soldier, and I know no abler or more expananmdi
~ officer.”” General John Watson further writes: * He is m
the most able and excellent officers, and the most hun :
~ and upright I have ever met. He has been my right hand
" during the whole of the Mutiny Campaign, from the siege of
" Dehli to the fall of Lucknow.” These commendations were
- warmly endorsed by Sir James Hope Grant, who commanded
. the Cavalry Division at Lucknow, as well as by Sir Colin
Campbell, Commander-in-Chief. At the close of the campaign.
Ba:r&nr:fllﬂmghﬂ mﬁrﬂmnﬁimdaﬂ command; il :
of the 4th Regiment of Oudh Mounted Police. He received s

ul . '_l-l'

® Not in the original Edition,
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gmntnftwanty—suﬁ]hgaam the Jamdan Ilaka of the
‘Baraich Distriet, in addition to the Orders of Merit and @
~ British India, and the usual military pension. He ﬂmd
. in 1867.
3 : His son, Hira Singh, has proved himself a not lﬂsswﬁrﬂ_lj' o
gervant of the Queen. He commenced service in 1855 asa
. Dafadar in his father's regiment, and was appointed Jamadar
on the outbreak of the Mutiny, being promoted to a Rasaldar-
ship at its close. He took part in most of the important
} mmns,an&mpmsentntﬂmmpmmnfﬂehhnnﬂL know,
~ receiving the Order of Merit. He then volunteered for
~ service in China, and was attached as Rasaldar to Fane's
" Horse, doing excellent service. He resigned his com ..;..-u,._"
" on the death of his father, and set himsslf to improve his
~ Talukdari property in Ondh, adding to the estates by the
- purchase of eighty thousand bigas in the Parthapur ka,
. Tahsil Nanpara, Baraich ; and he has the name of ba-mg' 5
model landlord, punctual in his revenue payments, and kiné
‘and considerate to his tenants. He has also am]mred "
~purchase the estate of Hirapur in the Taran Taran Tahsil,
Amritsar ; and both in the Panjab and in Oudh his name
" stands high as a generous friend of the poor, and a libe ';.-._-
' t.nhutur to all deserving charities. He has set ...--'1
mnmdamhla sum, the interest of which is devoted
he purchase of quinine for the fever-stricken on his estate -

P

1 pmﬁentedthﬂpmylunf Chabal, his native village, E;'
mnkhultatanmtuftwentythnumnﬂmpau,
ded for its perpetual repair by investing ten thnmiﬂ
sea in Government funds for this special purposs. His

sof public utility in Baraich and at Nipalganj have been
merous, and they are thoroughly appreciated by the peopls, ;':! r
i\ ;_rugardhnnaslm of a fnrexgnﬂrthanthﬁnthﬂr L
! anjabi lsn&umrs, who are not always in sympathy with

(*.}
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| Sardor Hira Singh was lonoured with the titlo of Rajs,

" bestowed upon him at the recommendation of Sir Auckland %
- Colvin by his Excellency the Marquess of Dufferin in Decem-
" ber 1888. General Walter Fane, who perhaps knew him more
= :igﬁnmt.aly than any other British officer, wrote of him as
* follows : “* I know no native whom I can more honestly praise
. than Hira Singh, and he has left my regiment to the regret of
every officer and man.  He served with great gallantry and
distinction before Dehli and throughout the subsequent

npaign of 1858, He was the first to volunteer for foreign
service in China, and was of the greatest assistance to me
in raising Fane's Horse, There is not an officer or man in
my regiment I would not sooner spare than Hira Singh. T
pelieve him to be one of the most truthful and straightforward

“officers 1 ever knew.” A
- The Baja's second cousin, Sardar Ganda Singh, was for

ny years a Rasaldar in the 19th Bengal Lancers. Ganda -3
gh's eldest son, Amin Chand, is a district officer in the

inm State ; and two others of his children are employed in

-'
i




An ancestor of this family, Mirn, a Jat of the Gil
founded the village of Chinah, some five miles from Rajs
Sansi in the Amritsar district, about the year 1600, |ﬁ -
st son Dadu founded a second village of the same name
Justarwal, and here his descendants have resided to the
ent day. The family were simple peasants till the time
f Milkhu, who joined the Confederacy of Tara Singh
'-..4 Of Milklm's five sons the most distinguished was
m Singh, whom Tara Singh, who had no children of his
dopted.  After Tm Bm@,mﬂuﬁl Karam Singh

I o
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AMRITSAR DISTRICT. a3

pmad the Bhangi Misal and fook possession of Firozki,
Kalaki, Rurki and Bajra in the Sialkot district; besides
holding Chinah and the neighbouring villages. All the
Bhangi Sardars fell, one by one, before Ranjit Singh, and
. Karam Singh shared the common fate and lost all his estates .
but no long time afterwards he received back in jagir Chinah,
Nagran and' Firozki, worth Rs, 50,000, subject to the service
of seventy horsemen. - With his two sons, Sukh Singh and
. Budh Singh, he served in many campaigns : Multan, Kashmir
and Peshawar ; and on his death the jagir descended to his
gons in equal shares.

. Through all the changes which ensned on the death of
I _' njit Singh, the jagir remained undiminished till, in 1846,
aja Lal Singh reduced it to Rs. 21,600, subject to the service
i:ftwanrjhﬁve horsemen. Two years later most of the members
of the family joined the rebels under Sher Singh, and fought in
their ranks throughout the war. Accordingly, on annexation
';, e shares of Jai Singh, Mohar Singh, Hari Singh, Hardit
Singh, Amar Singh, Atar Singh and Fateh Singh were
res med ; and an allowanee of Rs, 240 was granted to each
them for life. The eonfiscated shares amounted to
‘Rs. 15,725 per annum, and only Badan Singh and Mahan
h, who had remained loyal, were allowed to retain_their
es, amounting to Rs. 5,875, of which Rs. 1,750 were
onal and Rs. 4,125 subject to serviee.
During the Mutiny, Jai Siogh, Hardit Singh and Amar
entered Hodson's Hnrse, Jai Singh as Rasaldar,
Singh as Jamadar, and served with that distinguished
‘February 1859, when, on the general reduction, Jai
A = Singh obtained their discharge. The former
afa life jagir of Rs. 300, and the 1nther fifty
of land free of revenue in Rakh Utian, Tahsil A
Hardit Singh ﬁm serving as Ru.aalﬂnrhﬂnjur, ith

. the title of Sardar Bahadar, in the 9th BBIIg:Lr
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3 . THE PANJAR CHIEFS. e
He became a Viceregal Darbari in succession to his deceased

~ brother Sardar Jai Singh in 1876, and is now at the head
of the family. His son Mahtab Singh is a Rasaldar in the
6th Bengal Cavalry, For his services in the Egyplian cam-
paign of 1882 Mahtab Singh was rewarded with the titleof
Sardar Bahadar. Partab Singh, nephew of Sardar Hardit
Singh, is a Dafadar in the 16th Bengal Cavalry. Sardar Jai
Singh’s pension and jagir lapsed on Lis death in 1876, His
- widow was allowed a pension of Rs. 120 per annum furatamut
~ twelve years, as a help towards the maintenance of the younger
children. She died about two years ago. Sardar Hunﬂmghg
allowances lapsed, in like manner, in 1880, with continuance
of Rs. 120 per anoum to his son Natha Singh. Enrdig
~ Badan Siogh died in 1877 leaving five soms, to whom
- Government continued one-third of their father's jagir in
- Mouzas Chinsh and  Chak, valned at Rs. 400 per annum.
. His eldest son Kahar Singh is a member of the Amntm "
- Digtrict Board.
The family is connected by marriage with the Sardars of £
Bungs, Kandaula and Raja Sansi (Amritsar), and may ._.1
- still regarded as having considerable loeal influence.

- -




AMRITSAR DISTRICT.

SARDAR SANT SINGH, AIMAHWALA.

v, 1u84,
~ About the year 1738 Natha Singh, an Upal Jat, left his
home at Iﬂkﬂl‘ki, in the Gul'[lﬂ-ﬁplﬂ.' diﬂh‘iﬂ-tv, B]].IL m}ming‘ to
Amritsar, rebuilt a ruined village to which, in defiance of the
ti‘ghta of the late inhabitants, he gave the name of Aimah, |
' s;gmfymglnnﬂhﬁ]dmpmpnetﬂry right, His son Sujan Singh
 inherited not only this village, but the jagirs of his uncle Dal
" Singh, who had been slain ina quarrel with Sardar Sawa
‘bmgh Aulakhwala, These estates were of considerable size,
~ comprising many villages in the Daska, Pasrur and Ajnala
 In the famine year of 1783,* Sujan Singh contrived
o seize Chaharbajwa in the Sialkot district from Brij Raj
Dec snnnERn]a Ranjit Deo. He was associated with the
gi Misal, and fought under Sardar Karam Singh. He
'ﬁpﬂ in 1799, and his eldest son Nar Singh, still a youth
Mﬂdﬂmﬂarﬂula.b Singh Bhangi, who was chief of the
: formed against Ranjit Singh munaﬂ:-&rhmmp
03 ann'iwm An expedition was fitted out against him, which
- Nar %gh joined ; but it was broken up by the

'Thuhmf_“Hm“ﬂ-“ terribla nfurynm:tmhud ﬁﬂu Prnjaly,
— Ti was the last thires Il“lﬂ At £l dg died £ tin T
MMMWMM The Jﬂuhhﬂnhrthpmph 1"‘ How

Chaliy belag the Sambat year 1840, Lo



\ "
- e o o g

L "
> - v -

ey
-

DO
e

. it -
SR O o s —

'--‘.'_"" |

316 THE PANJAB CHIEFS. S
- Sardar Gulab Singh, from the effoets of a prolonged debanch S
~ ut Kothani, ke
Soon after this, in 1803, Nar Singh Joined Ranjit Singh,
and accompanied him in the Pindi Bhatian Campaign, and
later in the expedition against the Bhangis and the fort of
. Kalar, which was bravely defended by Jodh Singh Atariwale.
In 1804 he went with Ranjit Singh again against Raja Sansar’
. Chand Katoch, who had tried to possess himself of a portion
* of the Jalandbar Doab, but who was defeated near Hushiarpur
- and driven back to the hills, The next expedition shared in_
- by Nar Singh was that sgainst Hafiz Ahmad Khan of Thas 2
| Tesulting in the imprisonment of that Chief and the seizurd)
- of his estates. He served in the first unsuccessful campa
- of Multan, and in both the Kashmir expeditions under Diy
~ Ram Dayal in the Dora of Prince Kharak Sin

1071

territory. He fought in the battle of Teri in
- 1823, and served under Sardar Hari Singh Nalwa in Nara,
- In 1835-36 he accompanied the Sikh force under Prince
Khark Singh against the Mazaris of Mithankot. -
3 When Jawahir Singh becaina Minister, Nar Singh was
. tréated with great favour; for he had married as his second
- wife an aunt of Makarani Jindan, the sister of Jawahie Singh.
e iaﬁm&ﬂ the present of an Elﬂphﬂ]lt with Eﬂ]ﬂ 100 ;::h;,';
- was placed in command of the Mulrajia regiment, and was
ged the country in the neighbourhood of Phalian, Gujrat,
jd had looted the shirine of Ker Sahib, & place of ome
‘sanctity, where Guru Nanak had slept on the Ker, or heaps
Of earth thrown up by the rats, The insurgents were Speedily -
1 and the plundered property in a great
During the Satlaj Campaign, Nar Singh served un
ar Ranjodh Singh Majithia, He remained faithful to




R AMRITSAR DISTRICT.
by %ﬂomnmantﬂmng the Multan rebellion, a3d1dhmmnhn L
of sowars, and was sent to Pind Dadan Khan under the
mﬂars of Misar Ralia Ram, Superintendent of the Salt Mines.
~ He returned to Lahore with Raja Dina Nath after the
 latter’s unsuccessful mission to Sardar Chatar Singh. From
' t.]m year 1825, when Sardar Nar Singh's principal jagirs
‘were resumed, he had only held jagirs worth Rs. 2,200 and
. eash allowances of Rs. 3,761. His jagir was in 1849 con-
.ﬁmmﬂtnhlmforhfﬂ. He died in 1866. -
'_ Gnlnh Singh, brother of Nar Singh, served in the
Mulrajia regiment on Rs, 500 per annum. His daughter
. man Emﬂar Lahna Singh Majithia, but died within six
‘months of her marriage. The third brother, Surmakh Singh,
Bt ouus A
-+ Sardar Saunt Singh, son of Nar Singh, is now at the
& :..- of the family. The jagir holdings have been resamed,
‘and Sant Singh finds himself in reduced circumstances. His
mﬂmr, Musammat Kishan Kaur, who died in 1884, was in
receipt of a compassionate allowance of Rs. 240 per annum.
Hmam Singh married a daughter of Sardar Kahan Singh
‘Rosa, of Todarpur, in the Lahore district, She was aniece of
ﬁm]annhpﬂjn@smother,ﬂahm.]mﬂm The Sardar
mﬂh&mﬂmnmﬂmghh‘mab Aimahwala near Chabal in
_-:-1ru=';:. He holds two hundred acres in proprictary right,
8 is & man of good presence, and takes an interest in publie e
m bemga.-mbm-ufthalmledanda .ambardar
Bnrdarﬁmﬂinghisa?im:ﬁgﬂ])mhﬂ‘
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SARDAR ARJAN SINGH, OF CHAHAL.

mz?mn.
Earam Bingh
B 1533,

e
Ilt:'h!ﬁnﬂ
et
Tt Eicgh
Katha Singh, a Chabal Jat, was, with his brothers, in -
" the service of the Bhangi Sardars, Lahna Singh and Gujur
Singh, who in 1764 had taken possession of Lahore. No -n '
of them rose to any importance, but held small service jag )
~ Katha Singh was killed in a skirmish on the borders of
. Bahawalpur, and hisson Karam Singh succeeded to the j ]ugu_'&y
. worth Rs.5,000. For some years Karam Singh fought mﬁu _
 the Bhangi Misal, and he became known for gallantry
ability till, in 1799, Ranjit Singh took Lahore from Chet” =
Singh, son of Sardar Lahna Singh. Karam Singh, at first Ly
followed the fortunes of his old master, to whom Hanjit
Singh had given s jagir of Rs. 60,000 ; but seeing at last th -.- .
it was useless to remain with one who could not advance h
. interests in any way, he took service with the Maharaja, wh !
~ gave him several villages in Ajnala. He rapidly rose
favour and became a very powerful Sardar. Aibarthﬂm { '.
ian and Jhang expeditions he received several mew
. m]agn' and after the Kasur Campaign, wherse he

]" distinguished himself, Ranjit Singh gawa hm.f“

A
_i

Bmshatthepmntﬂay Sardar Karam
all wmﬂa&byamakﬁlbaﬂhm hattle

. o B
. - "I
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= HES troops. He wasearried to his tent, but died the following

day ; and his loss was much felt both by the Maharaja and
the army, in which he held command of the Gurkba battalion.
‘His only surviving son, Gurmukh Singh, succeeded to the
~ whole jagir. This young man had already for some years
served under his father, and had fought in the battle of Teri.
‘When Diwan Chuni Lal was appointed Governor of Kashmir

~ after Diwan Moti Ram had been for the second time recalled,
. Gurmukh Singh was sent to support him, and he remained
. there two years. In 1836 he was ordered to Kohat, where
he did good and gallant service ; but was carried off by cholera
in Eapt&mhﬂr of that year. Jawala Singh was at the time of
s father’s death only four years old, and the Maharaja
resumed all the estates, with the exception of one, worth

Rs. 3,000, which was placed under the superintendence of

ihju Hira Singh. Jawala Singh himself died in 1846 at the

= age of twenty-four, leaving one son, Arjan Singh, aged seven.

" For his support, and in consideration of his family, Maharaja

Dalip Bingh released two villages, Ghari and Lahian, together

51 yorth Rs. 1,000, which on the annexation of the Pan]n.h were

ponfirmed to him for life, with two wells at Chahal in the

v an Taran pargana of the Amritsar district, which have
smnce been released in perpetuity.

. Arjan Singh’s jagir, under the revised settlement, is now. .

h Rs. 2,500 per annum. He and his son Tkbal Singh ap

mpreaentatwea of the family. The Sardar ia aman 0

ﬂlﬂﬂﬁmﬁluftha Aitehison Gullaga, and has done mn& =
Pmmm@amof education in the district. In 1588 he

[
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SARDAR JAWALA EINGH RABULPURIA.*

Sardar Jawala Singh's ancestor Sujan Singh, a Jat Sikh,
left the Manjha in 1760 as one of the Sukarchakia Misal, and
_ seqoired large estates in Ambala, and later on in the
Jalandhar Doab, said to have yielded a revenue of twenty-four’
thousand rupees. His son Jodh Singh was driven out of the
Moli Tlaka in Ambala by the Kalsin Chief of the same name,
. and the family later on lost most of their possessions in
Hushiarpur and Jalandhar. Their home was at Rasulpe
il‘m Taran, in the Amritsar distrmict. The Mahar:
Ranjit Singh had granted Jodh Singh a jagir of
walue of Rs. 10,000 under the usual conditions of n
.-: and this was reduced to Rs. 2,000 when
2 dominions were annexed in 1849. The jagir villages
ant'h Maijara, and Sarai in the Garshankar Tahsil
the Hushiarpur district. The grant was resumed on
jeath of Jodh Singh in 1857 ; a purhon m Mouza .‘

| yielding Rs. 360, being continued as a compassionate
e to his heirs. His mnﬂlﬁﬂ-?iniﬂb Singh wasa

 ® Nolinthe original Edition.

=




&lstmg'ms]mﬂ soldier and received the title of Sardar in
rmgmtmn of his gallant services, he having been under fire
in thirty-two engagements thronghout his military career.
He served in the Mabaraja's Gorcharas for fifteen years
~ before the break-up of the Sikh power; and he was ap-
.’ - pointed Rasaldar in the 2nd Panjub Irregular Cavalry on
~ the formation of that corps shortly after the anvexation of
the country; remaining until 1858, when he was transferred,
as commandant, to the 5th Regiment of Mounted Police in
- Oudh. Lieutenant-General Sir Sam Browne wrote of him
in 1860 as follows :—* No man has done more in the way of
allant acts than has Panjab Singh ; and his judgment and
.*H'-' etion are equal to his gallantry.” Sir Hope Grant,
‘commanding a division of Cavalry in 1858, termed him “a
T)i'mfe, gallant soldier, and worthy of any reward.” He was
~ present at the Siege of Dehli, taking part in the final assault;
~ and he was with Colonel Greathead’s Column when the
" battles of Bilandshahar and Aligarh were fought. He was
also engaged in many actions around Agra and Cawnpore,
mﬂ he assisted at the Relief of Lucknow., He was rewarded
- with the Orders of Merit and of British India ; and he received
! Igrm:lt of land in the Khiri district of Oudh, which then yielded
S, 2,145 per annum, but is now far more valuable. In the
he was given a property of seven hundred acres in
kh Sukarchak, Tahsil Taran Taran, Amritsar, chargeal
th an annual payment of Rs. 584.
.  Bardar Jawala Singh is the eldest son of Panjab nglui
- He lives at Rasulpur; and he is a prominent man in --,-
- nﬂlghbﬁuﬂmod,bamgaZaﬂﬁnrandamamhernftha i

"
“u

e
"f

the Central India Horse. His cousin Tahal Smghdnl
gervice in the Hm;ns a Jamadar in the Oudh 2
Police. He is now in the enjoyment of a small pensio
Another cousin, Nahal Singh, was a Rasaldar in
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furea. He has been granted a perpetual jagir of Rs, ﬁ{iﬁ
theBamwnhpur Rakh, Taran Taran. One of his sons is

Lambardar of Rasulpur,

Ala Singh, brother of Jawala Singh, was also uﬂmtmgmshﬂi 3
soldier. He died in 1870 while still serving in the Central
India Horse, leaving two sons who followed their fatl:m’s

,1
e

profession. The elder, Tej Singh, is a Rasaldar in the 1th _,

- Bengal Lancers. He accompanied the Boundary Commission r
- under Sir Peter Lumsden, and rendered good service in
- connection with the Panjdeh incident, receiving the title of

" Rao Sshib. His uncle, Chanda Singh, was Wardi-Major o

the same regiment. Teja Singh's brother Bhagat Smghm 3
Dafadar in the 11th Bengal Lancers.

Sardar Jawala Singh is owner by purchase of fourteen
Yﬂlﬁgﬂﬁ in the Khiri ﬂiﬁtrict,ﬂuﬂh. m&ﬂd‘ﬂiﬂlﬂm n-'.'r
of Rs. 5,500, in addition to the grant made to his futhar' or
 Mutioy services. His possessions in the Amritsar district
~ are comparatively small, being confined to shont five Imn
- bigas in the family village of Rn.sulpur The Rasu ..
~ Sardars are connected by marriage with most of the J
~ families of note north of the Satlaj.
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SARDAR JODH SINGH, CHAPAWALA.

' Dayal Singh, son of a poor cultivator of Dadubajra in the
i :Emlkot district, entered the foree of Tara Singh Kanhya as
il tmupnr He served his master in many expeditions, and
~ received from him a jagir, worth Rs. 5,000, in the Pathankot =
_: dist: ‘ On the death of Tara Singh great dizsputes regard-
~ ing the succession arose between his sons, and in one of the R
ﬂn hts which ensned Dayal Singh was killed and his jagir seized
by the congueror, His two sons, Kishan Singh and Ram
-: in ngh, were thus thrown upon the world as poor as their
wlmn he commeneced his career. They went into the
district to the village of Chapa, where their father
h settled on leaving bis home, and where, on a fetn '-_'+- =<
mﬂ, he had built a ¢hape or wooden fence round sl
house, which gave its name to the family and the village. - E
* Maharaja Ranjit Singh took the brothers into hisze 3
and gave them the command of five hundred sowars, ‘unﬁur
orders of Prince Kbarak Singh. Kishan Singh was
battle in 1827, and his brother, who had distinguished k
on the same occasion, received a grant of seven villag
Amritsar district. When Chet Singh, the fayourite ¢!
- &
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ﬂmgb was murdered, the Prince, who had always been fond
- of Ram Singh, gave him charge of his private seal, and jagirs
in the Amritsar and Shahpur districts. Nao Nahal Singh,
gon of Kharak Singh, had no love for his father's friends, and
threatened to imprison Ram Singh, which he would probably
‘have done had he himself not been killed on the day of his
father’sincremation. Under Sher Singh, Ram Siogh received
various military commands, and his personal jagir was raised
to Rs. 15,000 per annum through the interest of Raja Dhian
- Singh, whom he bad been accustomed to supply with private
* information regarding Maharaja Kharak Singh.
-' In 1847 Sardar Ram Singh was sent in command of some
irregular horse to Bannu under Sardar Shamsher Singh
‘Sindhanwalia, who was in command of the Sikh force sent
by the Darbar to assist Edwardes in the settlement
and pacification of the district. He was the chief in-
stigator of the rebellion of the Sikh force at Dalipgarh u_l','
1848. Fateh Khan Tawana, an enemy of Ram Singh, wasin
- charge of the fort which the Sikhs besieged. It was gallantly
" defended, but the garrison had no water and were una.hlatu—
- hold out; Fateh Khan was killed and the fort captured.
~ There was a Malik of one of the Tapas of Mudan, by name Mir
. Alam Khan, with whom Ram Singh had struckup a great
fnandshp,snd to whom hehad advanced money to ens
~him to pay his arrears of revenue. Very much through the
stance of this man the fort was reduced, and it was Hﬁm
hnrga when Ram Singh with the Sikh foree marched to
gin Raja Sher Singh.
&rdnrRamSmgh was one of the bravest officers
in the Sikh army. He fought with great gallantry at
agar and Chilianwala, and was one of the few men of
killed in the battle of Gujrat. The whole Jagirs of
family mmnﬁﬂcuted for rebellion; but in 1857

Singh ente: thamnaufﬁmarmmtmn]iasa]dsr

- -




_ AMRITSAR DISTRICT. 325
~ and his houses and those of Jodh Singh, his cousin, were
released.

The family has now no local mﬂmwhntﬂar. Jodh
Singh receives a small pension of Rs. 60 per annum. Dewa
Singh, Hira Singh and Sohan Singh are also in receipt of
- petty pensions. The landed property of the family bas been
partitioned off into small holdings of a few ascres each,

yielding barely sufficient to support the owners and their

families.
Sardar Jodh Singh is a Viceregal Darbari.
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pay the revenue, and his expedition was quite successful.
In 1834 he accompanied the army under Prince Nao
Nahal Singh and Sardar Hari Singh Nalwa to Peshawar,
when that province was formally anneked to the Sikh empire.
- He was employed in this campaign on outpost duty, and many
a severe fight he had with the Afghans. At Shabkadar
he was wounded by a musket-ball in a night attack made by
the Afghans in force ; but, although taken by surprise, he
~ rallied his men and drove back the enemy.
:.' ¥ At the battle of Jamrud, on the 30th April 1837, Sardar
8 Amar Singh commanded the centre of the Sikh army,
' nm:lmstmg of the Maharaja’s Orderly troops, called the
Jamadarwala Dern, and a thousand irregular cavalry, and
distinguishod himself by his conspicnons bravery; but the
- Afghans were very numerous, and the Sikh army was defeated
~ with the loss of the General. The last expedition of Sardar
- Amar Singh was in 1843 in Kachi, where an insurrection had
~ broken out, which he quickly suppressed. He did not serve
_in the Satlaj Campaign, snd on its close, being a celebrated
8 - marksman, was chosen to instruet the young Maharaja Dalip
- Bingh in shooting, The next year he left the Panjab ona
pilgrimage to Hardwar, where he soon after died. .
.5, - Mahtab Singh was born in the year 1811, and when quite
j‘ 'ﬂhuy was placed in the irregular cavalry as Subadar. Im
< 1831, just before the visit of the Maharaja to Rupar, he was
made a Colonel and stationed at Amritsar in charge of twa
regiments. In 1834 he accompanied his father Amar Singh ™ = =
to Peshawar, and served with distinction thrnnghaut he ]
. In the same year his second brother, Gurdit Sin
entered the Maharaja’s service. In 1839 Mahtab Sis
served under Sardar Tej Singh in the Afridi Expedttmn._
was made a General by Maharaja Sher Singh in lﬁﬂt
was stationed at Peshawar in command of four battalions
twenty-six guns, with an Akal regiment, His conductto t




" British force, which arrived at Peshawar early in 1842, on the

second Kabul Expedition, was most unfriendly and hostile. =
After the assassination of Maharaja Sher Singh and Raja *E
Dhian Singh, the General, who had returned to Lahore, gave .
his assistance to Raja Hira Singh against the Sindhanwalias; '12
and after the restoration of peace his conduct was remembered :
with gratitude by Hira Singh, who bestowed upon him valuable -

presents. This did not, however, prevent Mahtab Singh
from turning against the Minister when he became unpopular,
He was privy to the conspiracy against the lives of Raja Hira
Singh and Pandit Jala, and his were among the troops who
pursmad and put them to death. Concerned with him in this
conspiracy was General Mewa Singh Majithia, whose real
 pamewas Sultan Singh, a distant relative of Mahtab Bingh,
and an implacable enemy of the Wazir.
The conduct of Mahtab Singh in thus plotting the

" destroction of a man for whom he professed devoted friend- .:.-
. ghipdoes not seem amiable, but his motives were perfectly
~ glear. He, with the army and the whole Sikh nation, was .
~ weary of the rule of the arrogant and debauched youth who -
* owned all the Dogra vices, without their ability, their strangth 1
_ or their conrage. The influence of Pandit Jala was still more
odious, and as Hira Singh would not give him up it wag = TA
nacmar]rthat they should fall together. There were, beadﬂ, -

Mahtab Singh, had in the Kauhi expedition gwen soIme inur
AN five thousand rupees to his soldiers, who had behaved

~ admirably, expecting to be reimbursed by the Government;

ut Pandit Jala, knowing that when the treasury was full,
there was more for him to plunder, refused to repay anypor-

jion of the sum ; which so dmgustaad Amar Singh that he
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he had been induced to lead his troops against Sardar Atar
Singh Sindhanwalia ; by treachery, an action had been forced
on, and at its close the holy Baba was found dying on the
ground ; and Mahtab Singh could not but feel himself in some
measure the canse of his death. But, even if his own conseience
was clear, he did not escape the reproaches of the Sikh
army and people; and his brigade, with that of Genmeral
Court, commanded by Gulab Singh Calcuttia, and the Dera
- Charyari commanded by Jawahir Mal Dat, was long known

. by the name of Gurumar (slayers of the Guru).

~ Mahtab Singh served throughout the Satlaj Campaign.
He, like many others of the Sikhs, thought only of victory,
and promised the treasury munshis to bring them silver pen-
holders from the spoil of Dehli. After the Campaign he was
‘made a Sardar by Raja Lal Singh, and both he and his brother
~ Gurdit Singh, who had rizen to the rank of (General, wers
- stationed at Peshawar; but in May 1847 he was transferred to
Pind Dadan Khan. He was at this time no favourite in the
;-".e bar, and there was but one man, Sardar Sher Singh Atari-
wals whﬂha.d a word tusa.ymhs favour ; but the mﬂuanee

 five hundred horse nnder Major Nicholson. His conduct
‘spoken of in the highest terms by that officer. Hi
: with his brother Mit Singh, remained faithful to the 1:]
Lahore Government throughout the war and fought on the
side of the British at the battle of Gujrat. On the annexation
urthui-mpb, all the personal jagirs of the Sardar, ame
ing to Rs, 9,485, were released for two lives, and in 1
uue-hn!lafﬂmmmmamhuwdbu his lineal dese
in perpetuity.
In 1857 Sardar Mahtab Singh raised some horsemen for
service in Hindustan, where they were sent under the con

¥ i O -i
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- mand of his nephew Bachatar Singh. This foree served with
credit in Oudh, and was engaged several times with the
mutineers. Bachatar Singh died of cholera at Cawnopore in
1858. His brother Bija Singh succeeded him as Jamadar,
General Gurdit Singh died in 1853 without issue.
Mit Singh, who was a Colonel in the Sikh army in 1844,
- died in 1857. Kahan Singh succeeded his father in command
of the contingent in 1843, and Hardit Singh was General of
Maharaja Dalip Singh's juvenile foree,

Sardar Mahtab Singh resided at Majitha up to the time
of his death in 1865, He owned houses both at Lahore and
Amritsar; at which latter place he was in 1862 created an

- Homorary Magistrate. He was a great sportsman, and
. spent a large part of his time at Kapurthala with the
- Ahluwalia Raja, with whom he was very intimate. His only
daughter was married to Sardar Bakhshish Singh Sindhan-
walis. She died childless in 1889. Mabtab Singh left two|
widows, who are still alive. OFf Sardar Mit Singh's sons, )
Bija Singh leads a retired life, and Bishan Singh is a
Rasaldar in the 16th Bengal Cavalry. Bardar Kahan Singh,
who was an Honorary Magistrate, died in 1888 leaving two
minor sons, one of whom is reading at the Aitchison College,
Lahore. Bardar Hardit Singh died in 1883 leaving two
5 8ons, who manage their lands at Majitha and take no partin

-
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hom little more than a robber, and his followers dJ&
quﬁﬁrwhunﬂ.raﬂ He was succeeded by ]us e
Hmm son of Bbup Singh, a zamindar of Pat; -
_Wndm,ﬂnm a man of great ability. He deve
hnndnfmmﬁﬂmmr and overran a large p
the Panjab. It was his addiction to bhang (an into

_t preparation of hemp) that gave :...i
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THE FANJAB CHIEFS.
Misal. Some indeed say that this name originated with Bhama
Singh, who was of so arrogant a disposition that he was
called by the Sikhs Bala-bash (High head.) This, being a
Turkoman title, annoyed Bhama Singh so much that he
begged his comrades to change itfor some other. Accordingly
he was appointed, when in attendance at the Darbar Sahib
of Amritsar, to pound bhawng for the Khalsa, and was himself
called Bhangi. The former account is the one commonly
‘believed.
| Har Singh, whose head-quarters were at the village of
Sobal in the Amritsar district, seized much of the neighbour-
~ing country, Sialkot, Karial, Mirowal. He ravaged Chaniot
and Jhang Sial, and attacked Jamu, which he rendered
tributary, and Multan without success. In 1762 he attacked
the village of Khwaja Sayad ka Kot, two miles from Lahore,
where Khwaja Abad, the Afghan Governor, had his arsenal;
and carried away with him much booty, arms and ammunition.
* In 1763 he joined the Kanhyas and Ramgarhias in thum' S
‘attack on Kasur, and the next year was killed in a fight with
Amar Singh Patiala ; and Jhanda Singh and Ganda Singh,
. two brothers who had served under him, succeeded to tha
command of one division of the Bhangi Misal. They were
Dhﬂnn Jats of Panjwar near Taran Taran, and under them the
Uunfa&emy became very powerful. Associated with them
e many famous Chiefs : Bhag Singh Ahluwalia, Tara Singh
Smgh and Rai Singh Buriawala; Sudh Singh Dodis
thib Singh Sialkotia, Nadhan Singh Atu; and with ﬂm:p,
‘l']m'llgh not inferior in rank, were the two Bhang: Chiefs
jar Singh and Lahna Singh, whose h.lsbury is given
Tis volume.
‘In 1766 Jhanda Singh and Ganda Singh with a large
nvaded Multan. Shuja Khan, the Governor, and,
rak Khan of Bahawalpur, gave them battle on the banks
e Satlaj. Neither side could claim the victory ; buta
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- treaty was signed to the effect that Pak Patan should ‘he the
‘boundary between the Sikh and Afghan States. After this,
Jhanda Singh returned to Amritsar, where he employed
himself in completing the Bhangi fort which Hari Singh
had begun, and the remains of which are still to be seen
- behind the Lunmandi Bazar. It was not long before Jhanda
Singh broke the provisions of the treaty with the Multan
Chief, and invaded his country in 1771. He besieged the fort
‘unsuccessfully for a month and a half, till the near approach
of an Afghan force under Jahan Khan compelled him to retire,
' The next year, 1772, he was more successful. The
successive Governors of Multan, Shuja Khan, Sharif Khan
Sadozai and Sharif Beg Taklu, had quarrelled, and the latter
nvited Jhanda Singh and Ganda Singh to his assistance,
They were ready enough to accept the invitation, and,
. marching south with a large force, defeated Shujs Khan and
his allies the Dandputras of Bahawalpur, and seized Multan

for themselves. Sharif Beg, thus fatally deceived, took
refuge at Talamha, and then at Khairpur Tanwain, where he

huﬁguuf this gun is somewhat remarkable. It was cast at Inhnm.
gun of same aize, in 1701 by Shah Nnrir, under the dirdctions B
i mhﬁﬂﬂﬁﬂm The date of its founding [A..K. __
ay be derived from twonty Perslin verses evgraved o

- baving u numerical valoa Pﬂhﬁ;

:._l..lH.lh.nAtllhht- Jhﬁ] dh#}l 1_4';‘“

m. ¢ josie (a tribute levied by Mahomedsns from the m}'
ﬁ.”'-ﬁhﬂﬂhmnm Ahmad Bhab, on his
u #I'Irﬁ-ﬂ ot Panipat jn 1781, left the Tam

carringe of » ¥ ot Lahore in the of K
b bad appointed ﬁlurgnu ke took wﬁm Inli
;:.ugu of thﬂﬂhulb. bad alonger lifs. i i
ve captured It whes he Abad's arsensl

Amritaar. mmnmm:hn certain that during the whole ot
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against his son Brij Raj Deo and the Kanhya and Sukarchakia

Chiefs. For some time the rival forces engaged with varying
snccess, till BSardar Charat Singh Sukarchakia was
accidentally killed and the Bhangis seemed about to gain the
victory. This the Kanhyas averted by the assassination of
Jhanda Singh, eausing him to be shot as he was riding
through the camp., This was in 1774,

Ganda Singh succeeded to the command of the Misal;
‘and, finding that no success could now be gained at Jamu, he
- retired to Amritsar, where he engaged himself in enlarging
~ and strengthening the Bhangi quarterand in plotting against
‘the Kanbyas, who had caused his brother’s death, An op-

portunity for showing his enmity almost immediately occurred.
Jhanda Singh had bestowed Pathankot on one of his Misal~

: dars, Nand Singh, otherwise known as Mansa Singh. This

~ man died about the same time az his Chief, and his widow

. gave her daughter and the jagir of Pathankot to Tara Singh,

was lving nnmounted in the 8hah Bar] ot o iy
In 1784, whon Lahna Eingh and Gajar Singh Bhangi copinred. Lahors, they obts
3 'p“im: of it Two days lnter, Burdar Charat Singh Bukarchakin came to congrin
Hhnngis, and hinted that he shoold have some share of the spoil The Bhao

scented o carcuse, thooght to outwit him, nowilling to ma ;
enomy, offered him, with the greatest politesess, the Zam-Zam gun, the
they seserted of the spoil, hoping and believiog that he would be unable fo
But Charst Singh, seeing he conld get pothing mors, called his m
mthp'm Inshoor, carried it off 1o his eamp, snd then to his fort &
Hera ilwumhﬁhmndﬂm Lhut.ﬂ:, who took it to his
Abmadungar, much to the dingust of his brother Pir Mahomed, who thonght
d nlso clnim to i, sod the two quarrelled aboot it possession ; and in the fig
witich ensued & son of Pir Mahomed and fwo soos of Ahmad Khan weresiain. Fip
ngth called in Gojur Singh Bhangi (0 his assistance, whoeutrpped Alimad K
ept him o day and a pight without water till he promised to
ujar Singhi, cheating his ally, enrried to ﬂumt.md
g lmmtﬂl,h un ¢vil hour, the Bhangis took l'l vrithﬂmnm
insk Bapdar Ubarat Singh Stkarchakia. The B
bf;,;';;““m qni;:l]r Tell mimin into the Sniare
the Chatabs, who were alwuys tigh Iﬂht"hnrlil:llﬁ,
nd‘. pllﬂ!ﬂ it in the fort of Manchar, “dﬂf f:'l?m m‘f et
now Rummagar. Her the next fear it
th.n;: ll.'[lmturnfmm]llnihn.mdlg
in the Ehanyri fort ¢ill 1802, when m’
eas it, drove the Bhangis ous of A

knew that Charat Singh had come, not for congmtulation, but oo “.mm I
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a near relation of Hakikat Singh Kanhya. Ganda Singh
was exceedingly indignant at this, and insisted that Tara
Singh should give up the jagir, but the Kanhyas refused ;
and Ganda Singh, collecting a large force, taking with him
theBhn.ngl gun and, with many of the Ramgarhia Chiefs as
allies, marched against Pathankot. Hakikat Singh, Tara
Singh and Gurbakhsh Singh Kanhya and Amar Singh Bhaga
marched to Dinanagar to oppose his progress, and hers an

. indecisive engagement took place ; but while encamped at
'.Hinnnagar, Ganda Singh fell ill and died after ten days.

| Charat Singh, a nephew, was selected by the troops to
‘succeed him ; but in the very first fight with the Kanhyas,
J i mt Singh was killed, and the Bhangx force, left without a

aader, returned to Amritsar,
DE'E'I:I. Singh now became head of the Confederacy, and
an& Gujar Singh acted as his Minister. But the days of the
sat Bhangi Misal were numbered, and the power and
allect of a boy were unable to control the many unruly
Chiefs who had been proud to fight under Hari Singh and
. Jhanda Singh. Bhag Singh Ahluwalia first declared himself

* independent ; then Jhang ceased to pay tribute; and in 1779
Multan was lost.

It will be remembered that Sardar Jhanda Singh had
Diwan Singh in ehnrga uf Multan. He held his own fo
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whether before Chaniot, which he had marched to reduce, or 4
in a skirmish with Mahan Singh, is uncerfain. He was 2
succeeded by his son Gulab Singh ; and of this COhief there is
little to record. He wasa debauched, weak man, and had not
energy sufficient to keep together the possessions which hisg
father had left him. Year by year these diminished, till at
Inst the town of Amritsar and some villages in the Manjha
alone remained.
In 1800 a cabal was formed against Ranjit Singh, who

- had captured Lahore in July of the preceding year, and whose
SUCCERsES Were bagmmg to fill all the Panjab Chiefs with
alarm, Chief in the cabal were Sardars Jasa Sin h
Ramgarhia, Sahib Singh and Gulab Singh Bhangi and
- Nizamudin Khan of Kasur ; and it was proposed to invite
Ranjit Singh to a conference at Bhasin and there assassinate
him. But the young Ohief was too wily to attend withont
- & force large enough to secure his safety, and after two months
passed in festivities he returned to Lahore. But, although =
Rnn]lt Singh escaped with his life, Gulab Singh was less
- fortunate. He had never missed an opportunity for drinking !
hard; and on this occasion, when every night ended in a "|v
dsbanuh, he drank so deep that he killed himself. Some
‘have asserted that he was poisoned ; but there is no shs :.-ar '
fuunﬂatmn for the story; and he was so incapable o man
b no one could possibly think it worth his while to ,
j_' Gulab Singh left one son, Gurdit Singh, a boy ten
age, married to the daughters of Sardars Sahib B‘E
Gujar Singh, and Fateh Singh Kanhya. But no
alliances were of use against Ranjit Singh, who was
ned to gain possession of Amritsar. He hlﬂﬂﬂ
he intention of picking a quarrel with the Bhangis, sent
demand from Gurdit Singh the famous Zam-Zam gun,

he g]my and prestige of the Confederacy was derived in
pe thapmnnﬁﬁm ~and although her
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chief advisers urged Sukhan, the mother of Gurdit Bmgh,
to give it up, she refused to part with it and prepared to
fight. Bubt such preparations were worse than useless.
Ranjit Singh with Fateh Singh Ahluwalia marched to
Amvitear, attacked the Bhangi fort, and in five hours reduced

it, Sukhan and her son took refuge with Sardar Jodh Bmgh
Ramgarhia, and Ranjit Singh seized all the Bhangi possessions.
. Little more iz known of Gurdit Singh. He died at his
~ ancestral village of Panjwar in the Taran Taran Parganaof
~ the Amritsar district, where his descendants are still hmg
{ a3 simple peasants.

_ Notice must now be taken of two other powerful Chiefs of
the Bhangi Misal, Sardars Lahna Singh and Gujar Singh, who,
though joining Jhanda Singh and Ganda Singh in some of
- E:h:raxpeﬂ;t.mm; haye a history for the most part distines.

Lahna Singl’s grandfather was a zamindar of the Kailon Jat
* easte, who in a tims of scarcity left his pative village of
* Sadawala in the Amritsar distriet for Mastapur near Kartar-

~ pur in the Jalandhar Doab. Here he was adopted by & man

_ who joined the trades of carpentering and collecting tn:aa,
» ~ and here his son Dargaha was born. Lahna Singh, the son
1 = trEDarga]m, was a high spirited boy ; and having been on ong.
oceagion beaten by his father for allowing cattle to stray into’
@5 ﬁal:l ran away from home, and after wandering about for
_some time at length reached the village of Roranwala, one
smile from Afari, were Gurbakhsh Singh Bhangi lived. his."
man was one of the best fighters under Sardar Hari Singh.t
]Iawnaﬂnhuutfurbyﬁﬂagﬂs,nndusedtumrthem =
witha band of horsemen and colleet plunder from far g
near. He took a fancy to young Lahna Singh nml]mt
mt-uhmt!‘wp amllatar h:wmg no gon of hm uwn.
wayarﬂaabetwmmm Singh, tha adnptﬂdsun, nnd t‘ sl
Singh, the son of Gurbakhsh Singh’s daughter, each ¢l

)
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e property. Jhanda Singhand Ganda Singh Bhangicameto _-‘
Wmh to try and settle the dispute ; but Gujar Singh would
_ not listen to terms, and set out with his followers for Roran-
. wala, Lahna Singh pursued and ecame up with him, and a fight

. was the result, in which a few men were killed on either
gide, At length an arrangement was made, by which Lahna
‘Singh and Gujar Singh divided the estate. The former kept
‘Roranwala, and the latter founded a new village batwe&:_l
"Bahrwul and Rani, which he called Rangarh, in remembrance’
of his fight with Lahna Singh, of whom he now he-uamﬂ he

fast friend, s
3 The two Sardars then planned the capture of Lahore,
* which Kabuli Mal held in the interest of Ahmad Shah. The:
" Governor was a timid and, at the same time, a tyrann .1.:.'::
* man ; and as the Sikh horse, becoming every day more bold,
plundered the country up to the very walls of the city, he =
: alarmedfur his safety, and when he obtained seer ’ H
'.,;. lligence of the Bhangi plot he fled from Lahore lewrm S

i mchntgenfhmnephsw.&mn*ﬂmgh. He took the road to i
amn, but some of the refugees, who bad left Lahore through = f
| his tyranny, handled him so roughly that he would prnhﬂhly- ¥
"u ve been killed had not some troops sent by Raja Ranjit Dea
a8 his escort reseued him. The Raja sent him to Rawnlpmau
here the rear-guard of Ahmad Shab’s army had halted ; m%}
; e he died shortly afterwards.
= One dark night Lahna Singh and Gujar Singh wﬂl

e ";mamdmmaemmaammpm Lahore. They found < _
. allthe gates closed ; but one Dayal Singh showed them adrain
yy which it was possible to enter with some squeezing. Gujar
Tﬂﬁﬂmwny.lahm Singh followed and the other
'_ The fort was taken by surprise; Amir Singh the
}eputy Governor, was captured at a nantch and put in irons,

)
.ﬂ.
'U'
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Ewly the next dsy Sobha Singh Kanbya,
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e e i\
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_'naphaﬁ-nf.fai Singh, arrived. He had, since the last Afghan
 invasion, been in hiding at his native village of Kangh. He
Was one of the confederates and, althongh too late to aid in s
- the capture, was allowed a share of the prize. Then cama
- the other Bhangi and Kanhya Sardars ; and lastly Charat
* Singh Sukarchakia, who was very hard to please, and would
~ not go away till the Bhangis had given him the Zam-Zam
* gun, which he carried to Gujaranwala. The three Sardars
then divided Lahore among them ; Lahna Singh taking the
citadel, with the Masti, Khizri, Kashmiri and Roshani gates,
- Gujar Singh built for himself a fort without the walls, which
he called Kila Gujar Singh, and in 1765 marched northwards
£0 conquer new territory. L
*  Lahna Singh and Sobha Singh remained in Lahore in
- peace till Ahmad Shal made his final descent upon the
- Panjab in 1767, when they retired to Panjwar. But the great
- Durani leader felt age and infirmity creeping npon him;and
- having no man of genius like Adina Beg Khan to leave in
" eharge of the provinece, he resolved to conciliate the Sikh_»_,
* Obiefs. To Lahna Singh he sent a present of fruit ; but he
"~ returned it, saying that grain was the food for peasants like
* him, not fruit, which was a luxury for kings. Pleased w ith
~ this humble reply, Ahmad Shah confirmed Lahna Singh in
) -:"’ i possession of Lahore and returned to Kabul, where he
= - died in 1773. For twenty years after this the Lahore Sa dars
- ruled intolerable quict till 1707, when Shah Zaman, who
* had succeeded to the throne of Kabul, invaded the Panjabs
and Lahna Singh again retired from Lahore, and rety
after the departure of the Shah, but died the same year. Sobha
Singh died about the same time, and was succeeded by his

F .
[
v

~ son Mohar Singh, while Chet Singh succeeded Lahna
5 3 Shah Zaman again appeared in 1798, bat onl

~ afew months ‘in Lahore, as news from Persia rendered
~ return necessary. Sardar Ranjit Singh Sukarchakia of

LR
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-~ from &gﬂhahagmntufthamtymretumfmmmﬁn&
~ he rendered, the principal of whichwas the raising and 7‘ -
. forwarding to the Shah eight guns which had sunk in the
~ river Ravi. Bub the gift was only nominal, and Ranjit Singh
: was left to gain possession for himself. This was not difficult. A

The only man of any energy among the joint rulers of Lahore
 was Sahib Singh, son of Gujar Singh, and he was absent at
Gujrat. Chet Singh wass an imbecile, and Mohar Singh
possessed neither character nor influence. Their rule was
 hated by the people, and their own adherents, Bhai Gurbakhsh
Singh, Hakim Rai and Mian Ashak Mahomed, were in
favour of Ranjit Singh, and wrote him word that he could
' easily make himself master of the place. Ranjit SBingh wﬂi :
- large force entered Anarkali, and Chet Singh, who thought of
- marching to oppose him, was dissuaded from so doing by 'hﬁ
“agent Molikam Din, Chaudhri of Kotnao, who was in uhm.'gq
of the Lohari gate, which he opened to the enemy. Ranjit
‘Singh took possession without difficulty, aud Chet Singh and
Mohar Singh flel. s
b Some time later Ranjit Singh granted to Chet Singha
.: -ﬁ of Rs. Eﬂt]{}[}m‘iﬁnﬂn which he held till his l'lﬂﬂl
in 1815. He left no son by any of his eight wives ; but four
months after his death Bibi Hukam Kaur gave ‘mrthta&r P

n named Atar Singh, in favour of whom Ranjit Si
sed an estate of Rs. 6,000 at Waniki. This was

" On annexation this village was released to :Mnr
nerh 1 and his mother for their lives.
3 Sardar Gujar Singh’s expedition to conquer the country
L j'--‘___: north of Lahore was successful enough, and he soon
8 a far more powerful Chief than Lahna Singh or
B_mg]; He first attacked Gu;mt, which was tlmn -
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~ in an engagement just beyond the walls, took possession of
 both the city and the neighbouring country, Gujrat he now
- made his head-quarters, and the next year, 1766, marched
- to Jamu, which he overran and held tributary with Jhanda
. Singh Bhangi; and then successively reduced Punch,
Jslamgarh: and Dews Botala. In 1767 Ahmad Shah made
his last invasion of India, driving before him all the new
~ Bikh Chiefs ; for in those days the dread of an Afghan army
~was such that there was no thought of opposing it in the open
'i'i= and leaving behind him the proverb, Khada pida
lada rvahnda Ahmaed Shahda ; meaning that Ahmad Shah
dleft nothing that men could eall their own but what they had
1 Jrinthmrmﬂnths.
Amung those who fled was Gujar Singh. He went to
Lahore, and thence, as Ahmad Shah advanced, to Firozpur;
indwhan thaDummGhlefhndﬁnnﬂytﬂmadhsbnnkontha
L Pl:lljﬂ.h he recovered his share of the city of Lahore and left
it in charge of Takht Singh, a near relation. He then went
! o Amritsar ; and for the defence of the holy city laid the
- foundations of fort Gujar Singh, where now stands the newer
- fort of Govindgarh. Charat Singh Sukarchakia also built s
fort to the north of the Darbar Sahib (the Golden 'I‘empla
pﬁlﬁ that of Jasa Singh Ramgarhia lay to thaaast.,and '
ththangmtothamuth. Then at his village of Rangarh
m&dhmaldﬂshmta thadnnghta:rniBhag B'
by ; and as soon as the festivities were over mar

1‘7-‘ lna Whﬂlﬂ foree to Gujrat, mmvarmg all hm old
- w with but little trouble. Then, in _conjunctig
E‘L;_ with Sardar Charat Singh Sukarchakia, he

me fort of Rhotas held by the Ghakars, A_ﬂw,
nffmmdmnthu it was reduced, and the whole ¢
neighbouring country as far as Rawalpindi, with its splen
fighting tribes, Janjoahs, Ghakars, Awans, uuhmmﬁ
allies. He then married his second son Sahib §

AbL i L
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@ghiﬂrofﬂsrdnrﬂhnmtamgh,anﬂsnme time later to &
* daughter of Hamir Singh of Jind.

] Gujar Singh had divided his territories between his |
~ two eldest sons Sukha Singh and Sahib Singh. These
~ quarrelled ; and the younger, at the instigation of Sardur .
Mahan Singh Sukarchakia, who was always sesking to benefit
]_J]r the mistakes of others, attacked his brother, who was killed
’durmg the action. Gujar Singh was very indignant when k.
e heard of this, and determined to dispossess Sahib Bmghﬁ
X the country under his charge. He marched upon Gujra
‘and was admitted without question ; and Sahib Singh, now i
' open revolt, shut himself up in Islamgarh. But Gujar Singh
" did not wish to proceed to extremities and forgave his ¢
thnmumant-hﬂﬁhﬂwad a disposition to sue for pardon, and,
confirming him in his old possessions, made over those which
- had been held by Sukha Singh to his youngest son Fateh
Bingh. But another cause of disunion soon arose. Sardar
Mahan Singh was besieging Rasulnagar, the capital of his =
enemies the Chatahs, and a principal officer, escaping from the ==
‘town, took refuge in Sardar Gujar Singh’s camp. Mahan
‘Singh demanded his surrender, which was refused. Sahib i,
‘Singh, however, willing to oblige his brother-in-law, made ;
refugee over to him, and he was put to death. Gujar
gh was indignant at this disobedience of his son; he

hm,mdpmgedthntaahnhadmzulmdand S

od his father, so bhis =on might insult and &mhum

e L&

Thl!l conduct of Sahib Singh so preyed upon ﬂp.r -jl
%;rdm-‘s mind that he fell ill; and, leaving all his 3
pssessions to his youngest son Fateh Singh, he retired to 5
ghore, whero he died in 1788, His tomb is situated near
'.}11 man

e 3 mnnhﬂnjar Singh may have wished to exclnde -
st son from the succession, the Sardars of the Khalsa
of admit his right to do s0; and Sahib Singh took
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* possession of his father's estates without active uppnmtuh
. from Fateh Singh, who went to live with Mahan Singh at
" Gujaranwala. For some time there was peace between the
" ‘brothers-in-law Mahan Singh and Sahib Singh; but in 1789 '
ﬂmy openly quarrelled, and for two years remained in =
~ eonstant hostility. At length, in 1791, Mahan Singh shut
- up Sabib Singh in the fort of Sodhra and reduced him
 fo great straits. The Bhangi Chief called to his assistance
I..a]mn Singh- of Lahore and Karam Singh Dhilon, The
former would not move ; but Karam Singh came with a ]m-gu
“force to raise the siege, and an engagement took place between
.,-: im and Mahan Singh. The Sukarchakia Chief was at this
..; very ill, and during the fight fainted away on his
pphant ; the mahant of which turned and earried his master
from the field. His forces, missing their leader, flod: the
4.=_.=- s was raised, and Maban Singh retired to Gujaranwala,

‘where he died three days afterwards; the desertion of his
.n friend Jodh Singh Wazirabadia hastening his daa.th,.
In 1797 Shah Zaman invaded the Panjab, and Sahib Singh

“retired to the hills. The Shah only remained a few dnya ":
Lahore and then returned to Afghanistan. He left behix .;

i at Pind Dadan Khan an officer, known as the Shahanehi

“with seven thousand Afghan troops who, on Sahib Smgh'

returs to Gu]rat marched against him with uJ]msfmm Among

Nubal Singh and Wasir Singh Atariwals, Jodh Sing
V: in, and Karam Singh Dhilon, gave him hnt:ﬂa

ohﬁﬁ]ntaly defeated him, This was in 1798, and was the
first time that the Sikhs had fairly beaten the A.Eghmm' he
open field. A few months after this defeat of the Shahanchi
Shah Zaman again invaded the Panjab; but his m;y_
short, and he retired, making Ranjit Singh a grant of :
i whmhhﬂaqmmﬂ. a8 has been alveady related. Fﬂﬂh
. Bhangi now joined Ranjit Singh, who promised to g
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ltnil!nfhin brother’s possessions, and with this assistance he i g
seized Fatahgarh, now called Kot Bari Khan, and Sodhra. 5

. When Sahib Singh heard of the fall of Lahore, he moved with )
- a large force against Ranjit Singh, the Ramgarhia and
Kasur troops marching from the east and south to the same 2
_point; but the meeting at Bhasin passed off peaceably.
Hostilities commenced latér in the year, and continued for
some time, Fateh Singh becoming reconciled to his brother,
Bat this friendship did not last long; for on Fateh Singh
 favouring Mai Sahib Kaur, wife of Sahib Singh, who, disgusted
. ab her husband’s third marriage, held the fort of Jalalpur
Against him, his property and newly granted estates were all
- seized. Fateh Singh went back to Ranjit Singh who,
remembering that he had deserted him in the middle of the
campaign, would do nothing for him, and after remaining in
- Lahore in great poverty for a year he was compelled to
return to his brother at Gujrat, who gave him Daulatnagap
‘and other estates. :
- Sahib Singh now began to lose the energy which had so
‘much dmhngmsheﬂ him, and gave himself up to »
and debauchery. He quarrelled with Sardar Nahal Sir oh
Atariwala, and with Mohkam Chand his Diwan, aftery ards
80 celebrated, who both went over to Ranjit Singh, In1806
hie accompanied the Lahore Chief on the Patiala Campaien.
and at its close returned to Gujrat. In 1810 Ranjit Singh
latermined to take possession of Sahib Singh's country, and
 for that purpose Hukam Singh Atariwala and Sewa

- Bahib Singh, seeing resistance hopeless, fled from
b with fifty horsemen and took refuge in the fort of Dewa
_;nﬂhinwhulajagirsmaﬂimd,mmteufhﬁﬁ,ﬂﬂﬂ
granted to Gulab Singh who had intrigued against his
er. In 1810, when the Maharaja was engaged in the
f Multan, Mai Lachmi, mother of Sahib Singh, procseded
yand interceded for her son with such effeot that the

e i
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ca of Bajwant, wortha lakh of rupees, was released in his S
.; ﬂm.r This he held till his death, which took place ﬂm :

next year, when Ranjit Singh took two of his widows, Djm.
Kamr and Ratan Kanr, into his Zanana, marrying them by
dar dalug. Dya Kaur, daughter of Diwan Singh Wirk,
5 the reputed mother of Pashora Singh and Kashmira
- Sin gi: Ratan Kaur the reputed mother of Multana Singh.
dar Fateh Singh Gujratia, on the death of his brother
and the resumption of the jagir, went to Kapurthals, where
e remainied in the service of the Abluwalia Chief for two
g irs till, on the death of his mother Mai Lachmi, he
'inadagrant of Rangarh and some other villages in the
ritear district, and entered the service of Sardar Sham !
hAﬁanwaln in whose contingent he served for many years,
: "mkﬂladm Baonu at the siege of the fort of Malik
58 Khan. About the same time, in 1832, Gulab Smgh
d and his jagirs were all resumed, _
Jaimal Singh, only son of Fateh Singh, was for some time
n Sardar Sham Bingh’s foree, and served on the frontier and
Paﬁ]mwnr He, however, quarrelled with his Chief, and
is brought on Jaimal Singh more troubles than there i isN
Space torecord here. Through the enmity of Sham Singh his
3 gir was resumed, and when the British ocoupied the mrmtry
~he was in great poverty. He resided at Rangarh, without'
sion or estate, the representative of the great Bhangi hor ;-.;
: th possessed more power and ruled over a larger territory
1_1" . any other family between the Satlaj and the u o
Ha ﬁlﬂdm 1871 leaving a son, Jawala Singh, who resides af
Bangrh near Atari in Amritsar. His son Budh &ngh
Lambardar of the village. The famiiy&n]nrnupﬂnm
~ jagir, but possess over four hundred ghumaos of land in
- proprietary right.

_: Thakar Singh, as lineal descendant of Sardar G
- Bingh, may be considered head of the family.
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Zapildar at Panjwar, and is known as a respectable
~ energetic rural notable, having a seat in Provincial Darbar

~ He and his brother Hukam Singh enjoy a mafi yielding
Rs. 190 per annum and own about two thousand h:gu
~ land. The widow of their uncle Huleghl:asn
&E&lﬂﬂparmnnm.

No trace is left of Atar Singh or of his descendants in
 the Amritsar district.
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SARDAR GULZAR SINGH KALIANWALA.
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ﬂardnr Lal Singh does not belong to the old Kalianwala
‘stock, nor is he related to the great Sardar Fateh Emgh,
£ ,. ongh whom the present family attained wealth and honours.
‘The story of Fateh Singh's family must be briefly told. Jaimal
:- Singh, grandfather of Sardar Fateh Singh, was a Sindhu Jat
and the first of his family to adopt the Sikh faith. Hnm
8 fmﬂent of Kali Lakhu, near Amritsar. Hewasa fn]luwar o
." he Sukarchakia Chiefs, Charat Singh and Mahan Singh, and
h them was engaged in constant quarrels with the Chat; h
‘tribe inhabiting the northern part of the Gujaranwala districtz
nd in one skirmish with some Chatah marauders both --.'_'-'
ons, Jai Singh and Jasa Singh, were slain. Fateh Sing
fered the service of Ranjit Singh about 1798, and -:.-.
!@Eﬂym in the favour of his master. He was a brave
and skilful soldier and proved himself as such in
, ." every campaign undertaken by the Maharaja till 1807. He
fonght against Ghulam Mahomed Khan Chatah, ag:umt o
Singh of Wazirabad and Nadhan Singh Atn. He was -
the Maharaja when he captured the city ofI.nhara,aud"
‘he took Amritsar from the Bhangis and the B
1 __themduftha.ﬂ.hlunﬂuanﬂxmhpﬂnﬂm
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" the Jhang and the Pindi Bhatian Campaigns; and it was ina
- great measure owing to his advice that Ranjit Singh d d
not espouse the cause of Rai Jaswant Rao Holkar against ﬂm E.
British Government in 1805. Much assisted by Fateh Singh’s
good offices, peace was concluded between the English and ©
Holkar, who gave to the Sardar many valuable gifts in
recognition of his services. Fateh Singh distinguished -
himself at the capture of Chaniob from Jasa Singh Bhangi,
and when Jhang was taken in 1806 from Ahmad Khan Sial ¢ he
district was leased to Fateh Singh for Rs. 60,000 per ann nu'
| Abmad Khan, however, soon after made a compromise with
Fateh Singh, who returned to Lahore. =
Towards the close of 1806 the Sardar was sent
Kasur, where Kutbudin Khan was giving troubls. The
Pathan Chief held out bravely, but was glad to buy off the
L 8ikh by the payment of a lakh of rupees. At the beginning.
of 1807, a Sikh army, under Banjit Singh in person, again
marched against Kasur, and after a long fight reduced it
Fateh Singh promised to Kutbudin the quiet possession of
hiis estate at Mamdot if he wonld give up the Kasur fort ; and
althongh Ranjit Singh did not approve of the promise, yet he
ieonsidered himself bound to confirm it %
Beneath the banner of Fateh Singh, many of the hief
Bikli barons were proud to fight, Among others was Amip
Bingh Sindhanwalia, Dal Singh Naharna, Dhana Singh
falwai, Fateh Singh Matu and Utam Singh Chachi. =

ot gl
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- I 1807 Ranjit Singh, returning from Patiala, besieged

tt of Naraingarh held by Sardar Kishan Singh, ﬁ-\; i
days it held out; and the Maharaja became yery _
ent at the delay, and told Fateh Singh, who was in
mediate command, that he was fonder of remaining by him |
he Maharaja) than of leading the troops in the field.,
Fateh Singh, piqued at this, assaulted the fort; but was

Pufsed and mortally wounded. Ranjit Singh cameto visit
= i TR -}
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i i
;rLt i ‘his tent, and Fateh Singh is said to have ndmﬂ

;3.,. arajn never to raise another Jat to the highest ﬂﬁcﬂ m’

Etatﬂ Whether such advice was ever given is doubtful,

.". ]lht‘r the Maharaja appeared to act upon some such principle j

:.. lor while his bravest officers and Generals were Jat Sikhs, in
* the Council he rather gave his confidence to Brabmans,

‘E_ljput&.-nnd even Mahomedans.

. Fateh Singh left no son, and Ranjit Singh might have
resumed all his jagirs; but, feeling some remorse for the®
Sardar's denth, he sent Mit Singh Padhanin, on his arrival
@t Amritsar, with a valuable khilat to Mai Sewan, the widows
gnd bid him tell her that any 6ne whom she should nominate
48 her husband's heir and successor wonld be recognized.
_' here were several Chiefs well loved by Fateh Singh, and
Wone more so than Dhana Singh Malwai and Dal Singh
Naliarna, The latter was his pofrela (godszon) and a great
favourite. But for the suceessionto Fateh Singh's estates;
“Dal Singh is said neither to have trusted to fortune nor ta
favour. On the mght of Mit Singh's arrival at Kali, I-..l.'
- gh paill lim a private visit, and for Rs. 5,000 Mit Singk f
told Mai Sewan that, although she might nominate wh n-t-

b she pleased, Runjit Singh would be only pleased with Da
" Singh; and he was accordingly selected.
. Notwithstanding the generosity of Ranjit Singh on this
peeasion, there were not wanting many whe said that - '
s had been given to Dal Singh as ﬂ.thank—of&mng '
@ death of Fateh Singh; that Ranjit Singh had long fe ‘ _
%ﬁﬂlﬂﬂf and that he dared him to assault I*-a.ram
ugh an impracticable breach, in the hope of his d

Dnmﬁ ‘oceasion, at Wazirabad, Ranjit Singh told Fateh Sin
~ to draw his forces on one side that he might ses k
'):umm they were. When the order was given t]:a
~ army went over tothe grest Kalianwala Chief, Inll
Bmgh,tuhmrngunﬁchngm,ﬁunnd h:maa]iahm
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;'.'"'-f never forgot the incident, or forgave the Chief who __ -
too much influence with the army. z
Dal Singh Naharna's family originally resided at Karial,
-‘.in’ﬁhﬁkhupum, and is of the nakarna or barber (or, more A
properly, nail-cutter) caste. It is stated that an ancestor,a
Wirk Jat, fell in love and eloped with one Rami, the daughter
‘of Duni Chand of the Jandi Naharna tribe, and that the
mme Naharna has been ever since attached to the family.
But this is a fiction, and has only been invented since ,-,,:
family rose to importance. Dal Singh was not of Jat descent.
Sahib Singh Naharna was the associate of Bhagwan Smg
‘and became known as a bold and successful robber, W _.,.'._.
ﬂlmmt Singh bscame powerful, both Sahib Singh ar
Bhagwan Singh joined him ; and when he had conquered the
country about Pind Dadan Khan, Bhagwan Singh clmme& '5
__" i share. This, Charat Singh did not faney giving, and
ha'nng that he could trust Sahib Singh he resolved to ge
d of his froublesome ally. Soon after, the three men wenb
ahuntmg expedition, and a wild boar happening to run
Charat Singh cried aloud “ Don't let the beast eaﬂspa."
Sahib Singh, who well understood the meaning of these word;
hot Bhagwan Singh dead. For this service he was rew ]
with a jagir. Both his son, Hukumat Singh, aml '
grandson, Kaur Singh, were in the service of the Sukarchakia
Chief, but they were not men of any note. E
- Bardar Dal Singh wasa bold and able man, and ¥
reat favourite with Sardar Fateh Singh Knhanwnla, 1ng
' "urders he used to fight. At the time of Fateh Bmﬁ? s
th, Dal Singh hnﬂa;agrruf about Rs. 68,000; but when
Ralianwala jagirs, with the exception of Rs. 7ﬂﬂl}0
L'on Mai Sewan and the children of Fateh Singh's
: _Hr,weramﬂdﬂ over to him, his estates were worth
Hﬁﬂﬂﬂl} Most of the Sardars who had ﬁHgM

steh Singh now were led by 11-1 &ngh and the
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‘barber showed himself as brave in battle as the best of the Jat'
aristocracy. He served with honour in the Kasur, Multan,
Kﬂ_uhmh‘ and Dera Ismail Khan campaigns. .
I' In 1814 he was sent, with Ram Dayal, grandson of Diwan
Mohkam Chand, in command of a detachment of ten thonsand
“men, to force their way into Kashmir by way of Nandan Sar,
while Ranjit Singh himself proceeded by way of Punch. This
‘ detachment was surrounded and outnumbered, and it was only
_on account of the friendship entertained for Diwan Mohks m.
Chand by Azim Khan that he was allowed to returnunmolested.
In the spring of 1815, again in company with Ram Dayal, he
mged the Multan and Bahawalpur territories, mctmg
es and contributions from every town; and later in the
he was sent against the Bhimbar and Rajauri Chiefs. |
" reduced them to submission, and burnt a large portion of
he city of Rajaur. He died in 1823, according to his family,
of cholera ; but the commonly received story is that he took
poison after having been severely rebuked by the Maharaja
for the inefficient state of his contingent. He was succeeded
in his jagir by his eldest son Atar Singh,
In 1834 Atar Singh was sent to Peshawar under tl
eommand of Prince Nao Nahal Singh. While there, Diwan
" Hakim Rai, who was the chamberlain of the Prince and &
s favourite, induced some of the Sardars, who had beer
. pustomed to fight under the command of Atar Singh, to go
er to him with their troops. On this Atar Singh left the
y without leave, and came to Lahore to complain to the
m]a.. He was not well received, and was ordered ¢
wﬁn:ths army, then in Eannu, without delaj-. Af-tr

thnmmatthafamﬂyemtauf]{ala, wnrmm'a
. and Hamidpur, Bs. 750. Thus it remained till the ¢
of Ranjit Singh. Hmum:ﬂeaaor.Khnmkﬂmgh,
‘Rs. 12,750, free of service; and Maharaja Sher §

_,"' ﬁl 3
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mtumnf.&tar Singh from the Ganges, whmha_ |
aunwyarl the ashes of Mabarsja Kharak Singh, and Prince
M Nao Nahal Singh, gave him, at Pindi Gheb and Mnuw
]ugm valued at Rs. 1,02,000; this was subject to
service of two hundred hume, and included a grant af
RB.E,D'I}D to bis son Lal Singh. Atar Singh was made
Adalati (Chief Justice) of Lahore and themrm*lmdmgdmtnm,
and received command of the Pindiwala irregular cavalry,
hmhhad been first raised by Milka Singh Pindiwala. No
change took place in his jagir till Jawshir Singh becames
Wazir, when Atar Singh represented that Pindi '[-}]1 b
“though nominally worth Rs. 65,000, only yielded Rs. 50,000
“and obtained in exchange the Tlakas of Chunian, Dhundiane
. wali and Khudian, worth Rs. 0,000,
: After the murder of Prince Pashora Singh by Jawnlm.'
Sin gh’aardars,thu army, enraged at the conduct of the Wazir,
* ermined upon his death, and threw off their allegiance tua
@ Lahore Government. Sardar Atar Singh was, on the
September, sent by the Runi Jindan, with Diwan Din 8
"-4 and Fakir Nurudin, to the camp at Mian Mir fo
induce the mutinous troops to return to their duty. Hﬂi
iention was, however, paid to their advice ; the Fakir w
:"”'1'-\" but the Diwan and Atar Smgh were ins
Abused, and confined in camp till after the murder of th
Wazir, on the 22nd September, when the army, llﬂ
id of the Rani, sent them to Lahore to try and .

Atar Singh served throughout the Baﬂalm._
n 'uf 1845-46, and at the battle of Firozshahar ]I.ﬁ
Chatar. Singh was killed. In September 1846
Singh was ordered to join the Sikh army proceeding
shimi to suppress the rebellion there; but he took

pe nfmpeatﬂd injunctions, rumammgn-thum o




- T —

mum R
his niece. For this conduct his jagir was confiscate .;-
Shortly afterwards, however, it was restored to him and made
“up to Rs, 1,11,800. He received a seat in the Council of
R Regency appointed on December 1846, and held this post till
the annexation of the Panjab. On the first news of the
pnthmk at Multan in April 1848, he was ordered to proceed
her in command of all the available irregular troops.
was recalled, with the other Sardars, when the Resident
i Lahore found that it was considered inexpedient to
end a Buropean force to Multan at that time of year ; but
, he accompanied Raja Sher Singh to Multan in command
_ the cavalry.
- The Sardar had little influence over the troops which hu -
sommanded. He was of a weak and vacillating character;

and although his own intentions were good, he was qui:tau_
umable to keep hLis men to theirduty. Day by day they grew

more and more mutinous, and deserted in numbers to the =
rebel Mulraj in Multan. At length it was agreed by ﬁl:m
pe Sikh Generals, Raja Sher Singh, Sardar S]mmahﬂr
Singh and Sardar Atar Singh, in concert with Ha.]ur
'ﬂrﬂas and with the concurrence of the English Bﬂnﬂ al,
that the only thing to do was to move the troops oub
- tumptnbmn, away from Multan. Sardar Atar Sing
ision was to be posted at Talamba under prebenm of
ng open the road; but before the movement could ba
bed the whole Sikh army rebelled and, being joined by
: Sher Singh, marched to Multan. Sardar Atar Siogh
- mounted his horse and fled to the camp of Major Edw
- ﬁmiwhurﬂamen His son Lal Singh was na.mﬂ
: by the troops, but soon sfterwards contrived to make his e
_“' - and joined Edwardes also. .
b Lalﬁtnghmmelsﬁbmnmtmmmmﬂ
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e of Raja Sher Singh on its way to Multan. When
Ihwau Kishan Kaur, Adalati of Batals, joined the '_ g
- Sardar Lal Singh was appointed fo succeed him, and held
~ the appointment for about three months till the close of the
- Sikh administration. '._
On annexation all the personal jagirs of Sardar Ata
' Bingh, amounting to Rs. 47,750, were maintained for hﬁq
one qulrtﬂ'tu descend to his son Lal Singh and his m
heirs in perpetuity. The jagir of Sardar Lal Singh, ¥
' Rs. 5,600, being a recent grant of 1848, was rﬁ‘ﬂtﬁmﬂﬂ;
hml&mgnadu.naah allowance of Rs. 4,800 from the j
. of his father, with whom he was at feud. E
Sardar Atar Singh died in December 1851, and th .7_
- fourths of his jagir was resumed. The share of his son La
Bingh was in February 1862 raised to Rs. 15,000, whiely
. 1is continued in perpetuity, Lal Singh resided at Kala in
.Lmntla.r distriet, where he died in 1888. For many years b
; { ad taken no active part in public affairs beyond sitting a
barufthnmmmttﬂa of mhﬂl'ﬂ]ﬂ RE]]]I:tI Slﬂghﬂs Ll _'_'
thm He was a splendid specimen of the old Sik] b
‘Sardar, and to the last was fond of hawking, imnf.mg _
_- hen Enld'. sports. He had been four times married, but b
0 children. He adopted his nephew Gulzar Singh, to wk om,
n the special recommendation of Sir Charles Aatchmnn,-, the
'_?_;- ernment of India has continued the jagir of Rs, lﬁ,m 4

r  man of handsome appearance, pleasing manners and
mlhgouua. He resides at Kala. Innﬁdﬁm?ﬁﬂ

-..~ ’, the Bardar possesses other property in lami*-ui.




The Ramgarhia Misal, from which the family of Sardar
Mangal Singh takes its name, was one of the most puwar:Eul
ﬂ:la Sikh Confederacies, and towards the close of the
N te&rdih century could bring into the field about eight
sand fighting men. Of its leaders, Jasa Singh was the
distingwished, although he can hardly be called i -f'
"'r, for through many unquiet years it had existed as
anized body under Khushal Singh and Nand 8i 1eh
it was only when Jasa Singh succeeded to the comman ."-
" in 1758 that it became powerful and renowned. -
- Bnr]}ﬁ, the grandfather of Jasa Singh, was a :E[mﬂ‘
y hw or carpenter caste, resident at 8
IMM He was content to follow his humhh
in his mﬁ.m nila.g&, but his son Bhagwan, of a
-.J adventurous disposition, took the pahal, the Sikh %
-ﬂm&tﬁ&a&ﬁfﬁﬂh&&nghmhm name, wander
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he conntry, making converts to his new faith. He at le
mtﬂﬂdat Ichugil, where there were born to him five s
~ Jai Singh, Jasa Singh, Khushal Singh, Mali Singh and Ta
~ Singh; the four last of whom became noted men and leaders
of the Ramgarhia Misal, There was no great dﬁam n
the ages of the brothers; and in 1752, on their reachin
manhood, they entered the service of the celebrated Hm
‘Adina Beg Khan. This able man, then Imperial Governor
uf the Jalandhar Doab, encouraged the Sikhs in
| pesistance to Ahmad Shah Durani, hoping to rise by their a
gistance to supreme power in the provinee ; and in this hawn ]
k grnhuhljr have been successful, but for his premature de
in 1758. When Prince Timur, son of Ahmad Shab, march '_
‘against him, determined to punish his opposition, Adina Beg
' retreated to the hills, and Jasa Singh and his brothers 1
him and went to Amritsar, where they joined the fuma*
‘Nand Singh Sanghani. Jai Singh was sbout this time
- killed in action with the Afghans near Majithia. i
Amritsar was at this time no more than a large villageg
and on the retreat of the Afghans, Nand Singh and Jasa
'Singh partially fortified it, surrounding a portion with a high
“mud wall, which they called Ram Rauni. When Adina Beg
‘returned, thinking the Sikhs were becoming too powerh
he sent Mirza Aziz Bakhsh to reduce the new fort, which
f truth, no diffienlt matter. Jasa Singh and his fr
pught gallantly, and made more than one sally from the fa
t they were overmatched, and at length abandoned
,and with considerable loss cut their way throug :
. The Ram Rauni was dismantled; but Adinmr '
hor y afterwards, and Jasa Singh, taking cmnaﬂn -
confederacy, named the fort he had defended so bravely
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other towns in the Amritsar and Gurdaspur dmtrmﬁn,
' revenue of which was estimated ab from six to ten Ia.khn
Fupees Besides this, Jasa Singh, who was sole lord of t.hn
itory, acquired many villages in the Jalandhar Doab. To
h‘:ﬂ brothers he gave separate jagirs under him. It was their
gimprudsenm which brought great trouble on the family ; for as
- Jasa Singh Ahluwalia was passing near Gurdaspur on lu o
'-w:y to Achal, a place of pilgrimage, he was attacked k
Khushal Singh, Mali Singh and Tara Singh ; his troops we
_dispersed and himself taken prisoner. Jasa Singh Ramgs ‘
swho would have been glad enough had his brothers slain ¥
T val could only release him with rich gifts when he was
. roucht in as prisoner; for the old Sikh barons had much of
e spirit of chivalry. But the Ahluwalia Chieftain was not
G I:na appeased. He was looked up to as the head of the Khals;
ﬂmﬁead its foumder; his followers and flatterers called him
King (Sultan-ul-Kaum), and yet he had been insulted by thes
Bamgarhm youths whose beards had but just begun to grow
nd he swore a mighty oath that he would never loose hi
tn bﬂn till he had seized all the Ramgm'h.m estates. Man]
ﬂluﬁfs came fo aid him, thinking not much of the insult, b
it va- an eye to plunder and new jagirs. There was Gan
Sinch and Jhanda Singh Bhangi ; the Kanhyas, Jai_ -.
and Hukikat Singh, old friends of the Ramgarhias; Charal
Singh Sukarchakis, Nar Singh Chamiariwala and mam
sthers. They attacked Jasa Singh on all sides, and s il
' srestruggle took possession of all the Ramgarbia territe
Khushal Singh was badly wounded at Begowal £
with Jai Singh Kanhya ; Tara Singh lost Kalanaur, an
-Bmg:hﬂn-ﬂ across the Satlaj to Sirsa with a large
jrregular horse, having sent his two sons to the Paliﬂs
_Amar Singh, to beg assistance. A
In the Sirsa district he remained till 1783. He overran
the country with his horsemen, and plundered up to the wi
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carried off four guns from the Moghal ‘quarter. The Nn :
aihﬁmtpmdhmtrihum of Rs. 10,000 a year to save his
ﬂmmf:hﬁwmplund&r. One day a Brahman complained tq_,,
that the Governor- uf]ilaaaarhndmmadnﬁhlam
iters by force. Jasa Singh collected his forces mﬂ,
mar hadngamsbﬂxm which he plundered, and restored th

: n ‘to their father. Bometimes he was reduced to grant

gtraits ; and there is a story, which may be trus, that at Sirs:
b servant of the Sardar happening to drop his wvessel down a

1l a diver was sent to feteh it, who discovered at the botto:

i boxes full of gold-mohurs to the value of five lakhs .,:j
Tupees, enabling Jasa Singh to pay his troops and that.
followers,

A great famine desolated Sirsa in 1783, and the Sa

ur:nﬂﬂ to the Panjab. At Ludlana he met messengen
Sardar Mahan Smgh Eukarcha.lun ami Ra]a En

1 I l11

'l:a would join them against Sardar Jai Singh K;mh]r
Singh consented readily enough, and having joined
s the allies marched to Batala. Gurbakhsh Singh, son of
Emgh advanced against them with eight thousand menj
he was defeated and slain, and the Kanhya Chief 5 "
apelled to give up the Ramgarhia estates to their ol -__'f
ar, and the fort of Kangra, which he had held for four
rs, to Sansar Chand. But Jasa Singh was not destined to
 peace ; and for many years he was engaged in dispu =
th the Kanhya Misal, in which he was sometimes successful,
.‘ imes defeated. 1
! ”1?95 his last and most severe struggle ml‘-hﬂlﬁ -8
phyas took place. Mai Sada Ksur, widow of Sardar Gur-
hsh Emgh, was then head of the Misal ; and with all her
v for n.nﬂﬁ:msaof har young m—m—lﬂr, Einptﬁmgi,

'N-.




-. ict mear the Bias. Jasa Singh defended hlmsalf
. some time; but his provisions ran very low, and he sent a
--.=-.u.;-. to Sahib Singh Bedi at Amritsar to beg him t.ﬁ
. interpose between him and his enemies. Jodh Bingh
Wazirabadia and Dal Singh Gil were with the Bedi on tha"
d‘;m_'t of Ranjit Singh when the Ramgarhia messenger arrive
- and Bahib Singh gave them a message to Sada Kaur and
: mjsz Singh bidding them raise the siege of Misni.
4 Kaur would not retive without her revenge for
t,.“ band’s death ; and her enemy was now in her hands, so ne
motice was taken of the Bedi’s order. Again Jasa Singh sent
a messenger, and Bedi Sahib Singh said. “ They will "
mind me, but God himself will aid you.” The messenger
returned to Miani, and that very night the river B -3
pame down in flood and swept away a large portion o
Eanhya camp, men and horses and camels. Sada Kaur
"and Ranjit Singh escaped with difficulty and retired to
e r sranwala. '
Jasza Singh died in 1303, and was succeeded by his eldes i
gon Jodh Singh. The new Sardar was not a man of any
ability, and his cousin Diwan Singh seized a large pﬁrﬁnﬁ.
ﬁm ]ag'lr At length Ranjit Singh began to lust after
- garhia territory, and feigned the greatest affection -.="
r Jodh Singh. He had a contract of eternal friendshig
n himself and the Ramgarhia family dmwn nuk-, ang

ope }la].m dyed WIt.h saffron. The better to cn]ulnx

, he went over the Ramgarh fort almost unattended, a
a!hﬁha new fort of Govindgarh to hehtﬁltmthﬁ
fashion. Ranjit Singh cared little about Itaepmg
huwmpﬂanm but Jodh Singh had been won
“became so devoted a follower that there was no

- amnex his territory.. Eammpmﬂdthe




{asur with all his force in the last successful expedi
w Kuthudin Khan, ¢
, On the death of Jodh Bingh in 1816, the family began to
quarrel; Diwan Singh, Bir Singh and the widow of Ir.uih;
ﬁmgh all claiming the estate. The Maharaja, hearing of ﬂmg
called the three cousins, Bir Singh, Maktab Singh and Diy
Bingh, to him at Nadaun, promising to settle the dispute _T:m
-r'l'l f ‘]1_ Un their arnval thﬂj wara I‘EOEEYE{I Wi -
cot psy by the Maharaja; but he soon took oceasion to lea 3
the reception tent, which was straightway surrounded with
troops and the three Ramgarhias made prisoners. "hen
Ranjit Singh marched on Amritsar, and after some severs
'r; ting toock the fort of Ramgarb. Again, march »f:_'
' northward, he seized all the vast Ramgarhia jagirs, and in a
short time reduced all their forts, upwards of a hundred in
=.-ru.| P, .ﬂ.ﬂﬂ thus was mcﬂﬂeﬂ ﬂl& ﬂkﬁfﬂn hﬂﬂd.
~ Bir Singh and Mahtab Singh were soon released, and
wel placed under Sardar Lahna Singh Majithia; and at the
mterces: ion of Sardar Nahal Singh Atariwala a jagir of R
Wﬁm settled on the family., Diwan Singh for nn
ne refused to accept his share of Rs. 6,000 at Dharamkof
d remained a prisoner; but at length pretended to acquies
I regaining bis freedom, however, he fled to Patiala, wh
m at first well received ; but after a year was ncempa_
8 leave, and he then wandered about for some time till wn
oug itbaattumhmtr and,ratumﬂgtolnhora,he ccepted

out for Kashmir. After this we hear little of hi ,'

that he remained in charge of Bmﬂanﬂiﬁﬂi~
post on the road to Srinagar, till his death in 1534,
J had died six years before in 1528, when two-thirds

."':"-,_:- H-nsﬂ Singh served durmghs younger days
1e per ufmmpwwqmmm




2 Bl
y e

- AMRITSAR DISTRICT.

' jagirs in Dharmkot, Kalowala, Tibrah and Kundilah, wor .-'~
Rs. 9,000, of which Rs. 8,600 were personal, and Rs. 5,400 for
service. After his father's death, Sardar Mangal Singh was
- sent to Peshawar in command of four hundred foot and one
. hundred and ten sowars of the old Ramgarhia clan. Here,
" under Sardar Tej Singh and Sardar Hari Singh N &IWE,]IE&J&-;
guadsﬂrﬂﬂe, and fought in the famous battle of Jamrod in
..!..pril 1837, where the gallant Hari Singh was killed. In 1839
e was recalled and sent to the hill country between the
‘ and the Satlaj, under the orders of Sardar Lahna Singh
]rthlﬂ, and during the absence of that Chief at Peshawar he
a8 placed in charge of the hill forts, and was active in the
_, pression of the insurrection of 1840, 3
During the reign of Maharaja Sher Singh, he was chiefly
employed under Lahna Singh in Suket, Mandi and Kulu, and
he remained there till the close of the Satlaj War in 1846,
T he Ra]plrt Chiefs, with Raja Balbir Sen of Mandi at their
head, were not slow to take advantage of the war with the
English, and gave the Sardar plenty of work ; but he held hi _
.:: ound t-[l] the Treaty of the 9th March 1846 enabled him ti
ve up his trust with honour. 3
l" During the Second Sikh War, Sardar Mangal Singh
‘remained loyal, and did excellent service in guarding fsh
‘roads and maintaining order in the Amritsar and Gurdaspur
iets. His great exploit, however, at this time was the
e of the notorious rebel and robber Hari Singh, whe
for some time kept the country about Amritzar in "
of alarm. This he effected at Sagarpura, near _
Ns ,a grant of which jagir, worth Rs. 3,700, was mad
Iqm by the Darbar and confirmed after annexation.
~ In 1862, on the retirement of EnrdnrJntIhEmgh

- Sardar Mangal Singh was appointed manager of the affaira
- the Bikh temple ab Amritsar, This appamtmeng
' - oneof some difficulty, was filled by the Bnrdar

P BT = N,
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ability. In the same year he was appointed Honorary Magis-
~ trate of the city of Amritsar. In 1876, His Royal Higk
. ‘the Prince of Wales conferred upon him the Companionship
- of the Star of India. He died in 1879.
~ Bardar Mangal Singh was a man of education and I.iberil
ideas. It was in a great measure owing to his infinence and
mm'plu that the cause of female education has been s
widely and systematically taken up in the city of Anmtam'
Gurdit Singh, eldest son of Sardar Mangal Singh, i
] dl:lmry 1858 joined Colonel Abbott at Huuhmrpnr
that officer was raising s foree of cavalry for service in Oudhs
&urﬂ.i_ﬁ Singh was made Rasaldar, and served in the Oudlk
~ Mounted Police to the complete satisfaction of his superio
“officers until October 1859, when, on the reduction of the*
force, he returned to Amritsar, where he was made
Inspecte of Police. He retived in 1887 on a pension of
s, 1,200 per annum., He and his nephews e:n;aya]ngm
3. 3,600 per annum, allowed in perpetuity to the descendand :'.
C Sarﬂsrh[mgalﬂmgh Suchet Singh, the second son @
'_‘-’- dar Mangal Singh, was a Munsif in the province. Hadi
"'-.15?9. The third son, Sher Singh, was for some yearsa
Deputy Inspéctor of Police. He resigned for the purpose of
'=. ing after the affairs of the family, and died in 1888. Man:
thaynungermmhm of the family have taken service in the
1Yy Iﬂdpﬂhﬂﬁ




- PARTAB SINGH CHAMIARI, RANDHAWA.
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_; Thaﬁmdﬂaftheﬂhammn family was not Nar Bingk
s true ancestor of the family, but Sawal Singh, adi
nection, who about the year 1750 adopted the Sikh fait
am hmmeamamharuftha]ihmgx Misal. He fought for
hief, Hari Singh, in many battles, but does not appear g
'mginuhed his personal interests ; asafewyanmhbnt'
him the possessor of a large tract of country on the 1
&nhﬂmﬂluﬁngﬁpﬂnmdﬁhammmar Lambyar
hich place the family took its pame. Sawal Six
. killed in battle leaving no issue ; but his widow, Mai D
 made over the estate to Nar Singh, a cousin of har :
, :.h -“W-n& ‘his devoted follower, a brave and &
~ msn. This arrangement was confirmed by i;he
ﬁhnﬁmﬂwmﬂmﬂﬁuﬂmﬁ the ackno '

-
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64 mEPAWAB CHIEFS. "
of all Sawal Singh’s estates, went forth conquering and &
mquar_ Not content with the Amritsar side of the river,
invaded the Sialkot district, and took possession of Pasrur
- many villages in its vicinity. He then transferred his se
. to the rising Kanhya Misal, and at Nunar in the Sialkot
 district had a sharp fight with his old allies. The young
Buks hakia Chief, Mahan Singh, was on his side, and opp
o him were Jhanda Singh and all the bravest of the Bk T
Chiefs, The origin of the quarrel was trivial enough. Nar
f:m hpassmg through one Jhanda SBingh’s villages had tu
is horses into a field of young corn to graze. The Bhangi
Ot afmmuﬂmmgreatmth and insisted on their rem ."

* Bingh refused fo interrupt his horses at their meal
ig insult Jhanda Singh was unable to endure, and, collecting
hmmen and making as many allies as he was able, r'rf_fl

narched against Nar Singh, who was prepared to meet him,

Eghh was not deeisive, and scon afterwards Nar Sin :

isted his Sukarchakia friends by giving his dnug

m Kaur in marrisge to Amar Singh, nephew of Sard
'_. nds Bmgh He did not, however, openly break with ¢
Sukarchakias, and in 1799 we find him assisting the son ua
Maban Emghtncaptm Lahore, ¥
I R'ar Singh died in 1806. His eldest son Ram Singh
lied some months before him of cholera in the camp GF
Jaswant Rao Holkar, the Mahrata Chief. On his death,
Ranjit Singh took possession of the greater portion of
ily estates, including the Sialkot villages and the Talukas
al, Ghaniwala and Chamiari. The town of
in the possession of the family who still hold :Ii
ary :nght. :
Chamiari is a very ancient town ; and there are meud
mds regarding its origin, which may be given here.
i_i_mm relates that Ba]awmuiﬂlﬂiﬂ,‘lﬂm
sd about 90 A.D,, passing wiﬂ:_u,hhm near the
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spof whmﬂhammnuwsmda, gaw a young girl drawing

rata well. Struck by her marvellous beauty, he enquired
m‘.me, and found that it was Chamba, and that she was ¢
d;.ughturnf the Rn]put Chief of the district. Salvahan |I
J@lkﬂﬁﬂmgu'l in marriage; but her father declined, as the
Raja’s name was a terror throughout the Panjab to both
‘parents and daughters, as he was accustomed to take &
w wife every day, and maidens were becoming scarce i
e land. But the Raja was not to be denied. He swore
if Chamba was only given to him he would not marry
again for eight days, and to these reasonable terms the
father consented. But by the eighth day Raja Salvahan bad
grown so deeply enamoured of the beautiful Chamba, that he
as content to divoree all his other wives and to keep her
“only for life ; and to glorify his love and render it immortal, he
:T milt around the well where he had first seen her drawing water
3 town of Chamiari, which he called after her name. »
Another story asserts that Chamiari was named afte
o caste of Raja Salvahan's favourite wife, whose name wa
Luna, the daughter of Raja Pipa of Papnakha, a Champal

,'. out, She was the mother of Risalu, from whom Sinlkel
formerly called Risalkot. Luna was remarkable for he
beauty, though not for her virtue, as the following stom
show. Ichran, another of Raja Balvaban's many wives;
)ecame the mother of a beautiful boy, who was named Puran
astrologers, who had assembled at the palace to draw
_horoscope of the new-born infant, declared that &
test calamities would befal him should he be seen | 7 1
father before his twelfth birthday. Inthose days nste
; mhhavad and a high t-nwafrwa.naﬁmrdmgly
which the boy was carefully guarded till the twelve years b
muﬁo.ﬂqﬂmtnhnugm,tnmmd, whm&.,'
- him to his delighte - Bntmihyh;ﬂ];m
,'iF " from the calculation : thatﬂlwymhdmt '

! *: 1
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Whm Luna saw the lovely boy she fell in love w;th him
g once. This was less her fault than that of the stars;
ﬂ'rhsl:, unable to control herself, she caught Pmum
,rmsan&tnltlhmnﬂhurluva, He had not been taught t
n! love in his solitary tower,and only lsughed at.Lmjl‘. :
8 and ran away ; while she, enraged at the repulse, and
lwa turning to hatred, tore her hair and clothes, a
en the Raja came in told bim with weeping eyes ;.;.
n had attempted her virtue. The Raja made no enquiries,
mmghtway ordered that the boy should be taken ints
be jungle and there putto death. As the poor little fo 1.-.-'-
a8 being carried off by the executioners he begged hard for
llfe but for long begged in vain. At length the m :--’1.
promised not to kill him ; but they eut off both his hands an
hlm down a well, where they left him to die. ..
Hfu of Puran was miraculously preserved, and about tw
5 afterwards the great magician Ghorakh Nath came to
pimmthhm twelve thousand disciples, Omne of ¢
Fawing water from the well saw the boy, and having
m carried him to the magician, who by enchantments
paced his hands. Ghorakh Nath then brought Puran to
pu.hne and restored to sight Iehran, who had become
d with weeping for the untimely fate of her son. E;." A
Salyahan, confounded by thess prodigies, wished to resign
owr tn]:ml son ; but Puran would not accept the offer g
mouncing the world, became a disciple of Ghorakh Nath, wi
hon i:n remained until his death. . P s
hare the legends regarding the founding of Chamiari,
g&'qmﬂm:btad]y of great antiquity. Tt was lhqmt
inntmyedm the great inundation about ahhﬂnmd .
mwhen the five rivers of the Panjab united; but |
nn&urthsEm;wmm. In l?ﬂitmhumkdom e
ikhs, and was still in ruins when it came mthg
: M‘hﬂwﬁﬂﬁ 2%




- On thaﬁaathdtham&nwof Nar Smgh and of E :
\ bis second son, the little estate left to the family y
« reduced, and the whole was resumed by Maharaja B]:mz-ﬁ

g on the death of Jai Singh in 1841.

~ Sardar Gurdit Singh, who was commandant of Mahml
Dalip Singh's Body Guard, held a jagir af Dhariwal near.
A ]ﬂaln., worth Rs. 1,200 per annum, one-third of which I
t his death in 1878. His two sons, Partab Singh and H
Singh , joined the rebels in 1848 and lost their jagirs. Kk m
, widow of Sardar Jai Singh, received a pension
ﬁrﬂﬂper annom. The pension lapsed on her death. Of thi _
anch of the family there are two survivors, namely, E it
h and Narain Singh. The former lives in Dargwal, Tal
a. and the latter is a Thanadar in the Ludhiana distric :_
descendants of Gurdit Singh and Partab Singh live :j
amiari. The family is of noimporfance. Bhagwan Ein ol
s a Lambardar. He and his brother Sham Singh enjoy a jag
B.a. 667 from the village of Dhariwal, Tahsil A}nnla..
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BANT SINGH, VEGLIA.

Iqrilﬂql. l:muL Bingh

" Bahib Singh joined the Kanhjm Confederacy about 1760,
fmghl. under both Jai Singh nnd Hakikat Singh. He
0k possession of Taragarh in the Pathankot pargana of the |
'-.-_. aspur district, and after Sardar Mahan Singh’s suceessfu
xpedition against Jamu, Sahib Singh, who had accompanie
aved o grant of Sayadgarh, worth Rs, 30,000, He four
o of Wachoya, where he resided till his death in
o8 10 Tmh, Bayudgarh and WM’]&’E Werg
Rs. 90,000, and were held mtnotbyhafnur
» When Hahnra]nfﬂaupt Singh marched agamsf. '
n ofthe estate. Twelve ?ﬂlﬂg’ﬁ, mulnding . :
" m,mwﬁﬂ laft.fnmdm rbqt-hﬁn . l

succeeding the confise '.*r"f{ qﬁmﬁ[




; cousins Jamiat Singh, Sangat Singh and Ran Singh. They
fought in many of the Maharaja's campaigns, though their
gir was a subsistence one; and they had no obligation iau
: _,.-u- y & contingent, till Desa Singh Majithia, who was
vgmruft.hanlanﬁhar Doab, told Jawahir SBingh that a
- Sardar should give a contingent for the service of the State if
..EE e wished his name to endure, and fixed fifteen horsemen as:
‘the suitable number.

. The Veglia jagirs were not interfered with till 1846,
vhen Raja Lal Singh, who had no love for Sardar Desa Singh,
fhe family patron, took advantage of bis departure to Banares

mﬂmt& the whole estate; but a year afterwards the
arbar, with the sanction of the Resident, restored the j jagir
with an increased assessment of Rs. 21,000 and service of thirty
_:-.“-3- ars. During the disturbances of 1848-49 the ?aghafamﬂr
'umﬂ faithful. Didar Singh joined Captain Hodson with
contingent, and did good service at Rangar Nangal,
Parmanand and elsewhere. At annexation the whole persor '
t-an the family, amounting to Rs. 8,608, was reles:
thndnfthaahmnfaaﬁhdaswndmg to the Imaa.l
3 in perpetnity. Didar Singh became a Rasaldar in 5
ary Police, and took his discharge at the time of "'
general reductions. He died in 1869. ,
. Bant Singh, son of Ran Singh, was sent down #e
' _M-ﬁmaﬂnrin the Rasala raised by Major R. Lawrene
1857 to serve with the Guide Cavalry at thﬁ-"' re,
portion of the Rasala was permanently transferred |
%Eﬂﬂa Corps; the remainder formed the nuo b
- the Dehli Mounted Police, in which Sant Singh w
~ moted to be Rasaldar. He served with zeal mi:
-~ till the redu "':uftha Military Police, when he receive
lhm"hatgn. He afterwards joined the Provincial Polic
Tﬁnpouhr Inlﬂﬁﬁhemmsfmmdahhu '--_

'f
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a Rasaidar to the 4th Bengal Cayalry, in which regi
was subsequently made Wardi Major and Rasaldar.

. served throoghout the Afghan War of 1870-80, and acquit
‘himself well on several occasions before the mamy

retired in 1882 affer thirty-two years' meritorious s

o ap&nsmnoﬂh 360 per annum. His son Harcharn §
to Egypt in the Transport Department, and is now.
employed in the Sialkot Settlement as a Kanungo, e
b, - Thn]}vmgmﬂmlmrsufthﬂfnmﬂym mmuerpﬁnfn acir
__1 . 1,025, nmaly,Ra.lﬂ'&mWachnjnm'
Ajnala Tahsil, and Rs. 900 in Taragarh, Tahsil Pathar ot

aspur, the original home of the family. E
SﬂrﬂarSn.nh Singh is the only surviving m&mb&rﬂf
i ... e and influence.
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ASA BINGH OF BHILOWAL, SIDHU.

MOMLAR EDNOH.
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" The Bhilowal branch of tha Sldhu fa.m.lly includes no
hief of any importance, Budh Singh made himself mast

gondman]rvlﬂngeam the .&mrrhar &mtrmt-, amlwaahll :

aded to the estate : but in the early days of Sikh hmtu
Chiefs died in their beds: and after some years he also wa
filled in battle. His son Jai Singh was a mere child at r
& of his father’s death ; and Mahi Singh took PDG'BEBBIDh of
estate, which he considerably increased and mansged w
h vigour and wisdom till Jai Singh grew up and demandal
htful inheritance. He was satisfied with obtaining fron

two years after the arrangement, leaving an a
]]mm],da ""iingh from’ whum Mahi Eingh tm]t i

ﬁﬁ bnﬂlmt.h the greatest impartiality, a]]omng Dasaite
* Singh Rs. 8,000 per annum, with which he was to supply
i., sowars to the Sowrian Dera, which was first under Prince §
.q__.‘ Singh, and latterly under Jamadar Khushal Singh.
_J WIMKMBE@MkMPMmtm
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furnish till the annexation of the Panjab, when his jagir

confiscated, as he had joined Raja Sher Singh. He di

1867. Kishan Singl's son Asa Singh and his cousin M

| Singh are now the prominent members of this not

inent family, They hold no jagirs, and live upon

s of twenty acres of land. They are in dec
stances, and have no local influence.




widow}, :
~ Lakha Singh held the large estate of Awan, to which,
on his death, his eldest son Ranjit Singh succeeded. He had
married the daughter of the celebrated Fateh Singh Kalian-
wala ; and when that Chief was killed in 1807 at the s
of the fort of Naraingarh, Ranjit Singh Sidhu succeeded 108
arge portion of his jagirs, the remainder going to Dal Sing!
Naharna. Also on the death of Amir Singh, son of Sarda
Jodh Singh, without issue, he received the jagir of Sowriam,
h Ra. l,ﬁﬂ,ﬂi}ﬂ, Bﬂbjﬁﬂt to the service of three und] e
5. He only held this jagir for two years,
which it was conferred on Prince Sher Singh. He sem
- at Multan, Teri and Kachi, and was killed in action
(Gheb Kamrial in 1836. On his death all his jagirs v
resumed, with the exception of Rs. 15,000, princips
ths estate of Sardar Fateh Singh, which was cont




ufand the aunthorities at Lahore ; and all hm}n.gam

ken from him, with the exception of the Yﬂ]ﬂgﬂ‘-r t
_un He was, however, made a commandant of fo -'cr
o ‘sowars on Rs. 800 per annum, and placed under the com= =
mand of Sardar Lahna Siogh Sindhanwalis. Sarup Bin;

pncle of Ishar Singh, retained his jagir ; but at his daath,:

_ Dhmaﬂmgh having been killed at Sobraon, they

A In 1847 Kishan Singh’s contingent was reduced
t horse, and leaving these at Lahore he wanb*
nou with Edwardes; and afterwards to Multan. He
irped to Lahore with Sﬂrﬂﬂr Atar Siﬂgh K alisnw
ing from the rebel army with difficulty, and only brin

¢ back three of the fifty horsemen he had taken with him,

=
LEeT

mthmmttaDmmgnrnnﬂerEarﬂar Shamsher Singh
rr-. and afterwards to Pind Dadan Khan. -..-';j.
exation he received a pension of Rs. 360, which he

;ﬂ'ii_.

& _','.l

H&h&l Singh's two sons enjoy a jagir of Rs. 225 pe f

pum in the villages of Kotli Dasaundiwala, Bhindi Sai ... :-'
‘.&m in Tahsil Ajnala. Jawahir Singh, son of A

; '4 now the leading member of the family. lr

peh, son of Jaswant Singh, is Lambardar of Awan. The

sess no influence and merely occupy the positionof




The ancestors of Atar Singh came into the Panjab from
mabuut the beginning of the seventeenth century, and.

gettled near Chunian in the Lahore distriet. In 1738 th

a second move to the village of Bhakha in the Am '
ot, from which they derive their family name. Bu&
at Smghwaath&mnufamtﬁr of Sardar Sawal Singh
. 8 powerful Bhangi Chief. On the death of Saw al
di mthout izgue, the estate was divided by the '_
mata, or national couneil, between Nar Singh Chanr
poirela of the deceased, and Charat Singh, the sis
~ The share of Nar Singh was the larger ; but the jagirs
Charat Singh were valuable and extensive, and he he ;‘-
m till his death. Hisson Soba Singh held jagirs v

A8, 40,000, subject to the service of one hundred and

ien, from Sardar Hokikat Singh Kanhya; but Mahar _:'-_
Singh in the year 1802 seized all but Rs. 7,00

ect to the service of five horsemen, who with Soba §i Sing
¢ employed in Ghorchara Kalan. The estate wu

mrds farther reduced to Rs. 2,116 at Guralis &n
Bobu. E—lngh htmng ﬂmplea.sad tha Maharaj




Imﬁmﬁmghwﬁhhzmmgmt,m e
_urdars of Captain Hadnun at BangarH i

He diedin 1857 ; and to his son Ishar Singh half ¢
village of Bhakha, in the Aiualapargma,]ma
__ tained in perpetuity. Ishar Singh died in 1872.

Atar Singh, now at the head of the family, is ares

Bﬂﬂ#ﬂhmbar&aruftwnvﬂhg&s,anﬂkvm at Bhakl
¢ Bmgh Hmbmﬂmrﬂahnh&nghmam_

i3 not now one of much loeal mﬂumne. u
connected by marriage with the Sardars of China and h
Bansi. The jagir yields Rs. 330 per annum, and is enjo __
in equal shares by the four sons of the late Ishar Singh,
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: HAHLL SINGH OF EOT SAYAD MAHMUD.

ﬂllim‘ﬂﬂ.
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J,al Singh, a Sindha Jat of Kot Sayad Mahmud, a sm: _:_i

lage two miles from the city of Amritsar, was a trooper in
ampluy of Sardar Gulab Singh Bhangi. In the year
9 Maharaja Ranjit Singh married Jai Singh's daughter
',_~ p Kaur, and this marriage made the fortune of the family;
' the Ilaka Akhnur, worth Rs. 30,000, mnamgnaﬂ. #

t Singh and Bhup Singh, subject to the s

o hundred horsemen. They held it for fiftoen years, ¥

mmsunmd and Charat Singh obtained instead the jag
]_J]mrtm'n], worth Rs. 2,500, free of Eﬂrﬂm, with the oa com
" mandantship of an irregular regiment. In the year 183
Charat Singh was severely wounded at the battle of Sayad
ai, fought against Sayad Ahmad Shah by Prince | :1" .

gh. Bhup Singh was killed in the Khaibar in 13&0,
estate of Rs. 2,000 was assigned to his sons. Itt
the family, with but few exceptions, joined ﬁm. 2hi
and the jagirs they had enjoyed were confiscated.
. M;mwad a pension of Rs. 100 per annum, and Ras __ :
. mmdmimlﬁ?‘ﬁ a pension of Rs. 1,980, Tln
mmamm mthaﬂﬂaganfﬂut&yd




B S 15t Doen yery valusle: Whare i
hma mghtymxmnmlmsuf ﬂ:a i:uml]rm ﬂ:ﬁ

'_ Emhnﬁngh, SON {}f Panjab Emgh,and
Jai Singh, is chief Lambardar of the village.
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SANT SINGH OF TANG.

B The Sikhs of Tang near Amritssr are of an old family of
) z Rajputs who emigrated from Dehli about thabegmm
£ the eighteenth century and founded the village which bears
hei:  mame. In course of time, from association and intere
friages, they became Jats, and on the Sikhs rising to po
d the Ramgarhia Confederacy under Jasa Singh. §; hib
received Tang with some adjacent villages from his ’
n jagir, lnd died in 1804, his only son Fateh Singh havmg
the preceding year. Fateh Singh's three sons remained w
Singh, the Ramgarhia Sardar, till in 1816 the )
d the passausmns of the Unnfadermy, and i:lmjr were glac

lar Desa Singh Majithia. After the mptura of Multan §
at which the brothers were present, they recei
of their ancestral village of Tang, valued at Bs. 7
aqml shares, subject to the servica of three horseme
I heir salaries were considerably raised. Gumnﬁ_ ir
‘@;ﬁﬂ commandant in the Ramgarhia brigade, s :
an, Mankera, Tira, Kaslmir, and Peshawar, ﬂa a

ﬁgﬁl‘ﬂ:&hﬁﬂh;ﬂmpmgn of 1845-46, when his
mahpaipghmﬁm Under the Darbar he was emple




' Thﬂ]aglrsha]ﬁbrsm.nkhﬂmghmdvhﬂh '
'ﬂaﬁr death. Sant Singh, son of Nadhan Singh, a




. NAND SINGH RANDHAWA, OF KATHU-NANGAL.

-__’ . .‘.\1‘

4L
et

ﬂhﬂudlm])alnh tenth in descent £mmRan&hs
ounded the village of Chavinda in the Amritsar district.
mr sons, Gagu, Jabhu, Ram and Lakhan, founded, reapach
'I]:le villages of Kathu-Nangal, Sahniwali, Wariam-Nan zal
. Rupowali. Sahib Singh, who took the pakal ',-'_"
-.." me & Sikh about the year 1770, was the great-grandson
o Gign. He joined Sardar Jai Singh Kunh]ra =y

ession of about thirty villages in the ne:ghhourhaoﬁﬂ
__ -Nangal, Dharmkot, and Chakowal. Sahib Bmgh

it on the side of the Kanhyas in all their L_f-'-
hatbefarﬁ the fort of Atalgarh in ashrmxshwiﬂt '
sarhia troops. His two sons Jit Singh and Budh Sin
ded to his estate, but the elder uftheaamw -
js st Lodha-Mandowala fighting against ﬁnr
“‘!hn hnd slain his father.
. was one of the last of theKauhjt
’bmerhﬂﬂaﬁm to Ranjit Singh, by whom
e Wmdmmghmﬂhwad to re!hun

; T




ﬁihmpmaﬂﬂlhm vii]a.gm except Lad
th Rs. 3,000, and & portion of Kaﬂm—Nangﬂ._,:

fﬂlnga. Kushal Smg‘h his son, is chief Lambnrﬂ,q
hu-Nangal. None of the members h&w taken service,
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than joinadthﬂﬂhnnglﬂun&dﬂrmy, and throngh
snce of Chaudhri Raman, a Randhawa B.a.mutnndb
-L relative, he obtained & jagir worth about Rs. 20, 000,
uding the village of Isapur, which has ever since emaineds
¢ family, and from which Dasaunda Singh took his fami ily
2. His son Bhagat Singh preserved the old estate an
ired new jagirs ; and Sardar Ram Emgl'l about l:hB
1804, joined Ranjit Singh, who confirmed to him the vill
—_ _!uapur Bolah, Snrnn, and others in the .ihm-lm ﬂ

seived the grant of jagirs to the value nf five Iai']m of
ipees, subject to the service of seven hundred ho semen
two thousand infantry. This was a special grn.nl:fm'.
amir Campaign, and was resumed in 1821 after the §

. 'Khamkﬁmgh,mth whom hammmadnnm |
 hews trmsfmadtu]iu.]uﬂunhetSmghsdJm He ser
@*Eib, Kangra and in most of the Maharaja's numerous:
and died in 1836. His son Sahib Emgii had b
ﬁn'mnhmdinﬂmnmtmploynttha time of hy
&mtl:,ntﬂmhhmnkmmgwﬂhﬂqa Sugc _".;"'




: Eahbﬁmghwnprmentanhasmdmga of Mulks lban

818, and in Kashmir in the following year. He also -

~ served under Prince Kharak Singh and Raja Sudmt Singh
Hﬂﬂhﬂ. Bannu, Yusufzai, Ssiduki and the Derajat.

fter the Satlaj Campaign his estate was cut down tanf

ect to the service of ten sowars, and also uhm'ge&

s to his father’s widows. =

" Tn 1847 he wassentin command of one hundred horse

at v Ohand Dhariwala in the collection of the ruvenm
wards hﬂprﬂmﬁﬂd to Hazara unﬂer Capmm “-.-

0, and]}nahmspokﬁn of in the highest tarmsh]r
Eahuﬁnm ‘In 1851 a portion of his jagirs, Gnnmstang

ur, Bolah, Sagal and Suran, worth Rs. 2,597, em‘lmﬁr
s subordinate rent-free holdings in the name of other m

uihufnmﬂy,waacnnﬁrmudtuhmfnrﬂe. The vi "

'_ itimate male h&u’smperpet.mtj
ﬂardﬂr Sahib Singh resided at Isapm- in the A

Hisonly son, Akwak Singh, was first employed un : ..

lish Government as a Jamadar of Police. In 1857 he

ade Rasaldar and sent to Bannu. He b&hﬁvadwry' iy
ﬁdm:rhnmns, and received an extra Bahadariallow-.

his gallant conduct. =
Bardar Akwak Singh retired, after a service of :
,in 1874, At the time of his retirement he was
r of the 5th Panjab Cavalry. He is at present nl;il&-
tlm children by his first wife having ilmdymn_g. {
ace married three wives. Heenjoys a cash pension
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'-.' Ladha wns a Lembardar of the village of Chichs, which:
had been founded by an sncestor of that name, a Sindhu Jat,
e ‘generations before. Sewn, son of Ladhs, about the
rear 1720, adopted the Sikh faith. It was a time trying ta
s zeal of new converts, Banda, the blood-thirsty follower
ru Govind, had been recently executed at Dehli, and'a’
persecution was raging against the Sikhs, who were
-tn death wherever they were found. Sewa Singh .-.-'_
h some companions to the wild region of the Upper Raviy
ind it was not for many years afterwards that he was able
urn to his native village. He turned a robber, like m
Sikhs st that time, and fell at length in a foray in &
1 of Lahore, His brother Nodh Singh joined the fo
ar Gujar Singh Bhangi, and managed in the year
’hkﬂmﬂhnlﬁmnﬂageamthﬂnukamm
d Balkawala, Jalal, Sahibran, Gilwala and Kalarwala.
Gujar Singh obtained poscession of Gujrat, Nodh Singh
six other villages in the neighbourheod of that



3 43ﬂ1ﬁﬂd1{uk&mb nnﬂiﬁm:n{hhmndﬂhnhﬂm Etf I
dlluﬂmghmmaedaﬂ to the estate, but was killed in the y 3
Wm attempting to recover soms cattle which Ghulam l[aho-"

X Am&,ﬂmmvatumte foe of the Bhangi Misal, had carried off.
- - Akha Singh left no son, and his brother Bh&gﬂmgh,
ﬁh_ma brave soldier, very largely increased the famﬂ;: ’
essions.  He became a Sardar, and held under En !-
_a]ngn' worth Rs. 40,000. After his death, v
. ,]us nephew Jhnntla bmgh rmmmﬂd m t.ha m

sn’ possession of Amritsar, aml the power of the -.-. _+1,.
being on the decline, he joined the young Chief and
ned from him a grant of eleven villages in the Amritsar
e, thongh he lost all the old jagirs in Gujrat and Smﬂmt;l b
da Singh fought in many of Ranjit Singh’s campaigns,
- _"g-thﬂﬁeuf Kashmir and Kangra. In 1833 he was &
: _. ed in a private quarrel witl' one Jit Singh, commandant,
iwho also died of the wounds he veceived. Jhanda Singh
vears to have been the aggressor in this affair ; for on Jif
h’s family complaining to the Maharaja all the ]ugu-t of
A Singh were resumed, with the' exception of Chicha.
ala Singh, his son, was two years afterwards taken in
rour and received back a portion of the jagir, mb]euﬁ‘
_mnftenhuﬂemﬂn Hemedferﬂumetamem

frontier at Bannu and Kohat. ] _
: ernla ng‘h had marnad tha daughter of Har-:lar Atar

ot hm;ﬁlrﬂllmpgmsmmnﬁmiadhyh{ahmm
b when he ascended the throne. When the Sindl ‘
Al ‘eame into favour the jagirs were relensed, ﬁ“j' e
sgain resumed by Raja Hira Singh, whose father the Sindhan.
walias had assassinated. 5
leahﬂinghm:u 1844, His son Karpal Sic
then only seven years old, and Msharaja Bsﬂp




5k b ach pension of Rs. suupeemm
f Karpal Smgh'ummrmiﬂng m_tﬂr w..
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